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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EF B HE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—BENF —BFNFE —E-FF —T——fF —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T BT BT T

(restated)

(&%)
Total assefs BEE 10,413,952 10,814,596 82,663,490 85,934,537 89,703,818
Total liabiliies ma 4,266,413 4,308,272 71,721,422 74,275,957 77,410,789
Total nef assefs BETEEE 6,147,539 6,506,324 10,942,068 11,658,580 12,293,029
Nef assefs value per share SREERE BEH$16.14 T BEBHS17.00 BB HKS2890  AEHKE30.80 | B¥ HK$32.47 T

Profit for the year aftributable AERFAFABRR
- 209,326 356,091 507,958 600,371 480,010
fo owners of the Company ZAE R

Basic earings per share SREARF| BB HKS0.55 T AEHKS094  BEHKS$1.34w  AEHKS159m | BEHK$1.27 &
Dividend per share SRBE AEHKS0.15 T AEHKS0. 8T BEHKS0.25 7 A HKS0.30m | A% HK$0.28 1t
Dividend payout ratio EEHE 27% 19% 19% 19% 22%

o
K

210g bodey [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy

note:  Tofal assets, total liabilities, fotal net assets, net assets value per share for the year ended 31 December 2008 and 2009, profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company and basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010 have not been restated as it is not cost

effective.

F: BEZZN\FR_ZETNFT A=+ HEFEILEE HAF BEFELHE SREEFERBE_ZTN\F —ZTAFR_T—
ZEF A=+ R LEFESRRARABRRZANFZEN R ESRERBNER ARG RE - L EST)



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS CHARTS EF 8% EE &

Total Assets #8°& &=
HK$ in Billion /% +187T
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Total Net Assets & =/ FEAREE
HK$ in Billion ¥ +1{87T

Basic Earnings per Share B RZEARZF|
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group’s performance as well as
some observations from the overall macro-economic environment for the year
2012 and expectations for the year ahead.

RATRARR B FE2|MARB _T—_F2xERE -
ARBRNEREEEIRE CBRME - HIRFRRCHE -

Dr. Liu Lit Mo BEZIR 1B+

LLD, MBE, J.P. Chairman and Managing Director = fi& 5% & =% 48 4 38



Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group's performance as
well as some observations from the overall macro-economic environment for

the year 2012 and expectations for the year ahead.

ECONOMIC REVIEW

The global economy continued its road fo recovery in 2012 but growth
remained sluggish. The concems surrounding the European Union and the
financial health of some of its member states which had mounted since
2011 were still very much on the minds of everyone for most of the year. In
the face of such froubled waters, major central banks pushed ahead with
various quantitative easing measures, notably the "“QE3” and “QE4”
launched in the United Stafes and other monetary stimulus measures in
Europe and Japan as well as interest rate cufs in China and Australia. The
combined effect of these policies contributed towards a relatively
remarkable performance in the global assets markets and stock markets.
Towards the end of the year, it became apparent that there was a gradual

shift in investors focus from the debt markets fo the equity markes.

For China, 2012 was another year of solid growth despite signs and
speculations of slowing down. With GDP hitting just below RMB52 frillion
and recording a 7.8% year-on-year increase, China’s position as the
fastest-growing economy was unrivalled. On the other hand, China’s
defermination to curb property prices remained firm and we saw property
transactions grinding fo a near halt in the first half of the year raising
concerns over the cashflow positions of some local developers. In the
second half of 2012, some limited easing measures were introduced to
increase liquidity and lower borrowing costs which offered some breathing

space to the PRC property industry.

HWE R

AARAR BETERARR_T—_F2
%F‘@EE ARAANHBRBEBEREZER
CHRFERIHE -

EED R

“E-CFERKBEBHER K BK
BIRRERIDREE - B -F— —FURAE

%Eﬁﬁéﬁ’ﬁuﬁ%&ﬁﬁ oK B B K 8 B AR
RE E_T—_FHABOREHEFEEA
HE - MEMPRZIER  FBRITHETSE
SERBR  XEE®T [QE3] M QE4]
BER - BN - BAREBIRE H BRI

PEAMRMEG THEANEK « FLBRHOEZES X
2T 2REARTISZRRET S ZHBE
BENKR -E_T—_FRUPABEFIR
BENEMRDBFEHREBTHEMREMS o

HRPBRME BEZAMADTRINBFAIG
RWAE E_ZE-_FRARKEBERENLER

W—F - 2FEHASEELERIARES2SE
B W EFRR7 8% RARBEREE
RRHALBEBMAT - Z—FHH - PREBASE
HIEENAROEBE  E¥FEMARE TR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

Back home, the Hong Kong economy grew modestly in 2012. GDP rose
by 1.4% in real terms as compared with 2011 and the local labour market
remained stable, with unemployment rate falling slightly to 3.3% in the
fourth quarter of 2012 amid slow economic growth. With the superlow
interest rate environment, however, the local property market seemed
unstoppable and property prices surged to surpass the 1997 peak. The
introduction of Buyer's Stamp Duty and Special Stamp Duty during the year
appeared fo have limited effect on the property price surge and did not
help the local housing problems. There was much expectation on the local

govermnment and no-one had the perfect answer.

The year of 2012 was also a year of political elections and regime
changes. We saw the reelection of President Obama, the election of the
first female South Korean president, a new [and young) North Korean
leader and a new Japanese prime minister as well as, closer to home, the
transition info the 18th National Congress of Communist Party of China
and the election of Mr. C Y leung as the new Chief Executive of Hong
Kong. We have reached a delicate juncture, across the spectrum from
local to national to regional and international levels, where careful

decisions must be made fo shape the future of our next generation.

EERBE_T-_FREEER AHAE
BER_T——FERER1 4% BT
SRERE  ERBEREERY  FHFE
BREREMTEZE 3.3% WM - HEBER
MERET AFEHETSERUTZE
IR ET  EE@BB - NWNtFEHEB
RV TRIE - FEEFKENER MBI ENER A
HEUFHBHEMEERBIHERAR -
HEpARHEEFBUAREN - ERERHE
bt ARHFREFAT TESZHE  UFXR
BAREZERER -

R CHENRBUAEBMBIEE RN —F -
E—F BMRETRESAREET B8
FULEGHRE  LBE U FENHNE
BA BATNELFENR - D2XL - HMR
BEITRETNANBREIRIRREEERER
ERFRTREN —ETHEE - BERRK
PMEmE —EFZEEFOME  LFEX
WHEER TARSIERSERERE 88—
ERRMEZREMES - TR T —HREBE
FBAFHIARIR ©



BUSINESS RESULTS

For the accounting year ended 31 December 2012, the audited

consolidated profits of the Company and its subsidiaries amounted to
approximately HK$758 million (basic eamings per share: HK$1.27), an

decrease of approximately 14% over the previous year.

The Board of Directors has proposed to recommend at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting to be held on Wednesday, 8 May 2013, the
payment of a final cash dividend of HK$0.18 per share. Together with the
interim cash dividend of HK$0.10 per share paid on 27 September
2012, the total cash dividend amounted to HK$0.28 per share for the
year 2012,

BUSINESS REVIEW

BANKING BUSINESS

The Company holds a 50.20% shareholding interest in Chong Hing Bank
Limited (the “Bank”). The Bank has announced that its audited consolidated
profit affributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to HK$543 million, an decrease of 3.10% over that for the year
before. Total customers’ deposits increased 4.15% to HK$67.5 billion.
Total loans fo customers (after accounting for impairment allowances)
decreased 3% to HK$39.2 billion. Total assets increased 4.26% to
HK$80.8 billion. Total equity compared with the previous year increased
7.3% to HK$7 4 billion. A final dividend of HK$0.35 per share has been
declared and will be paid by the Bank fo its shareholders. Details on the
Bank’s financial results for the year ended 31 December 2012 may be

found in its annual report, which is also published on www.chbank.com.

EERR
BE-T-—F+-A=tALEHFE
BB AR RENER T 255
#5754 758,000,000 7¢ (SBEAEF : B

1.2778) » MEFE L 14% -

EEeRN T =FRANB(RH=)R
TZEERRBFARS  EREERARS
REFREL0.18T - ERER T —_4F
NAZT+HHAEBREZHHRREBRE

010 —T——_FEZHEEBEEHSR
BB O0.28 T -

35 [0 BR

HMITRH
ARBFAREBERTAERAATHTD
50.20% i - Z1TEM - EBME_T——F

TA=ST - BIEFELERGERRENS
i ) & 78 #543,000,0007T © 8 £ F T &
0% B FRAEFEIB ML I%E B
67,509,000,0007¢ » B E #4858 (5T AR
B R ) TR 3%Z 8% 39,200,000,0007T °
4B E E I p14.26% = 7 % 80,755,000,000
JC ° B AR A7 400,000,0007T © X
FIHIN7.3% o %17 3E % M H AR K 3 R BAAR
EERBEOIST  ZITHE_T—_F
T AT BIEFREMBEEFRNESE
HA - BEFIRITF www.chbank.com Z 4
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

Chong Hing Bank Centre ) # $8 17 1 &




HK PROPERTY BUSINESS

CHONG HING SQUARE

Chong Hing Square maintained a high occupancy rate throughout the
year, which stood at 100% as at 31 December 2012. This 20-storey
retail /commercial bui|ding is located in the heart of /\/\ongkok, Kow|oon,
and provides 182,000 square feet of refail space and entertainment

facilities.

CHONG YIP SHOPPING CENTRE

With an occupancy rate of 96% as at 31 December 2012, Chong Yip
Shopping Centre remains one of the favourite shopping cenfres in the
western part of Hong Kong Island with 54,000 square feet of refail space

and entertainment facilities.

WESTERN HARBOUR CENTRE

This is currently a 28-storey full sea-view grade A office building with a
gross floor area of 140,000 square feet is located at Connaught Road
West and within close proximity to the Western Harbour Tunnel. In order to
realize a better gain for the Group, the Board of Directors has resolved fo
re-consider and re-structure the use of this property. This property has been

vacated since the third quarter of 2012 pending execution of such plans.

FAIRVIEW COURT
This low-ise deluxe apartment block located in Repulse Bay is 60% let and

its rental revenue is in line with market conditions.

FERMWERY

ARES

AEESFALEXRERSE R2F—=
FH+-_A=T—"HEEAXR/100% T
E/WMEREVENERACHELE B85
Z+E - B 182,000F 5 REE M KR

LR

- E R
BIERISEEAEEREEIEN ZE YT
D2z —  TE R RIREER MEE & E 54,000
FHR RZE-——F+-_A=+—HzH
FAKIZE Q6% o

E &
E2ESRARTEEE -+ /\E B£E
FEIE 140,000 FHR » A7 A F 87 - BEAP
AEEEEBEAD BEREERE A%
BEESRRBENZERETAEAYE
ZR%- AELETE - kEE T ——F
E=FEREEE -

EEH
URRKEZETBEREAEFE - REH
H60% » HE S WA ZRETIR o
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

CHATHAM GATE

Chatham Gate is a redevelopment project undertaken by the original
shareholders of The Belcher's, in which the Group holds a 10% equity
interest. The project calls for the erection of two blocks of 32-storey
residential building on top of a 2-storey commercial complex and carports.
Construction of this property has been completed and the pre-sale results

have been encouraging.

TAI PO PROJECT

The Group acquired this 262,000 square feet plot of land in Tai Po, New
Territories, for longferm investment. Ongoing feasibility studies are being
carried out and the Group will implement its development when the

opportunity arises.

F P
AHFEHEREARBRRER CEZER -
REBFAEZAEB 10%RAERD - ZBERN
MERSLREELBEEMEES=1T_EZ
EEXRE - ZMENZEIRETK B
ERRABIEE o

RIEHEB

7K 52 [ B8 A U 8 12 70 i SR K3 4 3 262,000
FHRZHBIERGIRE - RIEETAITHE
ik - AKESREE FEERZEAR -



PRC PROPERTY BUSINESS

CHONG HING FINANCE CENTER, SHANGHAI

This flagship property of the Group was complefed in 2008. located at
288 Nanjing Road West in Huangpu District of Shanghai, this 36-sforey
Grade A commercial building commands a strategic location and enviable
view over The People’s Square just across the streef. With a total floor area
of over 516,000 square feet of office and commercial space and 198
carparks, this property was 0% let in terms of office space and 100% let
in ferms of refail space as at 31 December 2012. The Group has invested
more than RMB 1.2 billion in this asset and intends to hold it as a long term
investment. Total rental revenue generated from this property in 2012 was
approximately HK$139.6 million, representing a yearon-year increase of
approximately 13%. Service standards and building facilities will be
upgraded from time fo time in the Group's continued strive to improve the

quality and revenue income of this material asset.

Chong Hing Bank Centre £l 8 817 /2 /x

PEERS

L5 RIS R AL
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HEFBLRBEXREHEEERS16,000F 7
REIBEELMN R_F——_F+ A
=t—RB - kWEZRFEHEXZEL
TERMBEERAR100% - REBER LA R
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

Chatham Gate & 45

THE GRAND RIVIERA, FOSHAN

The Grand Riviera is a large-scale development project currently undertaken
by the Group. Situated on a plot of land with site area of over 260,000
square mefres at 1 Guilong Road, Luocun in the Nanhai District of Foshan,
it is conveniently located within half an hour's drive from the Foshan
financial district and within an hour's drive from downtown Guangzhou.
The project boasts a landscape rafio of more than 40% and adopts a
southern French approach to its design. With its unique characteristics
which include a 1 km-long carfree “avenue of trees”, scenic lakes and
landscape features, The Grand Riviera will offer a luxurious, relaxed and
healthy living environment for its residents whilst at the same time becoming
the new centre of affraction in Foshan. As af the date of this annual report
and as announced on 4 February 2013, the Company is in current falks

with a potential purchaser to realize this investment.

Western Harbour Centre JE 7 /s

HLBHBRNTEE

RMEMNEE BAKER EET 2 KA E R
R - ZBRBMEGILMEEREN SRR
5% - HbIRE TR 200,000 F 5K - 3@IBHE
BREGILERETRY/EER  MEEE
BMHHRLIRRE —/NEF - RIEBRIEERS
BA0%  HRFARBEEBIEAIS - BEB
REH  BERERE-QRBZITAERIHMAKX
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BUDGET HOTEL PROJECT RBEAEEEREB
The Group has invested in a budget hotel project currently consisting of two ~ ANEE R B —BLERHEEE - BEA

budget hotels in Shanghai, one in Guangzhou and another one in Beijing, EMRBIR L8« —RREM R —RBRERZ
all of which are operated under the PRC domestic budget hotel chain 4 #1F [ + 2 2B45 A AR B 7N b 388 4K 4% 5 AU

A
known as “Hanting”. Total revenue recorded in 2012 from such operations  SF 5 [ | 7 BB &% - BEAER A -
was approximately HK$49 million. — TS 2 BIRE KRB 49,000,0007T
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT HEmE
Liu Chong Hing Property Management and Agency limited, established in g Al @& 8 KA B AR A a R — L+t~
1976, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and is principally  ® gy » AR AR EHBAT  TETEE
responsible for managing certain properties developed by the Group. In  &BAEBEE Y E T Y - HEK  H¥
recent years, it also expanded its operations to cover third party properties. B IIEREBEZE - A YWE - ZAFTR -
lts revenue remained stable in 2012. — —EMEETUILS o
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Stepping into 2013, there have been rumours of a refreat by the United
States in the quantitative easing measures. These were quickly clarified but
invesfors are jittery and confidence is af a low. There is sfill a long way to
recovery for the United States and the European Union and we are
cautiously optimistic that things will turn out better, based on the latest
released figures. With the various monetary policy measures and improved
supervision over systematic risks of financial markets in place, barring any
further major setbacks, we expect to see more liquidity in the world markets
in the year ahead. Interest rafes should, under the current course of things,

continue to remain at low levels.

In China, we expect overall economic growth to confinue but at a slightly
slower pace than 2012. On the property markef, we expect the current
controls will remain in place for some time and the 2013 operating
environment will be challenging. There is still much demand in the domestic
market and with the liberalization and decentralization of markets, we see

opportunities for further growth.

In Hong Kong, the recent infroduction of stringent anti-inflationary measures
on the local property market has taken some by surprise and has certainly
made an impact on local property transactions. The Chief Executive Mr.
C Y leung delivered his first Policy Address in January, in which he unveiled
his directions for the development of Hong Kong and ifs sustainability as a

fop financial centre.

BERE

BA—T—=%F AEEHIEBHHEENL
RRBE - - #AEERREB - AMBRE
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As we move into 2013 and a new era, our world leaders will face difficult
challenges ahead. The domestic social and economic issues surrounding
China and Hong Kong as well as the North Asian political stability will
perhaps be top on our immediate agenda. We hope our world leaders
will continue fo foster economic growth and cross-border partnerships whilst
maintaining political stability and social harmony. For without the latter, we

will have litfle chance of achieving the former.

SINCERE ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

| would like to express my heartfelt thanks to stakeholders and shareholders
for their continued trust and support, to all my fellow directors for their wise
stewardship, and fo our senior management and staff for their commitment

and dedication.

Dr. Liv Lit Mo
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 7 March 2013
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The Board of Directors of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Directors”)
has pleasure in presenting fo the Shareholders its annual report together

with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December

2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates are shown in Notes

58 and 32 fo the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs af that date are sef out on

pages 108 to 296 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An inferim cash dividend of HK$0.10 per share was paid to shareholders
on 27 September 2012. The Direcfors recommend a final cash dividend
of HK$0.18 per share making a total cash dividend of HK$0.28 per

share for the year.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the movements in
reserves of the Company during the year are set out in Note 49 to the

financial statements.

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution fo shareholders as at 31
December 2012 comprised the accumulated profits of
HK$1,758,458,000 (2011 (as restated): HK$1,853,507,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Movements in investment properties and assets held for sale during the year

are sef ouf in Notes 33 and 37 respectively fo the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are sef out in

Note 34 to the financial statements.
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Movements in properties under development for sale/properties held for

sale during the year are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Defails of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 48 fo the

financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on @ May 2012, which replace the
previous share option scheme, for the primary purpose of providing
incentives fo directors and eligible employees, and will expire on 8 May
2022. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options fo eligible
employees, including executive directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from fime fo time, grant share options fo outside eligible

third parties at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
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The fofal number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue af any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval

from the Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the share
option to the 5Sth anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the
higher of the nominal value of the Company’s share on the date of grant,
the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, or the closing price of the shares

on the date of grant.

No options have been granted under the above mentioned scheme since

the Scheme was adopted.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Particulars relafing to the subsidiaries and associates are set out in Notes

58 and 32 to the financial statements respectively.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED
Details of bank loans and other borrowings repayable within five years are

set out in Note 44 1o the financial statements.

The Group’s interest has not capitalised during the year (2011:
HK$10,614,000).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up fo the date of this

report are shown on page 76 of this annual report.

The term of office of each director, who has been longest in office, shall
refire by rotation and offer themselves for re-election in accordance with the

Company's Articles of Association.

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Dr, Liu
Lit Chung, Mr. Andrew Liu and Mr. lee Wai Hung shall refire by rotation
in accordance with Articles 92 and 99 of the Company’s Arficles of

Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The biographical defails of directors and senior management are set out on

pages 81 o Q1.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independent pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considered all Independent Non-executive

Director are independent.

COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

All directors have confirmed that they complied with the required standards
sef out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set ouf in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules throughout the review

period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE EEEALATRENBIERE 2B
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS TiES

As at 31 December 2012, the long/short positions of each of the direclors  p—ZE——F&+-A=+—F  BEZEK
and chief executives and their associates in the shares and underlying  HR &S (&I S XV S 352 (KB AT Y B2
shares of the Company or any of the Company’s associated corporations  FRERE04% @ R E - (TR 4B R H B A +
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance  ZEARA T R HIEKEE (FE B [BE RS
("SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 &5 | 25 XV 28) R 15 R AR AR (A thi A LA T
of Part XV of the SFO, are set out below: FR KA
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SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED HERGHRHTFE
CORPORATIONS
A) THE COMPANY i e
(A) THE COMPAN () & A :
Lliv Chong Hing Investment Limited BRI DA R AT =
P
NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD HELZBERR BB >
Total interests E}L
Family inferests as approximate % )
Personal interests (interests of spouse Corporate interests of the relevant m
(heldas  or child under 18) (interests of controlled issued share capital
beneficial owner) RikER corporation) Ry
AARE (REBIBEAT DR Total inferests BRITRE
Name of Director Esps (BEREH) TavER) (FEFHARZESR) Y 3 BHEL =
Dr. Liu Lif Mo, BRREL 795,600 — 171,840,189 172,635,789 45.60%
Chairman and IEFH (notes 1 and 2)
Managing Director EEHL (HE-RZ)
Mr. Liv Lit Chi BREEE 141,668 = 210,963,253 211,104,921 55.76%
(notes 1 and 3)
(E—-R=)
Mr. Liv Kom Fai, Winston ~ BE&18%4 3,320,400 — — 3,320,400 0.87%
Deputy Managing Director FIEBHEE
Dr. Liu Lit Chung BRIREE = = 165,840,189 165,840,189 43.81%
(note 1)
(BEE—)
Mr. Andrew Liv BRmEE 3,479,905 = = 3,479,905 0.92%
Mr. Ng Ping Kin, Peter AREBEE 20,000 — — 20,000 0.01%
notes: FRE
1. 165,840,189 shares in the Company are beneficially held by Liu's Holdings Limited, of ~ — -  BERREL - BRIBLEERBILBEREREE 2
which Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung are amongst its shareholders. BRARZIRE - ZRAEHESHEE AR ARG E’
The above numbers of shares are duplicated under the corporate inferests for each of 165,840,189 - RIERE - EREFH T Z QA -
these directors. EmIBENER ° ;;
2. Eternal Wealth Limited, of which Dr. Liu Lit Mo and his associates are shareholders, = BEREBIREBMBEALTATEBRARZKE - it
beneficially holds 6,000,000 shares in the Company, and thus is included in the Z AT EmBEAARRRRG 6,000,0000% - I 54 »
corporate inferests of Dr. Liu Lit Mo. FEERELE T2 AR#EREAA - a
3. Alba Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates are shareholders, = PREEEREBMBATAEESRER AR ZK I
beneficially holds 45,123,064 shares in the Company, and thus is included in the R Z AR B EAARRIRRD 45,123,004 0% - A
corporate interests of Mr. Liu Lit Chi. WEREBREAER T2 ARERIEEA ° |
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SUBSIDIARY

Chong Hing Bank Limited (the "Bank”)

(2) K82

BIBERTHERAA([ZRTT])

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD %5 & &M% B

Total interests

Family inferests as approximate %
Personal interests  (interests of spouse Corporate inferests of the relevant
(heldas  or child under 18) (interests of controlled issued share capital
beneficial owner) RikER corporafion) EREE
AAEE (REIBEAT AAER Total interests 2RTRA
Name of Director EEng (B#EA) Fueksz) (FEFHARZER) B BRESE
Dr. Liu Lit Mo, BRREL 1,002,450 = 258,359,628 259,362,078 59.62%
Chairman EJ: (note 1)
(FizE—
Mr. Liv Lit Chi BRBRE 313,248 = 260,622,839 260,936,087 59.99%
Deputy Chairman & BIFEE (notes 1 and 2)
Managing Director EEHEE (MEF—R=
nofes: B

fi

(i)

(m)

The corporate interests in 258,359,628 shares are aftributed as follows:

218,359,628 shares held by the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Liv Chong Hing
Estate Company, Limited (“Liv Chong Hing Estate”), in which each of Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr.
Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung is deemed under the SFO to be interested through Liu's
Holdings Limited, a private company holding approximately 43.81% of the Company’s
issued and fully-paid share capital; and

40,000,000 shares held by The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited (“BTMU").
Pursuant fo an agreement in 1994, BIMU has granted an option to Liv Chong Hing
Estate exercisable at any time during the term of that agreement fo purchase all such
shares and BTMU is required to offer to sell all such shares to Liv Chong Hing Estate in
cerfain circumsfances. By virtue of the interests of Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr.
Liu Lit Chung in Liu Chong Hing Estate through Liu's Holdings Limited, each of them is
deemed under the SFO to be interested in such shares.

2,263,211 shares are held by Alba Holdings Limited, shareholders of which include
Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates. Accordingly, Mr. Liu Lit Chi is deemed under the SFO
to be interested in such shares.

SHORT POSITION IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

Other than as stated above, as at 31 December 2012, no director, chief

executive nor their associates of the Company had any inferest or short

position,

whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares or the

underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

— - DRz 258,359,628 Ak - BITRFIEIA ¢
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS

As at 31 December 2012, the following person [other than the directors or
the chief executives of the Company), had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO or as

otherwise nofified o the Company was as follows:

FERRRAEMALIHED

R-_TE——F+_A=+—H8 BARF=E
SRITHBHEIN - THIALTRARF Z KD
RABBROT  MAARRBREEARHAE
RPI%E 336 IRATHEZ E LML A
MERRNRZERTOABAT ¢

Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity No. of ordinary share held % of the issued share capital
TERREH &4 FEEBERRAEE HERTRATAY
Liu's Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 165,840,189 43.81%
BREEERAR ERBEA (note 1)

(HiE—)
Alba Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 45,123,064 11.92%
FEEBERAR EGkEA (M(Tnge_Zg

All inferests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares of the
Company.
nofes:

1. Liu's Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, of which Dr. Liu
Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung are amongst ifs shareholders. Such corporate
inferests are also disclosed in the sub-section under “Directors’ interests in Share Capital
of the Company and its Associated Corporations”.

2. Alba Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by Mr.
Liu Lit Chi and his associates. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-
section under “Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its Associated
Corporations”.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been nofified by any
person (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company of 5% or more as at 31 December 2012 which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 56 to the Financial Statements, “Connected and
Related Party Disclosures”, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business, to which the Company or any of the Company's
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had,
whether directly or indirectly, a material inferest, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any fime during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
ferminable within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(I) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The related party transactions between the Group and the Bank and its

subsidiaries (the "Bank Group”) during the year are described as follows:

(@)  The Bank Group handled routine banking transactions for the Group.
Services provided by the Bank are cheque clearing, current, savings

and deposit accounts, remittances and other banking facilities.

(b)  The Bank Group provided securities and futures brokerage, nominee,
data processing services, insurance agency and underwriting

services fo members of the Group under normal commercial terms.

[c)  The Company through Liu Chong Hing Property Management and
Agency limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary, has provided property
management, property consultant and property mainfenance services

to the Bank Group.

Dr. Liv Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Dr. Liu Lit Chung, Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu
Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Ng Ping Kin, Peter and Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur
are interested, directly or indirectly, in the respective share capitals of the

Company and/or the Bank.
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(1) CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In March 2012, the Company entered info a lease agreement with the
landlord, a Company wholly owned by Dr. Liu Lit Mo, chairman and
managing director, and his spouse. The Company leased the property for
a monthly rent of HK$400,000 with retrospective effect from 1 January
2012 for a term of two years. For the year ended 31 December 2012,
the aggregate rent paid by the Company amounted to HK$4,800,000.

The Company also enfered info a lease agreement with Dr. Liu Lit Chung,
our non-executive director. Dr. Liu leased the property for a monthly rent of
HK$75,000 and the lease was renewed with the same term, effective
from 1 March 2012, for another two years ending on 28 February 2014.
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate rent paid by the
Company amounted to HK$200,000.

In March 2011, the Company entered info a service agreement with K.A.
Kho & Associates for its architectural and consultancy services provided to
the Company. Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher, our non-executive director,
is the sole director and the sole shareholder of K.A. Kho & Associates. For
the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate service fee paid by
the Company amounted fo HK$2,533,559.

The connected transactions between our subsidiary, Chong Hing Bank
Limited (“the Bank”) and COSCO (Hong Kong) Group Llimited and its
associates ("“COSCO Group”) during the year ended 31 December 2012

is as follow:

The Bank provided banking and related financial services to COSCO
Group including cheque clearing, current and savings accounts, fixed

deposits, foreign exchange, remittances and nominee services.

() MEBEAEES

RZE—ZF=R  AAFHEIEREFHE
KEPNRBLREAREBE2ERBEN A AR
FIHESH - e RE ABK400,0007T -
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ME - BE_E——_F+-_A=1T—HIHF
& AARHZHEE A 4,800,0007T °
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The connected transactions between the Bank and its directors and their

associafes during the year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows:

The Bank handled routine banking transactions for its directors and
their associates including cheque clearing, current and savings
accounts, fixed deposits, foreign exchange, remittances and other
banking facilities. Such fransactions are exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule T4A.33(1) of the Rules
Coverning the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited as such banking services are provided on normal
commercial ferms and are, among other things, (i) of a type ordinarily
supplied for private use; (ii) for the directors and their associates’ own
use; iii] of a total consideration that represents less than 1% of the
fofal revenue of the Bank as shown in its latest published audited
consolidated financial statements; and (iv) on terms no more
favourable fo the directors and their associates than those available

fo independent third parties.

The Bank entered into a tenancy agreement with the landlord, a
Company owned as fo about 80% by Mr. Liu Lit Chi, a director, and
as to about 20% by his associates (within the meaning ascribed to it
under the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), on 28 November 2012 for the
lease of a property for a monthly rent of HK$280,000 (exclusive of
ufilities, maintenance charges and other charges and outgoings) with
effect from 1 November 2012 for a term of two years. For the year
ended 31 December 2012, the rent, utilities, maintenance charges
and other charges and outgoings paid by the Bank amounted to
HK$670,000 which is below the annual cap in question as set forth
in the Bank’s announcement dated 28 November 2012 about this

matter.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected fransactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The audifor has issued his unqualified lefter
confaining his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected fransactions, details of which are also disclosed by the Group
in Note 56 to the financial statements, in accordance with Main Board
Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the audifor’s leffer has been provided by
the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

In the opinion of the directors who do not have any interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in the above transactions, the transactions were
conducted in the ordinary course of business of the Group on normal

commercial terms.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group's purchases atfributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers and the Group's tumnover attributable to the Group's five
largest customers were less than 30% respectively. None of the directors,
their associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital] has any inferest

in the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company and its
subsidiaries have notf purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares in the

Company.
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DIRECTORS REPORT EEg®H&EFE

SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION
TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

According fo the register of members of the Company as at 31 December

HERRH

HRESSH 10X
REARFRRECMOER R_F—=

2012, the top 10 largest shareholders are as follows: F+-_A=+—BEEBEES=H 10EE
LUl

Number of Shares held %

Name of Shareholder e FERO#EA BAL

1. Chong Hing (Nominees) Ltd. AlE (RE)BRAH 168,093,892 44.40
2. HKSCC Nominees Limited BRPREE (REAN)BRAR 120,433,800 31.81
3. Aba Holdings Ltd. FEEEARLF 35,000,222 9.25
4. BIMU Nominees (HK) Ltd. BTMU Nominees (HK) Ld. 10,000,000 2.64
5. Leung Hok Pang Leung Hok Pang 8,198,000 2.17
6. Win Ever (Nominees) Lid. Win Ever (Nominees) Lid. 8,000,000 211
7. Wragg Ltd. Wragg Ltd. 2,298,000 0.61
8. ToManTuen To Man Tuen 2,238,000 0.59
9. Cheng Kee Hong Cheng Kee Hong 2,000,000 0.53
10.  Cheng Kee Man Cheng Kee Man 1,300,000 0.34
Total CH 357,561,914 94.45




LOCATION OF SHAREHOLDERS
According fo the register of members of the Company as af 31 December

2012, the location of shareholders are as follows:

BES i
BEARARRBEMOEN N2
FH=A=t—BRESHMT :

Number of Shares held %
Location of Shareholders RED e BERAHE B
Hong Kong BB 378,515,140 99.9820
China and South East Asia HE] R RS 42,060 0.0111
Europe &M 800 0.0002
US and Canada ZEIRMEX 16,860 0.0044
Others Hity 8,580 0.0023
Total iRl 378,583,440 100

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT ROZLORBEBERE

The Group has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year

ended 31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors fo prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at the end of the
financial year and of their respective profit or loss for the year then ended.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required fo select
suitable accounting policies and apply them on a consistent basis, making
judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable; state the
reasons for any significant departure from accounting standards; prepare
the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is not
appropriate to presume that the Company and the Group will confinue in

business for the foreseeable future.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the Group and taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other

irregularities.
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DIRECTORS REPORT EEg®H&EFE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the Audit Committee are shown on page 77. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the internal controls and the
financial reporting requirements of the Group. The Audit Committee
meeting will normally hold twice of each financial year immediate before
the board of directors meeting for approving the interim and final results.
The Committee is satisfied with the Company's internal control procedures

and the financial reporting disclosures.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
The Company has substantially complied throughout the year ended 31
December 2012 with those paragraphs of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, with which it is

required fo report compliance.

Guidelines and procedures for corporate governance of the Company are

set out on pages 54 to /5.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who have expressed their willingness to continue in
office. Accordingly, a resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to reappoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors

of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Liv Lit Mo

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 7 March 2013
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LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED SIMPLIFIED ORGANIZATION CHART
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT B ZE = R

The Audit Committee is made up of six members, a majority of whom are

Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The Committee oversees the financial reporting system and infernal control
procedures. In this process, management is principally responsible for the
preparation of Group financial statements including the selection of suitable
accounting policies. External auditors are responsible for auditing and
affesting to Group financial statements and will report fo the management
of the Company from time fo time on any weakness in controls which come
fo their attention. The Audit Committee oversees the respective work of
management and exfernal auditors fo ensure the management has

discharged its duty o have an effective internal control procedures.
The Audit Committee had performed the works were as follows:

e To review the audited financial statements of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2012

e To review the inferim results of the Company for the six months ended

30 June 2012
e To review and monitor the external auditors” independence;
*  To review the system of internal control of the Company;
®  To review the audit plan and the engagement from external auditors;

© To make recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors;

and

° To review the sufficiency of manpower resources of account and

finance team of the Group in order to carry out the duties.

It was reported that no major internal control weakness was found and all
the recommendations previously suggested by auditors were agreed and

implemented by the management in 2012.

Based on these review and discussions, and the report of the external
auditors, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors
approval of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2012 with the Auditors’ Report thereon.
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The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that the shareholders be

asked to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s external

auditors for 2013.

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Tong Tsin Ka (Chairman)

Mr. Ng Ping Kin, Peter

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, 6 March 2013
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT R R ZEE2HE =

The Nomination Committee ("NC") consists of seven members, a maijority

of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

The main duty of the Committee is i) to review the sfructure, size and
composition of the board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes fo the board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; {ii)
to identify individuals suitably qualified to become directors of the
Company and select or make recommendations to the board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; [iii) to assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors of the Company;
and (iv)] make recommendations to the board on the appointment or re-
appointment of the directors and succession plan for directors, in particular

the chairman and chief executive of the Company.

The NC discharge its responsibilities by reference to the terms of reference
which setting out their roles, responsibilities and duties. The terms of

reference were duly authorized by the Board.

In year 2012, the NC had reviewed and discussed the following issues at

its meetings:

1. to review the composition and structure of Board of directors of the

Company.
2. fto review the attendance record of directors of the Company.
3. to review the scope of responsibilities of directors of the Company.

4. to recommend to the Board for the appointment of two persons as
independent non-executive director of the Company in order fo

comply with the requirement under the Listing Rules.

The NC is accountable fo the Board and minutes of the meeting are

circulated to the Board for information.

The NC meefs when required but atf least once per year.
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Members of the Nomination Committee REZEEHE o
3
Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman) BRUREB L (F/E) ?
o)
3
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HREE L a
ol
Mr. Ng Ping Kin, Peter mRELEE 8
O
Mr. Tong Tsin Ka ERFLE 3
0]
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher PR TE g
0}
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur & SRR 54 g
(@]
0]
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John HRsaE LT :
S
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT $ BN ZEEHREE

The Remuneration Committee ('RC") consisfs of six members, a majority of

whom are Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The main duty of the Committee is to formulate the Company’s remuneration
policy as well as to defermine and/or make recommendation to the Board
with regard fo the structure of remuneration packages for all directors and
senior management. When necessary and appropriate, the Chairman and

Managing Director are consulted on such issues.

The RC discharge its responsibilities by reference to the terms of reference
which sefting out their roles, responsibilities and duties. The terms of

reference were duly authorized by the Board.

The RC, having consulted with the Chairman of the Board, had reviewed

and discussed the following issues at its meeting:

e To review the Company's policy, structure and the remunerations

packages for all directors and senior management;

° To determine and/or make recommendation to the Board of the

Directors’ fees and other allowance for the year 2013; and
e To review and approve the annual performance bonus and its policy.

The RC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting are

circulated to the Board for information.

The RC meets when required but af least once per year.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Ping Kin, Peter

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Hong Kong, 6 March 2013
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B % &

(o]

2012 2011 2.

g —F——% g

HK$000 HK$'000 )

BT BT 2

(restated) gQ

(&) &

9

©)

g

Total operating revenue HRS el Gy 2,303,209 2,461,679 (6) g

:

Profit for the year attributable to DERARBRIRZ §

owners of the Company 7N 4 [ 55 | 480,010 600,371 (20) 3

HE

, 9

Basic earnings per share BFRREAR R BEHKS1.27 T BB HKS1.59 7T (20) =i

S

Dividend per share FIARE el

i

i)t
Inferim AR BEHKS0. 10T BEHKS0.127T (17)
Final NHA BHEHK$0.18 7t BB HK$0.187T -
Total S B HK$0.28 7T S HK$0.30 7T (7)
Dividend payout ratio IR B = 22% 19% 3
Net assefs value per share BREERE B¥EHK$32.47 8 A HK$30.807T 5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE 23w R 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2012, the audited consolidated profits
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) amounted to
approximately HK$758 million (basic eamings per share of HK$1.27)
comparing to 2011 of HK$883 million (basic earnings per share of

HK$1.59), representing a decrease of approximately 14%.

We analyze the changes of the financial results by banking and non-
banking business. For banking business, it mainly related to the results of
Chong Hing Bank Group ("CHB Group”) and for non-banking business,
the business activities were carried by Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

and its subsidiaries.

BANKING BUSINESS
1. The banking business recorded net operating profit before impairment
of approximately HK$534 million, similar to that of 2011 If
excluding the recovery of amounts previously written-off in relafion to
the Lehman Brothers Minibonds Repurchase Scheme of HK$235
million booked in 2011

improvement of 74%.

, the operating profit would have shown an

2. Net inferest income increased from approximately HK$816 million in
2011 to approximately HK$837 million in 2012 representing 3%
higher than last year. Total assets of CHB Group increased by
4.26% year on year to approximately HK$80,755 million and net
interest margin improved from 1.06% in the first half of 2012 fo
1.13% in the second half of 2012

3. Net fee and commission income dropped 13% to approximately
HK$ 189 million in 2012 from approximately HK$218 million in
2011 was mainly due fo the reduction in commission income from

securities dealings.

4. Other operating revenue comprised of nonfinancial services revenue

and other financial services revenue.
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Non-financial services revenue mainly referred fo the gross rental
income, sales of properties held for sale, sales of goods, property
management and agency fees, hotel operation income and dividend
income from an investee company. In 2012, non-banking revenue
decreased by 47% from approximately HK$723 million to
approximately HK$384 million was caused by the significant

dropped of sale of properties held for sale.

Other financial services revenue increased by 11% from
approximately HK$93 million to approximately HK$ 103 million was
mainly due to the increase of insurance underwriting premium and

the safe deposit box rentals.

Reversal of impairment allowances on loans and advances at
approximately HK$65 million in 2012 representing decrease of
39% comparing to that of 2011.

FemBBRREZEEHSBA - F
HEMEHE R  EMHERE Y
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TUIEAN 1 1% E#)7%E % 103,000,000 7T
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FUWA o
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Other gains and losses comprised mainly of nef gains on financial
instruments at fair value through profit and loss, net exchange gains
from foreign currency contracts and treasury activities and gain on
changes in fair value on other investment properties. The increase of
other gains and losses of HK$423 million in 2012 from HK$258
million in 2011 was mainly due fo the net gain on dealing in foreign
currencies and the gain on changes in fair value on other investment

properties.

Total customer deposits of CHB Group increased by 4.15% to
HK$67,509 million as at year ended 2012.

Chong Hing Bank’s core business and overall financial position are
health and sound. lts non-performing loan ratio is low and asset
quality is good. Both the capital adequacy and liquidity ratios are

well above the relevant statufory requirements.
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The Grand Riviera, Foshan — A Sirategy Summit on its Future Regional Impact
BLBHBMNEE — ESEETNSERE

The Grand Riviera, Foshan Property Sales Exhibition
HUBHSNEEEHERHR

NON-BANKING BUSINESS

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

OVERALL RENTAL REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded gross rental
revenue of HK$265 million, representing 3.5% increase comparing fo that
of 2011. Increase of rental revenue of HK$15.6 million (13% up) from
Shanghai Chong Hing Finance Center and HK$12.4 million (16% up)
from Chong Hing Square was partially offset by the decrease of rental
revenue of HK$8 million from Guangzhou Chong Hing Plaza, which
generated annual rental revenue of approximately HK$20 million was
disposed in May 201 1. Thus, no rental revenue from this property was
booked in 2012. The Group's rental revenue was further affected by the
redevelopment of Western Harbour Centre, an office building located at
181 Connaught Road West. Due to the redevelopment of the office
building, all tenants had been moved out in May 2012. It only recorded
rental revenue of HK$7.3 million in 2012 as comparing fo that of
HK$24.9 million in 2011,

The Grand Riviera, Foshan # 111 22 3# &2 il &
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The Grand Riviera, Foshan Tree Planting Event 4 1L 22 i £ M 1& B E B

OVERALL OCCUPANCIES
The Group's overall occupancies from their major investment properties

was successfully maintained at 93% as at year ended 2012.

HONG KONG PROPERTIES

CHONG HING SQUARE

Chong Hing Square, a 20-storey popular ginza-type retail /commercial
development situated in the heart of Mongkok, Kowloon, offers 182,000
square feet of retail and recreational space for lease. For the year ended
31 December 2012, Chong Hing Square was well performed. It
generated annual revenue of approximately HK$88.4 million, representing
an increase of HK$12.4 million {16% up) and the building was fully let as

at year end.

CHONG YIP SHOPPING CENTRE

Chong Yip Shopping Centre is located at 402-404 Des Voeux Road
West, it provides over 54,000 square feet of refail and commercial space
for lease. For the year ended 31 December 2012, this refail and
commercial shopping centre generated rental revenue of HK$19.2 million

(5% up) with 96% occupancy.
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Hanting Express-Shanghai Shang Nan ERE R #8 L8 /B JE

Hanting Hotel-Shanghai Song Jiang Fang Ta % 5 & /& - #8251 75 3% /5

FAIRVIEW COURT

Fairview Court was located at 94 Repulse Bay Road. It provides 5 unifs,
each of areas over 4,100 square feet, luxury apartment on a low-rise
building. For the year ended 31 December 2012, Fairview Court
recorded rental revenue of HK$6.4 million (20% down] with 60%

occupancy.

WESTERN HARBOUR CENTRE

Western Harbour Centre, a 28-storey grade A office building, located at
181-183 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong, close proximity to the
Western Harbour Tunnel, provides over 140,000 square feet office space
for lease. The management planned to renovate the VWestern Harbour
Centre into a lifestyle business hotel. Application fo Town Planning Board
for changing the existing usage into hotel use by the Group was
undergoing. Since all tenants had been moved out the building in May
2012, it only recorded rental revenue of HK$7.3 million in 2012,

representing a decrease of 7 1% comparing to that of 201 1.

Hanting Express-Guangzhou Yue Xiu Pan Fu SERER 5 BN i E 8RB E

Hanting Express—Beijing Da Guan Yuen % B tR #8 4t 50 A 85 B /5
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Property Management and Maintenance Services )3 & 2 & # {5 IR 15

Caring Company Community Participation Ef EBIEHES &

Caring Company Activity B3 BEELEEH

PRC PROPERTIES

CHONG HING FINANCE CENTER, SHANGHAI

Chong Hing Finance Center, Shanghai is located at 288, Nanjing Road
West, Huang Pu District, Shanghai. This 36-storey grade A office/
commercial building, completed in 2008, provides over 516,000 square
feet of office and commercial space and 198 carparking spaces for lease.
For the year ended 31 December 2012, this grade A office/commercial
building generated rental revenue of HK$139.6 million, representing an
increase of 13%. Office tower was 90% let and commercial and retail

areas were fully let as at year ended 2012.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

HONG KONG

Tai Po, New Territories

The Group had acquired a 262,000 square feet plot of land in Tai Po
district, New Territories. The management had initiated the studies for
rezoning and intended to seek eventual conversion of this land for future

residential use.
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PRC

The Grand Riviera, Foshan

In 2007, the Group acquired a plot of land with site area of over
260,000 square metres in Luocun, Foshan through government land
auction at a cash consideration of RMB476 million. This is a
comprehensive development and will be developed by phases. The first
phase development constructed 12 blocks of 6-14 storey high class
residential flats above the ground. A total of 847 residential flat units with
sizes ranging from 55 to 400 square metres are provided. It also provides
retail and commercial areas of approximately 8,600 square metres and a
stand-alone clubhouse of approximately 6,800 square metres, if including
other recreational facilities areas and 1,246 car parking spaces mainly
built at the basement level, total construction areas are over 181,000

square metres.

The first phase development was completed in 2011 and the construction
complefion certificate was also obtained in December 2011. As at the
year ended 2012, a fotal of 405 residential flat units (representing 48% of
the tofal units) and 139 car parking units (representing 12% of the total
units) were successfully sold out fetching total cash proceeds of

approximately RMB326 million.

Although the ongoing fightening policy to the real estate market in
Mainland China had brought many challenges and difficulties to the
Group, the management is still cautiously optimistic about the future

economy and the property market in Foshan.

On 4 February 2013, the Group had entered into a framework agreement
with an independenf third party for selling the entire share interests of a
subsidiary company which main asset is the property development of The
Grand Riviera residential project in Foshan. The fotal consideration of
approximately RMB 1,699 million was mainly referring to the underlying
assets of the disposed subsidiary. It mainly includes the remaining
completed unsold residential flat units, refail shops, carpark areas and the
standalone clubhouse and the undeveloped areas of approximately
455,000 square mefres. Due diligence exercise has already commenced
and the formal Sale and Purchase Agreement is scheduled to be signed

before 21 April 2013.
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Upon completion of the transaction, subject to the due diligence and final
price adjustment, the Group will receive an estimated gain of
approximately HK$716 million from the disposal of subsidiary and net
cash proceeds of approximately HK$ 1,885 million.

The management believes that the proposed transaction represents a very
good opportunity for the Group fo realize their investment in the project
with a reasonable refurn. This will also allow the Company fo re-strategy
their financial and capital resources to undertake new investment

opportunities that may arise in the future.

BUDGET HOTEL PROJECT

Since 2008, the Group had started fo operate budget hotel business. In
2012, the Group continued to operate four budget hotels, two in
Shanghai, one in Beijing and one in Guangzhou. All of these budget

hotels are managed by and under the brand name of Hanting.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, all hotels had achieved
improvements in business revenue, occupancies and average room rate.
The total revenue had increased from approximately HK$44 million in
2011 to approximately HK$49 million in 2012. The management is

optimistic about the future hotel business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group's equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31
December 2012 amounted to HK$8,596 million, representing an increase
of HK$469 million as compared fo that as at 31 December 201 1. The
increase in equity atfributable fo owners of the Company was attributed fo
the Group's net profit for the year of HK$480 million and net increase of
various investment and revaluation reserves of HK$95 million during the
year, less payment of final dividend for 2011 and interim dividend for
2012 totalling HK$ 106 million.
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FINANCE AND TREASURY OPERATIONS

BANK BORROWINGS MOVEMENT

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's total bank borrowings had
increased from HK$3,291 million to HK$3,709 million.

The management is well aware that a higher gearing level will not only
undermine the Company's longterm stability but also restrict its flexibility for
any new business venture. The management had defermined tfo closely

monitoring the gearing.

BANKING FACILITIES
The fotal outstanding bank borrowings as af 31 December 2012 was 75%

unsecured with almost 100% being on committed basis.

In managing the debt portfolio, the Group has endeavoured to maintain
diversified sources to obtain the required funding. Currently, the major
source of financing is still coming from the banking secfor, in which the
Group has bilateral banking facilities with over 13 banks, most of which

have esfablished long relationship with the Group.

The Group has also raised funding from arranging syndicated loans in the
past. The management will consider to widen the funding source from
capital market if both of the market conditions and terms are favourable to

the Company.
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COST OF FUNDING

In this year, the net borrowing margins in the money market were

increased.

The Group's weighted average cost of borrowing was increased slightly
during the year. The management expected that the cost of funding paid
for renewing of banking facilities would be increased gradually as most

banks would charge a higher interest rate to protect their business risk.

LIQUIDITY RISK AND CASH BALANCES

It is the Group's financial policy to maintain low leverage and high
liquidity. To maintain sufficient liquidity will not only help the Group fo fulfill
all short term payment obligations but also to improve the Group's working

capital.

Liquidity mainly comes from recurring rental income of various investment
properties, cash sale proceeds from various completed and uncompleted
development projects, dividend from Chong Hing Bank and committed

banking facilities.

LOAN MATURITY ANALYSIS

Liquidity risk could be further reduced by extending the loan tenors. The
Group’s debt maturity portfolio is spread out over a medium term, with
8% of debts

becoming due over 2 but within 5 years respectively. Such a maturity

more than 46% of debts becoming due within 2 years, and 1

structure allows the Group taking more flexibility on refinancing measures.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing interest rate and foreign exchange exposures, the Group may
use certain derivative instruments such as interest rate swaps, Cross currency
swaps, forward rafe agreements and foreign exchange contracts. It is the

Group's policy fo allow using derivatives as hedging purposes only.

With respect fo the counterparty risk of the derivatives, the Group fransacts

only with financial insfitutions with sirong invesiment-grade ratings.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

The volatility and uncertainty of the movement of inferest rate may result in a
potential negative impact fo the Group's financial position. Given that, the
management will actively involve and review the movement of interest rate

so as fo minimize the financial impact.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

It is the Group's policy fo minimize mismatch in currency and not to
speculate in currency movement. During this year, a total amount of HK$79
million was converted into Renminbi, mainly for paying construction costs in

Foshan project.

As af year ended 31 December 2012, other foreign exchange exposure
related to some major investments in Guangzhou, Shanghai and Foshan
projects which altogether amounted to the equivalent of about HK$5,852

million or 7% of the Group's assets.
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EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's remuneration policy, having been advised and determined by
the Remuneration Committee, will ensure that the pay levels of its
employees are reasonable and competitive in the market and their total
rewards including basic salary and bonus system are linked with their
performance. The members and the work done of Remuneration Committee

are shown on page 38.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
The Group continues fo participate and sponsor various activities organised

by various charitable acfivities.

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service conferred the Caring Company

to the Group for the fifth consecutive years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 12

During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has
substantially complied with the Provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Corporate Governance Code” or the “Code”] as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited ("Stock Exchange”)
with the exception of part of deviation as set out under the paragraphs on
"Chairman and Managing Director: clear division of responsibilities”

below.

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHART

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for the purpose of enhancing long ferm shareholders value.
The corporate governance chart adopted by the Company could refer to
Lliv Chong Hing Investment limited Simplified Organization Chart on
page 33.

(B) DIRECTORS

(Il  THE BOARD: RESPONSIBILITY FOR LEADERSHIP AND CONTROL
OF THE COMPANY

e  The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leadership and
supervision of the senior management for the purpose of creating
long term shareholders value by sustaining a growing and successful

business.

e The principal task of the Board is fo set objective, formulate strategy

and to monitor the operating and financial performance.

e  Duties of the Board include approving interim reports and annual
reports, announcements and press release of interim and final results,
considering the dividend policy, and approving the issue, allofment
or disposal or grant of options in respect of unissued new shares of

the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR: CLEAR DIVISION OF
RESPONSIBILITIES

The role of Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company
has not been segregated as required by the code provision A.2.1 of
the Code. The Board considers this arrangement is in the best interest
of the Company that by nature of the Group's business which
requires considerable market expertise and Dr. Liu Lit Mo, with his
profound expertise in the property and banking business, shall
continue in his dual capacity as the Chairman and Managing

Director.

Managing Director assumes overall responsibility for Group's
operation and performance by delegating duties to different
executive directors and senior management to achieve targeted
objectives. The Board gives clear directions to management as fo
their powers of management, circumstance in which the management

should make report.

BOARD COMPOSITION: BALANCE AND INDEPENDENCE

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, four Non-
executive Directors and five Independent Non-executive Directors of
the full Board. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Board met the requirements of the Llisting Rules relating to the
appointment of at least onethird of the Board should be Independent
Non-executive Directors and at least one of whom with appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors strictly
adheres to the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received written
confirmation of their independence from each of the |ndependent

Non-executive Directors.

The Board considers that the five Independent Non-executive
Directors are free from any business or other relationship which might
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment and each of
Independent Non-executive Directors brings their own relevant

expertise to the Board.

The presence of all Independent Non-executive Directors could

ensure that the Board functions effectively and independently.
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(v)

All of the Independent Non-executive Directors are also the
Committee Members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. In short, the three

committees have a maijority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

In addition, the Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012 comprising four Executive Direcfors
and two Independent non-executive directors to perform the corporate

governance dufies.

The biographies of the Directors appear on pages 81 to 89. These
demonstrate diversity of experience and calibre of the Board in

making management decisions.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations fo the Board on the appointment or re-appointment

of directors and succession planning for directors.

Those Directors who have been longest in office as at each annual

general meeting will retire from office and be subjected to re-election.

For newly appointed directors, they are required to submit themselves
fo shareholders for re-election to the Board at the first annual general

meeting following their appointment.

The Directors have entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company and were appointed for a specific term, subject fo
reelection and refirement by rotation atf least once every three years

in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rofation af least once every three years. Under the
Article 99 of the Company's articles of association, all directors are
subject fo refirement by rofation except the Managing Director who
shall not be subject fo retirement by rotation under Articles 107 of the

Company's articles of association.

Defails of the term of appointment of all the Non-executive Directors

and Independent Non-executive Directors are as follows:

() to perform such functions and exercise such powers as are
appropriate to your posifion as an independent non-execufive

directors or non-executive directors of the Company;

(V)
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(v)

(V1)

[i)  to comply with all laws, rules and regulations applicable to
you as a director of the Company, including but not limit to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong limited; and

i)  to notify the board of directors of the Company immediately
upon the occurrence of, or the directors becoming aware of,

any matter which may affect their independence.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS: GENERAL DUTIES, SHARE
DEALINGS

The Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as directors with
supportive commitment of creafing a healthy corporate governance

culture.

On appointment, new Directors will be given an introduction fo the
Group's major business acfivities, induction into their responsibilities

and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors

updated on Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
p g 9 ry req

Throughout the year, Direcfors complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

regarding Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Code Provision A.6.5 proposes that all directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their

knowledge and skills.

All directors are well aware of the requirement of attending

continuous professional training for the year ending 31 December

2013.

(V)
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(C) BOARD PROCESS

(1

MEETINGS: MATTERS RESERVED FOR FULL BOARD DECISION
AND GENERAL PROCEEDINGS

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance and in
compliance with the requirement as mentioned under Appendix 14
— Corporate Governance Code, the Board has performed fo hold

full Board meefing at least quarterly during the year 2012.

Matters reserved for full Board decision include material bank
facilities arrangement, material acquisitions and disposals of assets,
material fransactions with connected parties, significant investiments
including large capital projects, delegation of authority, treasury and
risk management policy, any matters involving a conflict of interest for

a substantial shareholder or director.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied with
and advises the Board on corporate governance and compliance

matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
and Board Committee meetings, which are normally circulated to
Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final signed version is sent to all Directors for their records

and open for Direcfors’ inspection.

All Directors are allowed to take independent professional advice at

Company'’s expense.

There is in place a directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance cover.

(C) EXEREERF

(1)
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Details of Directors’ 2012 meetings attendance are set out below:

R _FEEFERRCLEXRFHE

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HEERAH HEE
Executive Directors HITES
Liu Lit Mo, BZR
Chairman and Managing Director (TEFREFHEE) 3/4 75%
Liv Lit Chi B2 4/4 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston, BEE
Deputy Managing Director (BIESHAHE) 4/4 100%
Liv Kwun Shing, Christopher 28251
(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (TEBZIRELZERES) 3/4 75%
Lee Wai Hung SRR 4/4 100%
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Liu Lit Chung BZUA 0/4 0%
Andrew Liu B 2/4 50%
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BfRE 3/4 75%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher FFERR 4/4 100%
Independent Non-execufive Directors BUFHTES
Ng Ping Kin, Peter RRER 0/4 0%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BEE 4/4 100%
Tong Tsin Ka ERXR 4/4 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BiR N/A N/A
Ma Hung Ming, John BBt N/A N/A
() SUPPLY OF INFORMATION: QUALITY AND TIMELINESS () ERREMYM: BEEMREE
e The Company attaches great importance to confinually improve on  ®  #EEHREMEFERER 2 EZH R
the quality and timeliness of the dissemination of information fo the MRARB 2 HBER -

Directors.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring adequate supply of

information to the Directors.

The agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent in full fo
all Directors in a timely manner (we aim to give relevant documents
at least five clear days replacing current practice of at least three
clear days in advance of meeting). Where appropriate,

communications are sent electronically.

All Directors are currenﬂy provided with quorfer|y management
reports which showing the Group's financial and operating results
with detailed analysis of those major rental properties, property under

development and other investments.
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(D)

A full Board meeting, held by each quarter, were regularly taken for
the purpose of reviewing and updating the Company's business and

operating results with reference to the quarterly management report.

Managing Director is currently holding monthly infernal management
meeting with various department heads to update Directors on their
lines of business and to review performance for delegated

assignment.

All Executive Directors are currently provided with monthly
management accounts of the Company which give an updated

position/performance of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Procedures for Remuneration Committee to set Directors and Senior

Management's remuneration policy:

The Company has set up Remuneration Committee on 3 March
2005.

remuneration packages for all Directors and Senior Management.

Ilts terms of reference are to review and determine the

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by the Independent Non-
executive Director, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses and has a majority of

Independent Non-executive Directors.

lts other current members are Mr. Ng Ping Kin, Peter, Mr. Tong Tsin
Ka, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John (those
are Independent Non-executive Directors) and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,

Christopher (a Non-executive Direcor).
The Committee meets af least once per annum.
The main duties of the Committee include the followings:

(i)  to make recommendations to the board on or determine the
Company's policy and structure for all directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a

formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration

policy;

(D)
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(i)  to defermine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration i) BREBIIENATEENRESRE

o
packages of individual executive directors and senior BABZHMESE  BIEEWH %'
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and = RRSENEEEER 81 i

d
compensation payment, including any compensation payable FERERRIEBE T E 2B (SéD‘
for loss or fermination of their office or appointment; & o

3

liii) o make recommendations to the board on or determine the (i) MEEHANTEFZHFMRAEE S
remuneration of non-executive directors: @ EHES 8

o

o}

(iv) to review and approve the management’s remuneration livy BREEES2AFREBEERENE [0

o
proposals with reference to the board's corporate goals and B Rt ESIE B H s o )
objectives. S

3

Details of 2012 Remuneration Committee meeting attendance are o T FEHMEEeeR s HER £
S
set out below: 1B :]g
Number of Attendance wf
meefing attended Rate E
HEERRE HE=E T
Members of Remuneration Committee YMEEERE e
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Chairman BB () 1/1 100%
Ng Ping Kin, Peter RRER 0/1 0%
Tong Tsin Ka ERXR 1/1 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher TERR 1/1 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur EfR N/A N/A
Ma Hung Ming, John g N/A N/A
Cavior Liu, Secretary B#EE w2) 1/1 100%
The Committee is authorized by the Board to oversee and determine FEeRE TN RERREFHITE
the remuneration of Executive Directors and Senior Management. ELEHRERANE ZHM - WLt M
i o

No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration. On e BEEWELEETHERAZFHRE -

matters other than those concerning him, the Chairman or Managing BEBEESEAE  IEsiEEAKE
Director may be invited to Committee meetings fo give advices. T EIAYN 0 EESE ARSI ] E

FREeZeZMEHER -

Committee members are allowed under certain procedures fo fake e BEETRET T8 EEMIESY

independent professional advice at Company’s expense for making DETHEMEE A RENBTEXE

and determining the remuneration package proposal. B B A FEE -

The Committee will present a report fo the Board after each meeting, o FEeNEG e R ARNEEeERE ig]»

which addresses its work and findings. BH TEE N R ER SR 7 HE o =
g
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(E)
(1

(1)

The Committee will make recommendation to the Board regarding
the remuneration, comprising directors’ fees for all non-executive

directors, for shareholders approval at the Annual General Meeting.

Details on the mandate and summary of the work by the
Remuneration Committee during the year are set out in the

Remuneration Committee Report on page 38.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are available on

the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING: BALANCED, CLEAR AND
COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF COMPANY’S
PERFORMANCE, POSITION OF PROSPECTS

The Board believes that it presents a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group position and prospects in

all shareholder communications.

The Board fully appreciates its responsibilities regarding the

preparation of financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS: TERMS OF REFERENCE
AND RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT AND EXTERNAL
AUDITORS

The Audit Committee is chaired by the Independent Non-executive
Director, Mr. Tong Tsin Ka and has a maijority of Independent Non-

executive Directors.

lts other current members are Mr. Ng Ping Kin, Peter, Dr. Cheng Mo
Chi, Moses, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John
(those are Independent Non-executive Directors) and Mr. Kho Eng
Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-executive Director). All members have
experience in reviewing and analyzing audited financial stafements

of public companies or major organization.

The Committee meefs not less than twice per annum. Meetings are
also attended by invitation by the Managing Director and Executive
Director who is in charge of finance matters. The Committee also

meets not less than twice per annum with the Company’s auditors.

(E)
(1)
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The main duties of the Committee include the followings:

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(x)

fo be primarily responsible for making recommendations fo the
board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its

resignation or dismissal;

fo review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor o supply non-audit services;

fo monitor integrity of the Company's financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant

financial reporting judgements contained in them;

fo review the Company's financial controls, internal control and

risk management systems;

fo discuss the infernal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an

effective internal control system;

fo consider major investigation finding on internal control
matters as delegated by the board or on its own initiative and

management's response fo these findings;

fo review the Group's financial and accounting policies and

practices;

fo review the external audifor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of confrol

and management’s response; and

fo ensure that the board will provide a timely response tfo the

issues raised in the external auditor's management letter.
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¢ Details of 2012 Audit Committee meetfings attendance are set out T FERLEeesasHEXRF
below: BT
Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HEERRE HiE=
Members of Audit Committee ERZEERE
Tong Tsin Ka, Chairman ERR (ZE) 2/2 100%
Ng Ping Kin, Peter hRE 0/2 0%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BRE 2/2 100%
Kho Eng Tioan, Christopher TR 2/2 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BHR N/A N/A
Ma Hung Ming, John J=f 4 N/A N/A
Lee Wai Hung, Secretary B (m2E) 2/2 100%
. Under ifs terms of reference, the Committee is required, amongst e RiEHKESE TEeNE(HPE

other things, to oversee the relationship with external auditors, fo
review the Company'’s inferim and annual financial statements, and

to evaluate Group system of internal controls.

e  There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to fake

independent professional advice at Company’s expense.

e The Committee presents a report or makes advice fo the Board after

each meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

° Defails on the mandate and work performed by the Audit Commitiee
during the year are set out in the Audit Committee Report on

pages 34 and 35.

° The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

(ln)  AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Auditors had received from
the Company and its subsidiaries approximately HK$7.26 million for audit
and audit related services (201 1: HK$7.03 million) as well as HK$0.69
million for non-audit services (201 1: HK$0.74 million).
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(V)

(F)

INTERNAL CONTROL: SOUND AND EFFECTIVE SYSTEM TO
SAFEGUARD SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS AND COMPANY
ASSETS

Risk management is a crucial part of the Group's strategic
management to monifor the Company’s overall financial position and

to profect its assefs.

The Group is committed fo implementing effective risk management
policies and infernal control procedures to identify and manage the

risks that the Group may be exposed to.

These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
management fogether with the assistant by external auditors during
the course of audit to ensure their effectiveness and compliance with

Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

The Managing Director and Executive Director will discuss with
external Auditors in the Audit Committee meeting at least twice a
year on key issues in relafion fo internal confrols, audit finding and

risk management.

As concluded in 2012 Audit Committee meeting, no irregularities

and major weakness in confrol were found by the Auditors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 7 March
2012, which is mainly responsible for making recommendations fo
the Board on the appoiniment or re-appointment of directors and

succession planning for directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the Board.
The Committee shall comprise members not less than three and a

majority of the Committee was Independent Non-executive Direcors.

On the date of establishment, the Nomination Committee is chaired
by the Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Chairman of the Board and has a maijority of

Independent Non-executive Directors.
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lts other current members are Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Ng
Ping Kin, Peter, Mr. Tong Tsin Ka, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr.
Ma Hung Ming, John (those are Independent Non-executive
Directors) and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-executive

ZESHREMKEBRBUIFNTE
ERREFEL  OARBEE  FRRE
£ RIBRELENEBBELARIEHR
TTERFERREL -

Director).
The Committee will meet at least once per annum. ZEGEFRLBITREHE -

The main duties of the Committee include the followings:

() to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience required) of the board at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes fo the board to complement the Company’s corporate

strategy;

(i)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become directors of
the Company and select or make recommendations to the
board on the selection of individuals nominated for

direcforships;

i) to assess the independence of independent Non-executive

directors of the Company; and

(iv)] to make recommendations fo the board on the appointment or
re-appointment of the directors and succession plan for
directors, in particular the chairman and chief executive of the

Company.

Details of 2012 Nomination Commitiee meetfing attendance are sef

o
1o
1

\
U

ZEEBEBETIIRE

) =ZLEFRINESFEZIRE A
B AR (BIEREE - B RER
JE) Y ER AR A RNAE 2K
AR EESEL ZEBHIRH
et

i) VEEHERBEERAIEEARR
Bz AL UBGERERMERA
THEESFIRUAEESRHE
2R

i) FIEARBBUERTEFTZHE
A 33

(V) BMEFZEXAEHZEREFT
BIRARRERF RITRAR) BT
AEMESERMERS -

B FRAEEGEHRIUEER

o~
o~

out below: BmT

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HESZRH HiE=

Members of Nomination Committee BEZ88RKE8
Liu Lit Mo, Chairman BZR (ZE) 1/1 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses B 1/1 100%
Ng Ping Kin, Peter RRE 0/1 0%
Tong Tsin Ka FER 1/1 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher SRR 1/1 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B N/A N/A
Ma Hung Ming, John e N/A N/A
Lee Wai Hung, Secretary SE1E(BE) 1/1 100%
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(G)

According to the new Rule 3.10A, the appointment of additional
Independent Non-executive Director fo fulfill the requirements has

been completed in year 2012.

Committee members are allowed to take independent professional

advice at Company's expense.

Defails of the mandate and summary of the work by the Nomination
Committee during the year are set out in the Nomination Committee

Report on pages 36 and 37.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available

on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Company has set up the Corporate Governance Committee on
7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible for performing the

corporate governance duties of the Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Dr. Liu Lit Mo,
Chairman of the board.

Its other current members are Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Liu
Kwun Shing, Christopher and Mr. lee Wai Hung, all of them are
Executive Directors of the Company and Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

and Mr. Tong Tsin Ka (both are independent non-executive directors).
The Committee will meet at least once per annum.

The Corporate Governance Committee determines the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company. The dufies preformed by the

Corporate Governance Committee include the following:

(]  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the

board:

(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors of the Company and the senior

management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)]  to develop, review and monifor the code of conduct applicable

fo the directors and the employees of the Company;

(G)
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[v)]  to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Covernance Report as required under the Listing Rules; and

[vi)  to hold regular meetings with all department heads from time to
fime requesting them fo review their corporate governance
within the department and require them fo submit proposal or

remedy action to redress the mafters.

Details of 2012 Corporate Governance Committee meeting

attendance are set out below:

v BAXRAREETEEERT
AIRBEERBELEMRAUZEER
CEEARSELERE &
TREMEHMIEEETHRTS
& BREERSEAMARNZE
XEhH UTREZZIAERITH
MEERZE -

(Vi)

ERIEMT :

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HEERRE HiE =

Members of Corporate Governance Committee ~ SX¥EREEEHE
Liu Lit Mo, Chairman BZR (ZE) 1/1 100%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BHEE 1/1 100%
Tong Tsin Ka FER 1/1 100%
Liv Kam Fai, Winston BLE 1/1 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B3 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung i 1/1 100%

(H)
(1)

Commitlee members are allowed tfo take independent professional

advice af Company’s expense.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee are

available on the Company's website.

DELEGATION BY BOARD

RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT

The Board and management (include different departmental heads)
fully appreciate their respective roles with supportive commitments of

creafing a healthy corporate governance culture.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the processes that
management (include different departmental heads) has in place to

identify business opportunities and risks.

The Board's role is not to manage the business which responsibility
remains vested with management and different departmental heads.

The management is accountable to the Board.

(H)
(1)
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BOARD COMMITTEES: SPECIFIC TERMS OF REFERENCE AND
REPORT TO FULL BOARD

The Board currently has four Board Committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee with specific written terms of

reference.

The Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, each has a
100% non-executive membership with a majority of Independent

Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the Board

and has a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises four Executive
Directors and two Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board after

each meeting, which addresses their work and findings.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY
PREAMBLE

This policy sefs out the Company's standards and practice in relation to

communicating with its shareholders and prospective investors.

The Company is committed fo maintaining a policy of open and
timely disclosure of relevant information on its activities fo

shareholders, subject to applicable legal requirements.

The Company believes that providing regular communications fo its
shareholders and the market is important to ensure they have the
available information reasonably required to make informed
assessments of the Company’s strafegy, operations and financial

performance.
Communication channels
Communication is made through:

—  the Company’s annual and inferim reports, which have been
enhanced fo present a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group position and

prospects.

(1)

(1
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—  notices of and explanatory memoranda for annual and other
general meetings, which have been enhanced to provide
shareholders with additional information in an understandable

manner.

—  press releases on major developments of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

—  disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant regulatory

bodies.

—  Company's website at http: //www.Ichi.com.hk from which
shareholders can access information on the Group. The
website provides, inter alia, corporate announcements,
business development and operations, press releases, annual

reports, and corporate information of the Group.

() SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS
®  The Board welcomes moves towards a more constructive use of
Annual General Meetings and regards the Annual General Meetings

as the principal opportunity fo meet private shareholders.

e  Defails of Directors’ attendance of the general meetings of the
Company held for year ended 31 December 2012 are sef out

below:

(1)

— MERBFREMRREASZ2EE
RHARBETERZAR  AHRKIE
Rz HAMBIREHE— P EH

- ABRARAREMBAREANE
RZHE QM -

—  ABXFREWEEEEEL
-

— REAEBERRRZEE (A8
#http: //www.Ichi.com hk) A % 7&
AEBZER - WEBERME(HES
BRE)AEBIEENE  EBR
BREEE  HER FmREEER

¥ o
REAR
ERGLORFERTBFAT LRH
BBty EE  TRREAFASA

HERIRFEE  FE2HE o
BE-F-—5+-A=+—ALLFE
ZARRBIRRAG 2 EEHFEFEWN
™~

Number of Attendance
meeting attended Rate
HEEERE HiE =
Execufive Directors BTES
Liv Lit Mo, Chairman and Managing Director BRI (FEREELLE) 1/1 100%
Liv Lit Chi BAE 1/1 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Deputy Managing Director BEE (FEEasE) 1/1 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B
(also alfernate director o Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (PRBFIEEBLECEREE) 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung FElE 1/1 100%
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Liu Lit Chung BRUA 0/1 0%
Andrew Liv BE G 0/1 0%
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BEE 0/1 0%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher SRR 1/1 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ng Ping Kin, Peter ARE 0/1 0%
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BRE 1/1 100%
Tong Tsin Ka FER 1/1 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur E#HR N/A N/A
Ma Hung Ming, John Jocf N/A N/A




(m

(v)

The Company arranges for the annual report and financial statements
and related papers to be posted for shareholders so as to allow at
least 20 clear business days (exclude Saturdays, Sundays and public
holidays in Hong Kong] for consideration prior fo the Annual General
Meeting. And all other general meetings to be sent at least 10 clear
business days (exclude Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays in
Hong Kong).

The Board encourages and supports shareholder participation in
general meetings. Shareholders are encouraged to appoint proxies
fo attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are

unable to attend such meetings.

Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will be reviewed
on a regular basis by the Board to encourage the highest level of

participation.

Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the Board
committees and the external auditors of the Company will attend the

annual general meetings fo answer questions from the shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

Inquiries from shareholders, investors, media or the public are
responded by the Executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary or the appropriate members of senior

management.

The Company will respond in a timely manner fo shareholder queries

and concerns.

THE ADMINISTRATION OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
All ordinary shares of the Company have equal voting rights. Annual
General Meeting proceedings are continually reviewed in the light of

Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual

Directors.

()

(V)
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Preparation of a comprehensive Annual General Meeting circular

containing:
° re-election of Directors;
®  general Mandate to Repurchase Shares;

° general Mandate fo Issue Shares;
o amendments fo the Articles of Association, if any;
®  voling at Annual General Meeting; and

e comprehensive information on each resolution to be proposed.

The Company’s Articles contain the rights of shareholders to demand
and the procedures for a poll voting on resolution at shareholders’
meetings. Details of such rights to demand a poll and the poll
procedures are included in all circulars in relation to shareholders’
meetings and will be explained during the proceedings of
shareholders’ meetings. In case poll voting is conducted, the poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company on the business day following the shareholders” meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at

hitp:/ /www.lchi.com.hk where the Company’s announcements, business

development and operations, financial information, corporate governance

practices and other information are posted.

Information on top 10 largest shareholders and location of shareholders

are set out in Directors’ Report on pages 30 and 31 respectively.

(v)

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING (“EGM”)

Shareholders holding not less than onetenth (1/10) of the paid-up
capifal of the Company which carries the right of voting at general

meetings can deposit a written request fo convene an EGM.

The written request must state the objects of the meefing and must be
signed by the shareholders making such request, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more of those
shareholders. A request by joint holders of shares must be signed by

all such holders.
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(Vi)

The request should be deposited at the registered office of the
Company for the atfention of the Company Secrefary.

The request will be verified with the Company's share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is valid, the Company Secretary
will convene an EGM on behalf of the board of directors by serving
sufficient nofice in accordance with the statutory requirements or

applicable rules or regulations to all the registered shareholders.

If the request is verified fo be not in order, shareholders concerned

will be advised of the result and no EGM will be convened.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the request proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholders
concemed or any of them representing more than one-half of the fotal
voting rights of all of them may themselves convene an EGM, but
any EGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from the date of the deposit of the request.

In the case of an EGM at which a resolution is to be proposed as a
special resolution, the Directors shall be deemed not to have duly
convened the EGM if they do not give such notice as is required by

section 116 of the Companies Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

A request in writing must be made by:

(i)  Shareholders holding not less than onefortieth (1,/40) of the
fofal voting rights of all shareholders having the right to vote af

the meeting; or

[i)  not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the Company
on which there has been paid up an average sum, per

shareholder, of not less than HK$2,000.

to the Company to give to shareholders notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at an
annual general meeting, or to circulate to shareholders any statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business fo be dealt with at any

general meeting.

(v1)
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(vi)

The written request must be signed by all the shareholders concerned
in one or more documents in like form and deposited at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary not less than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution, and not less than one

week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is valid, the Company will give
nofice of the resolution or circulate the statement provided that the
shareholders concemned have deposited a sum reasonably sufficient

to meet the Company’s expenses in regard thereto.

It the request is verified to be not in order or the shareholders
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company's expenses for the said purposes, the shareholders
concemed will be advised of the result and no action will be taken

by the Company in that regard.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A PERSON
FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including Companies

Ordinance (laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules and the articles of

association of the Company as amended from time to time, if any

Shareholder(s) of the Company intends to propose a person other than a

director of the Company for election as a director of the Company at any

general meeting, the following procedures shall apply:

a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person fo be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which
such notice is given of his infention fo propose such person for
election and also a nofice signed by the person to be proposed of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged with the Board

of Directors of the Company at the registered office of the Company;

s EHBRAHMBARBREZI MK
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the minimum length of the period during which such notice(s) are
given shall be af least seven days and that the period for lodgement
of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the day after the
despaich of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the dafe of such

general meeting; and

in order for the Company to inform shareholders of the Company of
that proposal, such notice(s) for the nomination of a director must
state the full name of the person nominated for election as a director
and include the person’s biographical details as required by the

Listing Rules.
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HONORARY CHAIRMAN
M. Liu Lit Man, GBS, J.P., F.I.B.A.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Liu Lit Mo, LD, MBE, J.P.

(Chairman and Managing Director)
M. Liu Lit Chi
Mr. Liv Kam Fai, Winston

(Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher

(also alternate director fo Dr. Liu Lit Chung)
Mr. lee Wai Hung

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Liu Lit Chung, MBBS (lon), MRCP(UK), F.R.C.P. (lon)

Mr. Andrew Liu
Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,
Assoc, AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. [Architect), MHKIoD

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ng Ping Kin, Peter, MSc., J.P.

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, GBS, OBE, LB (HK), J.P.
M. Tong Tsin Ka, FCA (AUST), FCPA, FCIS
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

[appointment effective from 3 December 2012)
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, PhD, BBS

(appointment effective from 3 December 2012)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. lee Wai Hung

$EXFE
BRI A GBS, JP, FIBA.

EEE
BRiTES
BRURE L up, ME JP.
(FEFREFRLIE)
BRESRE
BIEFRETE)
PRy S
(TREBEFREEZERESE)
FEESLE
ERITES
2R FBE& A MBBS (lon), MRCP (UK), F.R.C.P.(lon)
BimEE
BiEERE
FFERR S
BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,

Assoc, AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect], MHKIoD

BAFRITES
RRER LA Mse, )P

EREER B+ GBS, OBE, UUB (HK), J.P.

BB R JC & FCA (AUST.), FCPA, FCIS
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CORPORATE INFORMATION ‘A 7]

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DEPARTMENT HEADS

Ms. Eva liu,
Mr. Luk Chi Chung,

Ms. Cavior liu,

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam,

Charmaine,
Mr. Lam Shiu Cheung,
Mr. Wong Yuk Chi, Allen,

Mr. Pan Sze Yuen,

Cedil,

M. Lau Ping Lleung,

Stephen,
Mr. Jan Kwok Wai,

MANAGERS

Mr. Tong Tse Hon,

Mr. Tam King Hung,

Director of projects and maintenance
Director of finance

Director of human resources

and administration

Direcfor of business development

Director of China property
Direcfor of property department

Assistant Director of projects

Assistant Director of maintenance

Assistant Director of projects

Property manager (sale & leasing)

Project manager
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SOLICITORS

Deacons
Gallant Y.T. Ho & Co.
P.C. Woo & Co.

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

BANKERS
Chong Hing Bank Limited

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
Bank of China [Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Company, Limited
Citibank N.A. Hong Kong

CITIC Bank International Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong] Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company, Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

The Royal Bank of Scotland
Wing Hang Bank, Limited

Wing lung Bank Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A& E& #!

REGISTERED OFFICE
25th Floor Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3768 9038 Fax: (852) 3768 9008

GUANGZHOU OFFICE
18A Office Tower A

339 Huan Shi Dong Road
Yue Xiu District
Guangzhou, PRC

Tel: (8620) 8375 8993  Fax: (8620) 8375 8997

SHANGHAI OFFICE
Room 3105, Chong Hing Finance Center

288 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai, PRC

Tel: (8621) 6359 1000 Fax: (8621) 6327 6299

FOSHAN OFFICE
First Phase, The Grand Riviera

1 Guilong Road
West of Luocun, Luocun Street
Nanhai District, Foshan

Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 8126 6688  Fax: (86757) 8126 6669
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREEAEBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. LIU LIT MO
LD, MBE, J.P.

aged 75, is the Chairman and Managing Director of Liv Chong Hing
Investment Limited. He was appointed as the Managing Director of the
Company since 1972. And he has also served as the Chairman of
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committees of the
Company. Dr. liu is also the Chairman of Chong Hing Bank Llimited and
an independent non-executive director of China Motor Bus Company
Limited, both are public companies listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong
Kong. As for community service, Dr. liv was the Chairman of Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals in 1967 and is now serving as an Adviser of the
Group. He had also been President of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce, Chairman of Hong Kong Football Association and
District Governor of District 3450, Rotary International. Presently, he is a
member of the Board of Trustees of United College, The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a Manager of Liu Po Shan Memorial College. He was
awarded Silver Jubilee Medal by Her Majesty the Queen in 1977. Dr. Liu
was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws by Llingnan
University in 2005. Dr. Liu is the brother of Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit
Chung, the father of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and an uncle of Mr.
Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liv Kwun Shing,
Christopher.

MR. LIU LIT CHI

aged 73, was appointed fo the Board as an Executive Director of Liu
Chong Hing Investment Limited since 1972. Mr. liu, who was educated in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom, is the Deputy Chairman and
Managing Direcfor of Chong Hing Bank Limited, and also a direcfor of a
number of other companies in Hong Kong and elsewhere. Mr. Liu is the
brother of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Dr. liu Lit Chung, an uncle of Mr. Andrew Liu,
Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr. liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun
Shing, Christopher.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREEAEB/N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LIU KAM FAI, WINSTON

BA., MSc.

aged 46, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company since
1997. He was re-designated as the Deputy Managing Director of the
Compoany in August 2008 and is also serving as a member of Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu holds a Master degree in
Economics from the University of London, specializing in Finance and
Macro Economic Policy. Mr. Liu oversees the Company’s strategic
development, project implementation, as well as all aspects of business
operations. Mr. Liu also served as a Director of number of subsidiaries of
the Company. Besides, he has been appointed as a non-executive director
of Freeman Financial Corporation Limited since January 2011, which is a
public company listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any direcforship in any other listed
public company in the last three years. Mr. Liu is the son of Dr. Liu Lit Mo,
a nephew of Mr. liu Lit Chi and Dr. liu Lit Chung, a cousin of Mr. Andrew
Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. LIU KWUN SHING, CHRISTOPHER

aged 37, was re-designated as an Executive Director of the Company in
August 2008 having served as a Non-executive Director of the Company
and Alternate Director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung (who is a Non-executive Director
of the Company) since 2000. He has also been a director of Chong Hing
Bank Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) since 2000. A holder of a
Master of Arts degree in Jurisprudence from the University of Oxford, Mr.
liv is a qualified solicitor in both Hong Kong and England & Wales. Prior
fo joining the Company on a fullime basis, he was a partner of Deacons
in Hong Kong, with a primary focus in corporate finance, M&A and
private equity matters, and currently remains an advisory legal counsel of
the international law firm. Mr. Liu is a member of the Foshan Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(CPPCC) as well as a director of Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship
Association (COFA). Mr. Liu is also an executive director of Guangdong
Chamber of Foreign Investors, a vice-chairman of Foshan Investment
Chamber of Private Enterprises, a board member of Entrepreneur
Organisation (both Hong Kong and Pearl River Delta chapters) and a
member of the Young Executives Committee of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce. With a passion for the betterment of society and
education, he is also a member of the Insfitutional Review Board of Hong
Kong University/Hospifal Authority Hong Kong VWest Cluster and a school
manager of Liu Po Shan Memorial College. Mr. Liu serves as a member of
the Corporate Governance Committee, and as a director of a number of
subsidiaries, of the Company, as well as a member of the Risk
Management and Compliance Committee of Chong Hing Bank Limited.
He is the son of Dr. liu Lit Chung, a nephew of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Mr. Liu
Lit Chi, a cousin of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr.
Liu Kam Fai, Winston.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREEAEB/N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LEE WAI HUNG
LB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD in CRE

aged 50, is an Executive Director & Company Secretary of the Company.
Mr. lee is also serving as a member of Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company and as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. lee holds a Bachelor of law degree, a Master of Business
Administration degree and Postgraduate Diploma in Consiruction and Real
Estate. He is also a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining the Company, Mr. lee had
worked in an infernational accounting firm for over six years. Mr. lee has
over twenty years of experience in corporate finance and accounting. Mr.
lee joined the Company in 1992 and was appointed as Director in
1994. Mr. lee is primarily responsible for the Company’s finance and

secretarial matters.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. LIU LIT CHUNG
MBBS (lon), MRCP (UK), F.R.C.P. (Lon)

aged 63, became a Director in 1979 and also the Deputy Managing
Direcfor of the Company for over fen years. He holds a Medical degree
from King's College Hospital, London University and is a Member of the
Royal College of Physicians of the United Kingdom. He was awarded the
Fellowship of Royal College of Physician of London for his work in Motor
Neuron Disease. In 2005, he was further awarded the Honorary
Fellowship by the Hong Kong College of Physicians. Dr. Liu is the brother
of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and M. Liu Lit Chi, an uncle of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu
Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liv Kam Fai, Winston and the father of Liu
Kwun Shing, Christopher.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. ANDREW LIU

aged 57, has been a Director since 1979. Mr. Liu is the Chief Executive
Officer of Unitas Capital Pte. ltd. (formerly known as CCMP Capital Asia
Pte. ltd.). Mr. Liu, holder of a Master of Arts degree from the Oxford
University in England, was a solicitor with Slaughter and May in London
before joining Morgan Stanley & Co Inc in New York in 1981. Mr. Liu
was promoted to Managing Director in 1990 before relocating to Morgan
Stanley Asia Limited in Hong Kong, where he assumed the position of
President and Managing Director unfil his resignation in September 1997.
Mr. Liu remains associated with Morgan Stanley as an Advisory Direcfor.
Besides, he has been appointed as a non-executive director of Freeman
Financial Corporation Limited since November 2010, which is a public
company listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. His other
directorships in public listed companies in the last three years include
Chong Hing Bank Limited which is a public listed company in Hong Kong.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other
listed public company in the last three years. Mr. Liu is a nephew of Dr. Liu
Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liv Lit Chung, a cousin of Mr. Liu Chun
Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher.

MR. LIU CHUN NING, WILFRED
BSc.

aged 51, has been appointed as Director of the Company since 1997.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in economics from University of Newcastle-
upon-Tyne (UK]. Mr. Liu is also an Executive Director of Chong Hing Bank
Limited and is in charge of the securities business of the Bank. Besides, he
is an independent non-executive director of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited
and Get Nice Holdings Limited respectively, both are public companies
listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. His other directorships in
public listed companies in the last three years include Seamless Green
China (Holdings| Limited which is a public listed companies in Hong Kong.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liv did not hold any directorship in any other
listed public company in the previous three years. Mr. Liu is a nephew of
Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a cousin of Mr. Andrew
Liu, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREEAEB/N

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. KHO ENG TJOAN, CHRISTOPHER
BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AlA,

Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect], MHKIoD

aged 50, was re-designated as Non-executive Director of the Company in
May 2011 having served as Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since August 2010 and he is now serving as a member of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Kho holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies degree on
Urban and Regional Planning and a Mastfer of Architecture degree. He is
an Authorized Person under the Buildings Ordinance, a Registered Architect
under the Architects Registration Ordinance, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Architects, a corporate member of Royal Institute of British
Architects, an associate member of Royal Australian Institute of Architects, a
member of Royal Architectural Institute of Canada and an associate
member of American Insfitute of Architects. Mr. Kho was an Executive
Committee of the University of Waterloo Alumni Association and a
Committee Member of the University of Manitoba Alumni Association from
1989 to 1990. During the year from 1997 to 2003, he was a Director
and Council Member of the Wah Yan (Hong Kong) Past Students
Association Limited. Mr. Kho is also a Committee Member of the

Professional Committee of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations
since 2009.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. NG PING KIN, PETER
MSc., J.P.

aged 83, was appoinfed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 1972 and he also serves as a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Ng is an architect by profession and has held numerous
offices within his profession and in relation to his public service activities.
He was an appointed Member of the Urban Council for ten years and
served as Chairman of the Food and Food Premises Select Committee. He
was appointed as District Advisor to the Hong Kong Branch of Xinhua
News Agency in 1994. He was a member of the Election Committee for

the Chief Executive in 1996.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
DR. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES
GBS, OBE, LB (HK], J.P.

aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in August 1999 and he has served as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of the
Company. Dr. Cheng is a practising solicitor and the senior partner of
Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co. Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong. He is the Founder Chairman of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and
Chairman Emeritus. He was also the President of International Association
of Practising Llawyers. Dr. Cheng currently holds directorships in City
Telecom (H.K.) Limited, China Mobile Limited, China Resources Enterprise,
Limited, Towngas China Company Llimited, Kader Holdings Company
Limited, K. Wah Intemational Holdings Limited, Guangdong Investment
Limited and Tian An China Investments Company Limited, all being public
listed companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng is also an independent non-
execufive direcfor of ARA Assef Management Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on Singapore Exchange Limited. His other direcforships in
public listed companies in the last 3 years include Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited and China COSCO Holdings Company Limited,
both companies are public listed companies in Hong Kong, and ARA Asset
Management (Fortune| Limited (formerly known as ARA Asset Management
(Singapore) Limited] which is the manager of Fortune Real Esfate Investment
Trust, a real estate investment trust listed on Singapore Exchange Limited.
Save as disclosed above, Dr. Cheng did not hold any directorship,
whether in Hong Kong or overseas, in any other public listed companies in

the previous 3 years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREEAEB/N

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. TONG TSIN KA
FCA (AUST.), FCPA, FCIS

aged 74, was appoinfed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in September 2004 and he has served as the Chairman of
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration, Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committees of the Company. Mr. Tong is a fellow
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants respectively. In 1968, Mr. Tong commenced
his own public accountancy practice and in 1970 founded his own
accountancy firm, T. K. Tong & Co. (Chartered Accountants [AUST.).

Certified Public Accountants), and has remained its principal fo date.

MR. AU KAM YUEN, ARTHUR

aged 73, was appoinfed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 3 December 2012 and he also serves as a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Au studied Law in Sydney and London respectively. He
was admitted as a solicitor in England in 1975 and in Hong Kong in
1976. He is a sole propriefor of Arthur Au & Co., a firm of solicitors
established since 1979. Mr. Au is a Notary Public and member of the
Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal Panel. He is also a School Management
Committee of the Clementi Secondary School. He now serves as legal
adviser to the Association of Hong Kong Nursing Staff (previously named
as the Association of Government Nursing Staff) and The New Territories
North District Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Au is
an active Rotarian, he was a District Governor of Rotary International

District 3450 (Hong Kong/Macao,/Mongolia) in 1990-1991.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
DR. MA HUNG MING, JOHN
PhD, BBS

aged 46, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 3 December 2012 and he has also served as a member of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Dr. Ma currently is the managing director of Carrianna
Holdings limited, a subsidiary of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited, is
responsible for property development operations. He has extensive
experience in the catering industry, as well as property management and
development. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) from The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2003 and
a Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy by Morrison University in 2004. As for
the community service, Dr. Ma was the Chairman of Tung Wah Group of
Hospitals for the year 2002. He is a member of the Standing Committee
of Shenzhen Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a Director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of
Commerce lid. In addition fo his directorship in the Company, Dr. Ma is
an executive director of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited. This is a public
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Save as
disclosed above, Dr. Ma did not hold any directorship in any other public

listed company in the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MS. EVA LIV
MA (Cantab), DipArch (Kingston), MA (City), ARB (UK), RIBA

aged 49, Director of Projects & Maintenance. Ms. Liu is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degrees, in Architecture from the
University of Cambridge, and Property Valuation And Law from The City
University in London. She was in architectural practice in England before
joining the Company in 1999. She is the daughter of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and
the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREEAEB/N

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
MR. LUK CHI CHUNG
FCCA, CPA (Practising), MAEB

aged 45, Director of Finance. Mr. Luk is a professional accountant,
holding Master of Arts Degree in Electronic Business and has over twenty
years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Luk joined the
Compoany in 1995 and is in charge of Finance Management Department

and Information Technology Department.

MS. CAVIOR LIU

aged 48, Direcfor of Human Resources & Administration. Ms. Liu holds @
Bachelor degree in Psychology from University of British Columbia. She
joined the Company in 2000, in charge of Human Resources &
Administration Department. Ms. Liu is a school manager of Liu Po Shan
Memorial College. She is the daughter of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and the sister of
Mr. Liv Kam Fai, Winston.

MS. YAN YUET LAM, CHARMAINE

aged 38, Direcfor of Business Development. Ms. Yan was educated in
Vancouver, Canada. Before joining the Company, Ms. Yan had worked
with various mainland companies at senior management post for leading
and handling numerous successful real estate projects including the
Shanghai Forest Manor, one of the top residential villa projects in
Shanghai. In addition, Ms. Yan has extensive experience in business club
operations both in Beijing and Shanghai. Ms. Yan is currently in charge of

searching investment opportunities, and the Company’s hotel business.

MR. LAM SHIU CHEUNG

aged 52, Director of China Property. Mr. lam joined the Company in
1994. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering and has over
eighteen years of experience in development, construction and sales of real

estate projects in the PRC.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
MR. WONG YUK CHI, ALLEN
MSc., MBA, MRICS, MHIREA, FCIPFM

aged 53, Director of Property Department. Mr. Wong joined the Company
in 1997. He holds double Master Degrees in Property & Facility
Management and Business Adminisfration, and has over twenty years of

experience in Property and Facility Management.

MR. PAN SZE YUEN, CECIL
MA (Cantab), DipArch (Cantab), RIBA

aged 49, Assistant Direcfor of Projects. Mr. Pan is a Chartered Architect
(UK), holding Master of Arts Degree in Architecture from the University of
Cambridge, and has over twenty years of experience as a practising
architect in both UK and Hong Kong. Mr. Pan joined the Company in
2006.

MR. LAU PING LEUNG, STEPHEN
FHKIS, FRICS, MHKIE, MHKICM, P.FM, RPE, RPS

aged 60, Assistant Director of Maintenance. Mr. lau is a professional
surveyor and professional engineer and has over thirty years of experience
in property development, building construction and quantity surveying. Mr.

Lau joined the Company in 2009.

MR. JAN KWOK WAI, KIM
BEng (Civil), CEng, MICE

aged 44, Assistant Director of Projects. Mr. Jan joined the Company in
2008. Mr. Jan is a professional engineer with over twenty years of
construction and project management experience representing Clients,
Consultants and Contractors on both private-sector and government funded

projects in China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING RERBFARXEBEH

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of Liu Chong
Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) for the year 2013 will be held at
27th Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong on Wednesday, 8 May 2013 at 12:00 noon for the following

purposes:

1. To receive and adopt the audited Financial Statements together with
Reports of the Directors and Auditors of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

2. To approve the payment of the final cash dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2012 of HK$0.18 per share.

3. To reelect Directors and fix the directors’ remuneration for the year

ending 31 December 2013

4. To re-appoint Deloitle Touche Tohmatsu as Audifors and to authorize

the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without

modifications the following ordinary resolutions:
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ORDINARY RESOLUTION i /R i

5. "THAT:

(a)  subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the directors of
the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company fo repurchase
shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”] or on any other stock exchange on
which the shares of the Company may be listed and which is
recognized by the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong
Kong and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and
in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements
of the Rules Governing the listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange or of any other stock exchange (as amended from
fime to fime), be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;
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(b

(c)

the aggregate nominal amount of the shares of the Company
which the Company is authorized to repurchase pursuant fo the
approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue as at the date of passing of this resolution,

and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and
for the purpose of this resolution,

"Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this

resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
articles of association of the Company or the Companies

Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to
be held; or

(iii)  the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is
revoked, renewed or varied by an ordinary resolution of

the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.”

6. "THAT:

(a)

(b)

subject fo paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the directors of
the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company fo allof, issue and
deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company and
to make or grant offers, agreements and options (including
bonds, warrants, debentures, nofes and any securities which
carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible info shares of the
Company) which would or might require the exercise of such
power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorize the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers, agreements and
options (including bonds, warrants, debentures, notes and any
securities which carry rights fo subscribe for or are convertible
into shares of the Company) which would or might require the

exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;

(b)

(c)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING RERBFARXEBEH

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued by the directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a)
above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as
hereinafter defined); (i) the exercise of any rights of subscription
or conversion under any warrants, bonds, debentures, notfes
and any securities of the Company which carry rights to
subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the Company; (i)
an issue of shares of the Company upon the exercise of the
subscripﬂon rights aftaching to any options granted under any
share option scheme adopted by the Company; (iv) an issue of
shares as scrip dividends or similar arrangement providing for
the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend
on shares of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association from time to time; or
[v] specific authority granted by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, shall not exceed 20% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue af the date of passing of this resolution, and

the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and
for the purpose of this resolution,

"Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this

resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company; or

[i)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
arficles of association of the Company or the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Llaws of Hong Kong) to
be held: or

(i) the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is
revoked, renewed or varied by an ordinary resolufion of
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting;

and

(c)

(d)
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"Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a pericd fixed
by the directors of the Company to holders of shares or any
class of shares of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on a fixed record date in
proportion fo their then holdings of such shares as at that date
([subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the
directors of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in
relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any
resfrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements
of any recognized regulatory body or any stock exchange in,

any terrifory applicable o the Company).”

"THAT conditional upon Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 5 and 6 set out
in the notfice convening this meeting being passed, the general
mandate granted fo the directors of the Company fo exercise the
powers of the Company fo allof, issue and deal with additional
shares pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. & set out in the notfice
convening this meefing be and is hereby extended by the addition
therefo of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company repurchased by the Company
under the authority granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. 5 sef
out in the nofice convening this meefing, provided that such extended
amount of shares so repurchased shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue af the date of passing of this resolution.”

To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Dr. Liv Lit Mo

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING RERBFARXEBEH

nofes:

A member of the Company entitled fo attend and vote at the 2013 annual general
meeting is entifled to appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote in his stead.
A member who is the holder of two or more shares may appoint more than one proxy to
attend on the same occasion. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if
any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with
the Company's Share Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, VWWanchai, Hong Kong, not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

Closure of Register of the Members:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote
at the 2013 Annual General Meeting o be held on Wednesday, 8 May 2013
(2013 AGM"), whose name should be recorded in the Company's shareholders
book on Monday, 6 May 2013. The Register of Members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 3 May 2013 and Monday, 6 May 2013, both days
inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2013 AGM, dll
share cerfificates with completed transfer forms either overleaf or separately must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 17121716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 2 May 2013.

(b) For the purpose of defermining shareholders who qualify for the 2012 Final
Dividend, whose name should be recorded in the Company's shareholders book
on Tuesday, 21 May 2013. The Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 16 May 2013 to Tuesday, 21 May 2013, both days
inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all share certificates with
completed transfer forms either overleaf or separately must be lodged for
registration with the Company's Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Llimited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 15
May 2013.

As at the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Executive
Direcfors: Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman and Managing Direcfor), Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam
Fai, Winston (Deputy Managing Director), Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher (also
alternate director fo Dr. Liu Lit Chung) and Mr. Llee Wai Hung; Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Liu Lit Chung, Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liuv Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan,
Christopher; and Independent Non-executive Direcfors: Mr. Ng Ping Kin, Peter, Dr.
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Tong Tsin Ka, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr. Ma Hung
Ming, John.
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R HEFAIWR=ZZE—=FRANA(E
W) ZBREMA - AREHE-T—=
ERA=ZR(EPR)E-_E—=FRANA
(28—) (RREEERX) EEHERGBE
BELFE  ABRREBLE T —=FR%
BERSRNE LRE  BRBAZMBR
ERBEZEERSBEZBERE - FBAR
—Z—=FRAZAEHN) TFHEE=T
DRAKEANBRGD B ELE : BBFRR
BEELARAT Ut AEBE2FAER
183AEFMP LT EE—FE—ZE—+—K
SRAE - IHEBPELTFE -

b) RETAREREZFE-F-—-FREREZRKR
R HE2FAIN_FT—=FAA=+—H
(EH ) 2 BREMA  ARFHR_F
—=FRA+AR(EHME—T—=FF
A=—+—H(EH2) (BEEMRBEEN)E
EMERMBFELTE - BRERMRERR
HES  BRBAZMARERAZSER
SEZBERE  HBAR_F—=F1A
THB(EH=) TFUR=+DaBEEARR
ARMBFERE  BETRESFELAR
DA U AEEERAER 183 FAFF
HTEE—t——F "% 2R
PERFE -

RAERMGEE  ARBZEFEXNRBERTES
BRBREL(ZERESFLLE)  BUEELE B
SIEEE (BIERRLRE) Bt L (TR
DEREZERES) RFEHELL  FRITEE:
BRUBRE  BfiE BERELERFRRSE
£ RBUFBTESR: MRBEL  BRER
T BRIEL BRBREERTHH#ABL -




MARKET PRICE MOVEMENT AND MARKET CAPITALIZATION CHART
mEEZRTEEBX

Last Trading Date Closing Price per Share Mc?rk'eting Closing Price per Share &K {E O
o CGprGIIZGfIOﬂ March 201 110 December 2012 ]
of Each Month WmE HE T —F=fA&Z=-FT——%+=-Ff _8
= B3 st HK$ 7 2
SARRZAH (&5 (HKS in million &% E ) 5
12 Q
31/01/2011 11.680 4,422 3
(92)
28/02/2011 11.100 4,202 g
3
31/03/2011 10.500 3,975 &
29/04/2011 10.940 4,142 =R
=
31/05/2011 9.520 3,604 =
30/06/2011 9.160 3,468 >
_Ell
29/07/2011 9.100 3,445 ;
|
31/08/2011 8.200 3,104 ;ﬂg
30/09/2011 6.430 2,434 .
LdAA B 33
31/10/2011 7.540 2,855 222 R g 2352
9 ©» O N N N N [ee)
30/11/2011 7.450 2,820 == 5 2 = = = =
30/12/2011 7.730 2,926 S N
31/01/2012 7.710 2,919

Market Capitalization 71 &
29/02/2012 8.650 3,275 March 2011 to December 2012
—F——®—_RE_F——F+—f
HK$ in Million B8 HE T

30/03/2012 7.990 3,025
4,000
30/04/2012 8.100 3,067
3,500
31/05/2012 6.700 2,537
3,000
29/06/2012 7.150 2707
2,500
31/07/2012 7.520 2,847
31/08/2012 7.350 2783 2000
28/09/2012 7550 2,858 1,500
31/10/2012 8.070 3,055 1,000
97
30/11/2012 9.010 3411 500 .
il
31/12/2012 8.980 3,400 . »
g

note:  Closing price (HK$) are extracted from the web site of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Limited. (Stock code: 194)

Mk - BTEmENBEEEBRERXZMARARME - (RMOHKE : 104)

30/09/2011 2,434
30/12/2011 2,926
30/03/2012 3,025
29/06/2012 2,707
28/09/2012 2,858
31/12/2012 3,400

31/03/2011 3,975
30/06/2011 3,468

BHEE- &= |



LIU CHONG HING GROUP SIMPLIFIED CORPORATE STRUCTURE CHART
BRIEZESEGLREEE

As at 31 December 2012
R-_ZE——F+-A=+—H

LIU’S HOLDINGS LIMITED
BREBEER LA

LIU'S FAMILY

OTHER INVESTORS
HiiRE#H

I 30%

B K Rk

I 700%

I 43819

*LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED

*BRIETEFRAF

Property
Investment

MERE

Property

Property
Development

Management

YIEERER

Banking &

Finance

Trading & Hotel
Manufacturing Business

B5REEE L %58

Liv Chong Hing
Property
Management &
Agency Limited
EAEEEE
RREERAH

Maanshan Gaoke Hanting Express—
Magnetic Material Shanghai
Company Limited Shang Nan

e

Chong Hing Western Harbour
Square Centre

Guangzhou Wealth

The Grand Riviera, Good Property

Foshan Management
2N E Comparny Limite
BRI

EEERAF

100%

Hanting Hotel-
Shanghai
Song Jiang FangTa

ERDEE
LT EIE

Chong Yip
Shopping Centre
RIS

g
Securities Lim?recl

0
©
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{

Fairview
Court
EEMH

Chong Hing
Finance Center,
Shanghai
LigAIEEE A O

100%

* listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

FHEBRRERER AR IAARAR LT

100% 100%

Chong Hing
Insurance
Company Limited

Hanting Express—
Beiiin%
Da Guan Yuen

ERERE

100%

Hanting Express—
Guangzhou
Yue Xiu Pan Fu

SEREGRE

100% 100%



SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AND ASSOCIATES
SERBEATAERYEFER

As at 31 December 2012 R=Z—-=F+=-A=+-AH

Interest in Q
the property Approximate Total gross £
attributable site area floor area %
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use %
AEBELZ B BER AEEEHER %)
it UES £ (FHR) (FHR) CLELI ¢
Investment properties zi
REYE =
Hong Kong: Sf
ey g
S
1. Chong Yip Shopping Centre 100% 32,400 54,000 (/P 5
402—404 Des Voeux Road West g
RIS s
BRETE M H A
My
2. Fairview Court 100% 30,000 26,000 R/P
94 Repulse Bay Road
=5
BRI SR
3. (Chong Hing Bank Centre 50.20% 7,100 110,000 0
24 Des Voeux Road Central
AIERTHO
EEER U

190,000
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AND ASSOCIATES

SERBELATAEEYER

As at 31 December 2012 R=2—=F+=A=+-8

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable sife area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use
rEEELZ B EEE HREREEE
#at VEZ 5 (FHR) (FER) BRAR
Investment properties
Kowloon and New Territories:
NERHR
4. (Chong Hing Square 100% 12,300 182,000 (
593-601 Nathan Road, Mongkok
AIEES
WE /B T2 593-601 57
5. Fung Shun Commercial Building 50.20% 2,200 33,000 0
591 Nathan Road, Mongkok
LIEBERE
HEATZGE S 5
6. Bonsun Industrial Building 100% 18,000 8,200 /P
364—366 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
BERT¥(AE
EE DB 364-366 3%
223,200




Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
atfributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use
AEBELZ BHBEEE AEEEHER
Bt VEL £ (EHR) (EHR) RR A%
Investment properties
REYF
Peaple’s Republic of China:
FE
7. (Chong Hing Finance Center 100% 55,000 103,000 (
No. 288 Nanjing Road (W) 413,000 0
Huang Pu District 180,000 P
Shanghai
AIESR AL
b
ERE
P35 268
8. The Grand Riviera 90% 2,755,000 5,840,000 R
West of Luocun 350,000 (
Luocun Street 2,097,000 P
Nanhai District 63,000 S
Foshan 85,000 T
ZHNtE
A
HBE
BAATE
HAE
9,131,000
9,544,200

O
9
e}
¢}
Q
D
Q
=)
Q.
(92)
=
Q
D
>0
o
o
0]
a\
>
)
3
Q
5
=
I
.E”
=
==
i
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AND ASSOCIATES
SERBELATAEEYER

As at 31 December 2012 R=2—=F+=A=+-8

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross Expected
attributable site area floor area completion

Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use date  Status

FEEELY BONEER SREEEEER

it WERR (FAHR) (FFER) REAE  BEAERASE IREE

Properties under development

BRPYFE

Hong Kong:

58

9. Westem Harbour Centre 100% 11,500 ( Planning
181183 Connaught Road West BELY
ERAL
FHAET 181-1835%

10. Various Lotsin D.D. 29 100% 262,000 n/a Planning
Ting Kok Road, Tai Po BE
KIETARE
“HASE

1. Chatham Gate 10% 40,700 305,000 R 2013 Completed
388 Chatham Road North BRH
Hung Hom
Sl 5] 61,000 (
a8
BRET 36855

366,000
(=Commercial B2 |=Industrial T2 P=Car Park E1iz R=Residential ¥ 0=0ffice EF#
S=Clubhouse and recreational facilities € Fif 12 B 4438 18 T= Others (including kindergarten, property management office, efc.)

Hit (BEHHE  NEEERES)



SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION B% & & ¥

FINANCIAL CALENDAR As aof 7 March 2013

0O
MBEARN=_T—=F=A+H _%
o}
Inferim Results : Announced on 8 August 2012 &
for six-month ended 30 June 2012 %
HE_T——_FXA=+HL ERZZE—_FN\ANBLHMH @
ANEAZ R R 5
Annual Results : Announced on 7 March 2013 2;
for year ended 31 December 2012 a
BE—ZT-—F+-A=t—Hik ER=ZFE-—=F=ALRAAMH =
FEZEFXE 3
é",
Annual General Meeting : To be held on 8 May 2013 5
RRBFKE R _T—=FAAN\BET o
Latest time fo lodge fransfer forms : 4:30 pm on 2 May 2013 ;
BB P X REHIR —E-=FRAHTFEK=tH Nl
Closure of Register of Members : From 3 May 2013 fo 6 May 2013 gﬁ_
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements (both days inclusive)

to attend and vote at the 2013 Annual
Ceneral Meeting)

EEnERMBFERLTE —E-=FRA=HEZT-=FHAKH
(REARLFE _T—=%F (BERMABREEA)
BRIRBFREREKRE

Dividends

[:85)

Interim cash dividend : HK$0.10 per share
HER SIS BB 0.107T

Paid on : 27 September 2012
XA —F-——FNAA=-ttH
Proposed final cash dividend : HK$0.18 per share
BRRHAR S E BREE0.18 T
Payable on : 24 May 2013

AR —E-=fRA-+@mA

Ex-dividend date of final dividend : 14 May 2013

REARR S ER B E —ZE—=FRA+t@EA

Lofesf time fo lodge transfer forms : 4:30 pm on 15 May 2013
BB P X RIE R —E-=FRATRBETFER=1T%

Closure of Register of Members : From 16 May 2013 to 21 May 2013
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements [both days inclusive)
to receive the final dividend)

BEmERNDBPERTE —E-—FRATARBEE—=FRA-+—H
(FEE AU ECR B R (BERMABREEAN)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION pR & & ¥

Share Registrars and transfer office

R ELKRER R

Share listing

P R

Stock Code

B HRSR

Board lof

BEEEM

No. of issued ordinary share
BT E RN EE
Company's email address

AREBh

Investors and Shareholders contact

BREE MRS

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East Wanchai,

Hong Kong

EE

hRFBHELER AR
EEEBFERRKER—/N\=%
EMPLTEB—Et—ZF—+— KM

The Company's shares are listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited
RATREREBHAERSHMER AR
HEER

194

194

2,000 shares
2,000 fi%

378,583,440 shares
378,583,440 f%

info@lchi.com.hk
info@Ichi.com.hk

Attention: Mr. lee Wai Hung/Ms. Nelly Ng
23rd Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3768 9050

Fax: (852) 3768 9009

Website: http://www.Ichi.com.hk

B FEERE /MEENE
BREEET —THRAIBERTH O -+ =18
B ¢ (852) 3768 9050

EH : (852) 3768 9009

#E : hitp:/ /www.Ichi.com.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B MY #Z H Bl sk & =

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Liv Chong Hing
Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
fo as the "Group”) set out on pages 108 to 296, which comprise the
consolidated and company stafements of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and fo report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BEARERTBRAFTERR

(REBEMALLZ BRAE])

AAZERED (A TR [ F)) BE TR EZERN
FI08E20EMBRIHEEEERAR([E
REDEENBAR (G [ E5E ) HE 0
BHRE  MEEMBBREER_FT——F
TZA=+T—HN&Ea AT HEMRRRE
BEZALFENGARER  HEaE2ENK
25X HREESEPRMESHATRER

AR EBSABRME R EMHAER

ESRGAMBERARENRE

BERREFAARRBEEEGTMAGRM
MEBEEMBHREENRBEARGIRRE
EMAFOGRAMBRE  ARESESER
RPBENBRNEE  AEREREKER
BHREAFIFEHRNAGFS#ERMERNE
REFFRERL

BB RE
ZFNEETRRERFNERHZEEEH
BRERBERER  UWREFEBRRIEHIF 14
REMBEBRRRE M AEEMAR - &
MreplAmEmATHETAESCALTA L
FAEEFNEE - RPCREEESHEL
SRMNB BRI ERETER - ZFER
ERHEMETERRE  LHRBIRBITEZ
RUEAEEERSERAVBBRERRETEEA
EEASERERL -



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounfs and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statfements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the audifor considers internal control relevant to the enfity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order fo
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the sfate of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
7 March 2013

BREETRRE (&)
BRSRAITREFNEREBEAMBHRE
IR BEBEEMNERRE MEEZ
RFBURRZ B HE - BEFEES
REFAERMERGEMBRREFAEEX
HRRAWER - EHEZFRRE - 2%
fEERZARRAEBEEMA TGS MB
HRBBAOAIER - URFTEENERE
Fro B IFE BRI REERRER -
ERNERFBEZMRASITEREIEN
ELMELEREFREAE  URFHEER
BUBHRENERBEINA

BMEGE  RMESHNEZERE TR RE
EMARMNEZE RIREEME -

R

BMRA GEMBERRERBEEBMBR
EXRBEERAFRR BEAFKE B&
R T ——F+A=+—BHMKZA
k EEEBEZALFENRIRESHK
2 WERBREBRKAZARE -
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e W

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2012 2011
—E-Cf —2—-F
NOTES HKS'000 HKS'000
M BET R BB
(restated)
(&E5)
Total operating revenue ARBYE 8 2,303,209 2,461,679
Interest income FIEKA 1,561,914 1,369,989
Interest expense FEXH (724,317) (553,777)
Net inferest income MEWAFE 9 837,597 816,212
Fee and commission income BRARAESRA 253,949 276,257
Fee and commission expense EARALZH (64,584) (58,534)
Net fee and commission income ERRASIATEE 10 189,365 217,723
Other operafing revenue HitE B 8 487,346 815,433
Direct expenses HERX (97,155) (457,956)
1,417,153 1,391,412
Other income — non-financial services HiA — kL RRE 11 10,669 26,148
Other operating expenses HitEER 12 (946,095) (910,682)
Reversal of impairment allowances on loans and advances BEREEERR
— financial services — &ERY 26 65,228 107,188
Recovery of amounts previously written-off in relation to WE B W IMES T ST E
Minibonds Repurchase Scheme ZEE 13 — 234,632
Other gains and losses Hiths R EE 14 422,920 258,302
Finance costs — non-financial services B — SRR 16 (109,124) (59,093)
Share of profits of joint ventures IR 3yl 118 110
Share of profits of associates b D AEF 36,028 18,056
Profit before tax BB ELRA 896,897 1,066,073
Income tax expense RN 17 (138,593) (183,053)
Profit for the year AEERF 18 758,304 883,020
Profit for the year attributable to: AEERNAER
Owners of the Company AAFRE 480,010 600,371
Non-controlling interests FERRREES 278,294 282,649
758,304 883,020
Basic eamings per share SREREF 21 B8 HKS1.27 & B HKS1.59 7




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AeEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=Z——F+-A=1—-HL5EE

2012 2011 =T
—g-=% 25 [
NOTES HKS'000 oo
G EET R BEFT
(restoted) 1
(@E5I) gﬁ
Profit for the year REERF 758,304 883,020 ﬁﬁ
Other comprehensive income (expense) Htt2EKRE ()
Exchange differences arising on translation BEMEE v ERESR 9,879 129,544
Fair value gains (losses) on available-forsale investments A HERE 2 A HER NS (FR) 262,852 (70,933)
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss upon disposal of HETHHEREENE
available-for-sale investments PEHERE LB (594) (697)
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss upon RAfHEREREEHER
impairment of availablefor-sale investments PEIBRE2EE — 4,473
Income tax effect relating to disposal of BREETHEEREZ
availablefor-sale investments FiEssE 98 12
Income tax relating to fair value change of ERTHEEREDNTEEZDZ
availablefor-sale investments frakiee (29,914) 13,086
Surplus on measurement of retirement benefits HERNEFES 55 — 10,268
Income tax effect relating to retirement benefits ERRARER 2 IEREE — (1,694)
Share of other comprehensive income (expense) of associates Fribse AR HMA 2 E R (Ki) 430 (53)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of fax) AEEHEMP2EBE (RE%) 242,751 84,006
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERERELE 1,001,055 967,026
Total comprehensive income attributable fo: 2AWABELER
Owners of the Company ARATIRE 641,789 709,501
Non-controlling interests FERBRERES 359,266 257,525
1,001,055 967,026
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B SRR R

As at 31 December 2012 R=2——&£+=-A=+—FH

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
—E-Z§ —E——F —2—-F
+=A=+-H +=ZB=+-H —A—8
NOTES HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$"000
i BETT BETT BT T
(restated) (restated)
(EE7)) (&==5)
Assets BE
Cash and short-ferm funds EEESREHES 22 17,845,583 19,056,102 18,588,141
Placements with banks and other financial BREER I BEE
insfitufions maturing between one to R—F+-ERREH 258
twelve months 4,844,115 2,179,086 2,386,190
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 24 187,911 129,556 20,542
[nvestments in securities BERE 25 15,504,832 12,382,226 14,267,925
Advances and other accounts BERREMEE
— financial services — SRR 26 42,069,072 43,211,156 38,835,820
Advances fo an investee company BHRBELT 27 322,539 312,209 121,964
Trade and other receivables A RHMBKERR
— nonfinancial services — kS RRE 30 91,292 135,204 85,761
Tax recoverable FEWBSR — - 6
Properties under development for sale ShHeEREaYE 28 1,159,817 452,382 1,118,029
Properties held for sale ShEyE 28 584,722 605,717 6,518
[nventories BE 29 17,417 14,693 11,088
Assets held for sale FHeEsE 37 — — 100
Interests in joint ventures SELERER 31 2,661 2,543 2,433
[nferests in associates BN EIRES 32 182,970 153,872 136,919
Investment properties RENE 33 5,868,769 6,265,247 6,215,856
Property, plant and equipment N BERSE 34 966,907 963,984 782,642
Prepaid lease payments BEAEEIH 35 2423 2,483 32,950
Deferred fax assefs EXRIELSE 36 2182 17,471 —
Goodwil BE 38 50,606 50,606 50,606
Total assets BERE 89,703,818 85,934,537 82,663,490




31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.201 =
—g-=% —2-—% S -
+=A=t+-8 +=A=+-H -A-B |-
NOTES HKS'000 HK$"000 HKS'000 {BD
M BETT BETT BETT =
(restated) (restated) E
S5
(&=51) (&=5) o
Liabilities =1
Deposits and balances of banks and REREMHBRETIRES
other financial institutions 1,843,477 1,086,836 1,039,991
Financial assets sold under EEHET HEZERER
repurchase agreements 39 433,681 420,652 =
Deposits from banking customers ROTEPEX 40 67,361,446 64,668,797 63,373,596
Certificates of deposit BEH 4 667,636 1,545,562 —
Derivative financial instruments FTELRIE 24 248,656 265,696 256,426
Trade and other payables ESREMEMRR 42 979,327 875,392 623,542
Taxation payable FEBR 34,480 60,231 61,706
Deferred income EEWA — - 134,898
Loan capital REEX 43 1,898,957 1,852,153 2,401,151
Borrowings TEEN 44 3,730,120 3,319,348 3,661,330
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEEE 36 213,009 181,290 168,782
Total liabilities naE 77,410,789 74,275,957 71,121,422
Equity i
Share capital R 48 378,583 378,583 378,583
Reserves i 8,217,687 7,148,185 7,140,902
Equity attributable to: RESER
Owners of the Company ARFARR 8,596,270 8,126,768 7,519,485
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER 3,696,759 3,531,812 3,422,583
Total equity RERE 12,293,029 11,658,580 10,942,068
Total liabilities and equity RRRRERT 89,703,818 85,934,537 82,663,490

The consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to 296 were #HNWFE 108 E 26 E 2 GATBRED N =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 March  T—=%= Bt HBES S R IREEIT -

2013 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTINATREES
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DR. LIU LIT MO MR. TONG TSIN KA 2
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 75 AR O &

As at 31 December 2012 R=2——&£+=-A=+—FH

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
—E-Z§ —E——F —2—-F
+=A=+-H +=ZB=+-H —A—8
NOTES HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$"000
i BETT BETT BT T
(restated) (restated)
(EE7)) (&==5)
Non-current assets ERDEE
Investment properties REWE 33 — — 695,700
Property, plant and equipment N BERSE 34 2332 2,437 2,540
[nvestments in subsidiaries HBARZRE 45 315,755 291,741 271,473
[nvestments in joint ventures BROECRE 31 3 3 3
[nvestments in securities BERE 25 158,035 165,569 168,377
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWFTE A AR 46 4,483,707 4,469,226 3,622,771
Deferred tox assets EEHBEEE 36 680 610 —
4,960,512 4,929,592 4,760,864
Current assets RBEE
Properties held for sale ey 28 2,808 2,808 2,808
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEKERR
— noninancial services — k& RRHB 30 5,992 4,977 10,546
[nvestments in securities BERE 25 43,463 46,363 62,126
Fixed bank deposits with more than REEETRERBAT
three months to maturity when raised with — ([&IE4R/TEM )
Chong Hing Bank Limited and its subsidiories  F A={B R &ZIH >
(“CHB Group”) EHRITER 23 16,524 — —
Fixed bank deposits with more than BAZBRARS 28R
three months to maturity when raised 7R — HibiRiT
— other banks 23 52,135 — —
Pledged bank deposits with CHB Group REIERTEEZEERRITEN 23 33,299 = =
Bank balances with CHB Group REIERTEBZRITER 23 89,161 140,385 123,223
Other bank balances and cash HiBTEERES 23 170,406 175,595 213,483
413,788 370,128 412,786




31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011 =
—g-% —g——5 S -
+=B=+-8 +=B=+-8 -A-H =
NOTES HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 12
(34 BETT BETT BETT 1
(restated) (restated) g
X
(EE5)) (EE5) e
Current liabilities RHAR
Trade and other payables ZEREMEREDR 42 8,238 8,213 9,790
Taxation payable B 13,918 18,780 —
Borrowings — due within one year 5 — R—FEREIE 44 3,100,255 1,230,565 1,656,615
3,122,411 1,257,558 1,666,405
Net current liabilities AEEERE (2,708,623) (887,430) (1,253,619)
Total assets less current liabilifies MEERRDAR 2,251,889 4,042,162 3,507,245
Non-current liabilities FRBAR
Borrowings — due after one year B8 - R—E%TH 44 — 1,701,172 1,464,296
Deferred tox liabilities EERESRE 36 — — 24,826
Noninterest bearing advances from subsidiaries MiE 2 72 & 882 47 120,957 115,754 123,054
120,957 1,816,926 1,612,176
2,130,932 2,225,236 1,895,069
Capital and reserves BERER
Share capital R 48 378,583 378,583 378,583
Reserves -1 49 1,752,349 1,846,653 1,516,486
2,130,932 2,225,236 1,895,069
DR. LIU LIT MO MR. TONG TSIN KA
BRREL BRRLE
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
TEFEFREE EREZEEFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERBBER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=F——&+-A=1-BILFE

Attributable fo owners o the Company 22 7B 3R FEs

Property Investment Capitel
Share Special revaluation revalugfion redemption Exchange Accumulated Non-controlling
capitl reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
[ KHREE NEERARE REEMRE RABRERE ERfRE FRER @i FRRBRER st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT rﬁ‘?ﬁﬁi ‘?ﬁ%fﬁ BT BETR BT BRI BT BETR BT
note fote
(W) (M=)
A1 Jonuary 2011 W=%--£-F-A 378,583 75,741 1,450,493 110,532 2952 315,757 4,670,145 7,064,209 31513 7095722
Adjustments (Note 2) BE(MED - - 261,366 - - - 193910 455,076 3,391,070 3,846,346
At T January 2011 R=Z-—-%-A-8
(testoted) (8E5)) 378,583 15,741 1,711,859 10532 1952 315,757 4,864,055 7,519,485 3420583 10,942,008
Profit for the yeor KEEER - - - - - - 600371 600,371 182,649 883,020
Fairvlue losses on ovalobleforsale imvestments Tk 8 > AP BESE - - - (25,276) - - - (25,276) (45,657) (70,933)
Amount recassfied fo he proftor loss upon EU#HEREHELH
impairment of availabledorsole investments BHARIERE R - - - 21% - - - 21% 2017 4473
Amount reclossfied fo the prfit o loss upon REETHEEREER
disposal of ovalobledorsale investments BHARNEREC SR - - - (342) - - - (342) (355) (697)
Income fox effectrelofing to disposal of BRLETHEEREZ
ovalobleforsale investments igezA2 - - - 8 - - - b b 12
Income fox elaing to fair volue change of BRATHEEREATE
avalobleorsale investments 2B AEHTE - - - 0424 - - - 6424 6,662 13,086
Surplus on remeasurement of reiement benefits 3t B R MRIERIBE - - - - - N 5,040 5,040 528 10,268
Income ox effectreafing fo refiement benefts ~ BERVEARIERI 2 FrigBiE/E - - - - - - (831) (831) (863) (1,694)
Exchange diferences arisng on franslaton BREFEEZELER - - - - - 121,939 - 121939 7,605 129,544
Share o other comprehensive expense of assodates Fr5BE AR EMEERH - - - (26) - - - (26) (2 (53)
Totol comprehensive income (expense) for the yeor A& 2 2 Fas (i) %8 - - - (17,018) - 121939 604,580 709,501 57505 967,026
Acquiion ofaddionl inerestin o subsidiory ~ $EE—RABHAB A T 23k - - - - - - - - (36,369) (36,365)
Dvidends recognised os distbuton (Note 20) ~ ERER AR IRE (HEE0) - - - - - - (102,218) (102,218) - (102,218)
Dividends paid fo nor-<ontrling infersts R FERRERERS - - - - - - - - (117,931) (111,931)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE--%+ZA=t+-H
(restoted) (E31) 378,583 75041 1711859 93,514 2952 197.6% 5,366,417 8,126,768 3531812 11,658,580
nofes: BT
(a) The special reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and the (=) BhRFEEEAESENHZ _ZEENF+_A=+—"HILFER—H8
carrying values of the underlying assefs and liabilities affributable to the additional B AR NREREGZMNBAREME S 2 HAEEREE
interest in a subsidiary acquired during the year ended 31 December 2004. BREE =% -
(b) The property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from revaluation of (Z) DEEGHRBRFBETTERAREMER  EEYVE - BENMKHEE

properties under property, plant and equipment upon fransfer fo investment properties in
previous years.

I ZE i



Aributable fo owners o the Company %2 5 B SR BE s

Property Investment Capitel
Share Special revaluation revaluation redemption Exchange Accumulated Non-contralling
capita reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profifs Total interests Total
BA RHRER NXEREE REEGHE  RAWEREE ESRE 2REA At FERRRER @t
HKS'000 HIS'000 HKS'000 HS'000 HKS'000 HIS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 /000
BETT rﬁ‘#ﬁr‘g i&”f‘TJ}) BETT BRI BETL BETT BETT BETT BETL
note 0 ofe

(zE—) (HHzE=)

o
5
Q
>
0,
Q.
el
0
ES)
o)
>m
&
9
+
d

At 1 Jonuary 2012 —E-F+ZB-A-H
(st (m85) 58 B 9514 2951 W6 SHAT 6T 3SR LA

Profit for the year KEEHF - - - - - - 480,010 480,010 78,294 758,304

Fair value gains on ovalobleforsale investments AT At R E 2 AT EEYE - - - 169,941 - - - 169,941 9291 262,857

Income fox elating to fir volue change of BRTHHEREATE

avalobleforsale investments BB AEHTE - - - (14,768) - - - (14,768) (15,146) (29.914)

Amount eclassfied to the profit o loss upon HETHEEREEY

disposal of ovailobledorsale investments BNAEIEEEC SR - - - (293) - - - (19) (301) (594)
Income tox relofing to disposal of BRLETHEERE
availableforsale investments Frigst - - - L - - - 4 4 %

Exchange differences orsing on franslaion BEFELCERER - - - - - 6,638 - 6,638 31 9679

Share of other comprehensive income of assocites S A AR M 2 - - - n - - - n N8 430

Total comprehensive income for the yeor REEREURLE - - - 155,141 - 6,638 480,010 641,789 359,266 1,001,095

Acquisiion of addiionol inerests n subsidioies ~ SREB MR A 2 M - (61,83) - - - (4.452) - (66,284) (92,449 (158,733)

Diidends ecognised os distibution (Note 200~ ERRBSEZRE (HHEN) - - - - - - (106,003) (106,003) - (106,003)

Dividends pad fo non-<ontroling infeests SHFERRREREZRE - - - - - - - - (101,870) (101,870)

At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+ZA=t+-8 378,583 13915 1,711,859 248,655 2952 499,862 5,740,424 8,596,210 3,696,759 12,293,009

nofes: B 5E -

(a) The special reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and the (—) BHREEEAEENEZ _ZEZNE+-_A=1+—HILFENEZE
carrying values of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to the additional ZECFFZA=TRALFER—MRB AR AR EEE
interest in a subsidiary acquired during the year ended 31 December 2004 and the EZMBAREIMER B EERABKREE 5 -
year ended 31 December 2012.

(b) The property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from revaluation of ) DESERREERTFERAREMEE  BMHWE  BERREHR
properties under property, plant and equipment upon fransfer to investment properties in TYEMEELNRHE -

previous years.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
:ﬂ‘/\ﬂaétlﬂbgiéﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2012 2011
—E-Cf —2—-F
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
M BT BETT
(restated)
(&==35)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERE
Profit before tax BRBLANEA 896,897 1,066,073
Adjustments for: BE
Net interest income — financial services FSWAFE — SRR (837,597) (815,321)
Reversal of impairment allowances on loans and advances BLREEEDR
— financial services - £RRH (65,228) (107,188)
Net gains on fair value adjustments: AHERZHRA :
on properties under development transferred to HERTIXERERENE
investment properties = (41,929)
on other investment properties EitiREmE (270,630) (175,603)
Gain on disposal of investment properfies HEREME I (2.816) -
Loss (gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEME L REE (L) 4 (51,304)
Net gains on disposal of availablefor-sale-investments HETHREEREFHE (745) (697)
Share of profits of associates FrbBE D AER (36,028) (18,056)
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale HEGHEERE 2 WE — (13,536)
Interest income — nondinancial services FIEWA — FerRE (16,792) (8,840)
Dividend income from investments RERE (10,910) (9,884)
Imputed interest income on non-current inferest-free B-FWREDAELFER
advances fo an invesfee company REBYZHEERERA (2,561) (1,953)
Share of profit of joint ventures FHE A DR (118) (110)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment N BERRETE 72,991 68,806
Finance costs — non-financial services B AR — eSS BRAE 109,124 59,093
Net (gains) losses on fair value hedge AHEEH R ZF (k) B (1,200 20,679
Impairment loss on availableor-sale investments THEERE 2 RERE = 4,473
Net losses on disposal of property and equipment HENERRETER 2115 4128
Exchange adjustments ERAZE 819 2,204
Release of prepaid lease payments for land B THAESEREY 66 959
Impairment losses of other receivables Hit WS ERR (20,092) =
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital KRHLBELRH o CLETENE (182,664) (18,0006)




2012 2011 =
T =t S -
NOTES HKS'000 o
s EET T BEFT
(restated) =
GV
(Increase) decrease in operating assets: EEEE (M) HD ﬁﬁ
Other advances to customers HEEREEH 2,342,761 (3,001,860)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATES N BEZERER 648,604 (48,348)
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMERER 57,403 (53,124)
Bills receivable EBEE 30,328 (39,104)
Properties held for sale FHENE 20,995 340,937
Investment held for trading BEEERRRE 5 -
Placements with banks and other financial institutions A=AAIMzEHRTR
with original maturity over three months E B BgERE (1,975,578) 506,294
Money at call and short notice with original maturity B=EANBNRESEER
over three months (1,738,466) (987,888)
Advances to banks and other financial institutions BRTREMEEREEE (659,433) (980,509)
Other accounts HinERIE (254,426) (41,491)
Trade bills E5EE (151,188) (1 60 ,002)
Exchange fund bills with original maturity over three months B-ARIBZNEESRE (50,061) 299,500
Properties under development for sale BRPHEyE (5,346) (384,028)
[nventories BE (2,724) (3,605)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities: LEEEZEMNRD)
Deposits from banking customers BITBFER 2,692,649 1,168,578
Deposits and halances of banks and other financial institutions A=AAFRZRITREMITEHE
with original maturity over three months Rk 1,003,864 (581)
Trade and other payables BRRAMEAER 55,081 254,939
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements REBEBETHEZSREE 13,029 420,652
Certificates of deposit BHE (877,926) 1,545,562
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA (51,127) 54,607
Deferred income EREWA — (134,898)
Cash generated from (used in) operations BEERMB (AR 915,780 (1,262,375)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENBEBREH (118,883) (130,270)
The Peaple’s Republic of China Enterprise Income Tax paid ENPEARKMBLEMEHR (11,860) (30,350)
Overseas tax paid BT (16,409) (17,461)
Dividend received on investments ERERERE 10,910 9,884
Interest paid 2RFE (602,958) (436,416) .
Interest received ERFIE 1,232,792 1,119,612
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES @& %#%5HE (A zR&BH 1,409,372 (747,376)

BxEF--—s- | BUHEXETI SRS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
:ﬂi/\ﬂaéﬁlﬂbgiéﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2012 2011
—E-Cf —2—-F
NOTES HKS'000 HKS'000
M BT BETT
(restated)
(&E5)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERE
Purchase of held-o-maturity securities BABZIHE BES (20,184,070) (6,786,192)
Additional investments in available-forsale investments Rt ERE 2 g (2,875,603) (712,724)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENL BERRE (77,562) (250,951)
(Increase) decrease in bank deposits with more than BASEBATSZBAESR(M) H
three months to maturity when raised (44,523) 93,989
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (37,010) (6,394)
Advance to an investee company BARREDLH (5,000) (194,500)
Disposal of o subsidiary HE-—EHBAR 52 (8) 418,695
Proceeds from redemption of held-fo-maturity securifies L Z R R4 FERE 18,872,132 9,376,156
Proceeds from sale and redemption of available-for-sale investments 4 B w] &£ 4% B BT S 200E 703,621 51,790
Interest received on available-for-sale investments and KRR ERERIBEEIHA
held-to-maturity securifies BEZAE 276,223 224,239
Dividend received from associates WEEE N T ZRE 7,360 1,050
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREMERENE 4316 25,491
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BERBERERE 16 =
Proceeds from disposal of assefs held for sale HESHEEEMERE = 13,651
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  #E¥%£BRE (B <RL 28 (3,360,108) 2,254,300
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
New borrowings raised HEEER 1,327,126 701,970
Repayments of borrowings BELEHR (956,426) (1,051,335)
Dividend paid BHAKRE (207,873) (214,149)
Additional investment in a subsidiary R—EMBA R 2 EME (158,733) (36,365)
Interest paid on borrowings ERERAIER (109,124) (69,707)
Interest paid on loan capital EREEERFE (65,225) (64,325)
Repurchase of loan capifal EEEEER — (783,196)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RATHRACR&BH (170,255) (1,517,107)




2012 2011 =
—g-=% -=—= H
NOTES HKS'000 HKS'000 Q;
(3 BET T BEFT
(restated) =
e &
(EE5)) S
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRASSEERRYPHE (2,120,991) (10,183) ﬁﬁ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING FMZHReRE&EEER
OF THE YEAR 17,489,556 17,490,853
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES SMERBEREINE 14,096 8,886
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR ##ZR&R\LSEER 15,382,661 17,489,556
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, represented by: ERZESRBSZEEE  §:
Money at call and short nofice with original maturity of FEEHHAIR=EAZBAR
less than three months BEER 7,565,351 7,549,078
Cash and balances with banks and other financial insfitutions B4 RERRTREMBBREDE 6,574,516 6,789,918
Placements with banks and other financial institutions REHBAPR=MEA 27K
with original maturity of less than three months RELR S8 Bl sE 1,309,116 664,188
Exchange fund bills with original maturity of less than BEEHHASR=EAZHEELEE
three months 499,995 3,299,912
Deposits and halances of banks and other financial insitutions EEIHADIR=EA 2RI
with original maturity of less than three months Bt saEa ke (566,317) (813,540)
15,382,661 17,489,556
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the
"Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company is 25/F, Chong Hing Bank
Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries, joint venture and associates are

shown in Notes 58, 31 and 32 respectively.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(i) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group and the Company have applied (i) the new
and revised HKFRSs that have become effective and (ii) certain new and
revised HKFRSs in advance of their effective date issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), as follows:

HKFRSs that have become effective for the year

Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying Assets
Disclosures — Transfer of Financial Assets

HKFRSs that have been early applied for the year

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

(onsolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entifies

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) [nvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Except as described below, the application of the above new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and the Group’s and the Company’s financial
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in

the consolidated financial statements.

1. —®ER
ARBR/—REEBEAMRIZAREARRA
A HEOREBEAHARSMBRAR(E
FEEEEPT ) B o AN A2 REM SRR M Ak
REBEEWH AT ARWHET - THHRA
BRITHR LT HIE -
REMBBRRARNRR ZHEEEEE (B
W12 -

ARBZEBEBRREZER - TEHBA
Bl AECEEBMERRZIEEBE D HIH
FURPIEES8 ~ 31 ] 32 ©

2. ERHITRESTTFRMERS
EA([FEEMBHEEMN])

(i) *AHITRESTEFEMERS
#H)

EAFE  AEERARR(|EERATIIEE
M2 H ] R AMERT BB B 75 s 22 R R (i) 2
ERAHRERZ THETHESGHA
S ((EBEAMAE ) RME 2T REER
BRWBHREER :

FEELERCERMBREER

BESTENE R (BTA) EEHE - KEHBEE
BEMBRSEAEIR(BITF) RE - SHEEER

FEERPEACEEMBHREER

BAMBRIENEI0SN FRUBHRE BAZHR
ERILASERVEACHE:S) REMERZES
RE  BERES
BRMBRIEANEI0R FRUMBHRE
BEMBRIEAFE NS BaRH
BRMBREERE R REMERZESRE
BARSTERNEN R BuBHRE

(=B~
EEHEAE NG
(=B~ 4 2RH

BT E S - RAEE R LT R
(1 T E B B IS R AL 5 R AR A
FEMBEFEZMBRBARKER LA
RAZHMBHRRE, REEG AP BRERF
WIRBEREAYE -

BENARAELXE



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)
(CONTINUED)

(i) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 12

The Group and the Company have applied for the first time the

amendments fo HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets in

the current year. Under the amendments, investment properties that are

measured using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40

Investment Property are presumed to be recovered enfirely through sale for

the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is

rebutted in certain circumstances.

The Group and the Company measure their investment properties using the
fair value model. As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS
12, the directors reviewed the Group’s and the Company’s investment
property portfolios in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") and concluded that (a) the Group’s and the Company's investment
properties in Hong Kong, and certain investment properties in the PRC of
the Group are not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, and [b) the Group's remaining investment
properties in the PRC are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. According|\/, the presumption set out in the
amendments to HKAS 12 is rebutted only for certain investment properties
located in the PRC.

The application of the amendments to HKAS 12 has resulted in the Group
and the Company not recognising any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of the invesiment properties located in Hong Kong as the Group and
the Company are not subject to any income tax on disposal of these
investment properties. Previously, the Group and the Company recognised
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties on the
basis that the entire carrying amounts of the investment properties are

recovered through use.

2. ERHITREETTEMBERSE
EA(EEMBESERN] (&)

(i) ERAMAIRESITIFEMBRS
R ()

EBETERNEI125 (BFTX)

AEERARRRAFEERERBLG
REANFE 125 (BRIA) [EZHE — K EIIEE
BE  REBRER Bt EETEHREM
5 REBFAGAEAUFAORREYENUR
FERAFEZRENEORENEELE
2HKE - RIFEBRERS TERTERD

AEBERARBARFEEAGFEELREY
X-HRERBABGEAEI2R(ER
) BERRHAKERARREEERHE
ARKMB([HE ) 2 REMFAEERRAR -
QARERRARETEZRENERET
AEBERBEZIREYEIL IS EHER ]
HREZSREMFERBRIMOLBEN R Z
EBERAFE > RbAKEESKEFE 2K
EMENEERKEBERZEREMEER
BB MEEN 2 EHEEARE - Bt
HENEBGERE 125 (BRI X)) 2 R&kE
ETURTEZREMEMERM

ERERGTEE 125 (BRI A) EAREE
RARRHEHEMUR BB ZREMERHA
BNERAER - WAKERARR R T ULHE
REZFREMERNHERS JAEMEERIE
BE AEERARBRBERRENDERF
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REEABERKEMmEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(i) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“"HKAS”) 12

(Continued)

Upon the application of the amendments to HKAS 12, the Group continued

fo recognise deferred tax on changes in fair value of cerfain investment

properties in the PRC on the basis that the entire carrying amounts of the
properties are expected to be recovered through use. For those investment
properties in the PRC that the presumption of recovery through sales has not
been rebutted, deferred tax on changes in fair value is recognised on the
basis of subject to income taxes and land appreciation tax on disposal of

those properties.

The amendments to HKAS 12 have been applied refrospectively, resulting
in the Group's deferred taxation being decreased by HK$428,657,000
as at 1 January 2011, with the corresponding adjustments being

recognised in accumulated profits and property revaluation reserve.

In addition, the application of the amendments to HKAS 12 has resulted in
the Group's income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 31 December 2011 being reduced by HK$33,248,000 and
HK$8,085,000 respectively. Hence, the profit for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011 increased by HK$33,248,000
and HK$8,085,000 respectively. The change in accounting policy has
also resulted in a decrease in the Group’s deferred taxation by
HK$461,905,000, and increased in property revaluation reserve and
accumulated profit by HK$261,366,000 and HK$200,539,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2012.

The change in accounting policy has also resulied an increase in basic
earnings per share by HK$0.09 and HK$0.02 for years ended 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011

, respectively.

The impacts of amendments to HKAS 12 of the Company are set out in

Note 2 (i) below.
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A ([FEMBHEEEN])R)

ERAHIREBIITFEMBES
R (8])
ERGERNEI125 (BFTX) (&)

(i)

FERBEBGTERE 12 (BETAR) & - A&
BEEERBRREMECMAROEEBRER
WEmERE THRKEMERFEESH
BIEFRIE - RBRPEBREYEEBEEMK
BIARERE - BIRHEZEMEMEEN
SRR HIEERMERLZENELATEE
)2 IRERIE -

BEETERNE 125 (BTN EEHER -
BEAEER_T——F—A—BZREB
B D 428,657,000 7T » I AR B3 F
kY EHREEEREAREZES -

&t?l\'%% SRFERF 125 (BRI A) W IE
CEAREHE_T—FT_A=1—

Eiiﬁ&@ —E——F+ZA=+—H
LEFEFEZHREBRRAX D B LB
33,248,000 7t & A& # 8,085,000 7T » WA M
FEHE_ZE——F+_A=1T—HILFEK
HE_Z——F+_A=+—HIEFEZH
F o B K 0 7S ¥ 33,248,0000T K B ¥
8,0850007C - St R EB B AEEN =
E—ZFVTZA=T—AZEEHIERDE
#461,9050007T - MEEGHFERRER
F 5 B 0 B 261,366,000 7T K B &
200,539,000 7T °

B REEHEAEEBE_T——_F+=
A=T—RALEERBE_ZT——F+ZH
=t+—BILFEZBRERRH S RIE HINE
#0.09 T R ABHE0.027T ©

BRTEGTERIE 125 (BRI A) AR
Z RSB T MR 2(ii)



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)
(CONTINUED)

(i) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets in the current year. The
amendments increase the disclosure requirements for fransactions involving
the transfer of financial assets in order fo provide greater fransparency

around risk exposures when financial assefs are transferred.

The Group entered info repurchase agreements with an entity to sell held-o-
maturity securities and availablefor-sale investments subject to a master
agreement fo repurchase these securities af the agreed dates and prices.
As the Group has not fransferred the significant risks and rewards relating
to these held-fo-maturity securities and available-for-sale investments, it
continues to recognise the full carrying amounts of the held-fo-maturity
securities and availableforsale investments, and has recognised the cash
received on the fransfer as financial assefs sold under repurchase
agreements (see Note 39). The relevant disclosures have been made
regarding the fransfer of these heldfo-maturity securities and available-for
sale investments, on application of the amendments to HKFRS 7 (see Note
6d). In accordance with the fransitional provisions set out in the
amendments to HKFRS 7, the Group has not provided comparative

information for the disclosures required by the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(CONTINUED)

(i) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements and
HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor controls an investee
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returmns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those refurns through its power
over the investee. To meet the definition of control in HKFRS 10, all of the
three criteria, including (a) an investor has power over an investee, (b) the
investor has exposure, or rights, fo variable returns from ifs involvement with
the investee, and (c) the investor has the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns, must be met.
Previously, control was defined as the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as fo obtain benefits from its activities.
Much more guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 fo illustrate when an
investor has control over an investee. In particular, detailed guidance has
been established in HKFRS 10 to illustrate when an investor that owns less
than 50% of the vofing shares in an investee may has control over the
investee. For example, in assessing whether or not an investor with less
than a majority of the voting rights in an investee has a sufficiently dominant
voling inferest to meet the power criterion, HKFRS 10 requires the investor
to fake into account all relevant facts and circumstances, particularly, the
size of the investor's holding of voting rights relative to the size and

dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders.

The adoption of HKFRS 10 has affected the Group's accounting for the
interest in Chong Hing Bank Limited and its subsidiaries ("CHB" and
collectively the “CHB Group”).
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)
(CONTINUED)

(i) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 10 (Continued)

The Group used to own the maijority of the voting share capital of CHB

which the Group had accounted for as a subsidiary until 1997 when the

Group's inferest was reduced to 45%. Since then, the Group's inferest in

the voting share capital of CHB varied between 45% to 49.8% up to 31

October 2012 and the Group accounted for CHB as an associate using

the equity method of accounting. On 1 November 2012, the Group's

interest in CHB was increased to 50.2%.

During the current year, the directors examined the effect on application of
HKFRS 10 and concluded that based on its principles and requirements,
the Group did not lose control over CHB since 1997 despite its
shareholding therein was less than 50% and that CHB qualified as a
subsidiary of the Group under HKFRS 10 throughout the relevant reporting
periods. Accordingly, the financial information of CHB Group is
consolidated retrospectively for all relevant periods as if the Group has not
lost confrol over CHB since 1997 The impact on the Group's consolidated

financial statements are set out in Note 2 (i) below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

(i) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Inferests in Joint Venitures ["HKAS 31") and
HK(SICHnt 13 Jointly Confrolled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control should be classified. Under HKFRS 11,
there are only two types of joint arrangements — joint operations and joint
ventures. The classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 is
determined based on the rights and obligations of parties to the joint
arrangements by considering the structure, legal form of the arrangements,
the confractual terms agreed by the parties to the arrangement, and, when
relevant, other facts and circumstances. A joint operation is a joint
arrangement Whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
[i.e. joint operators] have rights to the assefs, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement [i.e. joint
venturers) have rights to the nef assefs of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS
31 had three types of joint arrangements — jointly controlled entities,
jointly controlled operations and jointly controlled assets. The classification
of joint arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily determined based on
the legal form of the arrangement [e.g. a joint arrangement that was
established through o separate entity was accounted for as a jointly

controlled entity).

ERAHMIREBITFRMERS
EA(TEFEMBRESERN]) (&)

ERAHIREBIITFEMBES
R (8])
ERUBREENFIISR
ERUMBREEMNE I RRRTEEGAE
AFE N RRAELE 2 ER ([EEGER
FIH/DMEEREEHLRREE —2EE13
SHAIERERE — RE TR ZIFERL
& R B HmEERNE 1 SRATA B ER
A EEEREAKREGEZAELBEN A
cRBBRAMBHRELANE IR A%
ZHESIRME  BaKERAZLE - R
BEEAMBHREEINE 1 RE S L LHET
DRENBERBRF R ZER AR
ARNETRABEZENGERREMBBEEER
BRE  ERFTNETRBELHZHEN R
BEEMEE -BEKER—RERH  BE
HRAZEHENETT (BAKER) HRRIN
BEMEHZARILELT BEAER—
HAEERH  BAEAREN NS (BAR
BE)HRRHNFEEZTBERENERN - 5L
Al BAGHEAEINRE=BEAzEE
ZHE — HEEHIER  AREHEERAR
BHIEE - RIFEBFB G ERNE S RHAZ
RHETHBEBERNZ L EEL A ()
WERBYEREY ZAERHARIIE—
BAREHERE) METE -

(i)

N K
D3R

%Pd?

PR

o> o)



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(i) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 11 (Continued)

The subsequent accounting of joint ventures and joint operations is different.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method

(proportionate consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments in joint

operations are accounted for such that each joint operator recognises and

measures the assets and liabilities (and the relafed revenues and expenses)
in relation fo its interest in the arrangement in accordance with the

applicable Standards.

Upon the application of HKFRS 11, the directors reviewed and assessed
the legal form and terms of the contractual arrangements in relation to the
Croup's investments in joint arrangements. The directors concluded that the
adoption of HKFRS 11 has no significant impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that have
interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entfities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12
has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests. As at 31 December 2012, the Group
and the Company did not have interests in any unconsolidated structure

entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. BASITREETEEMERS

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) ER((BEMBEEEER]) (&)
(CONTINUED)
(ii) FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF ADOPTION OF HKFRS 10 (i) EREEMBHEEENE 10
AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS12 THESEREBOHENS
123 (ERT%E)
Impacts on the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 BE-E——®+-HA=+-—-HLEELH
December 2011 BRI
Restated
As amounts after Amendment fo
originally HKFRS10 HKFRS10 HKAS12
stated  adjustments  adjustments Reclossification  adjustments  As restated
BRMBRE
ERMKEE  EUFNE ERGH
ERIE1035% WER ERIE11%
R%23] HE  KEIGHE ENAE  (BIR)RE &=3)

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
BT BT BETT BETT BT BT

(note )
(FtE—)
Total operating revenue meEG = — — 2,461,679 — 2,461,679
Inferest income FIEWA — 1,369,989 1,369,989 — — 1,369,989
Inferest expense FEXH - (553,777) (553,777) — — (553,777)
Net inferest income FEXHFEE — 816,212 816,212 — — 816,212
Fee and commission income LT EALON — 276,257 276,257 — — 276,257
Fee and commission expense ERRASLH = (58,534) (58,534) = = (58,534)
Net fee and commission income EARAEBAEE - 217,723 217,723 - - 217,723
Other operating revenue HitrgE R 725,093 90,340 815,433 - - 815,433
Direct expenses BERA (456,823) (1,133) (457,956) = = (457,956)
268,270 1,123,142 1,391,412 — — 1,391,412

Investment income REWR 1,953 - 1,953 (1,953) - -
Other income — noninancial services Hivinis — FERITER 93,524 (18,254) 75,270 (49,122) — 26,148
Administrative and operating expenses THREEER (152,537) (745,978) (898,515) 898,515 — —
Other operating expenses HittES - - — (910,082) - (910,682)
Promation and selling expenses on FHENEZHER

properties held for sale HEER (11,987) — (11,987) 11,987 — —
Reversal of impaiment allowances on EFREEREE

loans and advances - 107,188 107,188 - - 107,188
Recovery of amounts previously W B R

written-off in relation to Minibonds RIMESHEEE

Repurchase Scheme kx| — 234,632 234,632 - - 234,632



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. ERAHIIREECITITEEMNERS

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) ER([FEMEESEnN ) (&) B
0,
(CONTINUED) Q
(ii) FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF ADOPTION OF HKFRS 10 (i) EREEMBEEENE 108 |
AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS12 (CONTINUED) cHEFEREEOH e s [N
S0
125 (B8T%H) (#) H
o
Impacts on the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 BE-ZEZ—— 4+ -BA=+—-HLEEH ;‘E
December 2011 (Continued) SWBRIEE(E)
Restated
As amounts affer Amendment to
originally HKFRS10 HKFRS10 HKAS12
stated  odjustments  adjustments Redlossification  adjustments  As restated
EEBBRE
BREUBHRE  EAENR Bhg
ERIE05 ARE HERIENH
REZ23 WE  KEIEE ENSE (%) B2 &E5

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BT BT BT BETT

(note a)
(HrEE—)
Gain on changes in fair value on: RENFEZNTEE
2
— investment properties disposed - RAEHEY
during the year REME 90,770 - 90,770 (90,770) = =
— other investment properties — HipREME 75,768 = 75,768 (75,768) = =
— properties under development —RERTNEERZS
transferred fo investment REME
properies 41,929 - 41,929 (41,929) = =
Gain on disposal of o subsidiary HEMB D E 2 W 51,304 — 51,304 (51,304) — —
Other gains and losses Hitga Rk EE = (51,134) (51,134) 309,436 - 258,302
Finance costs — noninancial services B — FERITER (59,093) — (59,093) — - (59,093)
Share of profits of joint ventures b agtER7 110 — 110 — — 110
Share of profits of associates FrBHEE A R F 274,573 (256,517) 18,056 — — 18,056
Loss on changes in fair value of HEEERRREY
investments held for trading AFEEER (1,590) — (1,590) 1,590 — —
Profit before fox BRBE AR R 672,994 393,079 1,066,073 — — 1,066,073
Income tax expense Friahi s H (82,271) (108,867) (191,138) — 8,085 (183,053)
Profit for the year REERF 590,723 284,212 874,935 — 8,085 883,020
Profit for the year atfributable to: KEERENAER :
Qwners of the company AAFRE 593,547 - 593,547 — 6,824 600,371
Non-controlling interests FER R ER (2,824) 284,212 281,388 = 1,261 282,649
590,723 284,212 874,935 — 8,085 883,020
Basic eamings per share BREKRF B HKS1.57 7T — — — BEH002T EEHKSN T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(ii) FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF ADOPTION OF HKFRS 10
AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS12 (CONTINUED)

2. ERMITREETTRMERS
A ([FEMBEEEMN])R)

(i) EREEMBERSENZ10H
CHEREREEEHENSE

125% (fE8T®) (48)
Impacts on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income forthe #HzZE—-—T - — S+ -_A=+—-QILEES
year ended 31 December 2011 SrEUWRR IS
Restated
As amounts after Amendment fo
originally HKFRS10 HKFRS10 HKAS 12
stated adjustments adjustments adjustments As restated
ERBBRE ERBBRE BB
EAIE05 EAIE105 B TEVE
R%E25 AE ARELEIGE (CHEIEL KE3
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$"000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Profit for the year KEERF 590,723 284,212 874,935 8,085 883,020
Other comprehensive income Hih2m S
Exchange differences arising BEREEZERZH
on ranslation 122,997 6,547 129,544 = 129,544
Fair value gain (losses) on available- A AtHERE >
forsales investment ALEERER (B8) 18,301 (89,234) (70,933) — (70,933)
Amount reclassified to the profit and [ H & {tas HERE
loss upon disposal of BHEHNHEE
availablefor-sales investments BREVSE — (697) (697) — (697)
Amount reclassified to the profit o~ E A/t EREHE
loss upon impairment of BYENHBEERE
availablefor-sale investments e — 4,473 4,473 - 4,473
Income tax effect relafing to disposal BEH HER i ERE
of availablefor-sale investments > friafiZ/2 = 12 12 — 12
Income tax effect relafing to ERTHEERE
fair value change of ATERERELE
availablefor-sale investments ZHEHyE — 13,086 13,086 — 13,086
Surplus on remeasurement of B RAMER 2B
retirement benefits — 10,268 10,268 — 10,268
Income tax effect relafing to BRERERZ
refirement benefits Frenige = (1,694) (1,694) = (1,694)
Share of other comprehensive fHERE M
expense of joint ventures 2EXE = (53) (53) — (53)
Share of other comprehensive i Nt
(expenses) income of associates 27 () (34,347) 34,347 — — —
Income tax relating fo components of E#t2 & Wiz1EE 2
other comprehensive income Fras 6,430 (6,430) — — —
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEENE
for the year 113,381 (29,375) 84,006 — 84,006
Total comprehensive income AEERXHKERE
for the year 704,104 254,837 958,941 8,085 967,026
Total comprehensive income BR2EBEAER
atfributable to:
Owners of the Company ARERR 702,677 - 702,677 6,824 709,501
Non-controlling interests FERBRES 1,427 254,837 256,264 1,261 257,525
704,104 254,837 958,941 8,085 967,026




2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

(ii) FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF ADOPTION OF HKFRS 10
AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS12 (CONTINUED)

2. ERHITREETTFEMBEE
EA([FEMEEEEN])GR)

(i) EREEMERSEN T 1058
CHEREREEEHERNS

123 (ERTEX) (#8)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position as at R-E——F—PB—HAGEAWBRREY
1 January 2011 4
Restated
As amounts after Amendment fo
originally HKFRS10 HKFRS10 HKAS12
stated  adjustments  adjustments Reclassification  adjustments  As restated
ERUBRE
ERRBRE  ERE0H EE -6
EHSE105% AR% EHFE15
RE23 AR EEINSE ENAE (B BE =83
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BET T BET T BETT
(nofe b) (note a)
(HE=) (FizE—)
Cash and short-term funds EBREREHES 338,776 18,249,365 18,588,141 — — 18,588,141
Placements with banks and BHBRTREM I BEE
other financial institutions R-Z+=fRRA
maturing between one to El}Cp s
twelve months — 2,282,122 2,282,122 104,068 — 2,386,190
Bank balances with the CHB Group RAIESTEEY
RITER 126,623 (126,623) — — — —
Fixed bank deposits with more than ~ ZA=EA%ZE>
three months to maturity THRITER
when raised 104,068 — 104,068 (104,068) = =
Derivative financial instruments TELRIE - 20,542 20,542 - - 20,542
Investments held for trading BEESBERRRE 8,729 — 8,729 (8,729) — —
Available-for-sale investments AHHEERE 298,329 — 298,329 (298,329) — —
Structured deposits HERUER 95,940 — 95,940 (95,940) = =
Investments in securities BHERE — 13,864,927 13,864,927 402,998 — 14,267,925
Advances and other accounts ERREMRE
— financial services — SRRE — 38,835,820 38,835,820 — — 38,835,820
Advances to an investee company BARREAT 121,964 = 121,964 = = 121,964
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EtERRR
— non-financial services — ELRBE 85,761 — 85,761 — — 85,761
Tax recoverable e — 6 6 — — )
Properties under development for sale S ERREHYE 1,118,029 — 1,118,029 - — 1,118,029
Properties held for sale ey 6,518 — 6,518 - - 6,518
Inventories BE 11,088 — 11,088 - — 11,088
Assets held for sale BHESE 100 — 100 — — 100
Inferests in joint ventures BEERR 2,433 = 2,433 = — 2,433
nterests in associates AN I 3,155,932 (3,019,013) 136,919 — — 136,919
[nvestment properties RENE 6,099,456 116,400 6,215,856 - — 6,215,856
Property, plant and equipment W BERR 52,871 729,771 782,642 — - 782,642
Prepaid lease payments BEeXH 30,415 2,535 32,950 — — 32,950
Goodwill 5k — 50,606 50,606 — — 50,606
Total assets BEE 11,657,032 71,006,458 82,663,490 — — 82,663,490
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. ERAHIIREEIEEMERSE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) EA([EEMEESER ) (@)
(CONTINUED)
(ii) FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF ADOPTION OF HKFRS 10 (i) EAEEMBEESENSE 1058
AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS12 (CONTINUED) THENERESOHENSE
1258 (85T=®)(#)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position as at NR-ZE——F—A—HEAHBRREZ
1 January 2011 (Continued) 240 (4)
Restated
As amounts after Amendment fo
originally HKFRS10 HKFRS10 HKAS12
stated adjustments adjustments adjustments As restated
ERRERE ERRERE -6
EAFE105 ERIE 0% ERIE 115
RE25 AE ARELEIGE (CHEIEE: "EY
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS"000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(note b)
(M=)
Deposits and balances of banks BITRE MBI AR
and other financial institution BRRER - (1,039,991) (1,039,991) — (1,039,991)
Deposits from banking customers  $R4TE — (63,373,596) (63,373,596) - (63,373,596)
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA = (256,426) (256,426) — (256,426)
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMRN (180,708) (442,834) (623,542) = (623,542)
Taxafion payable AR (11,600) (50,106) (61,706) = (61,706)
Deferred income EEWA (134,898) = (134,898) = (134,898)
Loan capital EEEAR = (2,401,151) (2,401,151) = (2,401,151)
Borrowings B3 (3,661,330) = (3,661,330) = (3,661,330)
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE (572,774) (24,665) (597,439) 428,657 (168,782)
Total liabilities FEN= (4,561,310) (67,588,769) (72,150,079) 428,657 (71,721,422)
Net assets EEFE 7,095,722 3,417,689 10,513,411 428,657 10,942,068
Share capital R 378,583 = 378,583 = 378,583
Reserves =1 6,685,626 26,619 6,712,245 428,657 7,140,902
Equity attributable to: REDER
Owners of the Company AAFRE 7,064,209 26,619 7,090,828 428,657 7,519,485
Non-controlling interests R 31,513 3,391,070 3,422,583 — 3,422,583

Total equity gL 7,095,722 3,417,689 10,513,411 428,657 10,942,068




2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

(ii) FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF ADOPTION OF HKFRS 10
AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS12 (CONTINUED)

2. ERHITREETTEMBERSE
EA(FEMEEEEN]GR)

(i) EREEMBERSENE105%
CHENERERSHENS

1238 (ERTEX) (#8)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position as at R-E——FE+-_A=+—HESHER
31 December 2011 NEEE
Restated
As amounts after Amendment to
originally HKFRS10 HKFRS10 HKAS12
staed  odjustments  adjusiments Reclossification  adjustments  As restated
EBUBRE
ERMBRE  ERAEI0R EBg
EHSE105% AR% EHFE5%
REZ23 HE  KEIGHE ENSE (BIR)HE ©E3)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT T BRI T BET T BET T BET T BT T
(note b) (note a)
(HE=) (FizE—)
Cosh and short-ferm funds EBREREHES 396,826 18,659,276 19,056,102 — — 19,056,102
Placements with banks and other BHSTREMEEE
financial institutions maturing R-Z+=@BR
between one to twelve months ) e — 2,169,007 2,169,007 10,079 — 2,179,086
Bank balances with the CHB Group REIERTEEY
RITEX 146,916 (146,916) = — — —
Fixed bank deposits with more than BAZ@EBBIHY
three months to maturity when raised B4R /TEER 10,079 — 10,079 (10,079) — —
Derivative financial instruments fTESBIA — 129,556 129,556 — — 129,556
Investments held for trading HEEERRRE 7,139 — 7,139 (7,139) = =
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE 320,189 — 320,189 (320,189) — —
Structured deposits e li g 74,742 — 74,742 (74,742) = =
Investments in securities BERE — 11,980,156 11,980,156 402,070 — 12,382,226
Advances and other accounts HE T HEE
— financial services — SRRE — 43211156 43,211,156 = — 43,211,156
Advances to an investee company BARREDT 312,209 — 312,209 = = 312,209
Trade and other receivables B 5K H R
— nonfinancial services — FERRHB 135,204 — 135,204 - - 135,204
Properties under development forsale L ERE Ry 452,382 — 452,382 — — 452,382
Properties held for sale HHEYE 605,717 — 605,717 — — 605,717
Inventories s 14,693 — 14,693 — — 14,693
Interests in joint ventures BEMERER 2,543 = 2,543 = — 2,543
Interests in associates NGl £ 3,333,384 (3,179,512 153,872 — — 153,872
Investment properties BEYLE 6,138,076 127,171 6,265,247 - - 6,265,247
Property, plant and equipment W& BERE 45,016 918,968 963,984 — — 963,984
Prepaid lease payments BAESLE — 2,483 2,483 — — 2,483
Deferred fax assefs EERIBEEE 610 6,721 7,331 — 10,140 17,471
Goodwil LS — 50,606 50,606 — — 50,606
Total assets BmEE 11,995,725 73,928,672 85,924,397 — 10,140 85,934,537
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2. ERMITREETTRMERS
A ([FEMBEEEMN])R)

)
K
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(ii) FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF ADOPTION OF HKFRS 10 (ii) EHEBMBEREENFE 10
AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS12 (CONTINUED) THENERSESHENS
123 (EETX) (&)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position as at R-E——F+-A=+-—-HESHER
31 December 2011 (Continued) MEZSE(H)
Restated
As amounfs after Amendment fo
originally HKFRS10 HKFRS10 HKAS12
sioted  odjustments  odjustments  Reclossification  adjusiments  As restated
ERNERE
ERMERE  RAZNR EEg
EHFE05% AR% ERHISE115
BEEE235 AR KEINLE EFNSE  (BAIR)HE FE2]
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BET T BETT
(note b) (note a)
(HEE=) (HfE—)
Deposits and balances of banks and RITREMEKKE
other financial institution BRRERS = (1,086,836)  (1,086,836) = = (1,086,836)
Financial assets sold under REBHETHES
repurchase agreements SREE - (420,652) (420,652) — - (420,652)
Deposits from banking customers RITRFPER —  (64,668,797) (64,668,797) — —  (64,668,797)
Certificates of deposit BAE —  (1,545,562)  (1,545,562) — —  (1,545,562)
Derivative financial instruments fTHESRIA — (265,696) (265,696) — — (265,696)
Trade and other payables R RABETER (316,897) (558,495  (875,392) - — (875,392)
Taxation poyable B3 (29,055) (31,176) (60,231) - - (60,231)
Loan capifal BEER = (1,852,153)  (1,852,153) = = (1,852,153)
Borrowings B (3,356,148) 36,800  (3,319,348) — —  (3,319,348)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEEE (596,017) (11,875) (607,892) = 426,602 (181,290)
Total liabilities BEE (4,298,117)  (70,404,442)  (74,702,559) — 426,602  (74,275,957)
Net assefs BREFE 7,697,608 3,524,230 11,221,838 — 436,742 11,658,580
Share capital R 378,583 — 378,583 — — 378,583
Reserves i 7,286,085 25,358 7,311,443 — 436,742 7,748,185
Equity attributable to: BRREAER 7,664,668 25,358 7,690,026 — 436,742 8,126,768
Owners of the Company NG
Non-controlling interest MR R 32,940 3,498,872 3,531,812 — — 3,531,812
Total equity [RELLE 7,697,608 3,524,230 11,221,838 — 436,742 11,658,580
notes: B aE -
() Upon consolidation of the CHB Group, certain amounts in the consolidated income (—) AHEIERITEERE  GREelaER EEaMERR

RAZETLRMEEMBHRRC2IEH AR
EIE

HWREEHEMS  RTARBERRIZENNE
o BAHBREA—ERERRIBERREKIER
PEENRBEZETES -

stafement and consolidated statement of financial position are reclassified and regrouped

for the presentation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

(b) For the purpose of these reconciliations, certain balances in the same category but (=)
originally classified as current or non-current assets and liabilities have been combined to

conform with the restated presentation in decreasing liquidity.



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2. ERHITREETTFEMBERSE
EA(EEMBESERN] (&)

3
2,
Q
(ii) FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF ADOPTION OF HKFRS 10 (i) ERAEBMBEREENE 108 12
AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS12 (CONTINUED) THERERSReHens M
@
125 (B8T%H) (#) 9
it
Impact on the net asset and equity of the Company as at R-E——F+-_A=+—HEETER EUH
1 January 2011 a2y g
THE COMPANY %47
As at As at
1 January 2011 Amendments to 1 January 2011
(As originally stated) ~HKAS12 adjusiments (As restated)
R=B-—-% =) R=Z2——F
—-R—-H ERIE1H —RA—H
(RELZF)) (CHEIE: (&531)
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT BETT BT
Deferred toxation BRI 69,720 (44,894) 24,826
Accumulated profits KER 1,422,198 44,894 1,467,092

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective EEMEMRERZHITREBIERY
W& A
AEERARBLEREEBTIIERME

AR AR #R] RARIERT B AT B S ER -

The Group and the Company have not early applied the following new

and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments fo HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009—2011 Cycle' EEUMBREEN(BIER) BBUEREEN-_ZINE
EoE- RS FERE
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities' BRMBRERRETHR RE - EHEREER
(CHEN) SREE
Amendments fo HKFRS 9 and ~ Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures? ERUBREEAEIFR  BEMBREENEISZ
HKFRS 7 EAL A HES) BHBENABRBERE
Amendments fo HKFRS 10, [nvestment Entities® ERNBREENENER RESHE
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 F15 (BT URE S
ERp 3 ENEACHES)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BRMBREREAEIR EeRIA?
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement' BRMKREEREIH AVEERTE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income? BREHERE IR (BTA) Htt2EWRER 225
Amendments fo HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabiliies® ERGTHERENR (BTKR) KESRHEERSRARS
HK(IFRIC)nt 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine' BE (EREBRERE BERBEEERR 2 HRMA 135
ZEE) — REENN
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. ! REB—=F—A— Bz &MnzFERRER

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

? RZT—hF—A—
s RZT—WOF—F—
4 RZE——FtA—

Bk & FIth 2 FEHRAR -
Bakz &5z FEMEEXR
B2 kBt FREMEAR -

BHEEFH-—&= | CUHLRTHHE W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSS 2009-2011 CYCLE

ISSUED IN JUNE 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle include a number
of amendments to various HKFRSs. The amendments are effective for the
Group and the Company for annual periods beginning on 1 January
2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include the amendments to HKAS T,
Presentation of Financial Stafements, amendments to HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment and the amendments to HKAS 32 Financial

Instruments: Presentation.

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies refrospectively,
or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification to present a
statfement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period
(third statement of financial position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify
that an entity is required to present a third statement of financial position
only when the retrospective application, restatement or reclassification has
a material effect on the information in the third statement of financial
position and that related notes are not required to accompany the third

statement of financial position.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-by equipment
and servicing equipment should be classified as property, plant and
equipment when They meet the definition of property, p|onf and equipment
in HKAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. The directors do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments will have a material effect on

consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on disfributions to
holders of an equity instfrument and transaction costs of an equity
transaction should be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes. The directors anficipate that the amendments to HKAS 32 will have
no effect on the consolidated financial statements as the Group and the

Company have already adopted this treatment.

2. ERMITREETTRMERS
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 infroduces new requirements for the classification

and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS @ amended in 2010 includes

the requirements for the classification and measurement of financial

liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS @ are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assefs that are within the scope of HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for frading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally

recognised in profit or loss.

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as
at fair volue through profit or loss, HKFRS @ requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is atributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities atiributable to changes in
the financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair value

through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9@ is effective for the Group for annual period beginning on or affer

1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anficipate that the adoption of HKFRS @ in the future may
have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's and
the Company’s financial assets and liabilities. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed

review has been complefed.

HKFRS 13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair volue measurements. The standard
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS
13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in
specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
13 are more exfensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantifative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 fo cover

all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for the Group for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The directors
antficipate that the application of the new standard may affect certain
amounts reported in the financial statements and result in more extensive

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 PRESENTATION OF ITEMS OF

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive

Income introduce new terminology for the statement of comprehensive

income and income statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a

"statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as a “statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income” and an “income statement” is

renamed as a "stafement of profit or loss”. The amendments to HKAS 1

refain the option fo present profit or loss and other comprehensive income

in either a single statement or in two separafe but consecutive statements.

However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive

income fo be grouped info two categories: (a) items that will not be

reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently fo profit or loss when specific conditions are met.

Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required fo be

allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change the option

fo present items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of

tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on 1 January 2013. The presentation of items of other
comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the amendments

are applied in the future accounting periods.
pp gp
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 32 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL

ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND AMENDMENTS

TO HKFRS 7 DISCLOSURES — OFFSETTING FINANCIAL

ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating to

the offset of financial assefs and financial liabilities requirements.

Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally

enforceable right of setoff” and “simultaneous realisation and seftlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities fo disclose information about
rights of offset and related arrangements (such collateral posting
requirements) for financial instruments under an enforceable master netting

agreement or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for the Group and the Company
for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2013 and inferim periods
within those annual periods. The disclosures should also be provided
refrospectively for all comparative periods. However, the amendments to
HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods beginning on or affer 1

January 2014, with retrospective application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these amendments to HKAS

32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more disclosures being made in the future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statfements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for cerfain properties and financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company [its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from ifs involvement with the investee and has the obihf\/ to
affect those refurns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the

following:

e power over the investee [i.e. existing rights that give it the current

ability fo direct the relevant activities of the investee);

e exposure, or rights, to variable refurns from its involvement with the

investee; and

e the ability to use its power over the investee to affect ifs refurns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient
fo give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Company'’s voting rights in an investee are

sufficient fo give it power, including:

e the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative fo the size

and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or

other parties;
e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any odditional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,

including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes o one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidafed income
statement from the date the Company gains control until the date when the

Company ceases fo confrol the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
affributed 1o the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling inferests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is affributed fo the owners of
the Company and fo the non-controlling inferests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries fo bring their accounting policies info line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All infragroup assefs and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating fo transactions between members of the Group are eliminated

in full on consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group's ownership inferests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's inferests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
inferests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and

affributed fo owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between [i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any refained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assefs
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. VWhen assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or
fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
relevant assets [i.e. reclassified fo profit or loss or transferred directly to
accumulated profits as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, or HKFRS @ Financial Instruments, or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint

arrangement.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control

over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the nef assefs of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted theredfter fo recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of losses of an
associafe or a joinf venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any longferm interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only fo the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or

joint venture.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary fo recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associafe or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill] is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
fo the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.

When a group entity fransacts with an associate or a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate
or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only fo the extent of inferests in the associate or joinf venture that

are not related to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for confrol of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are

generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the

accounting policy below); and

e assefs [or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard.

3. XESHHE(ME)

KBmatt

EBWEDEBRBEAR - XA ER
ZRERATVEEFE  ZRERAEEE
BBE ARBERBEBHAMRRAEZ
BERANEERREUR S TT < 15 H R i %
T2 AN WEE R B2 A EERM -
B R EIRARRZRANE LR ARG RE

=7
o

REEEE PrlE AR EERMAER
BNREREERS 2 A FEERER - HINR
NESERSN

s REMBEEXABLEREBRBRMLHE
BRZBEREENREREETE
RIS 125% [PriE# ) REE G ERIE
19%: [1E B &7 R RE

.« EBUEHUBRKRRZSABIALE
BARR £ 3032 5 R AR O 75 DA B R 2
SEM2 B EREETA TR
iSSP S ERSIEVE 0ok
BZFiHE] R

s REFBMBHREENFESR/FLE

ZHRBEERCKIEEXFED
RFEFHEZEE (RHMEMAS) RIEZ

RBIFHE -

o
5
Q
>
0,
Q.
el
0

ES)
o)
>m
&
9
+
d

BHES-—2= | LUHEXTBWE s



IS
o

210g boday [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
fransferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity inferest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assefs
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held inferest in the acquiree [if any), the excess is

recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling inferesfs that are present ownership inferests and entfitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assefs in the event of
|iquidoﬂon may be iniﬂo”y measured either at fair value or at the non-
confrolling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s idenfifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a fransaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling inferests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified

in another standard.

GOODWILL
Gooduwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005 but before
1 January 2010

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business on or affer 1
2005 but before 1

acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable

January

January 2010 represents the excess of the cost of

assefs, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant business at the
date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is presented

separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment festing, goodwill arising from an acquisition
is allocated fo each of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005 but before
1 January 2010 (Continued)

A cash-generating unit fo which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in @
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unif, the impairment losses are allocated first fo reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then fo the other
assets of the unit a pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment losses for goodwill is recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement. An impairment losses recognised for

fo goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the aftributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on

disposal.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held fo earn rentals ond/or for copito\
appreciation (including properties under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for undefermined future use, which

is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permonenﬂ\/ withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is included in

profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

For a transfer from properties under development for sale to investment
properties (which is evidenced by commencement of an operating lease],
any difference between the fair value of the property af that date and ifs

previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

For a fransfer from investment properties to properties under development
for sale which is evidenced by the commencement of development with a
view fo sale, any difference between the fair value of the property at the
date of fransfer and its previously carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss. The property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value

at the date of change in use.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
statements of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as fo write off the cost of ifems of property,
plant and equipment, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straightline method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in esfimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the confinued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or refirement of an
item of property, p|ont and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of
financial position at cost (including deemed capital confribution), less any
identified impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by

the Company on the basis of dividends received or receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in associates
are stated at cost, as reduced by any identified impairment loss. The results
of associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable during the year.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Properties under development for sale in the ordinary course of business are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. It comprises the
consideration for development expenditure (which includes cost of land use
rights, consfruction costs and capitalised inferest) directly affributable to the

development of the properties.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable

value.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs

of complefion and cosfs necessary fo make the sale.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's and
Company's statements of financial position when a group entity becomes a

party fo the confractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabiliies are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly affributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriafe, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable o
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the four categories,
including financial assefs at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), loans
and receivables, heldto-maturity investments and availableforsale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the fime of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assefs that require delivery of assets within

the time frame established by regulation or convention in the markefplace.

Effective interest method

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial assets, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on inifial

recognifion.

Financial assets at FYTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial assets

held for trading and those designated at FVTPL on inifial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
future; or
° it is a part of an idenfified portfolio of financial instruments that the

Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-

ferm profittaking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be

designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or

recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information

about the grouping is provided infernally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract [asset

or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assefs at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and is

included in interest income in the consolidated income statement.

Lloans and receivables

Lloans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
fo initial recognition, loans and receivables (including cash and shorterm
funds, placements with and advances to banks and other financial
institutions, interest receivable, bills receivable, trade bills and other
advances to customers, trade and other receivables, advances to an
investee company, fixed bank deposits with more than three months fo
maturity when raised and amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of

financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-o-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assefs with fixed or
deferminable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s management
has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other than those that
meet the definition of loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial
recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured af amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Availablefor-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and

receivables or heldto-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group and the Company that are
classified as available-forsale and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of availableforsale monetary financial assets relafing to
inferest income calculated using the effective interest method and dividends
on availableforsale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.
Other changes in the carrying amount of availableforsale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified
fo profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).

Dividends on availablefor-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s and the Company’s right fo receive the dividends is

established.

Availablefor-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured af cost less any identified impairment losses af the end of the
reporting period [see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets

below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred dfter the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have

been affected.

For an availableforsale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be

objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
®  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

® it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as advances to customers,
assefs that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,

assessed for impairment on a collective basis.

Individual impairment allowances are assessed by a discounted cash flow
method for loans and advances that are individually significant and have
objective evidence of impairment. The individual impairment allowances
are measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Individually insignificant advances or advances where no impairment has
been identified individually are assessed for collective impairment by
considering the historical loss experience of advances with similar credit

risk characteristics adjusted for current conditions.

For financial assets carried ot amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the assef's carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the

financial asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assefs carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the financial asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted af the
current market rate of return for a similar financiol asset. Such impairment

losses will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance amount with the exception of frade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly. When the financial assets are considered to be
uncollectible, the amounts are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously writtlen off are credited to

profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset carried at fair value is
considered to be impaired, cumulative losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in

which the impairment fakes place.

Impairment losses on availableforsale equity investments carried at fair
value will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve. For available-
for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the

impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group enfity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual inferest in the
assets of a group entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised af the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Effective interest method

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective inferest rafe is the rafe that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an infegral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, fo the nef carrying amount

on inifial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis. Interest
expenses of deposits and balances from banks and customers, financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit and inferest
rate swaps are operating in nature and the interest paid on these items are
included in operating activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Inferest expense of borrowings and loan capital are financing in nature and

the amounts of interest paid are included in financing activities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss has two subcategories,
including financial liabilities held for trading and those designated at fair

value through profit or loss on initial recognition.
A financial |iobi|ify is classified as held for trading if:

® it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the

near future; or

®  on initial recognition, it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of shorterm profitiaking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

Financial liabilities af fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on the financial

liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Oither Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of
fransaction costs. Other financial liabilities (including bank and other
borrowings, frade and other payables, advances from subsidiaries of the
Compoany, deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions,
financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, deposits from banking
customers, cerfificates of deposits, loan capital and borrowings) are

subsequently measured af amortised cost using the effective inferest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statements of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an infention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the financial asset and seftle the financial

liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are inifially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
confract is enfered into and are subsequently remeasured fo their fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the fiming of the

recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contfracts are treated as
separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Hedge accounting

The Group designates cerfain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of
availablefor-sale securities and fixed-rate subordinated notes (fair value

hedges).

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the entity documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, along with
its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is
used in a hedging relafionship is highly effective in offsetting changes in

fair values of the hedged item.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
fair value hedges are recognised in profit or loss immediately, fogether with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are
affributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging
instrument and the hedged item aftributable to the hedged risk are

recognised in profit or loss in the line item relating to hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair
value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the

hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the

original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and the Company and
not designated as af fair value through profit or loss is recognised inifially
at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to inifial recognition, the
Company measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount of obligation under the contract, as defermined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative

amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition policy.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Derecognition

The Group and the Company derecognise a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group and the Company
retains subsfantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group and the Company continue fo recognise the
financial asset and also recognise a collateralised borrowing for the

proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

The Group and the Company derecognise financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's and the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Financial assefs sold subject to repurchase agreements continue to be
recognised and recorded as availableforsale securities and held-to-maturity
securities as appropriate. The corresponding liability is included in financial

assefs sold under repurchase agreements.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised as interest
expense in profit or loss over the life of the agreements using the effective

interest method.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required o
seffle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of obligation. Provisions are measured af the best estimate of the
consideration required fo seffle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, faking into account the risks and uncerfainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to seftle the present obligation, ifs camying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is

material).

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
(OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company review the
carrying amounts of its nonfinancial assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is nof
possible fo estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group and the Company estimate the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assef belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
(OTHER THAN GOODWILL) (CONTINUED)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the fime value of money and the risks specific
fo the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit] is
estimated to be less than ifs carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced fo ifs recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset or a cash-generating unit] in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from
the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other
financial institutions, money at call and short notice, placements with and

deposits of banks and other financial insfitutions as well as exchange fund

bills.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured af the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales

related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods and provision of services are recognised
when the goods/services are delivered/provided and titles have passed,

at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and

rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither confinuing managerial involvement fo the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over

the goods sold;
e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

® it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the cosfs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can

be measured reliably.

(i)  Property development

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised when the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments received from purchasers
prior fo meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under current liabilities as

deferred income.

(i) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

(iii)  Interest income

Inferest income is recognised on a fime-proportion basis by reference fo the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. The
effective inferest rafe is the rafe that exactly discounts esfimated future cash
receipfs through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
assef on initial recognition. The calculation includes significant fees and
fransaction costs that are an infegral part of the effective inferest rate, and

premiums or discounfs.

Once an impairment loss of a financial asset has been recognised,
subsequent inferest income is recognised using the rafe of inferest used to

discount the future cash flows measuring the impairment losses.

(iv) Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate
on a financial asset are included in the measurement of the effective interest

rate.

Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees,
investment management fees, sales commission, placement fees and

syndication fees, are recognised as the related services are performed.

(v)  Sales of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered

and filles have passed.

(vij Management fee of property management

Management fee income is recognised when services are rendered.

(viij Agency fee of property management

Agency fee income is recognised when services are rendered.

(vii) Hotel operation income

Hotel operation income is recognised when services are provided.

(viii) Service income
Service income (including safe deposit box rentals and other banking

service income) is recognised when services are provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
TAXATION
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assefs and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assefs and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
except where the Group is able fo control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the tfemporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are
on|y recognised to the extent that it is probob|e that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary

differences and they are expected fo reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to

be recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected o apply in the period in which the liability is sefiled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or sefile the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed fo be recovered entfirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles set out in HKAS
12 [i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the fax effect is included in the accounting for the

business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their infended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assefs until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their infended use or sale. Invesiment income eamed
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as expenses when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the confributions.

For defined confribution retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out periodically, but at least triennially.
All actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plans are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Past service cost, including the unvested benefits, is recognised
immediofe|y in proﬁf or loss. Net inferest on the net defined benefit |iobi|ify
[osset] is defermined by multiplying the net defined benefit liability (assef] by
an appropriate discount rate, both as determined at the start of the annual

reporting period taking account of any changes during the period.

The refirement benefit obligation recognised in the statements of financial
position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future

confributions fo the plan.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
LEASING

leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straightline basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiafing and arranging an operating lease are added fo the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a

straightline basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straightline

basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received fo enfer into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straightline

basis.

3.
HE
EHEZGREE LA RMELE ZBX
BoRERKEBEBLEZABA - BEHEEER
DRAREMRN - FAEGBHEORSBRE
LA -

FEEBE(E)

AEEEREHBEA

REANESWATIREBRANZFHNE
BER BN SEEPER - i EHOEST
ERNTHRELS 2 BRERKA - ThmA
HMHOBEZREELRBOFRAEGERE

FEBMEREBA
REMHZENEENEBROPBRER
EHER RS

WA ZEEMNBZEHEES  AHRES
BRARABE NREEAENEREERR
T2 RS

BxEF--—&- | BUOHBETHEE O

o
5
Q
S
0,
Q.
el
0
ES)
o)
>m
&
5
+
d

N



(o3
©

210g boday [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
LEASING (CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred fo the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
paymenfs) are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion fo the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land

element and building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is released over the lease term on a sfraightline basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,

p|o nt and equipment.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statfements of each individual group entity,
fransactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency |i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operate) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated af the rafes prevailing of
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated af the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in

terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not refranslated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

Exchange differences arising on the seftlement of monetary items, and on
the refranslation of monetary itfems, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for differences arising on the refranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences

are also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated info
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing af the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are franslated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve

[aftributable to non-controlling inferests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners

of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Nofe 3, the direcfors of the Company are required fo make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assefs and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered fo be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting esfimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving

estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of

applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant

effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assefs
arising from investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company has reviewed the Group's investment
property porffolios in Hong Kong and the PRC and concluded that (a) the
Group's investment properties in Hong Kong and cerfain investment
properties in the PRC are nof held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, (b] the Group’s remaining investment
properties in the PRC are held under a business model whose obijective is
fo consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over fime. Therefore, in measuring the Group's
remaining deferred tfoxation on investment properties in Hong Kong and
cerfain investment properties in PRC, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong and cerfain investment properties in PRC as the Group is nof

subject to any income taxes on disposal of these investment properties.

Deferred taxation in respect of temporary differences atiributed to the
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries and CHB’S PRC branch

The directors have determined that the Group and CHB are able fo control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries and CHB's PRC branch
amounting to HK$223,446,000 (201 1: HK$169,277,000) and that it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, deferred taxation relating to such temporary differences

is not provided.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classified certain non-derivative financial assefs with fixed or

determinable payments and fixed maturity as he|d-fo-moturif\/. This

classification requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability fo hold such investments fo maturity. If the

Group fails to keep these investments fo maturity other than for the specific

circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount close fo

maturity — it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-for
sale. The investments would therefore be measured at fair value instead of

amortised cost.

Details of these assets are set out in Note 25.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty af the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 December 2012 at their fair value, details of which are
disclosed in Nofe 33. The fair value of the investment properties was
determined by reference to valuations conducted on these properties by
independent firms of property valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions of prevailing market conditions.
Favorable or unfavorable changes fo these assumptions may result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair value reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the carrying amount
of these properties included in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December

2012 is HK$5,868,769,000 (31.12.2011: HK$6,265,247,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of advances to an investee company

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes into

consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the

impairment loss is measured as the difference between the assef's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows [excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
assef's original effective inferest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of
advances to an investee company at 31 December 2012 is

HK$322,539,000 (31.12.2011: HK$312,209,000).

Impairment of properties under development/properties held for sale
The Group and the Company's properties under development and
properties held for sale in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
Hong Kong, defails of which are sef out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and Note 28 are expected to be recovered through
future sales. In case the future selling prices, less all related direct selling
expenses, are less than their current carrying value plus further costs to
complete the properties under development to a saleable condition, the
Group and the Company will recognise losses. Future selling prices of
properties in the PRC will be affected by a combination of political,
economic and other factors that are beyond accurate prediction. The
carrying amount of properties under development for sale of the Group and
properties held for sale of the Group at 31 December 2012 is
HK$1,159,817,000 and HK$584,722,000 (201 1: HK$452,382,000
and HK$605,717,000), respectively.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Recognition and allocation of construction cost on properties under

development for sale

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties under

development for sale during the construction stage and will be transferred

to profit or loss upon the recognition of the sale of the properties. Before
the final sefilement of the development costs and other costs relating fo the
sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by the Group based on

management's best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the development
projects info phases. Specific costs directly related to the development of a
phase are recorded as the cost of such phase. Costs that are common fo
phases are allocated to individual phases based on the estimated cost of
each phase as a percentage of the total estimated cost of the entire
project, or if the above is not practicable, the common costs are allocated

to individual phases based on saleable area.

Where the final setflement of costs and the related cost allocation is
different from the initial estimates, any increase or decrease in the
development costs and other costs would affect the profit or loss in future

years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group establishes, through charges against profit, impairment

allowances in respect of estimated incurred losses in loans and advances.

The allowances consist of individual impairment allowances and collective

impairment allowances. The overall impairment allowances represent the

aggregate amount by which management considers necessary fo write
down its loan portfolio in order to state it in the statements of financial

position af ifs estimated nef recoverable value.

In determining individual impairment allowances, management considers
objective evidence of impairment. When a loan is impaired, an individual
impairment allowance is assessed by a discounted cash flow method,
measured at the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted af the original
effective interest rafe. The quantum of the allowance is also impacted by
the collateral value and this, in turn, may be discounted in certain

circumstances fo recognise the impact of forced sale or quick liquidation.

In determining collective impairment allowances, management uses
estimates based on historical loss experience on a collective basis for loans
and advances with similar credit risk characteristics to assess the

impairment loss. More details are set out in Note 6.
Defails of the impairment allowances movements are disclosed in Note 26.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments

The direcfors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied. For
derivative financial instruments, convertible bond and structured products
with embedded derivatives, assumptions are made based on quoted

market rates adjusted for specific features of the instrument.

Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in Note 6.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

According fo HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, impairment losses are made
when the carrying amount of an assef exceeds its recoverable amount,

which is calculated af the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value

in use.

Management has reviewed goodwill for impairment by comparing the
carrying amount and value in use of an acquired subsidiary (the smallest
cash-generating unit) to which the goodwill has been allocated. The

acquired subsidiary is involved in insurance business.

The value in use calculations primarily use cash flow projections based on
three year financial budgets approved by management of the subsidiary
and estimated terminal value at the end of the three-year period. There are
a number of assumptions and estimates involved for the preparation of cash
flow projections for the period covered by the approved budget. Key
assumptions include the expected growth in revenues and selection of

discount rates.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 38.

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2012, a deferred tax asset of HK$48 million
(31.12.2011: HK$44 million) in relation to unused tax losses has been
recognised the Group's consolidated statement of financial position. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses of HK$256
million (31.12.2011: HK$232 million) due fo the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated
are less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a

reversal takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capifal fo ensure that enfifies in the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to

shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

FINANCIAL SERVICES OPERATION
The CHB Group has adopted a policy of maintaining a strong capital

base to:

° comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital)

Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance; and

e support the CHB Group's stability and business growth so as fo

provide reasonable returns for shareholders.

The capital adequacy ratios as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011 are computed on the consolidated basis of CHB and certain of its
subsidiaries as specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority for its
regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with the Banking (Capital)

Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The CHB Group has established a capital planning process to assess the
adequacy of ifs capifal fo support current and future activities. The process
states the CHB Group's capital adequacy goals in relation to risk, taking
into account ifs strategic focus and business plan. Key factors to consider in
this process include additional capital required for future expansion, results
of the stress test programme regularly conducted, dividend policy, income

recognition and provisioning policies.

NON-FINANCIAL SERVICES OPERATION

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, other than financial
services operation consist of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed
in Note 44, and equity affributable fo owners of the Company, comprising

issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. As
part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and their
associated risks. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance ifs overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of

existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €MI R -
6A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6A.&EMI AN §
.
2012 2011 2012 2011 7(3D
—§-=% —g-—% —%-=% g5 |
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 ;{3
BETT BETT BETT BETT ﬁﬁ
Financial assets SMEE
FVTPL BATEESABE
Held for trading BIFEERRE 30,063 20,947 8,656 7,139
Designated at fair value EERATETER 1,269,944 1,920,024 56,795 74,742
Derivative instruments in STET RETEEE
designated hedge accounting &R
relationship 166,765 116,055 — -
Loans and receivables (including EXREWERER (BERER
cash and cash equivalents) REZEER) 65,149,831 64,871,389 4,850,898 4,789,895
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 4,625,951 2,166,674 136,047 130,051
Held-fo-maturity securities BEIAPAZES 9,600,020 8,288,082 — —
Financial liabilities SRMERE
Amortised cost BERA 76,826,068 73,680,987 3,227,673 3,053,958
FVTPL BATEESAER
Held for trading FIEEERRE 118,154 203,110 — —
Derivative instruments in STET R
designated hedge accounting &R
relationship 130,502 62,586 — -

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

6B. MBEEMBEEER AR R KR

AEEZFIZcRIABEREFREREH
B FHRAXKEMHBEER —=+=
BARBIRMZFIE — BRE  FA=EA
BB ZEHRITER TESRTE &
HIRE - ERREMEERE — 2RRE - 25
WIRERA  BEHREMBKRER RER
Hp M ST s - NEEHE T
EZEREE  ROFFPEFR  F3&E  EE
BN BERME S REMEMNIRR -

The Group's maijor financial instruments include cash and shortterm funds,
placements with banks and other financial insfitutions maturing between
one fo twelve months — financial services, fixed bank deposits with more
than three months to maturing when raised, derivative financial instruments,
investments in securities, advances and other accounts — financial services,

advances fo an investee company, frade and other receivables, deposits

and balances of banks and other financial institutions, financial assets sold

under repurchase agreements, deposits from banking customers, certificates

1

77
w
=
B
R
[
af
E
»
aj
I
"
|
I
"
)
i
E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Company's major financial instruments include investments in securities,

amounts due from subsidiaries, trade and other receivables, bank accounts

with CHB Group and other bank balances and cash, non-interest bearing

advances from subsidiaries.

Defails of these financial instruments are disclosed in respectfive notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), |iquidif\/ risk and credit risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures fo ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

For financial services operafions, risk management is carried out by the
Asset and Liability Management Committee (the “ALCO") and the Loans
Committee under policies approved by the Board of Directors of CHB and
the Risk Management and Compliance Committee (the "RMCC"). The
ALCO identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation
with the CHB Group's operating units. The Board and the RMCC provide
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, inferest rate risk,
credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments. In addition, internal audit is responsib|e for the

independent review of risk management and the control environment.

Market risk

Financial services operations

The Group, through the CHB Group fakes on exposure to market risk,
which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks
arise from open positions in interest rafe, currency and equity products, all
of which are exposed to general and specific market movements and
changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as inferest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Group
separates exposures to market risk into either trading or non-frading

portfolios.

Trading portfolios include those positions arising from market-making
fransactions where the Group acts as principal with clients or with the

market.

6. &MTIAR (&)
6B. MERMBEERBRRE KK (#])
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

Non-trading portfolios primarily arise from the interest rate management of

the CHB's retail and commercial banking assets and liabilities. Nonrading

portfolios also consist of foreign exchange and equity risks arising from the

Group's heldto-maturity, availableforsale investments and those financial

assefs at FVTPL.

The management of market risk is principo”y undertaken in treasury function
using risk limits approved by the senior management or designated
committee. Limits are set for each portfolio, product and risk type, with
market liquidity being a principal factor in defermining the level of limits set.
The Group has dedicated standards, policies and procedures in place to
control and monitor the market risk. The market risks which arise on each

business are assessed and managed under the supervision of ALCO.

In addition, the Group, through the CHB Group, uses derivatives to

mitigate inferest rate and foreign exchange risks.

Stress fests are carried out to provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in exireme conditions. The results of the stress tests
are reviewed by senior management in each business unit and by the
Board of Directors of CHB. The stress festing is tailored fo the business

segments and fypically uses scenario analysis.

Non-financial services operations
Certain group entities engaging in nonfinancial services operations are

also exposed to currency, inferest rate and equity price risks.

(i) Currency risk

The Group and the Company undertake certain fransactions denominated
in foreign currencies and, hence exposures to exchange rate fluctuations
arise. Exchange rafe exposures are managed within approved policy
parameters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts. For financial
services operations, day-to-day foreign exchange management is
performed by the Treasury Management Depariment within approved limits.
The senior management or ifs designated committee sets limits on the level
of exposure by currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day
posifions, which are monitored daily. The CHB Group fakes on exposure
to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange

rates on their financial positions and cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. €MTITEH(E)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HEREEEBHERBEF (1E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued) TERK (&)

(il Currency risk (Continued) (i) BEEmEE (&)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s monetary assefs R HEL - AEE K ARG AIEEE R
and monetary liabilities at the reporting date that are denominated in M AN EEFIBE Y S EEREE G E

currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant entities are as  BEmE{ELNT

follows:
HKS Uss MoP RMB Others Total
B EYH R AR® Hitr am
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETR BETR BETR BT BETR BT
(note)
(K
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—%
+=A=+—-H
Assets 13
Cash and short-ferm funds ERBReREHES 9,029 2,559,347 77,404 1,681,400 2,021,144 6,348,324
Placements with banks and FHREREM
other financial institutions MBRER-Z
maturing between one to +-ERREHZ
twelve months — banking 21 — BTER
operations — 1,008,613 — 749,387 765,481 2,523,481
Derivative finoncial instruments — £74 4 @I A — 167,381 — — 15,459 182,840
Financial assets af FVTPL BATEESABE
CEREE — 616,758 — — — 616,758
Availableforsale investments ARHESRE — 4,133,261 — 31,090 3,249 4,167,600
Held-fo-maturity securifies SZEEA RS — 4,270,494 — 643,456 1,835,506 6,749,456
Advances fo customers EFER — 1,355,011 25,591 726,984 96,311 2,203,897
Advances to banks and EEFELEIFS T
other financial institutions &N — — — 2,134,228 — 2,134,228
Other financial assets HEtheREE — 142,257 2,372 319,790 9,588 474,007
Total financial assets in foreign IMNES RIS ERLE
currency 9,029 14,253,122 105,367 6,286,335 4,746,738 25,400,591
Liabilities 2
Deposits and balances of banks  [F% % H 81 kg
and other financial institutions ~ BHR LS — 510,438 — 422,824 27,365 960,627
Financial assets sold under REBHETHEZ
repurchase agreements EREE — 433,681 — — — 433,681
Deposits from banking customers  $R47REEE — 6,052,056 47,384 3,875,490 6,069,485 16,044,415
Certificates of deposit BEH — 71,378 — 124,331 — 201,709
Derivative financiol instruments 74 BT E — 129,581 — — 624 130,205
Loan capital BEER — 1,898,957 — — — 1,898,957
Bank borrowings BITER 238,008 — — — — 238,008
Other financial liabilities Hitemas — 44931 604 33,671 27,228 106,434
Total financial liabilities in foreign ~ 4MES G B2
currency 238,008 9,147,022 47,988 4,456,316 6,124,702 20,014,036
Net position — total financial BE - MEEREE
assets and liabilities in foreign RAGELE
currency (228,979) 5,106,100 57,379 1,830,019 (1,377,964) 5,386,555




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. SMIA(HE)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. MERBREEAMRBE () =
POLICIES (CONTINUED) Q.
Market risk (Continued) TERK (&) —g
(il Currency risk (Continued) (i) EEER(E) -
%
HKS Us$ MoP RMB Others Total EL

et £7 L ARE 5t sy R

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT BRI BET T BRI BETT

(note)
(HE)
At 31 December 2011 RIS——F
+=A=+-AH
Assets BE
Cash and short-term funds EFREREHES 1,300 1,515,356 101,355 3,382,468 4,173,207 9,173,686
Placements with banks and BHELREM
other financial institutions BIHEBR-Z
maturing between one fo TZEAREH2
twelve months B - RITER
— banking operations — 93,202 — 391,720 425,718 910,640
Derivative financial instruments TTESRIA = 116,341 = 1,385 4,944 122,670
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVEES N EE
ZERMERE = 984,259 = — — 984,259
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE — 1,770,458 — 28,493 2,121 1,801,672
Held-fo-maturity securifies S2RHA S = 3,608,463 — 528,129 1,053,658 5,190,250
Advances to customers EEER — 1,422,300 2,289 1,370,495 186,683 2,981,767
Advances to banks and BEFa=T ik 57
other financial institutions &N — 428,984 — 191,537 — 620,521
Other financial assets HittemEE — 135,399 4729 185,357 37,129 362,614
Total financial assets in foreign NEERMEELE
currency 1,300 10,074,762 108,373 6,079,584 5,884,000 22,148,079
Liabilities =l
Deposits and balances of banks ~ E% R E Bt HiE
and other financial institutions ~ FE R — 277,051 — — 82,191 359,242
Financial assets sold under REBHETHEZ
repurchase agreements SREE — 420,652 — — — 420,652
Deposits from banking customers 4847 & BB — 5,921,305 55,381 4,991,554 6,232,901 17,201,141
Certificates of deposit B — 86,207 — 605,837 — 692,044
Derivative financial instruments ~ $74£ 4RI A — 138,847 — 534 4,402 143,783
Loan capital BEER — 1,852,153 — — = 1,852,153
Bank borrowings BITEDR 220,033 — — — - 220,033
Other financial liabilities Hihemas — 48,918 312 14,508 15,797 79,535
Total financial liabilities in foreign ~ 4p& 4 FiE M5
currency 220,033 8,745,133 55,693 5,612,433 6,335,291 20,968,583
Net position — total financial B - MEEREE
assets and liabilifies in foreign REEEE
currency (218,733) 1,329,629 52,680 467,151 (451,231) 1,179,496

note:  Currencies included in “Others” mainly represented Australian dollars and New Zealand — MisE @ Efh B EE G IEREMMATARE o

dollars.

181
w
=
B
R
*
af
E
»
aj
I
]
|
I
"
)
K
E



©
N

210g boday [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. €MTH(HE)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HEREEEEERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued) THERE (&)
(il Currency risk (Continued) (i) BEEmEE (&)
THE COMPANY %45
Uss RMB Total
EY ARH aE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETR
At 31 December 2012 R-E-"¥+ZA=+-H
Assets BE
Availableforsale investments ARHERE 133,190 — 133,190
Financial assets af FVTPL BRATEEFABH EREE 37,541 19,254 56,795
Bank balances with CHB Group REIERITEEZRITEX 62,813 74,162 136,975
Other bank balances and cash EmBTERRES 48911 152,569 201,480
Total financial assets in foreign currency NSRS ERLE 282,455 245,985 528,440
Nef position — fotal financial assets in BE - MEEREEEBLE
foreign currency 282,455 245,985 528,440
UssS RMB Total
EYH ARE ok
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT
At 31 December 2011 R-Z——%+-HB=+-H
Assets {3
Availableforsale investments ARHESRE 126,502 — 126,502
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVEEFABRZEREE 74,742 — 74,742
Bank balances with CHB Group RAIERTEEZRITER 58,848 77,947 136,795
Other bank balances and cash HiSTEZRES 71,449 78,024 149,473
Total financial assets in foreign currency INESREELEE 331,541 155,971 487,512
Net position — total financial assets in R - NEEREELAR
foreign currency 331,541 155,971 487,512




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. SMIA(HE)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HERBEEREEBE (&) =

POLICIES (CONTINUED) o
Market risk (Continued) TERR (&) —g
(il Currency risk (Continued) (i) EBE¥mEE(E) ;
Foreign currency sensitivity SNFE B R B gg
The Group is mainly exposed to US dollars, Renminbi and Macau Pataca.  ANEBEBEE FE T - A R LR PTEE[E & ﬁﬁ
The Company is mainly exposed to US Dollars and Renminbi. The @& @k - AQA BT EMUHETRL AR

following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 1% change in Hong BE@® Y EK - TRSEMAEAEEYE T
Kong dollars against the US dollars and Macau Pataca, and 10% change 5> — & ¥ H E T MBI E RN E & H 5
in Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi. The respective percentages are 7 43 5 A R KSFE R o (1 U E » FTIR
the rates used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key > B ARETEEE A S INERKRE
management personnel and represent management's assessment of the  MRERIHEA Y BIREH R AESHEEA
possible and the Company’s change in foreign exchange rafes. The AR ZHNEE R feEE S B S8 MIEL
sensifivity analyses of the Group’s and the Company’s exposure fo foreign > 5T (4 SR HARG AL & H A £ B & A QA 540
currency risk af the end of the reporting period have been determined EREBHSRE ST EBIERREHRELEE

nA

based on the foreign exchange rates adjusted af the end of the reporting B #IHNE THEE TR T o

period.
Change in currency rate E = 3%
US Dollars Renminbi Macau Pataca
EY ARM Ak
Appreciate Depreciate Appreciate Depreciate Appreciate Depreciate

#tE RfE FHE RfE FHE BE

+1% -1% +10% -10% +1% 1%
THE GROUP 50
Hong Kong dollars equivalents BETTSE

(HKS000)

2012 —E--#&
Profit after tox BB ER 8,133 (8,133) 150,211 (150,211) 479 (479)
Other comprehensive income Hit2ElE 1,332 (1,332) — — — —
2011 —E——F
Profit affer tax BB R (3,681) 3,681 36,683 (36,683) 440 (440)
Other comprehensive income Ein2EkE 1,265 (1,265) = = = —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(il Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 1 per cent

change in Hong Kong dollars against the US dollars, and 10 per cent

change in Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi.

6. &MTIR (&)
6B. MBEBREEARR BEK ()

E2:1::-4¢ )
(i) EBERELRE(E)
TRAMIGARRHEAEDZ —ABEHET

o R S 2 I A R A

HBURRE °

Change in currency rate E= > 3%

US Dollars Renminbi
EYH AR
Appreciate Depreciate Appreciate Depreciate

e & e &

+1% -1% +10% -10%
THE COMPANY - I
Hong Kong dollars equivalents (HKS'000) &% T %4
2012 —E-Z&
Profit after tax BB EIER 1,246 (1,246) 20,540 (20,540)
Other comprehensive income HEth2HElE 1,332 (1,332) — —
2011 —E——F
Profit after tax BB ER 1,712 (1,712) 13,024 (13,024)
Other comprehensive income Hir2mbis 1,265 (1,265) - -

Numbers in bracket mean decrease.

(il Interest rate risk

Financial services operations

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market inferest rates. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market inferest rates.

The Group, through the CHB Group, the Company fakes on exposure to
the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on
both fair value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as a
result of such changes but may reduce or create losses in the event that
unexpected movements arise. Limits are sef on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which are monitored

regularly.

FEIMARBFERRED ©

(i) &g

SRR R
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Exposure of its assets and liabilities to fluctuations in interest rates primarily

by way of interest rate are measured gap analysis which shows the

Group's and the Company's interest rate risk arising from the mis-matches

between contractual maturities and re-pricing of inferestgenerating assets

and interestbearing liabilities.

Non-financial services operations

The Company and group entities engaging in non-financial services
operations currently do not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors inferest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant inferest exposure should the need arise.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to inferest rafe risks.
Included in the tables are the Group's assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, cafegorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity

dates.

6. &MTA(#K)
6B. MBEMBEERBARR KR ()

w5 E R (&)

(ii)  FEmER (&)
AREBRARAT EZR AN KEZD D RET
BHEENBBHMNETRBHRE - ERM
AEERARBZMNERREHEREENR
MERBETROINHAR REFEEHNHEARM
EAE -

3 & AR IS 2 7
AAARERERREERSHRB LS B
AR EFEE AR - AT ERERE
BREER  TEAEEBEEBHREA
EEST

TRz BREESEEZF AR BRE

RAKEZEERABEREE  YEARE
MEEBRAIHARFESHE

THE GROUP # %M

Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over  Non-interest
months months years 5 years bearing Total
=EAR =@AZ-% —-ERf BBRF REBH ot
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—%
+=RA=+-H
Assets BE
Cash and shortterm funds ERReREHES 17,265,140 98,531 — — 481912 17,845,583
Placements with banks and other EREER M
financial institutions maturity BER-Z+=@A8
between one to twelve months Nz FE 3,948,937 895,178 — — — 4,844,115
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA — — — — 187,911 187,911
Financial assets at FVTPL BAHEESABE
ZEREBE 1,225,187 — 44,757 — 8,917 1,278,861
Available-for-sale investments AtHEZRE 3,990,868 — 1,164 — 633,919 4,625,951
Held-to-maturity securities BZEEA RS 7,061,580 1,837,563 459,439 239,438 2,000 9,600,020
Advances to customers EEEH 37,923,395 975,072 102,911 24,158 166,653 39,192,189
Advances to banks and other YR EMBE
financial institutions BEER 1,470,328 694,514 — — - 2,164,842
Other financial assets HEttemEE 133,194 112,616 — — 857,292 1,103,102
Total financial assets BepERE 73,018,629 4,613,474 608,271 263,596 2,338,604 80,842,574
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. &R TAH(ME)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B.HERBEEEERKE (M)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued) TR (E)
lii]  Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIERR (&)
Upto3 3-12 1-5 Over  Non-interest
months months years 5 years bearing Total
=@An =@AZE-%F —Z5f BBLF REBX ot

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BEFT BB T BT BT BETT

Liabilities af
Deposits and balances of banks and EEJERckp 51
other financial institutions BRRkEH% 1,469,018 344,484 — — 29,975 1,843,477
Financial assets sold under REBHET HEZ
repurchase agreements LREE 354,801 78,880 — — — 433,681
Deposits from customers BFER 55,285,426 6,748,130 88,972 — 5238918 67,361,446
Certificates of deposit BEE 590,258 77,378 — — — 667,636
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA — — — — 248,656 248,656
Loan capital EEER 1,898,957 — — — — 1,898,957
Borrowings WITER 3,719,798 — — — 10,322 3,730,120
Other financial liabilities HttemEaR = — — — 890,751 890,751
Total financial liabilities BERAE 63,318,258 7,248,872 88,972 — 6,418,622 77,074,724
Net position- total financial assefs B - AeREE
and liabilities REE 9700371 (2,635,398) 519,299 263,596  (4,080,018) 3,767,850




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued) THIEEE (&)

(il Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIE@E G (&)

THE GROUP #5M

6. &MTI A ()
6B. MERMEEERR R (M)

Upto 312 1-5 Over Non-inferest
3 months months years 5 years bearing Total
—@AR =@RZE-f —Z5F BRARE SREBH ok
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BB BETT
At 31 December 2011 AZB——F
+=A=t-H
Assets B
Cash and short-term funds EBREREHES 18,396,480 — — — 659,622 19,056,102
Placements with banks and other BHRLREME
financial institutions maturity BB — 2
between one to twelve months +-EERESHS
HE 1,596,870 582,216 — — — 2,179,086
Derivative financial instruments fTHESBIA — — — — 129,556 129,556
Financial assets af FVTPL ROFEESAER
ZERMEE 1,833,876 — 40,642 — 52,952 1,927,470
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE 1,638,649 — 1,164 - 526,861 2,166,674
Held-fo-maturity securifies SZAMAZES 5,647,050 2,091,586 306,564 240,882 2,000 8,288,082
Advances to customers EFER 40,277,961 878,726 77,692 2,091 102,014 41,338,484
Advances to banks and other R¥R 2B EEE
financial insfitutions & 745,720 759,689 — - — 1,505,409
Other financial assets HitremEE 161,943 38,000 — — 592,365 792,308
Total financial assets BeRERE 70,298,549 4,350,217 426,062 242973 2,065,370 77,383,171
Liabilifies af
Deposits and balances of banks and BEREt I BEE
other financial institutions BRREES 1,075,361 — — — 11,475 1,086,836
Financial assets sold under REBRETHEZ
repurchase agreements SREE 420,652 — — - — 420,652
Deposits from customers EEREH 54,921,174 4,489,411 714,783 = 4543429 64,668,797
Certificates of deposit Vo ol 279,792 1,265,770 — — — 1,545,562
Derivative financial instruments TTESRIE — — — — 265,696 265,696
Loan capital FEEAR 1,852,153 — — — — 1,852,153
Borovings £x 198033 1,089,462 2,001,826 — 00 333 Y
Other financial liabilities Hirdmas — = = — 787,639 787,639 ;
Total financial liabilities BeRER 58,747,165 6,844,643 2,736,609 — 5,618,266 73,946,683 fz
Net position- fotal financial assets FE-MREER %
and liabilities a2 11,551,384 (2,494,426)  (2,310,547) 242973 (3,552,896) 3,436,488 =
,I”‘
|
!‘
z
-

o
5
Q
>
0,
Q.
el
0

ES)
o)
>m
&
9
+
d




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6. &MTIR (&)
6B. MBEBREEARR BEK ()

Market risk (Continued) g E bk (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) F =@ g (&)

THE COMPANY %45

©
©
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Upto 3-12 1-5 Over  Non-interest
3 months months years 5 years bearing Total
=@AR =@AZE-£ —ERF BBEF REBZ% Fot
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BET T BT T BT T BT T BT
At 31 December 2012 R-E-_&%
+ZB=+-8
Assets BE
Bank balances and cash ROEBREFRS 361,437 — — — 88 361,525
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEESABR
ZEREE 42,780 — 14,015 — 8,656 65,451
Available-for-sale investments AftHE RS — — 1,164 — 134,883 136,047
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS I B B1BE X 4111,613 — — — 372,094 4,483,707
Other financial assets ESREE — — — — 5,666 5,666
Total financial assefs BEREE 4,515,830 = 15,179 = 521,387 5,052,396
Liabilities af
Borrowings 3 3,100,255 — — — — 3,100,255
Other financial liabilities Higmas - — — — 127,418 127,418
Total financial liabilities BeBEes 3,100,255 - — — 127418 3,227,673
Net position- fotal financial assets FE-ALRER
and liabilities REE 1,415,575 — 15,179 — 393,969 1,824,723
At 31 December 2011 n-g——&
+=B=+-H
Assets BE
Bank balances and cash BTERREERS 315,908 — — — 72 315,980
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEES ABR
CEREE 61,350 — 13,392 — 7,139 81,881
Availablefor-sale investments AHEEYRE — — 1,164 — 128,887 130,051
Amounts due from subsidiaries EWHBA RS 4,029,185 — — — 440,041 4,469,226
Other financial assets HittepaE — — — — 4,689 4,689
Total financial assefs BERMEE 4,406,443 = 14,556 = 580,828 5,001,827
Liabilities af
Borrowings e 181,394 1,089,462 1,660,881 — — 2,931,737
Other financial liabilities Httemas = = - - 122,221 122,221
Total financial liabilities BEBEes 181,394 1,089,462 1,660,881 — 122,221 3,053,958
Net position- fotal financial assets B -HeREE
and liabilities REE 4225049  (1,089,462)  (1,646,325) — 458,607 1,947,869




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the

exposure fo floating interest rates for the Group’s and the Company'’s

derivative and non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period

and the stipulated change toking place at the beginning of the financial

year and held constant throughout the reporting period. A 100 basis point

[2011: 100 basis poinf] change in upwards and 10 basis point {2011

10 basis point] change in downwards are used when reporting interest

6. &#MTI A ()
6B. MERMEEERR R (M)

w5 E R (&)
(ii) %‘/I/—t

ATHBEDT DERANER RARAITE
RIFTETARBESHBEERMEY ZF
BAEAR URPBRFERGBEHEEAR
EEARESHAFBELZLENMREEYPET -
1008 F(ZF——F: 100 F)N LR
10BF(Z2——F : 108 F)N T KTIMAE
REEABUMNEXEREABRESHRM 2

2 ()

rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents g REESEREBRARAJfLELE Y B8~
management’s assessment of the possible change in interest rates. (g o
2012 2011
—B--F —E—-F
Change in basis points Change in basis points
pLpA e BEEoue
+100 -10 +100 -10
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS"000
BETT BETT BT T BT
THE GROUP E 3]
Profit after fax BBt &R 217 (7,212) 62,591 (6,259)
THE COMPANY 45
Profit after tax B &R 12,143 (1,214) 12,426 (1,243)
Numbers in bracket mean decrease. FBMANBFRTRD ©
(iii]  Price risk (iii) 15815 /& &
The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price risk through their NS @ R AN QA R1E B E R R AR F 2 % &%

investments in equity securities. The management will closely monitor the
price movement of the securities and regularly review the performance and

asset allocation of the portfolio.

The Group's and the Company’s equity price risk are mainly concentrated

on listed and unlisted equity securities.

ERERR - BREEBTYERZ 52
BERXEE UTHRNEHEAEGZRERE
ENhE .

AEERARRzRERBREZETN LT
Ko IF LT ANEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

iii]  Price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below is determined based on 10% changes in the

price of the underlying investments.

STATEMENTS

6. &MTIR (&)
6B. MBEBREEARR BEK ()

™5 AR (&)
(iii) B ER (&)
AT Z2BEEDITHERBEIREN 10%E

REBEE -

Sensitivity analysis SR E DT
2012 2011
—B-=f i B2
Change in price Change in price
EREE EREE
+10% -10% +10% -10%
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
B¥TR BT BT BETT
THE GROUP 5@
Profit after tax BB ER 744 (744) 622 (622)
Other comprehensive income Hirz2EWE 49,833 (49,833) 44,007 (44,007)
2012 2011
—2-=f —2——F
Change in price Change in price
EREE EREE
+10% -10% +10% -10%
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
THE COMPANY 4T
Profit after tax BREAER 123 (723) 596 (596)
Other comprehensive income Hir2mbiz 11,360 11,360 10,859 (10,859)

Numbers in bracket mean decrease.

Liquidity risk

Financial services operations

Liquidity risk is the risk that the CHB Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and to

replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the

failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil commitments to

lend.

FEIMAREFRRBD ©

RBESRER

ERREER

MENE TR EEA FRITRERERBITR
SRABIHANNRELE REESWIR
B REEMSEHEBEHRES - HERTHE
EARBEBEFR G RERBITEFORE -



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial services operations (Continued)

The ALCO is responsible for monitoring the CHB Group's liquidity position,
and does so through the periodic review of the statutory liquidity ratio, the
maturity proﬁ|e of assets and |iobi|iﬂes, |oc1n-To-deposit ratio and interbank
transactions. Liquidity Risk management policy is reviewed by the ALCO
and approved by the RMCC of the CHB Group, and key features of
liquidity position are reviewed regularly by the senior management and the
RMCC of the CHB Group. The CHB Group's policy is to maintain a
conservative level of liquid funds on a daily basis so that the CHB Group is
prepared fo meet ifs obligations when they fall due in the normal course of
business and to satisfy statutory liquidity ratio requirements. The policy
provides a foundation fo other risk management tools including sfresstesting

and contingent funding plan.

The CHB Group's RMCC recommends internal farget levels in respect of
the liquidity ratios and loan to deposit ratios. The CHB Group's Head of
Treasury Department is responsible for monitoring these ratios and, where a
tight liquidity position remains for a prolonged period, the Head of Treasury
Department reports his findings to the ALCO and RMCC who, after
consultation with members of the Executive Committee, decide the
appropriate corrective actions fo be taken. The liquidity positions of the
CHB's overseas branches in Shantou, San Francisco and Macau are
monitored through the submission of monthly management accounts and
daily cash flow positions fo the CHB's head office. The CHB has sfrong
capital base and stable customer deposits which are its main funding
sources. The CHB has also diversified to other funding sources including
interbank deposit takings, certificates of deposit programme and through

financial assets sold under repurchase agreements.

Non-financial services operations

In the management of the relevant group entities’ liquidity risk other than
those relafing to the financial services operations, the relevant group entities
and the Company monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management fo finance its operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants. The Group and the Company rely on bank borrowings as
a significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2012, the Group and
the Company had available unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$511 million and HK$471 million (2011: HK$789 million and
HK$501 million), respectively. Details of the amounts utilised at the end of
the reporting period are set out in Note 44,

6. &MTI A ()
6B. MERMEEERR R (M)

REBE SR (H)

ERRIEER ()
EEEZSAREERERTRENRDE
SRR REBEEBTHRIMETRPE
X -BEMBENIHER  BFLE
LAZERS - RBECRBREERREHE
BEEZEERIMARRTRE ZRARERE
LGB TZEe@FEL  MABESHRK
TZFMEHAERTRECSREEER
[\ 3R S R TT R B & F et o AlE
ROTEBENHRERSSHABRENRDES
KFEUBNBEELENIANREERAT
EEMRDERLRHER - WEHRSEAMR
REETARMHTRE  SRFEEHENE
=EEAtE -

BIBRTEEZRREELIGIRITEES
BEEADESHLRREREFRLENAE
BIRKF - QIBRITRECESHEIERE
AEBUHEXRERDESHEARMESR -
EeHMEIEREBEEZ G REREE XKD
WITZEERE  ERARKEEZE K
B REBENMETE - XA HRTT
SEDNEE - ZF M R 2B ITHIRE
EeBRREBE HARAIHERTABEIH
EERAREBARPESHAREE - 8|H
RITEBHEENERNERMBENTFPEX
ERETZNES TR - AIRRITIE DA
AEMERKREERAERE  FHEE
FEBEERGE THESREE -

SRR ER
FEEBRBERZRBERRE CTRIEZ
EEHeRRBEBNRR)  SEANEBE
BRADNFEZERRFEEERAREHNR
CRASEEBEEKTE  AHEBEERH
B UWRERSRENINTE - BREE
EIRITIER 2 EAMR R KR ETERHE -
REBRANBMKBRITETEARBES
ZEZEWRR - RZE—ZF+_A=+—0"
AEBRARGEAEAMBS KRR
2 iR 17T B X E # 7% ¥511,000,0007TC
L& A71,000,0000 (= ——4F : B
789,000,0007T K /& # 501,000,0007T ) °
RBREHHEEACSAEBZFBEHRN
FF44 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. EWMTH ()

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. MERBEEEMENE (F)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESAKB (F)

The following tables defail the Group’s and the Company's remaining ANEB R A AT WIETES R EES HTE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables  FIHIR#HA TE - TR 2B EREENS
below have been drawn up based on the contractual maturities of the gt B EAHNDER @ BEKRAEELAA T
undiscounted financial liabilifies including interest that will accrue to those B R EEE BRI E T AEIFELENSE
liabilities except where the Group and the Company are contractually  EE&&F| 8 »

enfifled and intend fo repay the liabilities before their maturity.

THE GROUP #%H

Repayable  Repayable  Repayable Total

Repayable after 1 month after 3months after 1year ~ Repayable  undiscounted
Repayable within -~ butwithin -~ butwithin ~ but within ofter ~ finonciel  Carrying
on demand Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears liohilifis  amounis

—fBAZ =EAZE -£% BAIF RMAN

EZR —@ANA =@ARA -F&  EFR BB LEER
L HiE HE RE HE HE faE  REE
notes HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
W B%Tr BTz BE%Tr B%Tn ENTr B%Tr B¥Txn BT

At 31 December 2012 n-2--%
+ZRA=Z+-H

Deposits and balances of banks RER 28

and other finoncial institutions RS 35,267 814,592 073,006 351,040 - — 1873925 18434717
Finanil assets sold under REEGETHES

repurchase agreements SREE — 354818 — 79,452 — — 434710 433 681
Deposits from banking customers BITBRFEN 26,690,508 19,923,589 14023223 6844017 90,110 — 67,571,447 67,361,446
Cerfficates of deposit FHE - 99,991 390,267 177,378 - - 067,636 067,636
Loan captal BEEX - - - 104,071 418608 2058156 2580835 1,898,957
Bank borrowings with repayable BEEEEREER

on demand clouse BRI ZBITER (i 180,000 - - - - - 180,000 180,000
Bank borrowings with breach BREHRZAZ

of loan covenants HRITER (i) 3129,623 - - - - — 319623 3229623
Other bank borrowings HRITEE () — - — 306,412 — - 306,412 299,067
Other financial liabilies HEihemas 422845 159,613 00,677 105,047 14907 - 763089 912181
Total Eok 30,558,263 21,352603 15147173 7961417 523,625 2,058,156 77,607,237 76,826,068
At 31 December 2011 R-E—f

+=A=+-H

Deposits and balonces of banks REREMEHEE

and other financial insfitutions BRRER 18,820 1,004,156 10,145 3 — — 1,093,124 1,086,836
Finonciol assefs sold under REBRETHEZ

repurchase agreements SHEE — — 136,480 284,671 — — 423,151 420,652
Deposits from bonking customers RIEFEN 20875781 24463351 12,252566 4539343 750,198 — 64,881,239 64,668,797
Cerfficates of deposit BEH - 100,000 80,323 1,218,215 101,052 — 1,559,590 1,545,562
Loun capital BEEX = = = 104,269 419407 2766937 2,690,613 1852153
Bank borrowings with repayable ALHEBEREE

on demand clouse BRI ZRITER (i 180,000 - - - - - 180,000 180,000
Other bank borrowings BB ITER (iv) - - — 1,126,074 2,155,706 — 3281780 3,111,268
Other financial iabilies HEitemas 367505 235137 32576 44,280 21,601 - 701,099 815,699
Total ek ) 23442106 250802644 12574090 7376855 3447964 2166937 7481059 73,680,987




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6. &MTI A ()
6B. MEMBEERBMR KR ()

Liquidity risk (Continued) FEELEB (&)
Repayoble  Repayable  Repayable Total
Repayable after I month after 3months after 1 year ~ Repayable  undiscounted
Repayable within -~ butwithin ~ butwithin bt within after  finncial  Carrying
on demand Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears liobilies ~~ amounis
—fBAZ =Z@AE —-%E HEIF AYEN
EZX —EANA Z@EAR —-FR  EFR BB SREEE
g " g &g i i @@ REE
notes HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
W BETr B%Tr B¥Trn BETx BETT B¥Tr E¥%Tn B%Tx
At 31 December 2012 R-E——%
+=A=+-A
Trads and ofher payables BEREMEMNED - 6,461 - - - - 6,461 0,461
Bank borrowings with repayable BEBEREREER
on demand dlouse B 2R e (i 180,000 - - - - - 180,000 180,000
Bank borrowings with breach of BEREZRZNZ
loan covenants RITER (i) 2,619,549 - - - - — 2619549 2619549
Other bank borrowings HRITER (iv) - - - 306,412 - - 306,412 199,067
Amount dug to an associate EN-EEEAR
M (iv) 1,639 - - - - - 1,639 1,639
Non-interest bearing advances WBARZR BB
from subsidiaries (iv) - - - - 120,957 - 120,957 120,957
Financial guarantee contracts BIRERAH (i) 084,600 — - — - - 084,600 -
Total 5 3,485,788 0,461 — 306412 120957 — 399618 3227673
At 31 December 2011 AZE——F
+=A=+-A
Trads and other payables ZEREMERRS - 6,467 - - - - 6,467 6,467
Bank borrowings with repayable BEBEEERER
on demand clouse B RS (i 180,000 - - - - - 180,000 180,000
Other bank borrowings HisRITIER (iv) = - - 1003889 1,815,624 - 2899513 2750343
Amount due o an associate BN-—REEE AT
B (iv) 1,39 = - - - - 1,394 1,3%
Norinterest bearing advances WBARZR BB -
from subsidiaries (iv) = = = = 115,754 = 115,754 115,754
Financial guarantee confrocts BRIEREH (i) 696,700 - - - - - 696,700 -
Total Fk 878,094 6,467 - 1003889 1,931,378 - 30899828 3053958
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6.
6B.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

nofes:

fi

(i)

(iii)

fiv)

The Group's and the Company's bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “repayable on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. As af
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the aggregate carrying amounts of these
bank loans were HK$180,000,000. Taking into account the Group's and the
Company's financial position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discrefionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid affer one year but within five years
after the end of the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
sef ouf in the loan agreements. At that fime, the aggregate principal and interest cash

outflows will amount to HK$182,914,000 (2011: HK$187,852,000).

During the year, as a result of the consolidation of CHB, certain bank loan covenants in
respect of the rafio of the Group's total liabilities to tofal equity were breached. Upon
discovery of the breaches, the directors of the Company informed the relevant lenders
and commenced negotiation for the revision of the terms of the loans with the relevant
lenders. As at 31 December, 2012, such negotiation had not been concluded and
accordingly, the Group has reclassified all relevant loans as current liabilities. In March
2013, consents for non-compliance of such loan covenants were obtained by the Group
from all relevant lenders. Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that all such
borrowings will continue to be repaid in accordance with their original repayment

schedules from one to five years.

Financial guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts the Company could be required
to sefle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expeciations at the end of the reporting
period, the Company considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a funcfion of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are

guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject o change if changes in variable interest rates differ to

those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

6. &MTIR (&)
6B. MEAMBEERBRRE KR (#])

RBESER (&)
P -

(i) RERBEHE ST - BEHEREREREI2EAE
BRADBRITERGTATEEREERE] 2 WA
Al RZT—=F+-_A=+—HBER=ZZT—F
TZA=+—B  ZEROTERZEMRERBE
180,000,000 7T * 4% BB R AR A 2 F Btk
IRIT P EITE A WIS EKA

ik EFMAE

B EFRRE  ZFRTEFERIBE R =

AHEER A MRS RE - FREDFAMEE -
EE A2 RkMEZRERHBLESREE
182,914,000t (=& ——4F : jE¥ 187,852,000

L) e

(i1) FR - mRAIERITETRS  BASEARER
R RBRNE TRITEERNETER - ARF
BRUBREMENR BHEERERA LMK
By ERENBRERRZER R-F——F+=
RA=+—H  blBEfErARTK Bt A&EE
BHERHEESNERARDAGE R _2FT—=
FZR ALEEAMEEBHERABRSTEST L
MEERENRE - Bt EERA - B LAE
R EERREAREERRFHARN —ELFNEE

i) FBEREOISEANERZYFHERRDE
FORE - ARBRBELF A TR EBERESHE
BEZESEH BRERSHREFAZES K
RABR » TRABARBR X ERFE - &
il - RBEGFHEEEF I REERIELBERZA
BEMEIEEE) - AR R AR LRI B ) PRRF 2 HER
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

6. &MTI A ()
6B. MBABREERARE BEK (M)

REBE S ®E R (H)
TRAMINBAAEBFAHAENITESR TA
MIEETEIHA - ZREREBETESR T AN
ARFFRERA O i) FORTE (2 014E T
AMX5ERFEAEN)  BMZITETE
MR 5 ZREBEFE - RIZARBRMBEAR
EIRAMORE) EHIERERE - RN HEU
SRIREER  HFRBESBRELEUR
SHMHRNESRMGPIREENXETE -

The following tables detail the Group's expected maturity for its derivative
financial instruments. The tables have been drawn up based on the

undiscounted net cash inflows [outflows) on the derivative financial
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instruments that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross inflows
and (outflows) on those derivatives that require gross setlement. VWhen the
amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been
determined by reference fo the projected interest rates as illustrated by the

yield curves existing at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2012

R-ZE——-F+=ZA=+-—H

Less than 3 months Over
Tmonth  1-3 months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
SR—-1@A -Z=fA ZfEAZ-& —ERE BALE B
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT T BT T BET T BT T BETT BT T
THE GROUP %M
Derivatives settled net FERZ2ITHE TR
Interest rate contracts FIEEHEY
— inflow (outflow) —RAGRE) (44) (20,829) 16,361 (7,943) 40,534 28,079
Derivatives settled gross NBBR S 2TEI8
Exchange rate confracts EZEH
— inflow A 2,198,901 2,514,355 1,324,502 — — 6,037,758
— outflow — it (2196,427)  (2,530,816)  (1,309,173) — — (6,036,416)
2474 (16,461) 15,329 — — 1,342
At 31 December 2011 R-EB——F+=-H=+—H
Less than 3 months QOver
1 month 1-3 months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
PR-8A —-Z=f8 Z=@EBE-&F it BARE ok
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT T BETT BT T BRI T BET T BT T
THE GROUP 350
Derivatives seftled net LUFBR S 2ITETR
[nferest rate contracts FREHEH 195
— inflow (outflow) —HRAGRE) 5,814 (41,132) 21,355 (30,191) 125,586 81,432 u
Derivatives settled gross NBBRS2iTEIA =
Exchange rafe confracts EXEH 5
— inflow —HEA 431,043 473,846 413,555 — — 1,318,444 3
— outflow —Hid (430,557) (469,590) (411,731) = — (1,311,878) =
486 4,256 1,824 — — 6,566 lr‘;
;\I
&
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-




O
o

210g boday [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The dates of the contractual amounts of the Group’s commitments and
contingencies unrecorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
that commit them fo extending credit to customers and other facilities and

financial guarantees are set out in Note 54 fo the consolidated financial

statements and summarised in the table below.

At 31 December 2012

6. &MTIR (&)
6B. MBEBREEARR BEK ()

RBESRER (&)

BN AR EBERBCEHER A BB R 80 &
ERIBRENANSBRRIYBERE
REEFPERARMEEMBERTH - MBER
E2FNRAMBERRMESL - RAKWT
*:

R-ZE——-F+=-A=+—H

No later than 1 year

TRA—%F
HKS'000
BETT
THE GROUP 350
Direct credit substitutes ERERRER 1,077,350
Traderelate confingencies RESEHzAAER 425,309
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and ABAZEANBEREE
other commitments excluding those EEERHMEE
that are unconditionally cancellable EEL-GG G 10,557,895
12,060,554

At 31 December 2011

R-E——H+=-A=+—H

No later than 1 year

TEB—F
HKS'000
BET T
THE GROUP 3|
Direct credit substitutes BEEEARER 1,163,474
Trade-relate confingencies BESEREZRAER 373,802
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and ABAZEXNBEREE
other commitments excluding those FERRHMAEE
that are unconditionally cancellable AR HHEB AN 9,308,915
10,841,191




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity

The maturity analysis of financial assefs and liabilities shown on the

consolidated statement of financial position of the Group, based on the

remaining period at the end of the reporting period fo the contractual

maturity dafe is shown below. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment

on demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the

probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.

THE GROUP %M

6. &MTI A ()
6B. MEMBEERBMR KR ()

REBE S ®E R (H)
BEERARERFGIE AT

AEBEGEAMBRAARAEREERBED
FH B MR ARE B
B2 RBREBEESITAT - LEENWRTT
SRERTEREN  BSMHERERERRK

j:/v/r
wE

HEALE

X2 |ITEFIEF ART 2B REAR -

&

Repayable
within -~ Repayable  Repayable  Repayable
1 month affer after after
(except those Tmonth 3 months Tyear  Repayable
Repayable  repayable  butwithin ~ butwithin -~ but within affer
ondemand  ondemand) 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears  Undated Total
—{8A %R
®iE
(EEX —-f@AZ =@AZ —£Z
EExX  HEEX =fEAR -FR  BFR BBIE
HiE BR5h) HiE &g HiE HiE EHRAH ot
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BETT BYTr B%Tn BTz BETr B¥Tr B%Trn B%Txn
At 31 December 2012 R-E——f
+=BA=+—-H
Pssets 8E
Cash ond shortterm funds BEESRESES 6185 11147922 461,895 98,531 - - — 17,845,583
Placements with banks and other FHRER M
financial institufions beween MBRBR-Z
one fo twelve months +-EBRES
— banking operations B — BTER - — 3948931 895,178 - - — 4844115
Derivaive finandil insfruments FTELRIE — 6,562 3,987 6,106 — 171,256 - 187911
Financial ossefs  fair value through BATEESFAER
profitor loss ZERMEE - - 15,531 235,450 1,018,963 - 8917 1,278 861
Available-for-sale investments AftHECES — — - — 2615897 1635948 364106 4,625,951
Held-o-maturity securites SZEEA RS — 1205799 2576757 2538719 2519363 739322 — 9,600,020
Advances fo customers EFEX 1600361 228499 2398222 7309363 12717,092 12619406 168157 39,157,597
Advances to banks and other financial RER L HEE
insfifutions B - 105497 1,364,831 094,514 - - — 1164842
Advances to an investee company BARRENT - - - - - - 322,539 322,539
Other financial assets HEitemEE 3158 196,652 193336 181310 94,216 —  (I71,946) 815,155
Total finoncial assefs BEREE 8,059,182 14967428 1096349 12,019,232 18975531 15165932 691,773 80,842,574
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. €MTITEH(E)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HERBEEERRNE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRAR(HE)
Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (Continued) BEREEZFGIEE S (E)
THE GROUP # M
Repayable
within ~ Repayable  Repayable  Repayable
1 month after after after
(exceptthose ~ Tmonth 3 months Tyear  Repayable
Repoyable  repoyble  butwithin  hutwithin  butwithin after
ondemand  ondemond) 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears  Undated Total
—{8A %R
i

(BEX —-fAE =fRE %%
EZER @EEX =fEAR R EFA BBIF
[ B BRSH) L E & " HE BRHRAH Ag
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BRI BTz BRI B%Tz BERTr BRTr B¥Tx ENTx

Liahilies 8
Deposits and balances of banks and BERE B R
other finonciol institutions Rk 35,287 803,800 059,900 344,484 — - — 1843411
Financial ssets sold under REBHETHEZ
repurchase agreements SREE - 354,801 - 78,880 - - - 433,681
Deposits from bonking customers BIEFER 26,690,300 19,872,678 13961,059 6,748,437 88,972 - — 67,361,446
Cerfficotes of deposit BH% - 99,991 390,267 177378 - - - 067,636
Derivative financial insfruments TESRMIA - 3131 17,943 794 142,985 56,655 - 248,656
Loan captal BEEX — - — - — 1,898,957 — 1,898,957
Bank borrowings BITEZR 299,067 - - - - - - 299,067
Bank borrowings with repayable on BERERERER
demand clause B2 RITER 180,000 - - - - - - 180,000
Bank borrowings with breach of BERERENZ
loan covenants WITER 3,129,623 - - - — - — 319613
Other financial liabiltes HEuemes 422895 210,398 102005 161,879 15,004 - - 912,181
Total financiol iabilies BemaR 30857172 21,344805 15131174 7539000 246961 1,955,612 — 11014724
Net position — tofal financial assets and FE-ALBEER
liabiies af (22,797990)  (6,377,377) (4167,678) 4480232 18728570 13210320 691,773  3767,850
Of which certiicates of deposit induded in: BEHEEHEE
Held-to-maturity securites BEIHAzES - 225243 2110648 1,357,430 - - — 3693301
Of which debt securities included in: EREEEHEHE
g Finanial assets af FVTPL BAVEESNEEZ
— Designated ot fair value — EERATVEFIER = = 15,531 235450 1,018,963 - — 1269944
Availableor-sale investments AHEEZRE - - — — 2625897 1,368,807 — 3994704
Held-to-maturity securities SEHMBES — 125799 2576751 2538779 2519363 139,372 — 9,600,020
— 125799 2592288 2774229 616423 2108129 — 14,864,608
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturify (Continued)

THE GROUP %M

6. &MTA (&)

6B. MERMEEERR R (M)

REBE S ®E R (H)

BEERBERFGEHA W (&)

Repayable
within -~ Repayable  Repoyable  Repoyable
1 month after after after
(except those Tmonth 3 months Tyer  Repayable
Repoyoble ~ repoyoble  butwithin ~ butwithin -~ butwithin after
ondemond  ondemond) 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Undated Total
— {8 A LR
B
(BEX —fEAZE =A% —§Z
EZk  EEE =@EAR —FR® IR BBLF
= BR4M) = B fEE i EHEAH bk
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BT B%Tr B%Tr B%Tx B%Tr E%Tr BT BETr
At 31 December 2011 A= E——fF
+=-HA=+-H
Assets &
Cash and short-ferm funds ERRERESHES 6515017 12100930 440,095 - - - — 19,056,102
Placements with banks and BHE%REMS
other financial institutions MBRBR-F
between one to twelve months +-AAREE
HE
— banking operations —RITER = — 1,596,810 572,131 - - — 2,169,007
Fixed bank deposits with BAZ@A#EEZ
more than three months fo EHRTER
maturity when raised - — - 10,079 - - — 10,079
Derivative financial instruments FTELRIE - 2,603 3,985 319 181 118968 — 129,556
Financial assets af FVTPL BRATEEGABREZ
LREE - - 201566 394935 1,323,523 - 7446 1927470
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE - — — — 1258736 701,099 206,839 2,166,674
Held-fo-maturity securifies BRIAPAES — 1,490,948 193,197 3,597,047 2,764,008 242,882 — 8,288,082
Advances to customers EFEH 1,767,331 2,856,018 3991951 6714510 14,018,618 11,766,665 186,591 41,301,684
Advances to banks and FEREMHEE
other financial institutions &N - — 145,720 759,689 - - — 1,505,409
Advances to an investee company BARBEDLT = = = = - - 312,209 312,209
Other financial assets HEtheREE 238966 244931 69,612 158,736 667 — (19,013 516,899
Total financial assets BEREE 8521374 16695430  7,24299 12210852 19,365,833 12,829,614 517,072 77,383,171
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (Continued)

6. &MTIR (&)
6B. MEAMBEERBRRE KR (#])

RBESRER (&)
BEERBERFGIEA W (&)

THE GROUP #5%M®

Repayable
within -~ Repaycble ~ Repayable  Repoyable
1 month after ofter after
(except those Tmonth 3 months Tyeor  Repayable
Repoyable ~ repoyoble  butwithin  butwithin  butwithin after
ondemond  ondemond) 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Undated Total
— {88 R
=
(BEX —fAEZ =A% —£z
EZk  EEE =fERAR —&R IR BBRF
Bz BR4N) Bz = B B2 SWRAH mE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BETT BETr B¥Tn B%Tr B%Tx B%Tr B%Tr B%Trx
Liabilities aE
Deposits and halances of banks and ~ F & E B AR eAE
other financial institutions BHRES 18,820 998,016 70,000 - — — — 1,086,836
Financial assets sold under REBRETHEY
repurchase agreements SREE — - 137,940 282112 — — - 420,652
Deposits from banking customers BIBFER 2787229 24488399 1224713 4,431,180 114776 - — 64,608,797
Certificates of deposit BHE - 99,948 719844 1265770 100,000 - — 1,545,562
Derivative financial instruments FTELRIE — 4097 17,364 15,606 184,459 214170 - 265,696
Loan capital HEEX = = = = — 1852153 — 1,852,153
Bank borrowings RITRER = = — 1009462 2,021,826 - — 311,268
Bank borrowings with repayable BABEREEREE
on demand clause B2 BTER 180,000 - - - - - - 180,000
Other financial liabilities HEthemas 367479 185,958 62,330 75,193 24139 - - 815,699
Total financial liabilities nepas 23353528 25876418 12624691 77170523 3,045,200 1,876,323 —  73946,683
Net position — total financial assefs 48 — BERWEER
and liabilifies =1 (14.832,154)  (9,180,988)  (5,381,695) 5040329 16,320,633 10,953,291 517,012 3,436,488
Of which cerificates of deposit BEBEREE
included in:
Held-to-maturity securities BRAMAzES - 879,341 12340 661,043 18,520 - — 1,571,244
Of which debt securifies included in: ~ EEZEEHEE !
Financial assets af FVTPL BAVEESNBEZ
— Designated at fair value —BERLTESER - - 201566 394935 1,323,523 - — 1,920,024
Availableforsale investments AHEEZRE - - - — 1,258,736 382,074 — 1,640,810
Held-fo-maturity securities BRAMAES — 1490948 193197 3597047 2764008 242,882 — 8,288,062
— 1490948 394763 3991982 5346267 624,956 — 11848916
Other than the financial assets and liabilities shown in the above table, the B EEXFARZERMEER BB » HEETA

remaining assets and liabilities included in the consolidated statements of
financial position are non-current assets and non-current liabilities except for

properties under development for sale, inventories and taxation payable.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

In managing credit risks, the Group has developed separate procedures

and policies for its financial services operations, represented by the CHB

Croup, and for ifs other segments. The following describe the Group's

credit risks in the context of these procedures and policies.

Credit risk — financial services operations

For financial services operations, the Group, through CHB, takes on
exposure fo credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable
fo pay amounts in full when due. Impairment allowances are made for
losses that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.
Significant changes in the economy, or in the health of a particular industry
segment, could result in losses that are different from those provided for af
the end of the reporting period. Management therefore carefully manages

its exposure fo credif risk.

CHB's lending policies have been formulated on the basis of its own
experience, the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance, the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority guidelines and other statutory requirements (in the case of
overseas branches and subsidiaries, the relevant local laws and

regulations).

CHB's primary credit approval bodies are the Loans Committee, which
comprises senior staff members of the CHB Group, and the Executive Loans
Committee, comprising all the Executive Directors of the CHB Group. The
Executive Loans Committee has overall responsibility for the CHB Group's
credit policies and oversees the credit quality of the CHB Group's advance
portfolio. Under the oversight of the Executive loans Committee, officers of
the CHB Group are authorised fo approve credit based on the size of the
advance, the collateral provided, the credit standing of the applicant and

other prescribed credit guidelines.
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6B. MERMEEERR R (M)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk — financial services operations (Continued)
The Credit Assessment Department is responsible for reviewing all credit
applications. VWhen a customer fills out an advance application or requests
a credit line, the branch or lending department account officer collects
information through customer interviews, documentation requests and
feasibility studies as well as other sources. The account officer then
prepares and submits a credit proposal based on the information gathered
for the review of the Credit Review Officers. Credit Review Officers are
required fo check the accuracy of the information submitted and that the
credit proposal meets the underwriting standards required, and are
required to provide an independent credit evaluation in support of @
recommendation for granting or rejecting the advance and the subsequent

renewal applications.

Credit approval is performed by the loans Committee in accordance with
the delegated lending authority from the Lending Policy of the CHB Group
with reference to a customer's obijective of borrowing, financial strength,
repayment ability, past account performance and collateral being offered
as security, as appropriate. Approval from the Executive Loans Committee
is required as and when the requested amount of the advance exceeds the

delegated authority of the Loans Committee.

The CHB Group structures the levels of credif risk it undertakes by placing
limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups
of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are
typically monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to periodic
reviews. Limits on the level of credit risk by product, industry sector and by

country are approved annually by the senior management of CHB Group.

Exposure fo credit risk is managed through regular reviews of the ability of
borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment
obligations and by changing these lending limits where appropriate.
Exposure fo credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and

corporate and personal guarantees.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk — financial services operations (Confinued)

Risk mitigation policies

Some specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.

[a)  Collateral
The CHB Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types

for loans and advances are:
*  Mortgages over residential and commercial properties

e Charges over business assefs such as premises, inventory and

accounts receivable; or

e Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and

equities.

In addition, in order to minimise the credit losses, the CHB Group will seek
additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment indicators

are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advances.

Estimates of fair value of collateral are based on the fair value of collateral
determined using valuation techniques commonly used for the
corresponding assefs at the time of borrowing, and generally not updated
except when a loan is individually impaired. When a loan is identified as
impaired, the corresponding fair value of collateral of that loan is updated

by reference to market value such as recent transaction price of properties.

[b)  Other risk mitigations
The CHB Group uses guarantees as credit risk mitigations. Whilst the CHB
Group may accept guarantees from any counterparty, it sefs a threshold

infernally for considering guarantors to be eligible for credit risk mitigation.

Impairment and provisioning policies
Impairment allowances are recognised for financial reporting purposes and
only for losses that have been incurred at the end of each reporting period

based on objective evidence of impairment.

The impairment allowances shown in the consolidated statements of
financial position are based on the five rafing grades adopted by the Hong
Kong Monefary Authority, with the majority of the impairment allowances

arising from the bottom three gradings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk — financial services operations (Continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

Based on the loan usage or the principal business activity of the borrower,

where applicable with reference to the regulatory reporting criteria, the

Group's gross advances to customers (including advances booked in

overseas branches and subsidiaries) are analysed and reported as follows:

6. &MTIR (&)
6B. MBEBREEARR BEK ()

FERR - SRREERK (H)
R 18 12 6 18 2 1 I 5 (4B

rEBEZEFPER

R (RIEBI 1T RS

ARRNNER)  BERABR/ TERA
2R BREST RREMT

31 December 2012 —=B—=f+=A=+—H

Collective Individual Loans and
Gross loans impairment impairment  advances secured  Gross impaired
and advances allowances allowances by collateral advances
BEAR
EX#E  SBEHAEEE  @REERE BEVER  AEENEE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETR BETT BETT BETT BETT
(note)
(B )
Loans for use in Hong Kong Industrial, 1238 f > &3
commercial and financial T HERSRE
— Property development - MERR 1,366,467 1,347 — 769,767 —
— Property investment —MERE 8,924,108 — 1,774 8,857,224 1,774
— Financial concems - RKEE 1,741,910 — — 1,131,827 —
— Stockbrokers - BHEE 594,689 150 — 438,481 —
— Wholesale and retail trade - HBEREEE 1,460,007 5,157 3,273 1,085,418 3,273
— Manufacturing —BlEE 1,677,166 557 1,098 994,699 1,098
— Transport and fransport -~ ERRERRE
equipment 754,094 — — 696,577 —
— Recreational activities - B&EEH 2154 8 — 2,154 —
— Information technology — EHRE 15,320 108 — 75 —
— Others (nofe b) — ELfth (FiZED) 7,114,661 25,619 4,669 3,556,824 4,609
Individuals fEARIAL
— Loans for the purchase of —~BEIBEBHE]
flats in the Home EON - S
Ownership Scheme, RIBEBHETE]
Private Sector Participation BUZEXR
Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 475,392 — — 475,392 —
— Loans for the purchase of - BEHEMAEET
other residential properties ZEH 6,613,370 238 — 6,611,275 —
— Credit card advances - EREEH 109,491 4,883 328 2947 375
— Others (note ¢) — Hfth (5t o) 1,717,229 6,561 2,181 1,354,133 2181
32,566,058 44,628 13,323 25,976,793 13,370
Trade finance EE RS- 1,246,727 29,924 8,516 427,959 8,516
Loans for use outside Hong Kong ~ EA&BLUMER 2 &3 5,344,812 89,954 2215 2,564,067 2,308
39,157,597 164,506 24,054 28,968,819 24,194




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. SMIA(HE)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. MERBTEEERBE (&) g
POLICIES (CONTINUED) %
Credit risk — financial services operations (Continued) EERE — 2RBERER(E) Tg
Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued) S5 1B %% 6t (B CE (R B 5 (48 ) 1
&L
31 December 2011 =B——%+=A=+—H 5
(ollective Individual Loans and &
Gross loans impairment impairment  advances secured Gross impaired o
p p p
and advances allowances allowances by collateral advances
BEAR
ExEE SRREEE BRIRELRE BEVZER HEENEE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BT BRI BETT BETT
(note a)
(HrzE)
Loans for use in Hong Kong ERBERACER
Industrial, commercial and financial T BER$H
— Property development o E 4 2,320,064 2,531 — 725,399 —
— Property investment — MERE 8,865,657 — 2,120 8,761,108 1,773
— Financial concerns -ENEER 2,429,291 — = 1,285,610 =
— Stockbrokers —BEER 577,841 179 — 518,642 —
— Wholesale and retail frade -~ HBRBEXE 1,562,043 6,081 5,284 802,006 6,182
— Manufacturing —BEX 1,616,168 590 5,452 816,796 9.777
— Transport and fransport — BRRERRE
equipment 881,549 — — 469,532 —
— Recreational activities — BESTE) 1,089 5 — 1,089 —
— Information technology - B 424 52 = 178 =
— Others (note b) s AGED) 8,015,559 31,083 6,324 3,393,053 25,598
Individuals ERAL
— Loans for the purchase of -BEIBERHE]
flats in the Home [RAMESETE ]
Ownership Scheme, RIEEEHEE
Private Sector Participation BUZER
Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 527,447 — — 527,443 —
— Loans for the purchase of -BEEMAEET
other residential properties A=t 6,459,070 257 — 6,456,622 —
— Credit card advances - EREEX 76,156 5,507 228 6,698 314
— Others (nofe ¢) — HAty (Bt o) 1,686,550 1117 5,914 1,323,649 9,897
35,018,908 53,402 25,322 25,087,825 53,541
Trade finance EE R 1,183,074 31,055 12,243 405,584 21,956
Loans for use outside Hong Kong A BUMER 2 &5 5,099,702 87,558 2,988 2,285,455 2,692 205
41,301,684 172,015 40,553 27,778,864 78,189
notes: RS -
(a) The amount of loans and advances secured by collateral is defermined as the lower of (a) BEBRZEFTUERRTSERISG TEREAS
the market value of collateral or outstanding loan principal. MEREERE -

(b) Maior items included in “Others” are for electricity and gas, hotels, boarding houses and  (b) FIATEM] 2 X Z2EBREEHNRER BE IRk
catering, margin lending and other business purposes. ERER  BEREAREMEBRRE -

[c) Maior items mainly included loans to professionals and other individuals for various  (c] TEHETIEBREREBAABNAEEALRA
private purpose. AR ALREZER -

BxEF--—s- | BUHEXETI SRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk — financial services operations (Confinued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The CHB Group's policy requires the review of individual financial assets

that are above materiality thresholds at least annually or more regularly

when individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on

individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the

incurred losses at the end of the reporting period on a case-by-case basis,

and are applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment

normally encompasses the fair value of collateral held and the anticipated

receipts for that individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: [i) portfolios
of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality thresholds;
and [ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet been identified by
using statistical modelling and considering the historical loss experience in
portfolios of similar credit risk characteristics. The management has also
made judgement as to whether the current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual level of inherent losses is likely to be greater or less

than that suggested by historical experience.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographical or
industry factors similarly affect counterparties whose aggregate credit

exposure is material in relation to the Group's total exposures.

The geographical locations of the financial assets are determined by the
locations of the counterparties with the ultimate credit exposure assessed by

the management.

An analysis of geographical and industry sector concentration of the CHB
Group's financial assefs that best represent the maximum exposure by the

management is disclosed below.

6. &MTIR (&)
6B. MEAMBEERBRRE KR (#])

FERR - SRREERK (H)

R 18 12 6 18 2 1 I 5 (4B
BIRRTEEZBRERZDBFHERNE
ENERMEEXE@MIBRTREE AT
fEmE - [@RIFHE P A 2 BEEEERER
BEHEEER  REERMFHEHERZ
BRRE - WA ERRERNERFO - 1t
AE—REFEENFPOFENERR AT
BENFEHIER -

PASR 88712 sUHETT AR R (R FR AR 70 2645 (i) M
MAFEZHRMEZEEMAS  R(i|E#
EEHARRERITRARERBEEERE
EERRFEEECBRERETZEKX -
EEEZRTAREEREEBREHEE
EEANEREERGAESRIENBE

TREEMNZERRFF 4
ERAREFAREE AR EERETF -
HEERRAHNASEZEERRASEAXN
B AFESTEERR -

CREEZRBUETAEREN G2 &K
EERBIZEREPZUEETE -

RERKRABRTREENEREEZRSE
R B M EFEP DT RBENT



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. SMIA(HE)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HERAEEEERBF (E) g
POLICIES (CONTINUED) -
Credit risk — financial services operations (Continued) EERE — 2RBERER(E) 12
Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure S HEENEEERER M (E) 1
(Continued) §§
Geographical locations &I E ﬁﬁ
Asia Pacific
exduding
Hong Kong Hong Kong Others Total
TAB
58 BREBUS Hitr am
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
(note(i)) (note(ii))
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—#+-F=+-H
Shortterm funds g 6,884,344 6,751,760 3,322,717 16,958,821
Placements with banks and other FHEEREtEHEE
finandial institutions maturing between A —Z+ =185 py 2l
one to twelve months P e::1 312,939 4,290,656 185,918 4,789,513
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 14,263 8,146 165,502 187,911
Financial assets af FVTPL RATEETABEZ
SREE 555,726 238,322 419,101 1,213,149
Availableforsale investments AfEERE 2,203,479 327,725 1,462,336 3,993,540
Held-fo-maturity securities FREMAZES 2,291,716 6,128,890 1,179,414 9,600,020
Advances and other accounts EHREMEE 37,635,486 3,496,657 936,929 42,069,072
49,897,953 21,242,156 7,671,917 78,812,026
At 31 December 2011 R-2—f+=-A=+—H
Shortterm funds EHES 9,838,507 7,133,830 1,162,969 18,135,306
Placements with banks and other BREZER A EHRE
financial institutions maturing between ~ A—Z+ =185 f 2/
one to twelve months CHIE 172,066 1,996,941 — 2,169,007
Derivative financial instruments THESRMIA 6,157 5,321 118,078 129,556
Financial assets af FVTPL BAVEES A \BHEZ
LREE 1,012,867 228,820 603,595 1,845,282
Availablefor-sale investments AHEESRE 901,640 310,891 427115 1,639,646
Held-fo-maturity securities SEEHAZES 1,779,492 3,970,768 2,537,822 8,288,082 207
Advances and other accounts BE T HBIRE 39,830,076 2,484,998 896,082 43,211,156 =
53,540,805 16,131,569 5,745,661 75,418,035 E
at
notes: B E Eﬂ
a
(i) The countries reported in “Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong” mainly included the PRC, i) 2RV EARBBEBUN ZEREEEPE - ‘_‘
Japan, Australia and other Asian countries. B RN R EAMTMBER - «)‘&l
(i) The countries reported in “Others” covered mainly Canada, United States and some (ii) EWATHAM] 2ERFEZBEZNEA - B L !;
European counfries. HEUMEZR - z
E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. €MTITEH(E)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HERREEHERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk — financial services operations (Continued) EERE - SRHBREER(E)
Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure S EREEM TR ER ()
[Continued)
Industry secfors ES . Saxit
Central
Banksand  government
other financiol and central ~ Public sector Corporate
institutions banks entities entities Others Total
B¥K HRE A
HitbE S HRELT IN-¥ 7 (¥ Hit k]

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BT BT BEFT BT BEFT

At 31 December 2012 R-E-_&
+ZA=+-H
Short-ferm funds EHES 16,060,006 898,815 — — — 16,958,821
Placements with banks and BHEYXREMD
other financial institutions BHEER -2
maturing between one to +-AAREH
twelve months 28 4,789,513 — — — — 4,789,513
Derivative financial instruments TEERMIA 183,024 — — 4817 70 187,911
Financial assets at FVTPL BRALBET RS
ZEMEE 419,101 — — 794,048 — 1,213,149
Availablefor-sale investments AHEECRE 323,709 — 56,016 3,613,815 — 3,993,540
Held-fo-maturity securifies BRHBAZES 7,809,345 3,382 196,401 1,590,892 — 9,600,020
Advances and other accounts BEREMRE 2,798,881 78,607 176,750 28,341,391 10,673,443 42,069,072
32,383,579 980,804 429,167 34,344,963 10,673,513 78,812,026
At 31 December 2011 n-g——%&
+ZA=+—-8
Short-term funds &S 14,440,981 3,694,325 — — — 18,135,306
Placements with banks and BHEYXREMD
other financial insfitutions BB —F
maturing between one to +-EAREH
twelve months g 2,169,007 — — — — 2,169,007
Derivative financial instruments fTE4RIE 123,860 — — 5517 179 129,556
Financial assets af FVTPL BAVEBEFABR
ZEMEE 417,647 — — 1,427,635 — 1,845,282
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE 232,475 - 56,566 1,350,605 - 1,639,646
Held-fo-maturity securifies BRHBAZES 6,823,243 130,797 185,187 1,148,855 — 8,288,082
Advances and other accounts BHREMEE 1,855,605 110,201 144,935 30,426,188 10,674,227 43,211,156

26,062,818 3,935,323 386,688 34,358,800 10,674,406 75,418,035




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. SMIA(HE)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B.HERBEEEERKE (&) §
POLICIES (CONTINUED) o
Credit risk — financial services operations (Continued) EERE — 2RBERER(E) gf
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit TE BT 15 HE #0380 B (= FH 20 B B 5 S5 (= 1
enhancements Bk 5;5
Maximum exposure to credit risk relating fo financial assets is as follows: AHELREENSESEERKBMT ﬁﬁ
2012 2011
—g-=f 2%
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Short-term funds BHES 16,958,821 18,135,306
Placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing BHEER AT EEER-—Z+-BER
between one to twelve months BB 2R 4,789,513 2,169,007
Derivative financial instruments TELRIE 187,911 129,556
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEFAERCERERE 1,213,149 1,845,282
Available-for-sale investments AfHE RS 3,993,540 1,639,646
Held-fo-maturity securities BERIBAZES 9,600,020 8,288,082
Advances and other accounts B REMEE 42,069,072 43,211,156
78,812,026 75,418,035
2012 2011
%= “E-—f
HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT
Direct credit substitutes BEEEARER 1,077,350 1,163,474
Trade-related contingencies HESEE HEEE 425,309 373,802
Undrawn formal standby fucilities, credit lines and AEACIRERES
other commitments excluding those EEEREMESE
that are unconditionally cancellable RS HHNBRI 10,557,895 9,303,915
12,060,554 10,841,191
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. €MTITEH(E)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HERREEHERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk — financial services operations (Continued) EERE - SRBREEL (&)
Credit quality SEEX
Credit quality of loans and advances to cusfomers, excluding inferest EEERYEEEE  BREWRF S Bt
receivables, are summarised as follows: M
THE CHB GROUP &I iR 75
2012 2011
—g-=% e
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BT T
Neither past due nor impaired FaMNERE 38,900,200 41,044,800
Past due but not impaired BRBEEHE 233,203 178,695
Impaired 2RE 24,194 78,189
39,157,597 41,301,684
Less: Allowances for impairment W EEE (188,560) (212,568)
38,969,037 41,089,116
() Lloans and advances neither past due nor impaired () FEEEISEREER

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither 3 EA SERE B HE AN EEEEL22 £

past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the internal rafing g m 4547 & @ ay P SRR R G FRE S B

system adopted by the CHB Group which is also the classification system DR S AR EE R S R
A5 /B 37 =] PR \ FACRA °
required fo be adopted for reporting to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

THE CHB GROUP S&IR&{TRE

Foreign Personal
Instalment Syndication  currency Trade  loans and

Overdrafts loans ~ Term loans loans loans finance  tax loans Others Total
FHEE BAERK

EX X EHER REER HWER EHIEE  HBER it b
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BT BETz BT BETT ATz BT B¥Tz EMTr B%Tn

At 31 December 2012 R-B-Z

Total k] 1,611,132 17,881,420 13,195495 6,367,718 219,105 1,140,650 106,523 522,757 41,044,800

+=A=+-H
GRADES: REV
Pass a1 1,495,026 18,810,942 12112179  4,295917 70,306 1,205,818 134,538 722,322 38,847,048
Special mention BRIER 13,446 8,967 — — — 3978 461 — 26,852
Substandard or below I ET NN 603 21,853 — = = 3,844 = = 26,300
210
= Total k] 1,509,075 18,841,762 12112179  4,295917 70,306 1,213,640 134,999 722,322 38,900,200
(e}
& At31 December 2011 R-E—f
@ +ZBA=+-8
g GRADES: R
% Pass &t 1,595,548 17,836,973 13,193,145 6,272,591 219,105 1,131,749 106,180 522,757 40,878,048
% Special mention HBRIEE 14,842 28,774 2,300 — — 2,514 343 - 48,773
> Substandard or below pEEDIN 742 15,673 50 95,127 — 6,387 — — 117,979



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. SMIA(HE)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HERREEEERBE (&) 5
0,
POLICIES (CONTINUED) L
Credit risk — financial services operations (Continued) EERE — 2RBERER(E) 12
Credit quality (Continued) EEEX(E) 1
S0
(i)  Loans and advances past due but not impaired (i) EBEEEEREER 5
it
Gross amount of loans and advances by class of customers that were past  #ZEE H BN E B EEIEREN SR Q%D ;‘E
due but not impaired were as follows: IR
THE CHB GROUP £JR§R{TSRME
Personal
Instalment Syndication Trade  loans and
Overdrafis loans  Term loans loans finance  tox loans Others Total
AHRE BAERR
BX %  EHER REER E5RE  HEER Hity ag
HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BT B¥ETr B%Tr BT B¥Tr B%Tx
At 31 December 2012 N-E-Z%
+2Az+-8
Past due up to 30 days BE=TAIUT 397 544 122,422 - 9,063 — — 132,426
Past due from 31 1o 90 days BB=T-REATA 2815 4,142 - - - 129 1,740 8,826
Past due more than 90 days BAENATELL 2088 14449 = 75,406 = 8 = 91,951
Total gt 5,300 19,135 122,422 75,406 9,063 137 1,740 233,203
Fair value of collateral ERRZATE 20,573 96049 308434 1276692 29412 370 — 1,731,530
Loans and advances secured by B w2 B (H5)
collateral (note) 4757 18,881 121,200 75,406 9,063 8 — 229,315
At 31 December 2011 R=$——%F
+=ZA=+-H
Past due up fo 30 days BR=TRHAT 508 3,725 - - 5,181 245 - 9,659
Past due from 31 1o 90 days BH=t-REATA 136 9548 120,422 — 3,354 106 1375 134,941
Past due more than 90 days BEATAUE 2113 11,982 - — — — - 34,095
Total gt 22,157 25,255 120,422 — 8,535 351 1,375 178,695
Fair value of collateral ERmzAVE 59512 136,619 251,313 = 21,979 370 — 469793
Loans and advances secured by BE AR EH (M)
collateral (note) 22,620 25,251 120,422 = 8,535 4 = 176,869

Collateral is mainly properties and fixed deposits. HiRmETERMELEHFER - 211
"

note:  The amount of loans and advances secured by collateral is determined as the lower of it : BEM Mz ERFEAER R TISERABRTERE =
. s B

the market value of collateral or outstanding loan principal. EMERBERE - S

#

at

5

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. €MTITEH(E)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HERBETEE MR BRE (#/)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk — financial services operations (Confinued) EEERKB - SHBRER(E)
Credit quality (Confinued) EEEE(E)
i) Loans and advances individually impaired i) ERLREER
The breakdown of the gross amount of individually impaired loans and 3% % 5 {4 & 5> 48 ty {8 B J (E & 2r 42 %8 49 88 40
advances by class of customers are as follows: nE
Personal
Instalment Trade  loans and
Overdrafts loons Termloans  finance  tax loans Others Total
AHEE BAERR

Ex % EHER E5®E HEER Hfty AR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BE¥FT  BETz  E%Tr  B¥Tz  EMTr  B%Tn  ENTx

At 31 December 2012 RZE-“%+-A=1+-H
Individually impaired loans ERIHEER 6,615 5,503 2,080 9,845 43 108 24,194
Fair value of collateral KRR ATE 49,989 26,646 — — — — 76,635
Loans and advances secured by collateral BB R 2 &2 (HEE)

(note) 3,339 4,082 — — — — 740
At 31 December 2011 AZ8——F+ZRA=1+-H
Individually impaired loans [ERIREE 24,647 17,878 13,012 22,426 61 165 78,189
Fair value of collateral ERRYATE 55,342 20,739 19,448 11,549 — — 107,078
Loans and advances secured by collateral IR S 2 &2 (HEE)

(note) 14,526 7,027 13,012 10,741 — — 45,306
Collateral is mainly properties and fixed deposits. HRm T ERMENEHFER -
note:  The amount of loans and advances secured by collateral is determined as the lower of st : BEMRmz ERBARRETHEBRIB TERAK

the market value of collateral or outstanding loan principal. TRAEREERE -

liv)  Advances to banks and other financial institutions liv) SRITREMPBEHEEE
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the advances to R_-TE—Z_F+_A=+—BR_T——%F
banks are neither past due nor impaired and unsecured. TZA=+—RB RITERRIFBHHIER

B2 AEMR



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. SMIA(HE)

The following table presents an analysis of financial securities, other than |38 2 51| A £ B i 5 % & Z A IMY 2 B 2

loans and advances, held by the Group by rating agency designation at % + AREHIRI & E AIRIERE 2 SH O -
the end of the reporting period, based on Moody's rafings. Financial @ ERBRETIBH L MB LS WL EREGTH

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HERBEEEEREE (&) 5
Q.

POLICIES (CONTINUED) Q
Credit risk — financial services operations (Continued) EERAKE — SRBHLEE(E) -g
Debt securities (R 1
@

&K

=

St

securities nof rated by Moody's are freated as unrated ones. SHE o

THE CHB GROUP #I®i{T5ME

Available-for-sale

investments
Financial assets (excluding equity Held-to-maturity
at FVTPL securities) securities Total
BATEERA AHHEZRE BEZ3MAZ
BRveREE  (TEERFRSH) &% k]
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE--$+-F=+-H
Aaa hoo — — — —
Aal to Aa3 hol Z a3 470,820 379,724 4,270,459 5,121,003
Al 1o A3 NEK 186,603 1,200,355 3,970,694 5,357,652
Lower than A3 ER - 1,594,132 77,293 1,671,425
Unrated RETR 555,726 819,329 1,281,574 2,656,629
Total 83 1,213,149 3,993,540 9,600,020 14,806,709
At 31 December 2011 R-2——F+-A=1+—H
Aca hao = — 374,419 374,419
Aal to Aa3 Aol Z Ao3 210,434 328,647 5,494,492 6,033,573
AT to A3 NZERB 207,213 472,162 2,057,243 2,736,618
Lower than A3 RN 132,193 755,665 23,301 911,159
Unrated RETR 1,295,442 83,172 338,627 1,717,241
Total B 1,845,282 1,639,646 8,288,082 11,773,010

213

BHES-—2= | LUHEXTBWE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE MRS AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. €MTITEH(E)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. HERREEHERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk — financial services operations (Confinued) EERE - SRHBREER(E)

Repossessed collateral WU [ ¢ 4

During the years indicated, the CHB Group obtained assefs by taking W2 HHEE - A|EEITEFERE KB R

possession of collateral held as security, as follows: BE  HHMT

Nature of assets BENE 2012 2011

—§--f -5—-f

HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT T

Residential properties rENE 31,000 52,100

Others Hit 17,320 10,950

Repossessed assets are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds used R EIH B EB LA THE R FEREE

to reduce the outstanding indebtedness. Hip s g BAREHARERER -
Credit risk — other than the financial services operations ECERKR — SRBBEBRKRIN
Maximum exposure to credit risk relating fo recognised and unrecognised ~ HRAER R KERNEHEEN TS EER
financial assets is as follows: @R
THE CHB GROUP #IEB{THME
2012 2011
—g-c=# e
HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT T
Short-term funds BHES 513,706 396,826
Placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing FHEEREMHERER-2TEAR
between one to twelve months BE Y EE 54,602 10,079
Financial assets ot FVTPL BAVEEGFABECEREE 56,795 74,742
Advances fo an investee company ARREDNT 322,539 312,209
Trade and other receivables 25 REMERER 91,292 135,204
1,038,934 929,060
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk — other than the financial services operations (Continued)

Maximum exposure fo credit risk relating to items unrecorded in the

consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

THE CHB GROUP #i® i {75ME

6. &#MTI A ()
6B. MERMEEERR R (M)

FERR — SBREEBRD (R)
AREBEGAMBRRRNEBRBEENRS
EERBRIT

2012 2011

—8-=f —E--%

HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BETT

Guarantees to third parties (Note 54(a)) F=FER (M) — 112,790

In order to minimise the credit risk of debts other than financial services
segment, the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit \imifs, credit opprovo|s and other moniforing
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management has regular liaison with the borrowers to
understand their financial position and to identify any early sign of potential
problems. Should any potential default situation arise, management will
take prompt actions to safeguard the Company’s and Groups' assefs. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Company’s and
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group had a significant concentration of credit risk at 31 December
2012, because it had advanced approximately HK$323 million (31.12.
2011: HK$312 million) to a single investee company. The directors
consider that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality of the

counterparties and the balances are considered fo be fully recoverable.

The Company
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Company due to failure to discharge an obligation by

the counterparties is arising from:

e the camying amount of the respective recognised financial assefs as

stated in the statement of financial position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation fo financial and other

guarantees issued by the Company as disclosed in Note 54.

The Company does not have concentration of credit risk as its advances

were made to various subsidiaries.

ARRERESRRESEUINNEEZEE
BB AEEEREERY —XBH - B&
ETEERE FEMRLKEMERER
LARER BE UL O 360 BB TE SRER BRIETTED © 1Eoh -
ERETHEME AL  UBRBRFESE 2
kR & BB ABEMRE - MR
] Al BE R AL B AR 2 1B - B IR [E % BRER BN B
TENRERABIRAEEBEE - 5t - &
NAIEZERAE  ARRARAEEZEERR
BRI

RERMBRBEEENIN AEEBR T —ZF
+TZA=tT—HZzEFERBRREEY  RE
BAEER —FXEREAFTNBRHBE
323,000,000 (= FE——F + =R =+—
B : B#¥312,000,0007T) c ARS8 H Z
EEEEYESAREEHAMRELEHGT B
e WEERABARNHESEHRIELRE
Rt -

NN
RARIARGEHAREBITATREMEARAR
ARXMBEIMEEZERNEERR TR
" :

s WBMWAKRMIINHEEREREEL
fREE &

o [RESMAKERANRE LB RE
EREBZAARBESHE -

ARBYRBEFZEERR

TERMWBAT -

- AER T4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6C. FAIR VALUE

The Group

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the Company
consider that the carrying amounts of the Group's and the Company’s
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Carrying valve IRE{E

6. &I R ()

C.2%FH
rEE
BRTTRFMI RRRIZEERRAEH
RAR B R E T B HRR N AS AR AR
WemEERERBEZRAERLQTE
& o
THE GROUP %M

Fair valve 2AF({E

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —E——-F —8-CF —E—-F
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT T BETT BT T BETT
Financial assets SREE
— Held-to-maturity securities - BZIYEES 9,600,020 8,288,082 9,634,003 8,279,329
Financial liabilities SHEE
— Loan capital —EEER 1,898,957 1,852,153 1,927,742 1,715,830

The fair value of financial assets with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markefs are determined with reference to quoted

market bid price.

The fair value of convertible bonds and structured deposits classified as
financial asset at FVTPL, debt securities and investment funds classified as
availablefor-sale invesments, held-to-maturity securities and loan capital is
calculated based on quoted market prices provided by pricing service
provider, dealers, brokers and other service providers. Valuation models
are derived to substantiate the fair value of the debt securities. Inputs o

valuation models are defermined from observable market data.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is calculated using quoted
prices. Where such prices are not available, the derivatives are measured
using quoted forward exchange rafes or the present value of future cash
flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves

derived from quoted interest rates, as appropriate.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative financial instruments) is defermined in accordance with generally

accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

AGRAGRREERNEBRD TS E R
MU AR HEERHTSEABES
FE -

w

BEREATEEFABRSZZEREENT
BEREFREBETR  BESTHHER
EMEBIEFLRERES HAEEZIHAN
BHRMEEEASZNATEE  REEER
iR r - KD ELAMEMRBREH
BARENTISRETE - HEREERE
BESHNAFEE HEDNREHSEER
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6C. FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated and the

6. £MIA(#E)

6C. AF{EH(#)
EHREREAQPTAMBERRERFBRINDFE
Company statements of financial position ERE

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are [T Y E MR B A A FEH E TR E D
FEMNABREEESAE —HRAIEE=HF
MER T REETT O -
F—LAAFEFERERTEMS L
EREESEBENZE(CMRE A AR)
BHENRAFEEFE -
FE_MRATFENERIEHBE —HF
FretE(E 2 o a] B (RIMEHR ) sk fd# (B
HERSH BRNEESaBEHAE
HEEMNATFETE -
FRMRATFENZERIEHRBE AN
HEMBERAKENEESBEH A

measured subsequent fo initial recognition at fair value, grouped info Levels
1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

o
5
Q
=}
0,
Q.
el
0
ES)
o)
>m
S
5
+
5qd

e level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices o
[unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

e level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other o
than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly |i.e.
derived from prices).

° level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation e
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data {unobservable inputs). R (RO ERE A S NEERTE
HEAFERE ©
2012
—E2-CF%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—5 -t | E=H7 Fak]
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
THE GROUP 5@
Financial assets and BROFEERAREZ
liabilities at FVTPL eMEERAR
Non-derivative financial assets FIEEERR 2 FITE
held for trading SHEE 8,917 — — 8,917
Financial assets designated at FVTPL EERDTEEFABRZ
SREE — 850,843 419,101 1,269,944
Derivative financial assefs not FREHRNTESRERE
used for hedging — 21,146 — 21,146
Derivative financial assets REERNITECRER
used for hedging — 166,765 — 166,765
Derivative financial liabilities not FREHRNTESREE
used for hedging — (118,154) — (118,154)
Derivative financial liabilities REERNITESRARE
used for hedging — (130,502) — (130,502)
Available-for-sale financial assets M ESREE 194,917 3,990,868 404,595 4,590,380 217
Total ok 203,834 4,780,966 823,696 5,808,496
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. €MTITEH(E)
6C. FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED) 6C. AT ()
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated and the EEARAATAGHERAREDEINAT
Company statements of financial position (Continued) BHE(E)
2012
—E-Cf
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—R5 E=HA OS] “E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT BT BETT
THE COMPANY 3
Financial assets at FVTPL BATRERAREZ
SMAE
Non-derivative financial assefs BEBSERBHITE
held for trading SREE 8,056 — — 8,656
Financial assets designated at FVTPL EERATEEABHEY
tRIEE — 56,795 — 56,795

Available-for-sale financial assets T &4 FEE

Listed equity securifies LIHRAES 140 — — 140
Listed debt securifies THEEES 1,164 — — 1,164
Investment funds REES — — 134,743 134,743
Total ok 9,960 56,795 134,743 201,498




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6C. FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

6. &MTIR ()
6C. 2FEH ()
ERARADADHBREEFEANAT

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated and the

3
0o,
Q.
Company statements of financial position (Continued) B E (&) 12
2011 -
—E--F 3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total e
E 243 £=43) sn |
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
THE GROUP 50
Financial assets and BAFRERARRZ
liabilities at FVTPL CHEERAR
Non-derivative financial assets BEBBERRENTE
held for trading SREE 7,446 — — 7,446
Financial assets designated af FVTPL EERAFEEFABEZ
SREE = 1,502,377 417,647 1,920,024
Derivative financial assets not FREEPNITESRER
used for hedging — 13,501 — 13,501
Derivative financial assets used REERNITECRIER
for hedging - 116,055 - 116,055
Derivative financial liabilities not FREEPNITESREARE
used for hedging = (203,110) = (203,110)
Derivative financial liabilities BEERNITESRARE
used for hedging = (62,586) = (62,586)
Available-for-sale financial assets Tt &£ fEE 175,601 1,638,649 319,450 2,133,700
Total Fok ] 183,047 3,004,886 737,097 3,925,030
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. &RMTHEH(HE)
6C. FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED) 6C. AF(E (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated and the EEAREKDAIHMBENEIEINA L
Company statements of financial position (Continued) BHE(E)
2011
—E—-F%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—5 EZRA F=RA mE
HKS’000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
THE COMPANY AT
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEEHARRZ
EMEE
Non-derivative financial assets BESERR 2L
held for trading SRERE 7,139 - — 7,139
Financial assets designated at FVTPL EERDFEEFABRZ
SRERE = 74,742 — 74,742

Available-for-sale financial assets THHESMEE

Listed equity securities LTHRAES 133 — — 133

Listed debt securities TmEEES 1,164 — — 1,164

Investment funds REES — — 128,754 128,754

Total k] 8,436 74,742 128,754 211,932

There were no transfers between the three Levels during both years. REAmERE  Z@EARMEITR B EEE
GIE=XE

0
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. &MTA(#K)

6C. FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED) 6C. ATF{E (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets S REEE SRR ATLASENAS
THE GROUP K&
Financial assets Available-for-sale
designated at FVTPL investments Total
EERATEETA
BRveREE AftHEZRE EExl
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-ZE——F-F—-RA#&&H 305,385 337,524 642,909
Total net losses recognised in consolidated RGERERAEI 2 FHRER
income statement (42,430) — (42,430)
Total net gains recognised in other REM2EKENER 2 FREEE
comprehensive income - 23,518 23,518
Purchases BE 155,336 8,808 164,144
Matured /disposals B HE — (38,582) (38,582)
Retum of capital contributions BETE — (11,818) (11,818)
Foreign exchange rate movements INEER 2 ZE (644) - (644)
Balance at 31 December 2011 WZE——F+-A=+-H4&H% 417,647 319,450 737,097
Total net losses recognised in consolidated REERERARAZFHELE
income statement 47,759 - 47,759
Total net losses recognised in other REMZEKEANER 2 FEBEHE
comprehensive income — 79,895 79,895
Purchases BE — 27,647 27,647
Matured /disposals BE/HE (45,506) (700) (46,206)
Return of capital contributions BETE — (21,697) (21,697)
Foreign exchange rate movements HNEER Y BE (799) - (799)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-A=+-B&% 419,101 404,595 823,696
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6C. FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets

6. &MTIR (&)
C.2F{E (&)
ERMEEF=-RNLFEFENAS (&)

(Continued)
THE COMPANY A AF
Available-for-sale
investments
Tt
BE
HKS 000
BETT
At 1 January 2011 WZE——F—-fA—H 125,073
Gain recognised in other comprehensive income REM2EREAER 2 W 6,691
Purchases BE 8,808
Refurn of capital contributions (Note 25) BIBTE (3 05) (11,818)
At 31 December 2011 W-E-——%+=-B=+-H 128,754
Gain recognised in other comprehensive income REfM2EKE N2 B3 39
Purchases BE 27,647
Return of capital contributions (Note 25) RBTE (M) (21,697)
At 31 December 2012 R-E--f+=A=+-H 134,743
The maijority of the Group’s and the Company’s investments are valued ~ARERARRA#HH MEEBEERED

based on quoted market information or observable market data. A small
percentage, 0.9% and 2.5% (2011: 0.9% and 2.4%), of total assefs
recorded at fair value of the Group and the Company, respectively, are
based on estimates and recorded as level 3 investments. Whilst such
valuations are sensitive to estimates, it is believed that changing one or
more of the assumptions fo reasonably possible alternative assumptions
would not have a big impact on the Group's and the Company’s financial

position.

Of the tofal net gains or losses for the year included in consolidated income
statement, HK$47,759,000 gains (201 1: HK$42,430,000 losses)
related fo these investiments held af the end of the reporting period. Fair
value gains or losses of investments are included in net gains on financial

instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of HK$79,895,000
(2011: HK$23,518,000) related to availableforsale investments held at
the end of the reporting period.

BORELABROMIZEEMEE - 6%

NHEARNBEEN—/MBHEE - £0.9%
R25%(ZF——%F : 0.9% % 2.4%) - THiR#E

AEBRARBDE=ZRHEREGBERALR
AEEH AT RRAEHE  EE—Ex%
EREEEEAERAIENKERRE - A
EreEAEBRARRNHBEHREKRE
N2

TR & RSER A DR UGS S R g -
3k 75 45 47,750,000 T 26 (= B — — 4 -
B 42 430,000 T 18) BN IS B A E
Ehﬁmhﬁﬁﬁ 18 2 T (B 25 A
EEE e AERATRES ABSI SR
IEZ?WEO

Hitp2EKEANB=EE79,8950007T(=
T——F: #¥235180007T) BRI E
HFGEEARENAIHHEZRERR -



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6D. TRANSFER TO FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following were the Group's held-to-maturity securities and availablefor-
sale investments as at 31 December 2012 that were transferred to an
entity with terms fo repurchase these securities at the agreed dates and
prices. As the Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these debt securities to the entity, the full carrying amount of
these debt securities continued fo be recognised. The cash received on the
transfer was reported as liabilities under “Financial assefs sold under
repurchase agreements” (Note 39). The fransferred debt securities serve as
collateral to secure these liabilities. During the covered period, the legal
fitle of the debt securities are fransferred to the counterparty entity and there
is no restriction for the counterpart entity to sell or repledge the collateral.
These debt securities are either measured at amortised cost or carried af

fair value in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2012

6. &EMIA(HE)

6D. BEREELMEE
NTAREER_TE——F+-_A=+—H
EBEE - HEEBNEEIHAZESFRA#
HEZRE (A BRRERRE 2 BB RER
BEZEES) BARAEENARERZSE
BEFZFTZRAKREKER  HAEEEER
RZEEBEHF 2 2HRAME - BEAMER
SREBENEEHR THE 2REE (M
39) - BEEBMEBESSHERIEFELAEN
ER@ - RS ROEBER - ELEBES
B EERm BB AAZIEE - ZEREA AT
ER BB E LR R E S BFEF - Z2F
BEREFGABBEA AT ERARFERAE
EEGEMBARRARAGE -

R=FB-=f+=-A=+—H

Held-fo-maturity ~ Available-for-sale
securities investments Total
BFZEHAZ RS At HEZRE Fet ol
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT
Carrying amount of transferred assets CEZEERAE 117,621 393,490 511,111
Carrying amount of associated liabilities HEaERaE 106,994 326,687 433,681
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported fo the executive directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resources allocation or
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods and
services delivered or provided. No operating segment identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the

reportable segment of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments under HKFRS

8 are as follows:

1. Financial services — provision of banking services, securities trading,
stockbroking, futures broking, investment holding, insurance and other

investment advisory services.
2. Property investment — investment and leffing of properties
3. Property development — development and sale of properties
4. Property management — provision of property management services

5. Treasury investment — dealings and investments in securifies and

other financial instruments

6. Trading and manufacturing — manufacture and sale of magnetic

products

7. Hofel operation — management and operation of hotels

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 10 and CHB become the subsidiary of the
Compoany, a new segment of financial services was presented fo reflect the
CHB Group's entire operations as the chief operating decision maker of
the Group reviewed the operations of the CHB Group as a whole.
Therefore, the segment information in respect of the year ended 31

December 2011 were restated.

7. SEAH

EEAHTES  NEBEEREA - A
BAERTESEREMERZ HBER -
To iR B B T IR AR S5 FUR S M (B 5
R BEATEBEEREABRZE
BABAERAEE 2 2EAE -

REBYBHRELNESRARE 2 XK RE
BOERMOT ¢

1. 2ER®E — RHEMRE  RELL
X WEELER  WEER  RR
Ko B3 B o A AR 75

2. MERE - MERENEE

3. VERIER - MEBRNMHEE

4. YEERE - REMEEERE

5. UBKRE - BFLEMERIANKS
5 MIE

6. BHRBUEXER — WIEEMBIERH
&=

7. BEKE - EEKERER

HEIFRITH AR ABNMBAR - BREE
B REERE 105 AEBMMESH—
EHNEBSE — RRE  ARBREEE
FTEREREAHEBIRITEENEBER
oAl BE_ZE-——F+_A=+—
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. HSEEH(E)

SRBE NERE NEBE WXEE PBRE HEXK EERE A5t Eaf )
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
BT BETn E%Tr BTz BETn E%Tr B%Tn BMTn ERTn E%Tn

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS SHEAREE 5
0,
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by LT ARSHLEE T E A AEERELE B
reportable and operating segment. BT o 'ggD
Financial ~ Property  Property  Property  Treasury  Trading and Hotel j;
services  investment  development  management  investment  manufacing  operation Total  Eiminations ~ Consolidated ;
1)) o
d
St

For the year ended BWE-S-C
31 December 2012 +ZRA=+-H
LLEE
Segment revenve FERE
Operafing revenve BENE 1948582 264389 5129 15,761 19,498 30,044 49142 2333145 (29936) 2,303,209
Comprising: af:
— segment revenue ~EFZRE
from customers 6 1937781 256,780 5109 6,830 16,903 30,044 49142
— infersegment fransactions -5BRARS
(noe) (i) 10,801 7,609 - 8,931 259 - -
Operafing expenses BERY (L3T4N8) (m4an7) @5 (128020 (2420 (289760 (52226) (1,642337) 28,030 (1,614307)
Reversal of impairment llowances on - & Zh R S4B 8¢
loans and advances 05,228 - - - - - - 05,228 - 05,228
Net exchange goins and net guins [ 3SR R HME
from foreign curency contracts ARk 108,228 - - - - - - 108,228 - 108228
Netlosses on disposal of property, &M% « BER
plant and equipment REFEER (1,861) (228) (30) - 10 - - (2115) - 2ns)
Net gains on disposal of HETHEERE
availbledorsale investments FlE 59 - - - 151 - - 745 - 745
Net gains on foir volve djustments 3R & 4% > ATE
on investment properfies HERhE 9390 261,40 - - - - - 200630 - 0,630
Gain on disposal of investment HEREME N
properies 2816 - - - - - - 2816 - 2816
Impaiment losses on avallobleforsole ATt &3S~
investments HEEE 57473 - - - 4076 - - 01,549 - 01,549
Impairment losses on other eceivables &b FE I BE 2k >
RS - (1789) - - (2,199) - - (2009 - (2009)
Net losses on fair volue hedge AT EBETEESR 1,200 - - - - - - 1,200 - 1,200
Soqment pof s AERH (BR) 753 I (LT (o) 19009 T8  (3084) U899 (1906) 1177091
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENBLR 2 (41)
Financial costs B AR
— nonfinandial senvices — ¥ LRRH (109,124)
Unallocated corporate expenses FOMOLRE (207,175)
860,751
Share o profts ofjont ventures— FR{E A B &R 118 222
Share of profts of associafes Frikie A REA 36,028
Profit before o BRBE AR 896,897
note:  Intersegment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. Mzt REAHERERTEE -

BEHEE--&= | EUULKTEWB S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. HEEH(E)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED) SHkER¥EE(E)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by LU T ARESHLEEDE Y AEBIS R E

reportable and operating segment. BT -
Financial Property Propety Property Treasury ~ Trading and Hotel
senvices  nvestment monfocuing — operafion Totol ~ Efminafions  Consolidated
B5R
SREY WERE BEXK  BELE st EIf &a
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 K000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BT BETT B¥%Tn B¥%Trn B¥Tx
For the year ended BE-Z——%
31 December 2011 +=A=+—-H
(restated) IR (EET)
Segment revenve SRR
Operating revenue EENG 1763434 262614 nang 43885 2495115 (33,436) 2461679
Comprising: B
— segment evenue from customers  — ZF 2 548
s 1755340 250,141 0919 43,885
— infersegment fransacions - £ERRS
(note) (M) 8,094 12473 = -
Operafing expenses EERY (1,191,964)  (108,452) M3 (49833) (1,792311) 33436 (1758,875)
Reversal of impaiment alowances & ZoRi B 2B I ¢
on loans and advances 107,188 - - - 107,88 - 107188
Net exchange gains and nef gains [ 33 B8 R AME
from foreign comency controcs. & 49z 54068 24376 (10) - W8 - I8
Net losses on disposal of property, &M% « BER
plont ond equipment REFER (4128) - - - (4128) = (4126)
Net gains on disposal of and foirvolue (L EE ATt HERRE R
adjustment of available-forsole HRVERE
investments Bl 697 - - - - 2004 - 20,904
Net gains on fair value djustment — 1REYE 2 ATE
on investment properties RAEFUE 9005 208,467 - - N5 - 153
Net gains (losses) on finoncial assets % A MBS A
ot for volve through proft o loss 1B IS REE
B (5B (102418 (3.210) - - (105,628) - (105,628)
Net losses on fai velu hedge AT EEEER (20,679) = - - () - (0
Goin on sale of assefs held for e~ &S HEBEY
3 = = - - 9,072 - 9,072
Recovery of amounts previously MssRIRES
wiitien-off n reofion to EEEEE
Minibonds Repurchase Scheme HEKRE 134,632 - - - 134632 - 13463
Impairment losses on ovailbleforsale ATt H &R
investments WEEE (4473) - - L) - W
Segment proft (loss) PEEF (FE) 845,522 383795 636 (5,948) 1,251,442 - 1051442
Gain on disposal of a subsidiory HENBARZWE 1,304
Finance costs — nonfinancial BBHRA - 2R
senvices £% (39,099)
Unallocated corporate expenses AABEERT (193,926)
Unallocated corporafe income KBNS 180
1,047,907
Shore of proft of int ventves A A E LR 10
Shore of prfis of asociates FrEBE D RER 180
Profitbefore fox BRBLATRR 1,066,073

nofes: Intersegment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

e - EEAHERERHESIE -



7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment profit/loss
represents the profit earned by/loss from each segment without allocation
of gain on disposal of a subsidiary, share of profits of associates and
unallocated corporate expenses, which include finance costs — non-
financial services, support functions’ costs related to corporate acfivities that
cannot be reasonably allocated to segments. In addition, administrative
cost incurred by the freasury investment segment on behalf of other
segmenfs are allocated fo respective operating segments on the basis of
revenues earned by individual operating segments other than financial
services segment. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

7. SERHE(E)
SHRBRRER(E)
ERMOBPZEHABRENFE A 2 A EES
SRR - DBRFEIREEARG AR
EMB LR 2 W - PrEEE 2 RDE M MR
"@Eﬁ%ﬁﬂi(@%ﬁﬁxﬁk$ — FFERURTS -
TCEELTBER MXTEAENAE
DR ITBEERAR) Z BT & 2 AT HRE
ZEMREZEE © U MBIREDERE
HMEB D BRNE R ZITBERACZE
RI2|O BRI 2 WD B
WS BARTS D BERSN - AEEE NN TS
EREBRERRAZH LREERDE
KMz ERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. FWEHER)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES NIEEERAER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AT AR EHHE T REBEERBEIN

reportable segment:

Segment assets SDHEEE
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
—E-Cf =t B —E——f
+=A=+-H +=A=+-H —A—-H
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$"000
BETR BETR BB
(restated) (restated)
(&=5) (&=&=351)
Financial services LRRH 80,075,845 76,926,053 73,853,200
Property investment MERE 6,039,655 6,359,014 6,288,673
Property development MERR 1,784,382 1,107,755 1,209,301
Property management MEEE 1,542 1,335 2,129
Treasury investment BERE 1,062,097 943,704 764,568
Trading and manufacturing BoRBEEK 77,899 74,386 68,092
Hotel operation BIELE 22,344 28,621 41,114
Total segment assets PEEERHE 89,063,764 85,440,868 82,227,677
Interests in joint ventures \EERENER 182,970 153,872 136,919
Deferred fox assets EAKBEE 2182 17,471 =
Other unallocated corporate assets Hik AR EE 454,902 322,326 298,894
Consolidated assets BABE 89,703,818 85,934,537 82,663,490




7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

7. SEAHGE)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) SEEIEREE ()
Segment liabilities SEaE
31.12.2012 31.12.201 1.1.2011
-g--% —g—-%& —F-—-%
+=A=+-H +=A=+—-H —A—-H
HKS'000 HK$"000 HKS'000
BETT BETR BT
(restated) (restated)
(&=50) (&=351)
Financial services SRERS 73,043,531 70,250,843 67,365,743
Property investment MERE 126,532 124,143 163,964
Property development MERR 90,224 171,059 135,379
Property management NEER 6,444 5,996 5,528
Treasury investment BERE 537 2,402 668
Trading and manufacturing BoRBEER 9,191 7,248 4,562
Hotel operation ERRE 6,170 6,049 5,505
Total segment liabilities PEEEAE 73,282,629 70,567,740 67,681,349
Taxation payable PR 34,480 60,231 61,706
Borrowings fBR 3,730,120 3,319,348 3,661,330
Deferred toxation EERE 213,009 181,290 168,782
Other unallocated corporate liabilities EMAPECEEE 150,551 147,348 148,255
Consolidated liabilities ReaE 77,410,789 74,275,957 71,121,422
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating  BEESBEERB MRV EBM OB EE B
resources between segments, all assefs are allocated to operating segments B¢ & R AlA s - EEHRBEEREM RS
other than interests in associates, deferred tax assets and other unallocated B EESN - FIEBEEH PR EZ2HHIE
corporate assefs. All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other M ERFIE - 3 - BEFHIBBAG R EM
than taxation payable, borrowings, deferred taxation and other unallocated R PENE B EIN FIEBBEHHEE L2 H
corporate liabilities. Other unallocated corporate assets and liabiliies D4 - EM AN E D EEER B EBIEEA
include the assets and liabilities related to the CHB's Group corporate ERRNPERSESETHEH T E

activities that cannot be reasonably allocated to segments, products and

support funcfions.

f
HE@Jﬁj\i N Euu&i?ﬂﬁ@%ﬁb%ﬁé&gfﬁ °

tI\

o
5
Q
>
0,
Q.
el
0
ES)
o)
>m
S
9
+
d

229

BxEF--—s- | BUHEXETI SRS



N
w

0

210g boday [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

7. SWAHGA)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HoEEE
Fnoncial ~~ Property  Property  Properly  Treaswry  Trading ond Hotel
senvtes  investment developmen!  management  investment  monufocturing  operation  Unallocated  Consolidaed
IR
SRRE YERE YWERR VEEE HHRE REEK EELE KB Ga
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000
BETr B¥TT B¥Tr BTz B%Tr BT B%Tr BETr E¥Trn
Amounts incuded in he measure of BREGTEDEEER
seqment resuls and seqment assets PEEEZSH:
2012 —E2-C-f
Capital oddfons B 37,460 3,326 782 - n 2,506 131 30645 77,562
Depreciation and amortisafion WEREHE 43176 2513 040 17 817 1428 8367 16,033 12991
Inferest expenses FEZH 14317 - - - - - - 109,124 833441
Inferest ncome FISU/ON 1,561,914 - - - 16,792 - - - 1578706
0 —B——f
(apital addfons B 12100 138 206 = 10 1,578 368 181 250951
Depreciation ond amortisafion MEREH 36,829 2901 515 JA) 0 1,353 §352 15913 08,806
Infrest expenses FEXH 553,111 - - - - - - 59,093 612,870
Inferest income FIEWA 1,369,989 = = = 8,640 = - - 1378809




7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other parts of the

PRC.

The Group's revenue from external customers is presented based on the
location of the principal operations of the branches and subsidiaries which
are responsible for reporting the revenue. Non-current assets presented
below are based on the location of the entities’ country of domicile which

is the same as the location of the non-current assets.

7. SEEH(E)
Hth 3 HEH(])

i & &R
AEFBEBURBEERPEE iR

BREIIBEPZWAEIRBAEEE
SRENDITEMBRARIZ T ELEM
EE25)° MR EETIRBEERMEM
BxRzUE2(BEIFRBEEMERR) -

2012 2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011

—B--f —E——f mt B3

—B-CF ~2——-% +ZA=t-H +ZRA=t-H —-B-H

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BETR BETT BETT BT

(restated) (restated) (restated)

(&535)) (&53]) (&=751)

Hong Kong B 1,959,109 1,770,522 4,201,753 4,662,469 4,407,851
The PRC HE 321,454 668,635 2,871,834 2,775,204 2,811,356
Macau P 6,334 6,213 579 890 2,067
America E3E 16,312 16,309 170 172 132
2,303,209 2,461,679 7,074,336 7,438,735 7,221,406

Non-current assets represented non-monetary assets and consists of
investment properties, property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease

payments, inferesfs in associates/joint ventures and goodwill.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the year ended 31 December 2012
and 2011
Group.

contributed over 10% of the tofal operating revenue of the

FRBDEERFEREE  BRER éf%%
WE - BB M&E  BENEESR  REE
A/ AELENERNEE -

FEEFER

HE-_ZT——Fr-_ZFT——F+_A=+—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

8. TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 8. HEEWKS
2012 2011
-t -3 —E——F
HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
(restated)
(&E5)
Financial services revenue eREELR
nterest income (Note 9) FSUONEL) 1,561,914 1,369,989
Fee and commission income (Note 10) ERRASWA (HEE10) 253,949 276,257
Safe deposit box renfals REHELWA 36,136 32,181
Insurance underwriting premium less claims and IBRZERASSH 2 RRARRE
commission expense 18,100 11,372
Other financial services income HESFBERA 45117 44,154
Others Hith 4214 5,237
1,919,430 1,739,190
Non-financial services revenue EemRHERE
Gross rental income EHEUWA 264,332 256,471
Sales of properties held for sale HFHENEHE 5729 373,962
Sales of goods Eyye 30,044 21,919
Interest income on structured deposifs, available-for-sale ERRER THEEZRE  ROFRRER
investments, bank deposits and bank balances ZHBEBA 16,792 8,840
Property management and agency fees NEEBRREE 6,830 7,528
Hotel operation income BIEELURA 49,142 43,885
Dividend income from listed investments held for trading ITREEEREREZREMA 111 64
Dividend income from an unlisted available-for-sale investment FEMATHBEEREZRENA 10,799 9,820
383,779 722,489
Total operating revenue BEEN S 2,303,209 2,461,679
Attributable to: SER
[nferest income AMEWA 1,561,914 1,369,989
Fee and commission income ERARASWA 253,949 276,257
Other operating revenue Hittg B A 487,346 815,433
2,303,209 2,461,679




9. NET INTEREST INCOME 9. FIRIKABRE -
2012 o
-g-=f -5 =
HKS'000 HKS000 g
BETR BETT =
ﬂ
(restated) S
(EcE27)) el
- St
Interest income FEBA
Balance and placements with banks and RER e KR
other financial institutions ZEBRRER 317,724 281,526
Investments in securities BERE 293,085 260,547
Loans and advances CEE L 888,254 797,409
Interest rate swaps MZ=BHEN 62,851 30,507
1,561,914 1,369,989
Interest expense FIEXH
Deposits and balances from banks and customers RLREFFHRRES (585,643) (448,346)
Financial assefs sold under repurchase agreements REBHETHEZ SREE (4,640) (4,084)
Certificates of deposit BHE (31,417) (7,126)
Loan capital EEEK (66,910) (73,635)
Interest rate swaps AZEHEN (35,707) (20,586)
(724,317) (553,777)
Net interest income FEWAFE 837,597 816,212
Included within interest income B AFIRKREZ
Interest income on impaired loans and advances FEEHRFEWA 374 1,214

’

Included within inferest income and inferest expense are HK$1,484,940,000 #ZEF WA RF BT HANBRTE2RATEE
(2011: HK$1,297,997,000) and HK$688,610,000 (2011: HK$533,191,000) {Eit ABZ S RMEERSMEBED B A
affributable to financial assets and financial liabilities that are not at fair value ¥ 1,484,940,0007T( — & — — 4 : & ¥k
1,297,997,0007T) k& 688,610,0007T(=
T——4F : B¥533,191,0007L) °

through profit or loss, respectively.

Also, included above is interest income of HK$293,085,000 (2011: 4 A FE B BAIER G IE FHBEREY

HK$260,547,000) from unlisted investments in securities. FI B U A 203 085,000 (=T ——4F :

V&5 260,547,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

10. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

10. BEARARIASRE

2012 2011
—g-=f —E-——f
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BT
(restated)
(EE5)
Fee and commission income EARAESHA
Securities dealings REEE 116,755 152,105
Credit lines FERE 15,090 13,364
Trade finance EEET 12,067 11,381
Credit card services EBFRH 68,880 63,620
Agency services RERE 25,085 22,262
Others it 16,072 13,525
Total fee and commission income ERRESAKA 253,949 276,257
Less: fee and commission expense B BRARBEXHE (64,584) (58,534)
Net fee and commission income BERASRASE 189,365 217,723
of which: Het:
Net fee income, other than amounts included in defermining FERUA  TEERETEERAEZ2E
the effective inferest rate, arising from financial assets or BERTREFEE MR RRAVEET RS
financial liabilities that are not held for frading nor designated SHEENSRAE
at FVTPL
— fee income —BARA 104,855 96,043
— fee expense -BA%H (62,511) (57,547)
42,344 38,496
11. OTHER INCOME — NON-FINANCIAL SERVICES 11. Hfte A — EMERH
2012 2011
“E--f% “E—-F
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETRT BT
(restated)
(7))
Imputed interest income on advances to an investee company BRF-FRBELRZHEREKRA 2,561 1,953
Others Hit 8,108 24,195
10,669 26,148




12. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

12. Rt EETH

2012 2011

—g-=f -g8—-f

HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BETT

(restated)

(ZE7)

Auditor’s remuneration RYHHE 7,381 7,339
Staff costs (Note 18) ETHA (MEE18) 510,241 479,056
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment NE  RERZBINE 72,991 68,806
Release of prepaid lease payments for land B LS 2 66 959
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings T REFEERN RS 46,957 41,093
Promotion and selling expenses on properties held for sale EERBESHENE T 1,141 11,987
Others Httr 307,318 301,442
946,095 910,682

13. RECOVERY OF AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY WRITTEN-OFF
IN RELATION TO MINIBONDS REPURCHASE SCHEME
CHB announced on 28 March 2011

("Agreement”) with the Lehman Brothers, the trustee and the receiver for the

that it had entered into an agreement

Llehman Brothers minibonds ("Minibonds”), and fifteen other distributing
banks in relation to the recovery of the Minibonds underlying collateral
["Collateral”). Pursuant to the Agreement, CHB received recoveries of
amounts previously written-off in the years 2009 and 2010 (included in
"Expenses relating to Minibonds Repurchase Scheme” in its consolidated
financial statements for the years 2009 and 2010) from the Collateral

during the period, net of ex-gratia paymenfs to customers who held the

Minibonds, amounting to HK$234,632,000.

13. I [E B # & 88 &Y & {R ] % [0 W8 &t

[ f ]
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234,632,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

14. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 14. Rtk 2 R G\
2012 2011
B2-ZF —F—-F
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Notes (restated)
i3 (&==5)
Net gains (losses) on financial instruments at fair value through BALEEFAEENERIAY
profit or loss Bl (B8) 15 61,549 (105,628)
Net gains (losses) on fair value hedge AFEERZENRE (B18) 15 1,200 (20,679)
Net exchange gains and net gains from foreign currency confracts B ¥R MNER 5 2 F Uiz 108,228 94,218
Net losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE BERBREZEEE (2,115) (4,128)
Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale investments HETHUEREZFHRE 745 20,904
Impairment losses on available-for-sale investments MHHERE ZRERR = (4,473)
Impairment losses on other receivables HiERFE 2 RER (20,092) -
Gain on changes of fair value on: HTHAFEEEZB2UE
— properties under development transferred to investment - BETEERTRE
properties LS 33 — 41,929
— other investment properties - HitiREME 33 270,630 175,603
Gain on disposal of investment properties HERENENR 2,816 -
Gain on sale of assets held for sale HESEEEE 2 Wia = 9,072
(Loss) gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBA RN (B8) Wi 52 (41) 51,304
Others Hit = 180
422,920 258,302




15. NET GAINS (LOSSES) ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

15. BAFRENHARZHERT

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/NET Az2Ka(EE) AFEEY E
s}
GAINS (LOSSES) ON FAIR VALUE HEDGE HZzBRE(EHE) 2
[
2012 2011 8
—E-Cf —E——-F s
&L
HKS'000 HKS'000 H
BETT BETT *jﬁ
(restated)
(=E5)
Net gains (losses) on financial instruments at fair value through R ATEE ABREMHERIAY
profit or loss FhE (F8)
— designated af fair value through profit or loss (note a) — BAVEER B (fio) 60,000 (49,453)
— held for trading (note b) — BEEE AR () 1,549 (56,175)
61,549 (105,628)
Net gains (losses) on fair value hedge MHEE P2 FRE (B8)
— net losses on hedged items attributable to the hedged risk — R EIE R FER (23,068) (175,030)
— net gains on hedging instruments — ¥R T A RS 24,268 154,351
1,200 (20,679)
nofes: ffsE -
[a)  The net gains (losses) on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or (o) MEZEERAFEEFAREN SR TARFKE

loss in both years were primarily atfributable fo the changes in credit risk of the structured (BR) T ERRELEBUETARTRRESZEE
products and the convertible bonds. [E\ B B Ep o

(b) The net gains (losses) mainly related to interest rate swaps held for trading and cross- (b) Tl (B 18) T ZRFHEEBEABMFXEHEL
RFEEERENBEEENERBENEH - 1N
T—ZHERZT——F+Z A=+ BNEBKBED
BN 24 ©

currency interest rate swaps held for trading. Details of the outstanding confracts as at 31

December 2012 and 2011 are set out in Note 24.

16. FINANCE COSTS — NON-FINANCIAL SERVICES 16, MBERE — FE&MRH
2012 2011
—E--F —E——-F
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable within five years: EREFRRDEEZERAE
Bank loans BITEXR 108,067 67,562
Other borrowings HEifER 1,057 2,145
109,124 49,707 2%
Less: Amount capitalised as cost of properties under development 3 : —B——FIRE AL ER 044 F 250%
at a capitalisation rate ranged from 2.06% to 2.54% HEFERRPMERR 2 ER S
per annum for 2011 — (10,614)
109,124 59,093

BxEF--—s- | BUHEXETI SRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

17. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

17. REMTH

2012 2011
—g--f =F--F
HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI
(restated)
(7))
The charge comprises: FHEE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBAIEHR
Current year REE 101,976 129,076
Overprovision in prior years BREFERERE (277) (296)
101,699 128,780
PRC Enferprise Income Tax REEMEH 19,038 40,382
PRC LAT B £ i R 415 7,223
19,453 47,605
Overseas tax EHBIE
Current year rEE 651 645
Overprovision in prior years BRAFEBERE (402) (418)
249 227
121,401 176,612
Deferred taxation (Note 36) R TE (MEE36)
Current year REE 17,192 6,441
138,593 183,053




17. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the

consolidated income statement as follows:

HERIT -

17. FiRMRTH ()
AEFZ BB EGE KRR Z

2012 2011
—g-=f —E-——fF
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
(restated)
(&5
Profit before tox BRBLATERR 896,897 1,066,073
Hong Kong Profits Tax af the rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) BBRI6 (ZFB——F 1050 SHE 2B BAEH 147,988 175,902
Tox effect of share of results of joint ventures e tEEERBEYE (20) (19)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates Ry A N v g 7 (5,945) 2,979
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose AANRERHETE 28,063 17,626
Tox effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BASRMAZRREE (43,662) (14,553)
Overprovision in prior years BRFEBERE (679) (714)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBBERZHELE 3,740 1,096
Tox effect of utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised KAABADACRESE HEYE (272) (8,446)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other REMFEEBLSL S HBAATAREY
jurisdictions g 6,169 8,755
PRC LAT B+ iR ER 415 7,223
Others Hitr 279 (838)
Tax charge for the year AEERELH 138,593 183,053
notes: B 5

(a) Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated (a)

ERNEH I REMEFE At ERTOR R R R

assessable profit for both years.

Under the law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT

Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing on the relevant

(b

is 25%.
(c)

jurisdictions.
(d)

The Group has estimated the tax provision for PRC LAT according tfo the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to
the determination by the tax authorities upon completion of the property development
projects and the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision for
LAT is calculated.

16.5%(ZF——% : 16.5%)51& -

b)  ImPEARKMBEEEMGHE ((REMSHZED
REEMBREARRMAE  FENBARKRER
25% °

() RNEMPEERELAFBRREHAEER ZRTH

S -

(d)  BREFREBERRIOBBRE  AEEETRESD
B 43S E R o AAE TS EREEURR B BIRE
MERERENRTREME  HEAEAETRR
REE S IR EN AR H AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

18. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

18. X ERF

2012 2011
—B-CF —2——F
HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
(restated)
(&==5)
Profit for the year has been arrived af after charging: AEERFENMRTHIEE
Directors” emoluments (Note 19) BEMS (K:E19) 30,850 28,827
Other staff costs included in direct expenses and HABEHYREMLES v EMETRA
other operating expenses 450,188 423,167
Staff retirement scheme contributions, net of HKS6,000 STRARBRMR - MBE U5 6,000 T
(2011: HKS85,000) forfeited contributions (ZB——fF :BI50007T) 31,831 29,226
Total staff costs BIRMAA 512,869 481,220
and after crediting: PEA
Gross rental income from investment properties RENELHSWA 264,332 256,471
Less: direct operating expenses from investment properties that B EREERSRAZRENEER
generated rental income during the year LB (41,605) (42,722)
2227171 213,749




19. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ 19.EF - fTRHERRER#M 2

EMOLUMENTS g
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 14 (2011: 13) directors BN SEMNF 148 (—E——%F : 13L)ES %
were as follows: TEIAIT -éD
Other emoluments H i< R
5
Salaries Performance Refirement et
and other  related incentive scheme Total Ry
Fees benefits  payments (note ¢) contributions emoluments
HMR £ERBN RIER
e HitER =B (HES) TR “He
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT BETT BETR BETR
2012 —E-—F
Liu Lit Mo BRE 400 8,399 34 150 8,983
Liu Lit Chi el 250 7515 280 318 8,363
Liu Kom Fai, Winston B4R 100 4,284 — 87 4471
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B 270 1,888 — 67 2,225
Lee Wai Hung EdEl 100 1,980 - 78 2,158
Liu Lit Chung EEK 100 1,064 - - 1,164
Andrew Liv L 270 23 - — 293
Liv Chun Ning, Wifred BhE 250 2,047 135 161 2,593
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher E 150 — — _ 150
Ng Ping Kin, Peter ik 12 150 — — — 150
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses ] 150 — — _ 150
Tong Tsin Ka BRX 150 — — — 150
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BiE — — _ _ _
Ma Hung Ming, John EEH — — — — —
Total @t 2,340 27,200 449 861 30,850
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

19. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

19. 8%

CTHERREEMS (&)

Other emoluments E &£

Salaries Performance Refirement

and other related incentive scheme
Fees benefits ~ payments (nofe ¢) confributions  Total emoluments

R KEREN RINER
ik HibER  RBE(WES) B i Be
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS"000 HKS"000 HK$"000
BETT BETT BETT BET T BETT

2011 (restated) ~T——F(REN)

Liu Lit Mo BAE 370 7,198 34 145 8,347
Liv Lit Chi B 220 6,076 220 255 6,771
Liv Kam Fai, Winston BdfE 70 3,873 750 96 4,789
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B, 220 1,640 200 71 2,131
Lee Wai Hung 3y 70 1,872 300 86 2,328
Liu Lit Chung BaIA 70 1,058 = — 1,128
Andrew Liv BERm 220 27 — — 247
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BRE 220 2,132 130 154 2,636
Kho Eng Tioan, Christopher gras 100 — — — 100
Ng Ping Kin, Peter e 100 — — — 100
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses e 100 — — — 100
Tong Tsin Ka BEXR 100 = = = 100
Lee Tung Hai, Leo =EE 50 — — — 50
Total @t 1,910 24,476 1,634 807 28,827

nofes:

[a) The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2012 and 2011 were all directors of

the Group and defails of their emoluments are included in above. No directors waived

any emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

(b) During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the

five highest paid individuals (including directors] as an inducement fo join or upon joining

the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors have waived any

emoluments during the year.

[c) The performance related incenfive payment is defermined by reference to the individual

performance of the directors and approved by the remuneration committee of the Group

for the two years ended 31 December 2012.

Wi

(=)

(=)

(=

R ER-T-FAEERERERSFAL
o RHAREEES  HHEMEN EXXAKE -
HE-_ZT——FR-_FT——F+-_A=+—HLLF
B BEEERERREAHS -

FR - ARERERENEFRAARSHFAL(E
BESE)XNEFAME  ERMAREBE S IMAR
SEFZ ZERHERAE - FATBEREREEM
B -

BE_Z-—F+ A=+t BLMEFEHEXRE
B ERREFOEMNRAETE - W RAKER
MEE 1A -



20. DIVIDENDS 20. R
2012 2011
- =
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: FRERITIRZRE
2012 interim dividend paid ot HKS0.10 (2011: 2011 interim ZE-ZEERTHRESRBEIT
dividend HKS0.12) per share (Z2——%: Z2——FRBRESRERUITL) 37,858 45,430
2011 final dividend paid at HKS0.18 (2011: 2010 final “E-—FERRBRESRBLEST
dividend HKS0.15) per share (Z2——%: Z2-SERERESRER0I5T) 68,145 56,788
106,003 102,218

The final dividend of HK$0.18 in respect of the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: final dividend of HK$0.18, totalling HK$68,145,019 in
respect of the year ended 31 December 201 1) per share has been
proposed by the directors and is subject fo approval by the shareholders in

general meeting.

21. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic eamings per share aftributable o the owners of
the Company is based on the profit for the year affributable to owners of
the Company of HK$480,010,000 (2011 [restated): HK$600,371,000)
and on 378,583,440 (2011: 378,583,440) ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were no

potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years 2011 and

2012.

BE-_Z——F+-_A=+—-HLFEZR
MRS ERBR0I8L(ZE——F - #HE=
T——F+-A=+-RALFEZRPKRE
FRER0.187T - AHIEK68,145,0197T)
KHEFTESR  UANBRRRGERR
7 o

21. 5REFEF
ARRBREEBRERBMNTIKBEAFE
A AR B A 2 4 M) & 480,010,000 7T
—F——F(EFF) - B¥00,371,0007T)
RAFEDHITER 378,583,440 (=%
——%F : 378,583,440 5T H -

A

——E LT -_FRYEEMELEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

22. CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS 22.EFEHEREHES
THE GROUP &
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
ZE-Cf —E—-F —E—-F
+=A=+-H +ZB=+-H —A—8
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
(restated) (restated)
(&==5) (&==5)
Cash and balances with banks and other financial R4 R HAEIBKIEREER SR
institutions 3 6,574,516 6,789,918 12,015,874
Money at call and short notice BABRREHEN 10,472,554 8,717,815 6,024,310
Exchange fund bills NERSZE 798,513 3,548,369 547,957
17,845,583 19,056,102 18,588,141

The Group's cash and shortterm funds that are denominated in currencies  AN&EEABBAEE BRI BEE AINE S
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entity are set ot B EFRES REBHESHINNT ¢

below:
Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated
in RMB in USS in MOP in Others
BARE RET BURFT % DU E 5
5ifE 5ifE FifE 5ifE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
As ot 31 December 2012 RB-—Ef-Az+-g 1,681,400 2,559,347 77,404 2,021,144
As at 31 December 2011 R-B——#+-fA=+-8 3,382,468 1,515,356 101,355 4,173,207

4
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23. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS TO MATURITY WHEN RAISED/PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the fixed deposits carry fixed

inferest rates ranging from 0.05% to 3.55% (2011: 0.20% to 1.85%) per

annum.

The Company's fixed bank deposits and other bank balances and cash
that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the

Compoany are set out below:

23. FAZEP &Mz EMRTHF
BCERARTER RITRE
ER&

b /N

HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HLFE" T

HEFEFUAEEFENFFF0.05%E3.55%(=

T——F :020%E1.85%)5T B

A D AR I B S A5 0 51 2 5 B4R
FERREMBTESRESRIIMT

Denominated Denominated

in RMB in USS

DARY e

Sl{E SIE

HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BT T

As at 31 December 2012 R-ZE-—#+-F=+-H 226,731 111,724
As at 31 December 2011 W-E-——F+=-B=+-H 155,971 130,297
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

24. fE&MTR

THE GROUP #5ME

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 (restated) 1.1.2017 (restated)
“Z-"#+-A=t-H —E——&+"A=1+—-H(KEY) “Z——%-F-H(&E)

Fair values
Notional ATLERE Notional
amount Assets Liabilifies amount

BREH 43 8 f£LH
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

BRTT BETT EMTR BETn

Fair values Fair values
DY ERE Nofional A¥ERE
Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities

8E B8FE #Z2W B &f
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

BETT BETR BE%Tr BE%TT BT

Derivatives held for trading BEEEREN
fiETR
— Foreign currency — MR
forward contracts &4 6,037,758 16,584 21,380 1,318,444
— Inferest rate swaps — FEREHEH 796,280 4,562 95192 1,359,407
— Cross-currency interest - BEERE
rate swaps BHEH 36,040 — 1,582 40,360
Derivatives designated as EEEHHIAN
hedging instruments fTETR
— Interest rafe swaps — FZEBHEHN 5286864 166,765 120,792 3,161,088
— (Cross-currency interest - BEERE
rate swaps BHEH 233,306 — 9710 233,306

8,181 5783 49931 247 1,784
5320 190,608 1,343,081 2,610 142,130

= 6,719 38,360 = 4,819

116,055 51,907 2,467,306 15,033 104,887

= 10,679 233,306 2,652 2,806

187,911 248,656

The currencies of foreign currency forward buy contracts as af 31
December 2012, mainly comprise Hong Kong dollars and Australian
dollars {31.12.2011: Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and Australian
dollars), and the currencies in the forward sale contracts mainly comprise
Renminbi and United States dollars (31.12.2011: Renminbi and United
States dollars). As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, all of
these contracts have a setilement date within one year from the end of the

reporting period.

The remaining maturity of interest rate swaps and cross-currency inferest

rafe swap held for trading ranged from 1 o 8 years (2011: 1 1o 9 years).

129,556 265,69 20542 256,426
RIBE——F+-A=+—-BAFAENINE
EREAGNNEBIRREAE RRE (=

A

T —E AR B% ARER
W) REBEHANHEEEEDEAR
BRETL(ZE——FT=A=+—0: AR
RERL) RZE—ZF+A=+—HK
—E-—FTZASt—B FEEEAL
B4 B TE SRS IR — 4 R -

RIS EA 0 R (FEE AR KT %
REANNHBIBEB—E/\F (2T ——
w—ENE) .



24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Of the interest rate swaps held for trading with a notional amount of
HK$796,280,000 (31.12.2011: HK$1,359,407,000) as at 31
December 2012, the notional amount of HK$60,000,000 (31.12.2011:
HK$60,000,000) was floatingtofixed rate swaps, the remaining notional
amount of HK$736,280,000 (31.12.2011: HK$1,299,407,000] was

fixedtofloating rate swaps.

The cross-currency inferest rate swaps held for trading as at 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2011 was a floating-tofloating rate swap

paying Japanese yen receiving United States dollars.

The derivative financial instruments including exchange rate contracts and
inferest rate confracts have been recognised in the statements of financial

posifion at fair value.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments do not take into

account the effect of any bilateral netting agreement.

FAIR VALUE HEDGE OF FIXED-RATE BONDS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group designates cerfain interest rate
swaps and crosscurrency inferest rate swaps as fair value hedges of the
fair value of availoble-for-sale debt securities with carrying amounts of
HK$3,990,868,000 (31.12.2011: HK$1,638,649,000) as at 31
December 2012. The purpose is to minimise its exposure fo fair value
changes of its fixed-rate bonds by swapping fixed-rate bonds from fixed
rates to floating rates. The interest rate swaps and cross-currency inferest
rate swaps and the corresponding fixed-rate bonds have the same ferms
and management of the Group considers that the interest rate swaps and
crosscurrency interest rate swaps are highly effective hedging instruments.
The remaining maturity of these interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest

rates swaps and debt securities ranged from 2 to 10 years.

24. TEEMTI R ()
RZE-—ZF+_A=+—B HEEEH
BEHNXERHAAOANEZESEES R
7 #796,280,000t( ZF——F + = A
=+—R : #&%1,359,407,0007T) * EH %
E SR 60,000,000 (ZE——F+= A
=-+—H : &% 60,000,0007T) #FEBEEE
MENEHEH BRTEERAHLEY
736,280,000t (ZFE——F+=ZA=+—
H : A% 1,299,407,0007T) & EE 2 %87
AL -

RZE——F+_A=+—HEZZE—F
TZA=+—HB BHEFEBERAENEBEEER
RN REBEZHAE  EEBEK
METHEEEL -

TEEZRTABREXRSHRNRGNRA
FEERTBARERINEE

BEMERFHLAFREH S
AEEEERTHNEREHANEBEEENE
EHREOESRFEELE D - AR EAH
HEZEBREAZATFEE R_T——F
Tt A=+—-B @& HHEZ
B E 7o) BREE R B 3,990,868,000 7T
—E-—H+ZA=+—H: B%
1,638,649,0007T) - B &2 ERERLNTE
BEFMSIBZAR  TEREBIEELE
EMRESONREEENFTERTZZEHN
Ko GUNREHANLEEENXERHE
#) N A8 B O B E A RAE S5 A AR R BV 55K -
AEEZEREERRZNRERAOREER
BRxiEHANESEARNERTA -5
LHREHAK BEBMNXEHEHOME
BREFORRIFAR_E+F -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
FAIR VALUE HEDGE OF FIXED-RATE BONDS (CONTINUED)
During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, the above fair
value hedges were effective in hedging the fair value exposures 1o interest
rate movements and as a result, both the gains in fair value of the bonds of
HK$25,349,000 (2011: gains of HK$59,347,000) and losses in fair
value of the interest rate swaps of HK$25,759,000 (2011: losses of
HK$50,107,000) and cross-currency interest rate swaps of HK$478,000
(2011: HK$8,354,000) were included in the consolidated income

statement.

FAIR VALUE HEDGE OF SUBORDINATED NOTE ISSUED

As at 31 December 2012, the Group designates an inferest rafe swap as
fair value hedge of the fair value change of the inferest rate movement of
the US$225 million (approximately HK$ 1,755 million) subordinated notes
issued (see Note 43 for details). The purpose is to minimise ifs exposure to
fair value changes of its fixed-rate note by swapping fixed-rate notes from
fixed rates to floating rates. The interest rate swap and the hedged
subordinated note have the same terms and management of the Group

considers that the interest rate swap is a highly effective hedging instrument.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the hedge was effective in
hedging the fair value exposure to inferest rate movements and as a result,
both the gain in fair value of the note of HK$48,417,000 (201 1: increase
in fair value of HK$234,377,000) and gains in fair value of the interest
rate swap of HK$49,549,000 (2011: gains of HK$212,812,000) were

included in the consolidated income statement.

24. TEEMI R (M)
BEFERFHOLFREH P ()
REBEEZE—Z—FR_FT——F+=A
=t+—HLEFER  LRQAFEELHFE
R AN R FE B B A T EEED
R - At - BENES R T EEN RGNS
¥25,349,000 T (ZE——F : mMABE
59,347,0007T) « M EEBHELH R FEEBD
E188#25,750,0000 (ZF——%F : Fig
7B 50,107,0007T) REEENEIsHE
HRFEENEERBE 478,000 (ZF——
& BEAEE S 354,0007T) ERENGA
WasFRA o

ERTERREBENOFREY
RZE—ZF+ZA=+—8 x£EEF
NMEEHANIERATFEEY M UEHE
EITH2.2518F L (K& 1,755,000,000
TOREZBZANXAFEEED(FAZH
MiFE43) - BWRERER A FEEZE M
B R TAREBIEEEMEEERNH
RHEEMNEERZFENER - ZH R
BHRWERONRERBEREERMERR
AEEZERERRZNEEREORSE
BREEHRTA -

HEZZT——F+ZA=+—HLFE " 1t
M AR E RN EEFH RS BT
BEEHER At FEHRAFEENE
BEEE48,417 000 (ZF——F : RF(E
BRI INAERE 234,377,000 7T) K FI| &8 5
BRI AT EBEN RN A 49,549,000 7T
(ZZ——F 5 AEE212,812,0007L)
EREREREREERA -



25. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 25. 85¥BHF —
THE GROUP # %M THE COMPANY 47 §
Financial assefs at FVTPL Financial assefs at FVTPL 8-
RAFHETAER RAFEFABR =
ZEMEE ZEMEE ko
Availoble-  Held-to- Available- o}
Held for  Designated forsale  maturity Held for  Designated for-sale _
trading ot fair value investments  securifies Total trading ot fair value  investments Total &
EE BE BT 5
BE RAVE THEE ZHA BE RATE WHEE L
BEEA% il ZRE ZEH By EEAZ 518k ZRE ok it
notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
M B¥Tr B%Trn B%Trn B%Tn B%Tr B%Tr B%Tr B%Tr B%Tx
31.12.2012 —E—C
+=RA=+-H
Equity securities: RARES (a)
Listed in Hong Kong ~ &B L 8917 — 184,012 — 192,929 8,656 - — 8,656
Listed overseas wH LT = = 9741 = 9741 = = 140 140
8917 — 193,753 — 202,670 8,656 — 140 8,796
Unlisted FEm (b) — — 302,751 — 302,751 — - — -
8,917 — 496,504 — 505,421 8,656 - 140 8,796
Debt securities: BEEHES
Certificates of FRE
deposit (© — — — 3,693,321 3,693,321 — — — —
Structured products ~ AEM T A (d) —  47589% — — 47589 — 56,795 — 56,795
Convertible bonds ARRES (e) — 794,048 — — 794,048 — — — —
Other debt securifies ~ HABERH % ()
— Listed — kW () — — 1,164 — 1,164 — - 1,164 1,164
— Unlisted —3Em — — 3993540 5,906,699 9,900,239 — - — —
— 1269944 3994704 9,600,020 14,864,668 — 56795 164 57959
Investment funds REES (h) — — 134,743 — 134,743 — — 134,743 134,743
Total: B
listed in Hong Kong ~ &HB L™ 8,917 — 184,012 — 192,929 8,656 — — 8,656
Listed overseas BHLES — — 10,905 — 10,905 — - 1,304 1,304
Unlsted L — 1269944 4431034 9,600,020 15,300,998 —S795 134743 191538
8917 1269944 4625951 9,600,020 15,504,832 8656 56795 136047 201,498
As analysed by issuing R BT A DS
enfities:
Central government R SREKFFA]
and central banks HgRIRIT — — — 3,382 3,382 — — — —
Public sector entifies A& RS — - 56,016 196,401 252,417 - - - -
Banks and other RERHEM
financial BT MR
institutions 6,093 475,896 489,792 7,809,345 8,781,126 6,050 56,795 135,907 198,752
Corporate entities ¥ 2,824 794,048 4075623 1,590,892 6,463,387 2,606 - 140 2746
Others Hity — — 4,520 — 4520 = — = —
8917 1269944 4625951 9,600,020 15,504,832 8,656 56,795 136,047 201,498
Market value of listed £ 3% 5
securities:
listed in Hong Kong ~ &HB L™ 8917 — 184,012 — 192,929 8,656 — — 8,656 249
Listed overseas BHLED — — 10,905 — 10,905 — - 1,304 1,304 Zf:
8,917 — 194917 — 203,834 8,656 — 1,304 9,960 y:;
#
Analysed os: NEA: 2
Current gssets RBEE 43,463 5
Non-current assefs FRBEE 158,035 a
201,498 I
#
|
I
s
w
w
#



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

25. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 25. BHF®R/E (EF)

Financial assets at FVTPL Financial assets at FVTPL
BOFEFABE BRAFETABR
ZEREE ZEREE
Available- Held-fo- Available-
Held for  Designated forsale maturity Held for ~ Designated forsale
trading ot fairvalue  investments securities Total trading  af fair value  investments Total
BE B2 BE
B RAYE THEE FEAZ BE RAVE THEE
EERZ 58k ZRE EH #yE EBEHEAR 58k ZRE B
notes HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
W BT B%Tr B%Tr B%Tr B%Tr B%Tr B%Tr B%Tx B%Tx
31.12.2011 g——5
(restated) +=B=+-H
(BE7F)
Equity securities: RAZS : (a)
listed in Hong Kong & £ 7,446 — 166,834 — 174,280 7,139 — — 7,139
Listed overseas W\ LT - — 7,603 — 7,603 - — 133 133
7,446 — 174,437 — 181,883 7,139 — 133 7,272
Unlisted FEW (b) = = 222,673 = 222,673 = = = =
7,446 — 397,110 — 404,556 7,139 — 133 7,272
Debt securities: BEES
Certificates of BRE
deposit (© = = — 1,571,244 1,571,244 - — — —
Structured products  EBHTE (d - 492,389 - — 492,389 — 74,742 - 74,742
Convertible bonds ARRES (e) — 1,427,635 — — 1,427,635 - — — —
Other debt securities  ELftr E75 3% % )
— Listed -t (@ = = 1,164 = 1,164 = = 1,164 1,164
— Unlisted — ¥t — — 1,639,646 6,716,838 8,356,484 - — — —
— 1,920,024 1,640,810 8,288,082 11,848,916 = 74,742 1,164 75,906
Investment funds REES (h) — — 128,754 — 128,754 - — 128,754 128,754
Total: mag
Listed in Hong Kong ~ BB L™ 7,446 — 166,834 — 174,280 7,139 — — 7,139
Listed overseas wHLET — — 8,767 — 8,767 - — 1,297 1,297
Unlisted ¥ — 1,920,024 1,991,073 8,288,082 12,199,179 - 74,742 128,754 203,496
7446 1920024 2,166,674 8,288,082 12,382,226 7,139 74,742 130,051 211,932
As analysed by issuing BT AL
enfities:
Central government ~ FRIRBFFA]
and central banks ~ ARSRERAT — — — 130,797 130,797 - — - —
Public sector enfifies 2\ & #ekE — — 56,566 185,187 241,753 - — — —
Banks and other ¥R EM
financial B HAE
institutions 4908 492,389 385492 6,823,243 7,706,032 4,850 74,742 129,918 209,510
Corporate entities ¥ 2,538 1,427,635 1,720,055 1,148,855 4,299,083 2,289 = 133 2,422
Others Hit = = 4,561 = 4,561 — — — —
7446 1,920,024 2,166,674 8,288,082 12,382,226 7,139 74,742 130,051 211,932
Market value of listed £ 385
250 securities:
listed in Hong Kong ~ FB L™ 7,446 — 166,834 — 174,280 7,139 — — 7,139
Listed overseas /LD — — 8,767 — 8,767 - — 1,297 1,297
71,446 = 175,601 = 183,047 7,139 = 1,297 8,436
Analysed s: PEA:
Current assets RBEE 46,363
Non-current assets FREBEE 165,569

210g boday [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy
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25. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 25. BHE/E(\E)

g
Financial assets at FVTPL Financial assets at FVTPL 8-

BAFEFARS RAVET ABE -

ZEBEE eREE G

Available- Held-to- Available- g

Held for  Designafed forsale maturity Held for  Designated for-sale S

trading ot fairvalue investments  securities Total trading ~ of fair value ~ investments Total i

i3 =3 gz o

B ROVE THEE HHBZ BE ROTE THEE ;ﬁ

BEEAZ Jll  2RE ek #E EBEAR Gl 2RE RE
notes HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
WaE B%TT BETr BRTr B¥Tr B%Tn B%Tr BETx BRTx B%Txn

1.1.2011 —E——F
(restated) —A—-H
(BE7)
Equity securities: RARES (a)
Listed in Hong Kong ~ &B L 9,302 = 184,800 = 194,102 8,729 — — 8,729
Listed overseas BHLET = = 11,440 = 11,440 = — 197 197
9,302 - 196,240 - 205,542 8,729 - 197 8,926
Urlisted A ) - — 206,686 — 206,686 - - - -
9,302 - 402,926 - 412,228 8,729 - 197 8,926
Debt securities: BRES
Certificates of BRE
deposit (0 = = = 917,838 917,838 - - - -
Stuctured products  ZEBHTE (d) — 1,869,820 — — 1,869,820 — 95,940 — 95,940
Convertible bonds AR ES () — — — — — — — — —
Other debt securities ~ ELthERE % (f)
— listed -t () = = 1,164 = 1,164 = = 1,164 1,164
— Unlisted —¥EtFH - — 981,594 9,960,208 10,941,802 — - — -
— 1,869,820 982,758 10,878,046 13,730,624 = 95,940 1,164 97,104
Ivestmentfunds  REES 0 - — 125013 — 125013 — — 15073 125073
Total: g
Listed in Hong Kong ~ &B L 9,302 — 184,800 - 194,102 8,729 - — 8,729
Listed overseas wH LT = = 12,604 = 12,604 = = 1,361 1,361
Unlisted ¥ET — 1869820 1,313,353 10,878,046 14,061,219 - 95,940 125,073 221,013
9,302 1,869,820 1,510,757 10,878,046 14,267,925 8,729 95,940 126,434 231,103
As analysed by issuing  $REITADEE ¢
entities:
Central government SR EFFA]
and central banks hRiRiT — — — 142,902 142,902 — - — -
Public sector enfifies 7\ & #kE — — 56,267 93,779 150,046 — — — —
Banks and other REREM
financial S
institutions 4,620 401,325 407,671 9,011,811 9,825,427 4,370 95,940 126,237 226,547
Corporate entities ¥ 4,682 1,468,495 1,039,748 1,629,554 4,142,479 4,359 = 197 4,556
Others Hith = = 7,071 — 7,071 — — — —
9,302 1,869,820 1,510,757 10,878,046 14,267,925 8,729 95,940 126,434 231,103
Market value of listed 385 7
securities: 251
listed in Hong Kong ~ &EB L™ 9,302 — 184,800 — 194,102 8,729 - — 8,729 g
Listed overseas BHLES - — 12,604 - 12,604 - - 1,361 1,361 Y:;
9,302 = 197,404 = 206,706 8,729 = 1,361 10,090 §
Analysed as: SR 3
Current assefs REBEE 62,726 o
Non-current assets FRBEE 168,377 \_
|
231,103 “’f
;\I
w
"
;ea
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

B BHRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

25. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 25. BEEE (&)

notes: BtsE -

(a) As at 31 December 2012, for the equily securities classified as availableforsale  (q) NoT——E+-—A=+—08 K&EE®RHEET
financial instruments, impairment losses accumulated through the years of HHEENSR T ANBARELHEY 2E 2R
HK$44,879,000 (31.12.2011: HK$65,583,000) has been provided by the Group. BB ABIEA4 8700007 (— 8 —— 4 : i

65,583,0007T) ©

(b) As ot 31 December 2012, unlisted equity securities classified as availableforsale held (b RoZ——E+—A=+—0  KEEFSEIUR
by the Group amounting to approximately HK$302,712,000 (31.12.2011: A NEEESE  HBEAT M Hﬂ"fﬂ']?ffimﬂx
HK$222,594,000) are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period. No AN H 4 B 302,712,000 (B ——4F
impairment has been recognised. ¥ 222,594,0007T) ° ﬁ%ﬂﬁ$$§%ﬂ£aﬁ1’?&ﬂ

A °

[c) As at 31 December 2012, cerlain heldtomaturity certificates of deposit of approximately — (¢) R-ZT——F+—-FA=+—08  AlEET=%55
HK$17,054,000 (31.12.2011: HK$15,534,000) held by the San Francisco Branch B LB 17,054,000 (—E——&+=A8
of CHB have been pledged to the State of California of the United States of America in =+—B ¥ 15,534,000 BERME 2 TR
compliance with the requirements of the California Financial Code. = BB F & B TN B S Al (California

Financial Code) Z MR + B FEF B4 RBMNF
BRTEM o

(d) As at 31 December 2012, included in structured products are credit linked notes of ~ (d) R-E——F+-A=+—0 &EMETABSY
opproximofe\y HK$419,101,000 (31.12.2011: HK$372,141,000), fund linked 41910100 (ZE——F+=-_A=+—8:
notes of nil (31.12.2011: approximately HK$45,506,000) and structured deposits of FEME370 141 00070 ) M E S M= - (=
approximately HK$56,795,000 (31.12.2011: HK$74,742,000). The credit linked ——F+=B=+—H : 45,500, OOOE)TE
notes held by the Group bear three-month LIBOR with spreads ranging from 1.3% to BB IR T e M T 2R 40T IS 56,795,000 78 (=
2.0%(31.12.2011: 1.3% to 2.0%) per annum and maturity date ranging from 2015 to T——F+=-A=+—08 : B¥74,742,0007T) °
2016. The note issuers are not obligated fo repay the debt to the Group if the reference REBEFEENEEHBEE  EEEmARH =
enfiies (rated A1 or above by Moody's as at 31 December 2012 and 201 1) default. L G E 2 ijju 1.3%%E2.0%(—&
The fund linked note held by the Group bears zero coupon rate with @ maturity in 2012. ——E+—A=+—H8: 1.3%2E20%) % ¥
On its maturity date, the principal of the note is guaranteed by the issuer (rated Al by ngg—ﬁfﬁiig—/\ TH] o RN 2 ElE
Moody's as at 31 December 201 1) and the return is linked with the performance of an (R-—T——ER—E——F+—-A=+—AKE
index developed by the issuer. The structured deposits carry interest rates af LIBOR plus a BMEEIEAA FUAL)EEEEHRAE . B
variable margin per annum. HEENRTHERAEEANEEEZRNE2EAS -

AEEMFHANEEHORERATEREE  YER
R -FIH - RIEBE  ZEBOASHET
BRZT——F+ZA=+—80 %BaEET
FAANER - ERREEITEHELNIEERES
8 BEEMTFRBFREBRITRAEFSINFEE
BRBZMEETE -

le) The convertible bonds and the debt securities classified as availableforsale invesiments — (g) $’E @Pﬁ%ﬁ B EATT R ERERIEETH
and held-to-maturity securities held by the Group are mainly issued by corporates and AT E AR ERELETIBEHMOER
financial institutions. The corporate issuers are mainly from the PRC, Japan and Hong ,Ejﬁ%&%ﬁéﬁ o NEITHIBEKEHRE - A
Kong. These investments in securities that are denominated in a currency other than the REB - UNEMEEERINEEEINERTEL
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below: FZERERBFEIINOT -

Denominated Denominated Denominated in

in RMB in USS other currencies

PON: 211 UETFIE DA S5 E

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BB BET T

As at 31 December 2012 R=B-—F+-A=+-R 643,456 4,270,494 1,835,506
As at 31 December 2011 R-B——E+-fA=+-8H 528,129 3,608,463 1,053,658




25.

nofes:

(f

¢)

(h)

26.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

[Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, debt securities classified as held-to-maturity amounted to
HK$3,382,000 (31.12.2011: approximately HK$130,797,000) were issued by the

Government of Hong Kong Special Adminisirative Region and the Government of the

PRC.

In addition, the certificates of deposit classified as held-to-maturity securities are mainly
issued by banks from the PRC, Japan and Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2012,
cerfificates of deposit of HK$1,731,693,000 (31.12.2011: HK$333,072,000) and
debt securities classified as held to maturity of HK$900,850,000 (31.12.2011:
HK$320,808,000) are held by the Group are credit exposures to PRC.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, debt securities listed outside Hong Kong comprise
a debenture with fixed inferest rate of 9.5% and maturity date on 24 December 2014.

The investment funds invest in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in Asia Pacific region. They are measured af fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Investment funds with less than 12 months operation period before
voluntary liquidation from the end of reporting period are classified as current portion in
the statement of financial position. The Group and the Company have committed to
contribute a pre-determined capital amount in these investment funds and the realised
gains or losses of these funds are recognised in the profit or loss. During the year ended
31 December 2012, the investment funds returned capital of HK$21,697,000 (2011:
HK$11,818,000) to the Group and the Company and they may call upon further
capital contribution if required up to the pre-defermined capital amount.

ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS — FINANCIAL
SERVICES

25. @HRA (W)
GERNCD

(f

RIB-—ZF+-RA=+—0 BEBEINTHE
RABEETMRS BRAFEIHAZEREFEER
K RBHES,382,000(—F——F+-_A=+—
H : #9/%%130,797,0007T) °

IO SRR ZIMESZFREIZAPE
HAREBZR|RITET - R_F——F+-A
=+—B #¥1731,693000 2 FRE(ZE
——F+ZA=+—H8:#%333,072,0007T) &
DR ZRIHIMERE S R 900,850,000 7T
(Z2——F+-A=+—H : #%320,808,000
JT)  BAKERE - HERERKETE -

RIB—ZFR-F——F+TZA=+—H RE

€]
BUINETEEZEES —HEEFEA.5%I
BR_ZE—NF+ A -+ AZEEREE -

(h) ZERERESTIREREDRRFEMK L 2FLEE

BATEITIEEMBRARES - FHRANBREHNREZ
RFEEE - BMEHRARN BFFRANEE
IRt ZEAZREES DB RFHIRRER
WRBEE - AEBRARRAERZEFREES
REFEAFIECEE  MASEEZBEHBI
@SBRI EFSBRAER c BE-T——F
ToAZTHALEFE  ZEREEASCRAEE
RARBIREE® 21,697,000 (ZF——F : &
#11,818,00070) )T &  AIRNAIELERINEE R
P EUBEEEAERR

26. ERERHEMET — SRR

THE GROUP #%£H

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011

—E-Cf —2—-F —E——F

+=f=+-A +=R=+—-E —-A-A

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BETT BETT

(restated) (restated)

(E5) (&=E5)

Advances to cusfomers ZEER

Bills receivable EKEE 373,401 403,729 364,625
Trade bills EPES 453,669 302,481 142,479
Other advances to customers HitEFEX 38,330,527 40,595,474 37,420,575
39,157,597 41,301,684 37,927,619

Interest receivable FEKFE 232,270 162,580 127,602

Impairment allowances HEER

— Individually assessed — ERIFHE (24,054) (40,553) (21,564)
— Collectively assessed —gEag (164,506) (172,015) (125,089)
39,201,307 41,251,696 37,908,628

Advances to banks and other financial institufions ~ E% K& E B KBS 2,164,842 1,505,409 524,900
41,366,149 42,757,105 38,433,528

Other accounts HiETE 702,923 454,051 402,292
42,069,072 43,211,156 38,835,820

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

26. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS — FINANCIAL
SERVICES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2012, included in the “Other Accounts” of the Group
is an amount of approximately HK$246,484,000 (31.12.2011:
HK$200,762,000) placed as reserve funds with the financial institutions in
the PRC by the Shantou Branch of CHB. Among which, HK$64,861,000
(31.12.2011: HK$88,493,000) and HK$ 13,699,000 (31.12.2011:
HK$19,249,000) are the mandatory reserve deposits and surplus reserve
deposits placed with the People’s Bank of China, respectively. The
mandatory reserve deposits are not available for the Group's daily
operation; HK$167,924,000 (31.12.2011: HK$93,020,000) is the
fixed deposits placed with other financial institutions in the PRC in
compliance with the requirements of Regulations Governing Foreign

Financial Institutions of the PRC.

As at 31 December 2012, the remaining balance of “Other Accounts” of
the Group amounting to HK$461,993,000 (31.12.2011:
HK$253,289,000) mainly included account receivables from customers in
relation 1o securities dealing and a variation margin of HK$94,479,000
(31.12.2011: HK$1,952,000) deposited in a bank for certain interest

rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and repurchase agreements.

Impairment allowances on advances:

26 ER R HEMIEIR —
(#&)

R-ZT——F+-A=+—H Ba&EAE
B[ EmEEBEIER -—ZRHOEE
246,484,000t (ZE——F+ZA=+—
B : % 200,762,00070) A& EIBITILTED
TERTFBE BB ERREEHES 2HKE -
FHRARFBRARBITZEEFREH S LE
IMEREES - DRIABEG4,861,0007T(=
T——F+-A=+—H: &%88,493,000
T0) KB 13,699,000 0 (ZE——F+ A
=+—H8:E®10,2490007T) i EEFK
BV TIAEASENABEE - UFE
PREIINE S RVEIEE RGO AT - FRR
TEEMBMBEBENTETHRERRBE
167,924,000 (ZFE——F+ A =+—
H : B#03,020,0007T) °

& B AR %5

N—E——F+-_A=+—H8 AEE[EM
BRP | MR ARB 461,993,000t (=%
——F+ZA=+—H: #&#%253,289,000
) FERFHRFESFEE 2 EKERFUA
NETFERRBITHONEEEE « IMERH
BRARODEHREZEHREREE
04,479,000 (= F——F+=-A=+—H:
E#1,052,0007T) °

B RELER

THE GROUP #%ME

Individual assessment ~ Collective assessment Total

18 BT A% KRR am

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BETT BETT

At T January 2012 R-E-—#-F-H 40,553 172,015 212,568
Reversal of impairment allowances (net) REEFER (HE) (57,513) (7,715) (65,228)
Increase in impairment allowances B EEE 6,214 — 6,214
Amounts reversed BE% (63,727) (7,715) (71,442)
Amounts written off Bt (3,709) — (3,709)
Recoveries of advances written off in previous years  WEIEEE 842 &2 45,097 — 45,097
Unwinding effect of discount rate T ENRE (374) — (374)
Exchange difference ERER — 206 206
At 31 December 2012 A-E-——#+-A=+-H 24,054 164,506 188,560




26. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS — FINANCIAL 26. SHZBREMIEE — SRHBE

SERVICES (CONTINUED) (#8) g
Impairment allowances on advances (Continued): B2 REEE(E) - o
THE GROUP %% S
Individual assessment  Collective assessment Total 1
@
18RI SR am S
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 L
BT BT LSS
At 1 January 2017 (restated) R-Z——F—fF—[ (K&} 21,564 125,089 146,653
Reversal of impairment allowances (net) HEERD R (FE) (154,050) 46,862 (107,188)
Increase in impairment allowances BN EEE 29,575 46,862 76,437
Amounts reversed RO (183,625) — (183,625)
Amounts written off Fi85E (1,847) = (1,847)
Recoveries of advances written off in previous years  UxEIAEE S 2 &2 176,100 — 176,100
Unwinding effect of discount rafe s ENRE (1,214) — (1,214)
Exchange difference EREE = 64 64
At 31 December 2011 (restated) RZB——&+-HA=+—-A(BEF]) 40,553 172,015 212,568
Details of the impaired loans are as follows: BEEFEBOT
THE GROUP #£M
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
—g-=f - S -
+=A=+-H +=A=+-H —A—H
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT
(restafed) (restated)
(&=51) (&=5))
Gross impaired loans REERAE 24194 78,189 35,610
Less: Impairment allowances under individual W AR RS
assessment (24,054) (40,553) (21,564)
Net impaired loans FHESHK 140 37,636 14,046
Gross impaired loans as a percentage of gross HEERBELEFERAE
advances to customers ZEAH 0.06% 0.19% 0.09%
Market value of collateral pledged ERRZHE 76,635 107,078 55,804
27. ADVANCES TO AN INVESTEE COMPANY 27 . BRBBEFLAT

The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed ZZEaZh AEIKIE - 68 K EE TS -
repayment ferms. The effective inferest rate used in calculating the present st EZZE o= v (it BB R kKB £ R 21
value of the estimated discounted future cash flows of the advances is  (EREE Y EERF R A2 23% (- T — —F
2.23%(31.12.2011: 2.10%). +=—A=+—H:2.10%) °

In the opinion of the Company's directors, the investee company will not  {EARBEE Y B R - WHEARITE2RE
fully repay the advances in the next twelve months from the end of the & HiR&AE ARt Rk + —@A RN EEE

Sl

reporting period. There is no collateral for the advances. eI, S A I A o

255
w
=
B
R
[
af
E
»
aj
I
"
|
I
"
)
i
E



N
O

6

210g boday [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

28. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2012, the property under development for sale and
properties held for sale of HK$702,000,000 (31.12.2011:
HK$452,382,000) and nil (31.12.2011: nil), respectively, are expected
fo be recovered after one year affer the end of the reporting pericd. The
deposits received for the sales of properties under development were
included in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as

deferred income as at 1 January 2011.

The cost of property held for sale recognised as an expense during the
year amounted to approximately HK$20,636,000 (2011
HK$362,112,000) and included in direct expenses.

THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2012, the Company's properties held for sale of
HK$2,808,000 (31.12.2011: HK$2,808,000) is expected to be

recovered within one year affer the end of the reporting period.

28. FHERERYE FHEMX

*KE

R-E-—_F+A=+—H FHEEE
TYMELRFLEEDESINREE
702,000,000 (ZF——F+=-ZH=+—
H:#%452,382,0007) RE(ZE——4F
T-A=1—H8 &) BEREEHR—F
‘U@ HEERPYEMPIT AR
SER-_T——F - A-BZHEEMBIR
RARELEWA °

FR CHEIASAXZIFHEVEXNLRDLS
B #20,636,0007t( = F — —F: B
362,112,0007L) W EFH ABEEFXA °

. 3/ 5|

RIE—ZF+A=+—B " ARAIZHF
HEY B 2,808,000 T(ZE——F+=
RA=+—H:#%2808,000T) BHRKE
HIR — &2 4m -

29. INVENTORIES 2. 8
THE GROUP #%£m@
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
—2--F —E—-F -2k
+=A=t+-H +=A=1-H —A-H
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETR BETT BETT
The Group's inventories comprise: rEEFEASE:

Raw materials E#E 967 1,234 1,218
Work in progress YHEED 4,552 3,769 2,656
Finished goods RS 11,898 9,690 7,214
17,417 14,693 11,088

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year amounted
fo approximately HK$22,464,000 (201 1: HK$ 16,720,000, included

in direct expenses.

The inventories are expecfed to be realised in the next twelve months from

the end of the reporting period.

RAFEERBAIXHZFEERAN BB
22,464,0007t(=ZF——%F : 816,720,000
TT)  BREEEEMAXA -

T EE R S R A B AR R R T = (B
B RH -



30.

THE GROUP #$5M THE COMPANY F47)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — NON-FINANCIAL
SERVICES

30.

HARAEMEWKER — FER
PR 3%

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
—g-=¢ L S 3 L B 3 -g-=# L B3 oL S 3
t=A=t=E" +=A=+-BR —A-B FH=HA=F=HY +=A=t+-AH -A-H
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
B¥TR BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade receivables & SRR 15,461 28,157 10,849 = - —
Deposits for construction costs BERARES 18,800 36,784 16,279 = - —
Other deposits, prepayments and HitiRE$  AREX
receivables REBERR 57,031 70,263 58,633 5992 4971 10,546
91,292 135,204 85,761 5992 4971 10,546
nofes: BT
(a) Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential customer’s credit  (al BEMERFEPA - AEBEFGEEEREFPZEEE

quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Majority of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

have no default payment history.

The Group's credit policy allows ifs trade customers an average credit period of 30-90
days, other than customers from sales of properties which the proceeds are settled in
accordance with the sale and purchase agreements, normally within 60 days from the
date of agreement. The aged analysis of trade receivables of HK$15,461,000
(31.12.2011: HK$28,157,000) presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period which are included in frade receivables is as follows:

ERREBPZEELR - EF LREMES - K
B E SRR ERESRE - BERNRE -

AEENEERRABSEP (TEEREEAY
NRZHEENEEP )RR FHI0-0HZEE
H —RAEHNBEHOORA - RAREHR - 3
ERHHABZEURIEFE 15,461,000t (= F
——4F : ¥ 28,157,0007T) R AT :

THE GROUP #%M@

31.12.2012 31.12.201
—2-=f —E2—-F
t=B=t-H TZA=+-H
HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BETT
Within 30 days NAR 6,785 2,836
Between 31 days to 90 days JIIZNA 5214 3,082
Over 90 days BANA 3,462 22,239
15,461 28,157
(b) As at 31 December 2012, debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of (b) RIEBE——F+-A=+—H it AKEERKER
HK$3,462,000 (31.12.2011: HK$22,239,000] were past due and aged over 90 RZBEBMERE3,462000T (=T ——%F:
days at the end of reporting period but the Group has not provided for impairment loss 7% 22,239,0007T) © ERENHEHRD B
for these balances as management considers that the fundamental credit quality of these WOOR  AEBUWERZSHEHR ZREREIR
customers has not deferiorated. The Group does not hold any collateral over these B REAAETEERARSEPZEAFEEER
balances. WHEEIR o AEEW B ZSEMRSE TERY -
(c) All of the Group's trade receivables are denominated in functional currency of its (c) KREEEE S ERERARNEBEER T EE 2 IHEE
individual entities’ of the Group. EH#5IE -
[d)  The Company had no trade receivables at the end of the reporting period. (d)  ARERERERLEE HEBERK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

31.

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

J1.88LEZER BE

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.201 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.201
-g-=% 2% -2--% -g-=f% 2% 2%
+=A=+-B t+=A=1+-H —-A—-B t=A=t-H +=A=t+-H —A—8
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BT BT BT BT BETT
(testoted) (restated)
(&=75)) (&5
Cost of investments in joint venfures  $REREE DL HA
— unlisted — %L 3 3 3 3 3 3
Share of postacquisifion profits PR IREE B IRFIR
and other comprehensive HEth2ERE -
income, nef of dividends received  $NBAE KEIR 2 2,658 2540 2,430 — - -
2661 2543 2433 3 3 3
notes: FiHE

[a) As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had the following interests in joint  (a)

ventures:

Place of incorporation/

SR

REZF-ZFR-F-——F+ZA=+—8 %%
BEATIEE

Name of joint venture operations Class of share held Ownership inferest Proportion of voting power held Nature of business
AEPEEE MR &bt FEERGER FaERR REREMZILA EHEME
2011 2012 201
—2-=f 2% =t i %
Falconmate Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% 50% Property investment
& LER NERE
(b)  The summarised financial information below represents the aggregate amount of the  (b) AT 2 B ERHE R E BN ERIFFERZ & E
Group's share of ifs inferesfs in joint ventures which are not individually material: R EREE
31.12.2012 31.12.201 1.1.201
2% 2% —2——F
+=A=t-H +=A=t+-AR —-A-H
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BETT BETT
(resfated) (restated)
(&=E5)) (&85
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year AEERFREMEERR 118 110 96

(c) There are no significant restrictions on the liability of the joint venture fo transfer funds to (¢

the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the

Group.

PN

HRURSRENTARAAEEERESHEER
KEMREHEFRRBRZAED

XEMARYES



32. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 32.BBATEE

THE GROUP #%H

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
—B--F —E--F —EB--F
+=A=t-H +=A=+—H —A—-H
HKS'000 HK$"000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT
(restated) (restated)
(851) (E5)
Unlisted shares, at cost FLEmBRA - RAK — - -
Share of post-acquisition profits and other PSRRI R B R TR
comprehensive income net of dividends received ~ 3NBRE KER & 182,970 153,872 136,919
note: FfzE -
(a) As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had the following interests in (a) R-E——FEp-—T——F+-_H=+—0 &&
associates: ER5E TS AR M ER
Place of incorporation
Name of company and business Class of shares held Ownership inferest Proportion of voting power (note) Nature of business
AL R
ARER mE it FEERNER FaRED FrARmER 2 Ll (W) EBME
2012 2011 2012 2011
=t S 3 —2—-f& —g--f —2—-%
Bank Consorfium Holding Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 13.3% 13.3% 14.3% 14.3% Investment holding and provision
REERERAT BB LER of trustee, administration and
custodian services for retirement
schemes
REBRR ARG BREET
EEREERS
BC Reinsurance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 21.0% 21.0% 21.0% 21.0% Reinsurance
BNBRBERAT & LER BRE
Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% Life insurance underwriting
EBABRBERAR e BER AERBAR
Net Alliance Co., Limifed Hong Kong Ordinary 17.6% 17.6% 15.0% 15.0% Provision of infemet services
(58 BRLA BB EER REA LR
note:  The Group is able to exercise significant influence over all these enfiies because it has sk : ARAEBERBRERERZZATEZEZERF
the power to appoint one or two directors out of five fo eight directors of these FENBEEZHET—EWME  BAKBEREHM
companies under the provisions sfated in the shareholder's agreements. BREEROTEERRE 28D -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

32. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 32.BBEATES (&)
notes:  (Continued) MIsE: (&)
(b)  The summarised financial information below represents the aggregate amount of the  (p) I AR R E A EB NS AEERESE
Group's share of ifs inferesfs in associates which are not individually material: DRI Y RSB RIT
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
—B-Cf —B--F
+2B=t-R +zpzt-A
HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT
(restated)
(&=51)
Other comprehensive income Htt2EEA 430 (53)
Total comprehensive income 2HBALE 36,458 18,003
Profit after tox BB EBA 36,028 18,056
(c) There are no significant resfrictions on the ability of the associates fo transfer funds to the — [c] BREBASINEERBLFEETORAREZ
Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advance made by the Group, 150%ERaENTRE - ENENZTREDNZRE
except for Hong Kong Life Insurance which has to maintain net assefs of not less than BRERAE (EMNENTERE) GO TABEE - LA
150% of the required margin of solvency which is defermined in accordance with the B EHEERE)  HRBERRURSIKRE
Hong Kong Insurance Companies (Margin of Solvency] Regulations and which may MEARAARESRESHEEREEMEHERK
trigger restrictions fo fund transfer. SRER 2 AR EATAEARA -
33. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 33. REME
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
S ARH
notes HKS'000 HKS"000
B BETR BETT
FAIR VALUE LFRE
At 1 January 2017 (restated) RZ2-—-%-8-H (&&%) 6,215,856 695,700
Currency realignment BipR 119,976 —
Additions 111 6,394 —
Reclassification EFNE (b) 191,604 —
Disposal through a subsidiary (Note 52) HE— B AR (5 (418,695) -
Disposal of an investment property HEREYE (25,491) —
Transferred to a subsidiary EHZE-EWELT — (800,000)
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss AR ERRER 2 A T EEEMNEE 175,603 104,300
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F+=-A=+-H 6,265,247 -
Currency realignment Bz (418) -
Additions 141 37,010 -
Reclassification EpiE ( (702,200) -
o Disposal of an investment property HEREYE (1,500 —
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss REFSERAER AT EEEMNEE 270,630 —
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—F+=-A=+-H 5,868,769 -

210g boday [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy



33.

notes:

(al

THE GROUP #%m

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The carrying value of investment properties shown above comprises:

33. _AME(M|)

(al

LREEMEZ REERRE

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
—8-=f -2—-f —5-—-%
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-A -A-H
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT BETT
(restated) (resfated)
(& E5) (&=350)

Properties held under: BTIAREEZNE
Long leases in Hong Kong REBZREEL 2,877,800 3,390,900 3,356,300
Long-term land use right in the PRC Rl 2 K 8+ i 252,835 172,771 337,334
Medium-erm land use right in the PRC ReEZ Rt ERE 2,574916 2,551,005 2,385,122
Medium-erm leases in Hong Kong REBZREELD 129,890 117,500 107,150
Medium-ferm leases outside Hong Kong REBUNZ R RS 33,328 33,071 29,950
5,868,769 6,265,247 6,215,856

(b

(c)

(d]

le)

For the year ended 31 December 2011, properties under development were fransferred
fo investment properties upon commencement of operating leases to another party. The
difference between the fair value of the property and the carrying amount ot the date of

fransfer amounted to HK$4 1,929,000 was recognised in profit and loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group fransferred an investment property
located in Hong Kong amounting to HK$702,200,000 to properties under development
for sale as the Group has obtained the approval from the government fo redevelop the
land. The carrying amount of the properties as af the date of transfer approximates to the

fair value of the properties.

All of the Group's property inferests held under operating leases to eam long-term rentals
are measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

The fair values of the Group's invesiment properties at 31 December 2012 and 2011
have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on that date by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Lid. and Vigers Hong Kong Limited (collectively referred to as
"Vigers”), independent firms of professional valuers not connected with the Group. The
directors of Vigers are members of the Institute of Valuers. The valuation was arrived at
by reference fo market evidence of fransaction prices for similar properties in the same

locations and conditions.

(b]

(d]

HEZ——F+-A=+—HALFE BRSTYD
st HARCEHEREREEDE - WER
BRAZATEEEREEZZEER
41,929,000 7T E i M sk B 18 TR ©

HE-Z——F+-_A=+—BLFE salAE
ECESEHFALEBLRES —EBEESE
702,200,000 7L K] T EHTEE R - WAGZIBIREY
REREZHHERRTYE - FEVERERER
ZEHEESREAFEERS

FREEREEROFEARDESEE 2 EYE
AP ATEEERGE  UHRRIIERRE
LE

AEENKREVER T ——FR-FT——F+=
A=+—BZzRATFEENRBIENEETHERE
TR A REAE T (BB) BR A 5] (SR BUgHn ) (8
REBWEMEE B EEBEMT)ETZAE
REEFEGH - BRI AGENZEEE - (A&
Ty2E W% RS KRR 2 B ER 5B
EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

34. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

34. % - BER&M

Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold land motor vehicles
and buildings Plant and and computer
(note a) machinery equipment Total
HEtHRET BR - HE - EH
GED) BER#eE REKRE “E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS"000 HKS'000
BT T BRI BRI T BETT
THE GROUP X550
oSt BA
At 1 January 2011 (restated) RZZ——F-F—H(KEF) 718,695 23,845 627,762 1,370,302
Currency realignment EE 1,032 981 2,848 4,861
Additions 10 221,883 1,578 27,490 250,951
Disposals HE - - (36,846) (36,846)
At 31 December 2011 (restated) R-E——F+=-A=+-A
(&E5) 941,610 26,404 621,254 1,589,268
Currency realignment =4 — (6) 492 486
Additions 110 15,896 2,506 59,160 77,562
Disposals HeE - - (15,694) (15,694)
At 31 December 2012 W-E—-—#+-A=+-H 957,506 28,904 665,212 1,651,622
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION HEREHE
At 1 January 2011 (restated) RZE——F—-F—H (L&) 130,569 11,661 445,430 587,660
Currency realignment LupE (208) 484 1,260 1,536
Charged for the year REEZH 13,680 1,353 53,773 68,806
Eliminated on disposals R SR8 — — (32,718) (32,718)
At 31 December 2011 (restated) R=Z——E+=-p=+-A
(EE5) 144,041 13,498 467,745 625,284
Currency realignment SRR — ) (21 (24)
Charged for the year REELH 19.413 1,428 52,150 72,991
Eliminated on disposals R SR - — (13,536) (13,536)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—F4+-A=+-A 163,454 14,923 506,338 684,715
Carrying value EEE
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—F4+-A=+-A 794,052 13,981 158,874 966,907
At 31 December 2011 (restated) R-Z——EF+=-B=+-H
(&E5) 797,569 12,906 153,509 963,984
At 1 January 2011 (restated) RZZ——F-F—H(LEF) 588,126 12,184 182,332 782,642




34. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

34. % - BER =W ()

Furniture, §
fixtures, &
Leasehold land motor vehicles 7
and building and computer 3
(note a) equipment Total =
HETHRET B 2B g
(FfzEa) BHREMRE “BE Al
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 [
BUTR BMT xS
THE COMPANY b |
COST OR VALUATION BASEE
At T January 2011 R-E-——F-f—H 458 14,290 14,748
Additions = 97 710 807
Disposals HE — (516) (516)
At 31 December 2011 WZE——#+=-A=+-H 555 14,484 15,039
Additions 111 — 712 712
Disposals HE — (1,123) (1,123)
At 31 December 2012 WZE-—#+=-A=+-H 555 14,073 14,628
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION nERES
At 1 January 2011 WZZ2——%-F—-H - 12,208 12,208
Charged for the year KEEZH — 910 910
Eliminated on disposals R ER Y — (516) (516)
At 31 December 2011 WZE——%#+-A=+-H - 12,602 12,602
Charged for the year KEEZH 1 806 817
Eliminated on disposals R R — (1,123) (1,123)
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—fF+=-A=+-A 11 12,285 12,296
CARRYING VALUE WREE
At 31 December 2012 R-B-=-F+=-A=+-A 544 1,788 2,332
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F+=A=+-H 555 1,882 2,437
At 1 January 2011 W-E——%—-8—-H 458 2,082 2,540
notes: 5T -
(a) This includes certain leasehold land as the allocation between the land and building (a) ARETYEREET W REFHEMEAFELY

i @ETHELHAAGRESR -

element of cerfain properties cannot be made reliably.

(b) The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straightline  (b) FutE - BRERREEEB DIREREENTIIE
basis af the following rates per annum: RITE

263

w
=
B
R
*
af
E
»
aj
I
]

|
I

"
)
K
E

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorfer of the term of the lease or 2% fo 3% HELHREF RERZENFHA2%Z 3%
Plant and machinery 10% B R es 10%

Furniture, fixtures, motor vehicles and computer equipment 10-20% G- £E BHLEMRE  10-20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

34. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 34. 9% BERERE (@)

notes:  (Continued) sk - (&)
[c) The carrying amounts of leasehold land and buildings shown above comprise: (o) THAE T RETHERESE
31.12.2012 31.12.201 1.1.201 31.12.2012 31122011
—8-=f 3% 3% 2% =
+2Azt-8 +-A=+-8 -A-8 +=A=+-8 +-8=+-8
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000
BETT BETT BETT BETRT BETT
(restated) (resfated)
(&E350) (&=350)
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong: REBNASLHRET :
Held on long-ferm lease BREBNEE
(over 50 years unexpired) (RAEHBBETF) 317,336 319,798 324,696 — -
Held on medium-ferm lease RAMENEE
(10-50 years unexpired) (HAFHNTERTER) 462,392 460,544 247,192 — -
Leasehold land and buildings outside REBLUMBEL B RIET
Hong Kong:
Held on medium-ferm lease RAMENEE
(10-50 years unexpired) (HAFHRTERTER) 14,324 17,221 16,238 544 555
794,052 797,569 588,126 544 555
35. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 35. At &IH
THE GROUP #$HE
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
—B-=f —E——f i B2
+=A=t-H +ZB=+-H —A—8
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BYT T BETT BB T
(restated) (restated)
(&=E3) (&E351)
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEEzEMHEIHESE !
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong held REBUMSEZHEL
on medium ferm i 2,423 2,483 32,950
Analysed as: AWMT
Current portion REBEE 66 66 959
g Non-current portion FRBEE 2,357 2417 31,991

2423 2,483 32,950
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36. DEFERRED TAXATION 36.EERIE

=
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial 25|44 A KRR ERF KR AETS - g
0,
position, and statement of financial position certain deferred tax assets and ~ EFEXFELELABDEE - W T A0 B
P
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax Bt &R R B 1~ IE TR TBAE 4 DA - ‘éD
balances for financial reporting purposes: _é;i
THE GROUP %[ THE COMPANY 47 S8
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.201 5
-g-=f& L S 3 L B 3 -g-=# L B3 S
+zR=+-8 +ZA=t-§ ~B-R +2B=t-8 +ZAzt-R -A-A
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
B¥TR BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&E75) (&&3) (&E3) (&&35)
Deferred tox assets EEFIEEE 2,182 17471 - 680 610 —
Deferred tox liabilities EERIBEEE (213,009) (181,290) (168,782) — = (24,826)
(210,827) (163,819) (168,782) 680 610 (24,826)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised AT AREBEARRRARNEE RIAFFE
by the Group and the Company, movements thereon during the current B MR T ZRELEFHIBEBEREENRHEE

and prior years. £
Difference of Collectively Revaluation Revaluation
accounting assessed  of invesiment o available- - Remeasurement
and tax impairment properfies forsale  of retirement
depreciation allowance in the PRC investments benefits Tax losses Total
EitERE KRG BRETE Eftaflt EHtE
FEZER HERE <REME HERE RIER BERE w5t

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BB BT BT BETT BT BT BETT

THE GROUP x50
AT January 2011 (restated) R=2-—%F-A—B (&) 39,402 (20,031) 140,027 15,895 - 6510 168,782
(Credit) charge to profit orloss ORISR GEA) Mk (3,227) (7,838) 18,313 - - (807) 6,441
(Credit) charge to other comprehensive income. - A R AR EURAR (BHA)
for the year ks - — - (13,098) 1,694 - (11,404)
At 31 December 2011 (restated) W-E——#+-A=+-BR
(&5 36,175 (27,869) 158,340 2,797 1,694 (7,319) 163,819
Charge (credit) fo profitor loss FRFISB BN GTA) 2,29 1,338 14,246 - - (682) 17,192
(harge fo other comprehensive income for the year sz & s A 2 WA P30 - - - 29,816 - - 29,816
At 31 December 2012 W=B-=£+=B=+-H 38,465 (26,531) 172,586 32,613 1,694 (8,000) 210,827
THE COMPANY /N
A1 Janvary 2017 (restated) WoZB——&—B—A (EE5)) 24,826 - - - - - 24,826 265
Creditto prfit or loss RERISEEREA (25,436) - - - - - (25,436) 2
p::}
At 31 December 2011 (resfated) W=B-—-#+-A=1-H "
(& E5)) 610) - - - - - (610) at
Credit o profit or loss PERREERIA (70) - - - - - (70) »
a
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—#+-A=1-R (680) - - - - - (680) N
A
|
I
5
&
+
-



N
o~

6

210g boday [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

36. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$304 million (2011: HK$276 million) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$48
million (2011: HK$44 million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining tax loss of HK$256 million
(2011: HK$232 million) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

The Company had no unused tax losses at the end of the reporting period.

Under the EIT law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries and CHB's PRC
branch from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries and CHB's PRC bank amounting to HK$223,446,000
(2011: HK$169,277,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of these temporary differences and it is probable that the

femporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

37. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

36.EERIN (#F)
RBEEHHMEER AEEREER
304,000,0007t( = & — — &F: B &
276,000,0007T) 2 KR8 B IREE A A 1R
85 AR R A o E B 48,000,000 T (= F
—— % B 44,000,0007T) B R RIEL
MIBEE ° B EETRR AR M6 MR - H
#R8 ¥ 256,000,000 T(ZF——F : B
232,000,000 7T) Z 7t Y8 B 18 3 A HE R AR AE
MIREE - MIAREA ERAGEE -

ARRFRBEMEEE AL ERPH 2 HIA
&8 -

REPEECEFABERE BT N\F—A
—HE - FENEARRAIREITHPED
TTREUE N M E R 2R B ABRIEH - &
RASEENEHHOERZR2RHE - M
BRERHEZEAETENARAGRED - &
HMARGEMBRRRTPBENEB R AR
AERTHPEITREEN CERER
B #223,446000L( —F ——F: &K
169,277,000 70) 1E HIEIEFR TR -

J7. #HERE

THE GROUP
r5E
HKS000
BETR

At 1 January 2011
Currency realignment E¥ER
Disposals HE

100
15
(115)

At 31 December 2011 and 2012

R-E-—fR-F-ZF+ZA=1-H -




38. GOODWILL

THE GROUP #%H

38. M &

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
—g--% —g——& -5
+=B=+-H +=ZA=+-H —A—-H
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BRI BET T
(restated) (restated)
(EE30) (RE5))
osT BA
At 1 Jonuary and 31 December W-B-BKt+=ZA=+-H 110,606 110,606 110,606
IMPAIRMENT RE
At 1 Jonuary and 31 December R-B-BR+ZA=+-H 60,000 60,000 60,000
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December WH=-B=+-H 50,606 50,606 50,606

The Group acquired 100% of issued share capital of Chong Hing
Insurance Company Limited. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of

acquisition was HK$110,606,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, management has
reviewed goodwill for impairment festing purpose. The review comprised a
comparison of the carrying amount and value in use of an acquired
subsidiary (the smallest cash-generating unit) to which the goodwill has

been allocated. The acquired subsidiary is involved in insurance business.

The value in use calculations primarily use cash flow projections based on
the three-year financial budgets approved by management of the subsidiary
and estimated terminal value at the end of the three year period. There are
a number of assumptions and esfimates involved for the preparation of cash
flow projections for the period covered by the approved budget and the
estimated terminal value. Key assumptions include the expected growth in

revenues (growth rate at 3.5% to 4%) and selection of discount rafes (12%).
Value in use is derived at by discounting the expected future cash flows.

The management of the Group defermines that there is no impairment loss

on the goodwill for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

AEBECEWREAIFEARARAR 100% 2 HT
A ARBEEONBREREY
110,606,0007T °

BE_T——_FR_ZE——F+_A=+—
BIEFE EEERAENARNEE - &
AEREEBRNENB AR (R WRSELE
) EmMO Rz REEBEREREE - WiE
Bt & R IR ETS -

EREEXIZEMNBRMEAREREEN
—FUBREREEZRERERA RN =
FHRGEHE B 2B RREMNTE - HBHHE
MEEMGRREMRENHEZRER
ERAS R - LEEERMART -  TERRERE
Wgs 2 TREIE R (B R X R 3.5% £ 4%) MEAR
RZFER(12%)

FERAEBELHAERRIREREESE -

AEBEEERETHEZE_ZT——_FRK_F
——F+_A=1+—BIEE BELTER
EREES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

39. FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE

9. OB THEZEMEE

AGREEMENTS
THE GROUP #%H
31.12.2012 31.12.201 1.1.2011
—E2--f —E-—-fF —E--fF
t=A=t-B  t=A=t-8 -A-A
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT BETT
(restated) (restated)
(&=51) (&==31)
Analysed by collateral type: NERRERH
Debt securities clossified as: EXELIES
Available-for-sale At E 326,687 228,439 —
Held-tomaturity KEZHHA 106,994 192,213 -
433,681 420,652 —
As at 31 December 2012, debt securities which were classified as pw-—Z——®#+=-A=4+—F HELA#

available-for-sale and held-to-maturity with carrying amount of
approximately HK$393,490,000 (2011: HK$295,717,000) and
HK$ 117,621,000 [2011: HK$240,883,000) respectively were sold
under repurchase agreements with other banks. All repurchase agreements

are due within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

HERFEEZIHBE FEESIHA
B # 393,490,000 L( —F — —F: B
295,717,0007%) kA 117,621,000 7T (=
T——4F : B% 240,883,000 7T) M EFE 7=
REHMBPITOQBHALE - FELER
ARMEHREERRT —EARDE -



40. DEPOSITS FROM BANKING CUSTOMERS 40. SRTTEPRHER

THE GROUP #£H §
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011 %
-g--% —g—-%& g% o
t+=A=+-A +=A=+-A -A-8
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 g;
BET T BETT BT T e
(restated) (restated) it
(&E50) (&=E51)
Demand deposits and current accounts ERERRARERS 5,189,096 4,354,758 4,263,067
Savings deposits HEER 21,460,179 18,357,575 20,568,661
Time, call and notice deposits THERRBAER 40,712,171 41,956,464 38,541,868
67,361,446 64,668,797 63,373,596
41. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 41. FRE

AREBHITABBERAAE RZT—2F
TZA=+—RHEREEREH 667,636,000
(=T ——%F: B 1,545,562,0007T) 2
& - FREARESR —E—=F3H
B=ZEAZBRTAZEFREXRMI%EITER
100,000,000t 2 FRBE R BR —E—=4%
B E - RVO%E29%F A K BITH B
567,636,000 T 2 FF 5K 7E » FTA EITHF K
ERB AMEfE AR EE R -

The Group issued cerfificates of deposit which are measured at amortised
cost with a total carrying amount of HK$667,636,000 as at 31
December 2012 (2011: HK$1,545,562,000). Included in certificates of
deposit are certificates of deposit of HK$ 100,000,000 issued at the rate
of three-month HIBOR plus 1% which will mature in 2013 and certificates
of deposit of approximately HK$567,636,000 issued at interest rate
between 1.0% to 2.9% per annum which will mature in 2013. All

certificates of deposit issued are not secured by any collateral.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

42. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

42. B 5 & H it FE 1 IR &

THE GROUP #%H THE COMPANY %4 F

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
-g--f -2

1.1.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011

B —3--% —2—-F

+=A=+-B +=A=1+-A —A—H t=A=t-H t=A=t-H —A—-H
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(restated) (restated)
(&=&=351) (&E5)
Trade payables EHENER 11,304 10,829 10,565 — — —
Construction costs payables BERRSERA 117,791 199,415 22,691 — — —
Deposifs received and receiptin -~ REWE 2 B WL
advance in respect of rental  RFEKRES
of investment properties 122,484 116,101 75,581 — 169 1,504
Account payable o customersin - BER B EFEMER
relation fo securities dealing 171,426 68,999 130,459 — — —
Interest payable to banking ERITEEFRIE
customers 188,428 134,011 82,476 — — =
Other payables HAbE R 367,894 346,037 301,770 8,238 8,044 8,286
979,327 875,392 623,542 8,238 8,213 9,790

At the end of the reporting period, included in frade and other payables
are trade payables of HK$11,304,000 (2011: HK$10,829,000) and
the aged analysis of which presented based on the invoice date is as

follows:

RBEEHREEER BEHRMNER
B 11,304,000t (Z 2 ——F: BK
10,829,00070) ERER AT AE S R EAM
FEARRSR - HEREE DTN T -

THE GROUP #%£H

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

~%-cF ~F--%

t=A=t+-8H t=A=t+-H

HKS'000 HK$'000

BRI BRTR

Within 30 days NER 11,304 10,829

The Company had no trade payables at the end of the reporting period.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables

are settled within the credit timeframe.

RATNHEHREERE L EE 5 REMARNK -

%Téé’i%zﬂ?i’ﬂZﬁﬁH%wE AREEC
EMBERERBE - ARRTE B ERR
E’:‘ZEHJ%WSEH °



43. LOAN CAPITAL 43. EEEF

-
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011 %
—§--& —E——& 2 {é
+=A=t-H +=A=+—H —A—-H =
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 S8
BT AUT T Car I
(restated) (restated) S
(&=51) (&55)
Floating rate subordinated notes due 2016 RN6FER 2 FHEXRERE
at amortised cost (nofe (0) B85 AU (HFRE (o)) - - 781,372
USS225 million fixed rate subordinated notes dve 0N FFM> 15 EETEEER
2020 under fair value hedge (after adjustment  BEZHEUA PEE (BIEFIZ
of hedged inferest rate risk) (note (b)) BBREHAR) (M 0) 1,898,957 1,852,153 1,619,779
1,898,957 1,852,153 2,401,151
notes: Mz
[a)  This represented subordinated note qualifying as tier 2 capital issued on 15 December  [a) IEEZEBER T AFT_A+RBET  HF
2006. The maturity date of the notes was 16 December 2016 and the notes were ERRBER - BENIBER_T—RF+_A
redeemed and cancelled at the option of the Group in December 2011 at their principal TRA AEER_T——F+_AEEBERE
amount after receiving prior approval of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (the BRE\ELAET  EENRERERNASEDR KR
"HKMA"). The notes carried interest at the rate of three-month LIBOR plus 0.93%, HILRE - RENF S RE=MANRBERITRE
payable quarterly from the issue date fo the call option date. FENMO.93% » WHEHITHEEEIRBIREZER
g o
(b) This represented subordinated note qualifying as tier 2 capital with face value of  (b) LR ERBEEMEER 225,000,000 % TR =T —
US$225,000,000 issued on 5 November 2010. The notes will mature on 4 November TE+—RBRART  WAEARPER - ILFEE
2020. If ot any time (on or) after 1 January 2013, the nofes no longer fully qualify as IMAR—E_TF+—ANA - MR -F—=F
term subordinated debts for inclusion in Category II — Supplementary Capital of CHB —A—BRBEMER BREERERTE
upon changes to regulatory requirements, CHB may, at its option and subject to the prior 2 WEBETBET2FEIERTEIN — KmnE
writtlen approval of the HKMA, exercise a change of the status of the nofe by serving the AR ERE  AIERTEREERETEER
“Change in Status Notice” to the noteholders. Upon a “Change in Status Notice” ERREEELIAT  HEEBAEEL MR
becoming effective, the note shall be reduced from 6% per annum to 5.5% per annum. HEBAE INEERERR - SR EZRNE]
As “"Change in Status Notice” has not been served, the rate of interest on the note EE WEBENFERAOTEES 5% AR
remains at 6% per annum. REER [MREEBME | - RENFRERFE
6% °
() All subordinated notes issued are not secured by any collateral. [ FIEEBITRRERERB AR RIERE -

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

44. BORROWINGS 44, £
THE GROUP %% THE COMPANY &% 7]
31122012 31022011 102011 31122012 31122011 1.1.2011
ZE--f —Z——F —g--f —E—-f

T=A t=B —E—-% =8 +=h —E-—-F%

= =EN =+t-H —-A-H B=iFHN =ft-B -A-H

notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
(=3 BETT B¥TT A%t BTz BETr  B%Tx

Bank loans BITER
Secured BER 909,141 599,799 886,285 299,067 238,854 365,589
Unsecured WIE IR 2799549  2691,489 2,754,148 2799549 2,691,489 2,754,148
Total bank borrowings RITEREE 3,708,690 3,291,288 3,640,433 3,098,616 2,930,343 3,119,737
Amounts due to joint ventures ENAEEDE (0) 1,639 1,394 1,174 1,639 1,394 1,174
Amounts due fo non-controlling EREERBRR
interests shareholders ENE] () 19,791 26,666 19,723 — — —
3,730,120 3,319,348 3,661,330 3,100,255 2,931,737 3,120,911
The maturity of borrowings is BRZEARMT
as follows:
Canying amount repayable: BEEEEG ©
Within one year —ER 399,067 1,086,510 1,753,400 399,067 1,049,171 1,575,441
More than one year but not —EHEFRB
exceeding two years mE — 683,747 1,364,895 — 621,506 1,022,157
More than two years but not MEREREB
exceeding five years hE — 1,341,031 442,138 — 1,079,666 442139

399,067 3,111,288 3,560,433 399,067 2,750,343 3,039,737
Carrying amount of bank loans that  RER EH2HMERE
are repayable on demand due to EREBZBITER

breach of loan covenants EEE (d) 3,229,623 — — 2,619,549 — —
Carrying amount of bank loans that ~ HERBEHHLEER
are not repayable within one year Bit—EREE
from the end of the reporting period ~ tEAEEREE>
but contain a repayment on BITERRAE
demand clause 80,000 180,000 80,000 80,000 180,000 80,000
Amounts due fo joint ventures B tEsE 1,639 1,394 1,174 1,639 1,394 1,174
Amounts due to non-controlling EREERRRTE
interests shareholders 19,791 26,666 19,723 — — —
3,730,120 3,319,348 3,661,330 3,100,255 2,931,737 3,120,911
Amount due within one year R—ERTHIR
— Bank borrowings — RITREN 3,708,690 1,266,510 1,833,400 3,098,616 1,229,171 1,655,441
— Amounts due to joint ventures - EA%hEDE 1,639 1,394 1,174 1,639 1,394 1,174
— Amounts due to non-controlling  — FE FEIERRREIE
interests shareholders 19,791 26,666 19,723 — — —
3730,120 1,294570 1,854,297 3,100,255 1,230,565 1,656,615
Amounts due after one year —FREEBRA
— Bank borrowings — RITREN — 2,024,778 1,807,033 — 1,701,172 1,464,296




44,

notes:

(al

(b

(c)

(d)

(e]

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

These borrowings are unsecured, bear variable interest at an effective interest rate at
0.15% (2011: 0.05% to 0.10%) per annum [repriced monthly) and repayable on

demand.

These borrowings are unsecured and repayable on demand. An amount of
approximately HK$9,469,000 (2011: HK$16,639,000) bears variable interest at an
effective interest rate of 1.96% (2011: 5.00%) per annum (repriced monthly), while the

remaining amounts are non-interest bearing.

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, as a result of the consolidation of the CHB
Group, cerfain bank loan covenants in respect of the Group's total liabilities were
breached. Upon discovery of the breach, the directors of the Company informed the
relevant lenders and requested for granting waiver and/or revising the terms of the
loans. Despite the fact that all waivers had been obtained from the lenders after 31
December 2012, the Group has reclassified all relevant loans as current liabilities for the

purpose of these financial statements.

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the funcfional

currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

44,

MEAE -

(al

(b

(c)

(d)

faw® (&)

ZEBRREER  SFRIPHRGE - BEEHN
ER015%(ZFE——%:0.05%%0.10%) (BRE
FIAME)  WARERERE -

ZEBAABEENRARERBENELE
9,469,0007T(=F ——4F : E ¥ 16,639,0007T)
ZHRAGFRIBIEAR  BEREFEH1.06%(=
T——%F:500%) (FAEATME)  HEH AR

B o

oS

BRARFIRE R P BT E & 5K B HIFIRR -

HE_Z——F+ZA=+—HILFERN " HRE
FIRTTHOAGH  BERTHASEEBRBEZETR
TERRZL - TERENE  ARAEEREHM
HEERA  LERETFHRRER RERERE
Ko HAR_FT-—F+-_A=+—RHE ~KH
ERGEERANH L  BERSLEVBERS
B AEBDAKREEBERET O ERRBDE

&

FAEENGHEERRRINEGE AN Etb BT’
BEZEROT

Denominated in HKS

BETIE

HK$'000

BETT

As at 31 December 2012 R-Z-=-F+=A=+-A 272,839
As at 31 December 2011 R-Z——F+=BA=+-A 256,833

() All of the bank loans are variablerate borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR plus @ (f) MBERTEFERIEMER  ABFREARITR
margin per annum. The effective interest rates ranged from 1.60% to 4.86% (2011: ERBIEBEFHE S - ERFENFEE1.60%
1.62% to 5.38%) per annum. Interest rates are repriced monthly. Details of assets F486%(ZF——F : 1.62%F5.38%) - FIEF
pledged are set out in Note 53. REFNETE - BEABEFBHNMES3 -
45. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 45. B LRz E
THE COMPANY %47
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.1.2011
—2-CF —E——F —E——F
+=A=+-H T=B=+-H —A—H
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT BETT
Cost of unlisted shares/deemed capital confribution 3k £ MHA/ HaRAE S B LA 514,800 496,494 472,413
Less: Impairment loss recognised W EREAZHESE (199,045) (204,747) (200,940)
315,755 291,741 271,473

o
5
Q
S
0,
Q.
el
0
ES)
o)
>m
&
5
+
d

N
BHES-—2= | LUHEXTBWE N



N
N

4

210g boday [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

45. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

In view of the accumulated losses and net liabilities position of certain
subsidiaries, the directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amount of investments in these subsidiaries are nof recoverable and
accordingly the investment costs in these subsidiaries have been fully

impaired.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2012 and 2011 are set out in Note 58.

46. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed
repayment terms. Of the amounts, approximately HK$4,111,613,000
(2011: HK$4,029,185,000) bears variable interest at an effective inferest
rafe ranging from 1.87% to 1.98% (2011: 1.63% to 1.78%) per annum
[repriced semi-annually] and the remaining balance is non-interest bearing.
The effective interest rate used in calculating the present value of the

estimated discounted future cash flows of the non-inferest bearing amounts

due from subsidiaries is 1.96% (2011: 1.88%).

In the opinion of the Company's directors, the amounts due from
subsidiaries will not be repayable in the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period and, accordingly, the amounts have been classified as
non-current assets. The carrying amount of the amounts due from
subsidiaries approximate fo its fair value. The credit risk on amounts due
from subsidiaries is limited as the subsidiaries are in sound financial

positions. There is no collateral for the amounts due from subsidiaries.

47. NON-INTEREST BEARING ADVANCES FROM
SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are not repayable in
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
the amounts have been classified as non-current liabilities. The effective
interest rafte used in calculating the present value of the estimated
discounted future cash flows of these advances is 1.96% (2011: 1.88%)

per annum.

45. B AT IR ()
ERETHEARZR2BEERRABFEN
N ARBEFERR RZEWMBRARZE
BREEDTAEE - AN & ENE
RAZWERABHEHRRERRE -

R_E——FR_FT—F+-_A=+—H
ZARNFIEEHBRAAFBEHANESS -

46. FEUTHHE 2 TR

. 3/ |

FEUPH B A BRI B B E & 5K
M ZEIRF P - 4978%4,111,613,0007T (=
T——45F: 8%4,029,18500T) BFIRE
BOEEBFIENF 1 87%E1.98%(ZF——45F -
1.63%E 1.78%) 5t B (BHFFEATNX) - £
BMARE RitEREHBARRERRZ
BAEMRARBRERERERFRB ZER
FIEAE1.Q96%(ZF——F : 1.88%) °

KARRERZER - BAHE R RRFH

CERmERRAEERAARRT ZEANRN
B8 AMZEFRACWD BRIERPEE -
FEA BT /B A IR R 2 BRI E B E A B E
e RKRMBRARERZEERRER R
ARZEMNE AR 2 HAREE - FEUH
J& R R BR AL AR o

47 HMBLAFIZREER

H

ZEFRASEER  RELRBANRBRS
MAEEZHES AR T _EAREE  Fit
ZEBRODBRIERDEAE - R EZE

&

it
Sl

b
’

ZEBRFNERR Q6% —F——F :1.88%) -



48. SHARE CAPITAL 48. &

Number of shares Share capital §
RHHE Bx ol
2012 & 2011 2012 & 2011 7
—g-=£R “g-=4r [
—Z--f -F—-f =
HKS'000 g
ST
e
Ordinary shares of HKS1 each SREESE I T2EER ot
Authorised: EERA :
At 1 January and 31 December W-A—-BKk+ZB=+-H 600,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BRIRMRRA
At 1 January and 31 December W-BA—-BR+ZB=+-H 378,583,440 378,583
49. RESERVES 49. f# &
Property Investment Capital
revaluation revaluation redemption Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve profits Total
NEERRHE REERGEHE REBERE 27 o
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
THE COMPANY b
At 1 January 2017 (restated) RZZ——%-A-A
(=5 342 46,097 2,955 1,467,092 1,516,486
Gain on revaluation of leasehold ~ BEL#HREFZ
land and building Bl 106 - - - 106
Fair value gain on availableforsale Tt HERE >
investments ATEERE - 6,628 - - 6,628
Profit for the year REEEF — — — 425,651 425,651
Total comprehensive income AEEZAKGEEE
for the year 106 6,628 — 425,651 432,385
Dividends recognised as distrbution 2R AH K2 RE - - - (102,218) (102,218)
At 31 December 20171 (restated) ~ R=B——4&
TZA=+—-H (L&) 448 52,725 2,955 1,790,525 1,846,653
Fair value gain on availableforsale Tt HERE >
investments ATLEERR — 745 — — 745
Profit for the year REERF - - - 10,954 10,954
Total comprehensive income AEEZAKRGHEE 275
for the year — 745 — 10,954 11,699
Dividends recognised as distibution 2R AH K2 RE — — — (106,003) (106,003)
i :3
At 31 December 2012 +ZA=+-H 448 53,470 2,955 1,695,476 1,752,349

BxEF--—s- | BUHEXETI SRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

50. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

The Company's share option scheme (the "2002 Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 April 2002, for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and expired on
24 April 2012. Under the 2002 Scheme, the Company could grant
options to eligible employees, including executive directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company at HK$ 10 per
option. Additionally, the Company could, from time to time, grant share
options to outside eligible third parties at the discrefion of the Board of

Directors.

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders, the total number
of shares in respect of which options could be granted under the 2002
Scheme was not permitted fo exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in fime. The number of shares in respect of which options
could be granted fo any individual was not permitted fo exceed 1% of the

shares of the Company in issue af any point in time.

Options could be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the share
opfion to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise price was
to be determined by the directors of the Company, and would not be less
than the higher of the nominal value of the Company’s share on the date of
grant, the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, or the closing price of the shares

on the date of grant.

No options were granted under the 2002 Scheme since ifs was adopted.

The 2002 Scheme expired on 24 April 20172.

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted by the Company
pursuant fo an ordinary resolution passed on @ May 2012 (the "2012
Scheme”). The terms of the 2012 Scheme and the 2002 Scheme are
broadly similar. The 2012 Scheme is effective for a period of 10 years.

No share opfion has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its

adoption.

50. Bxin RA#EEt B

(A) EoFERIRAEER
ARABRER-_ZET_FWA-_+HAREB
ZREBERRMNR G AT E( ST ZF5
2 FZENRANBSESTREERE
8 ZEEBR -ZE——FMWMA-+WAERE
e BEBE-TT_FiE AQRIUAEE
BEE(BERARBRENBARZHITES)
REEE  USHEEEE10TRERRA
B&15 o BEHh - AARATREMKE  HESE
BB R e & B INREE = 5 B AR 1) ER e o

EREGSARBBRREAMET RE-F
ToFHEA L ROBRTEEL
ARBREMKED ETRNDZ10% M
T EAERIA L2 BTG BE TSR
HARBRERKEESETRNZ 1% -

P £ B AT 09X B B AR AT T AU (E T B
TE - TEERARRERTER - ETER
ARREOREHEH2EE  REERD
B AT (A2 % B 2 B FHRmERE
EAZROUTEZRSE °

T T T F AT E R AR DA SR R R R
e BT _FHER T —FMNA-+MN
HEm e

BER-_FT-——_FAANBEBZERRE
= —IEFR DS =T — —F58 )
BERRBAERRA - —T— _F5 &8 2%
RE—TE_FHEZGERARBAER —F
——FREAMIMAI0F -

T FET BB R AR BRI R
o



50. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(B) SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF CHB

CHB has adopted a new share option scheme (the “2012 CHB Scheme”)
pursuant fo a resolution passed on @ May 2012 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees of the CHB Group
to replace the share option scheme which expired on 24 April 2012. The
ferms of the 2012 CHB Scheme were the same as the expired scheme.
Under the 2012 CHB Scheme, the Board of Directors of CHB could grant
options to eligible persons of the CHB Group, including directors and
employees of CHB and its subsidiaries, o subscribe for shares in CHB.

The tofal number of shares in respect of which options could be granted
under the 2012 CHB Scheme was not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the CHB in issue at the date of approval of the 2012 CHB
Scheme, without prior approval from the shareholders of CHB. No option
may be granted fo any person which, if exercised in full, would result in the
fotal number of shares issued and fo be issued upon exercise of the option
already granted and to be granted fo such person (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options but excluding lapsed options) in the
12-month period up fo and including the date of such new grant exceeding
1% of the shares in issue as atf the date of such new grant, provided that
opfions may be issued in excess of such limit if, among other things, such
grant shall have been separately approved by shareholders of CHB in a
general meeting at which that proposed grantee and his associates [as
defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong

Stock Exchange) shall have abstained for voting.

Options granted had to be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer,
upon payment of HK$10 per option and the exercise period shall not in
any event be longer than 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant
options. The exercise price was fo be determined by the Board of Directors
of CHB, and would be the highest of the closing price of CHB's shares on
the date of offer, the average closing price of the shares for the five frading
days immediately preceding the date of offer and the nominal value of the

shares.

No options were granted under the 2012 CHB Scheme since it was
adopted.

50. BRfp ARt B (4R)

(B) %I B §R 1T Bk {7 RA 42 &t &
BIERTERBR _ZE——_FHANBERA
LORFERENF A B ( =T ——F
BIBURTTAHE])  MEIRR T ——FMA
—tmAERBRD BETE TEEMNE
ROBEBRITEEZEETNEERESR
- FAIERITE G ED ERETE
HE - RIE-F——FRIHRITAHE - AIE
RITEFSAMAIFERTEENSGERBAL
(BREAIEBITREAMNBARZEZRER)
B - ARBAIEERITAD -

RIS AR TR BB T - 1R
T FARRTHATERBEZRGR
BTSRRI B = — = 4 B AR AT 5 B
ERABRRTRETRG 2 10% EREH
BAR BRI I B S (BIE R B ) k2 + = 8
AEARIPY - A E A A+ B S T B 2 B
(55 (BIEEATE - BRMRMRTEZR
55518 - BT BIEE K2 B 15 HIE) B
TR TR RS FRTNRGRY - TS
BB I H AR (9 B B 2 B TR M0 1% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 RE=F——F+-A=1+—HIt&EE

51. LOANS TO OFFICERS
The aggregate relevant loans to officers, included in “advances to
customers” in Note 26, and disclosure pursuant to Section 161B of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

51.ERARER
BEREERB(RBEPIDE 161BIRZIRE - B
BEESRABCEREHRER(ERENT
0[EFPBF]H)

THE GROUP #%mE

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
—g--f —g-—-f
t=p=t-8  t=A=t-8
HKS000 HKS'000
BRI BT
(restated)
(EE5)
Aggregate balance of all relevant loans outstanding RESHREBERENF O 2SR
at the end of the reporting period 65,016 76,942

THE GROUP *%E

31.12.2012
—2-CF
+=A=+-H
HKS'000
BRI

Maximum aggregate balance of relevant loans during the year

FRNERERFPAZRSHAHER

82,295

The loans bear interest at rates ranging from 0% to prime rate plus 10%.
Included in the loans fo officers are loans of HK$64,135,000 (2011:
HK$75,480,000) secured by collateral. These collateral are mainly

properties, securities and fixed deposits.

EERE R B 0% ZHEEFE N 10%T
HZ-BERTRABZERTERBEY
64,135,000t (ZF——*%F : B 75,480,000
TTREEMER - RFERTEBEYME -



52. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 52. HEME 2T
Details of the disposal by the Group of subsidiaries during the relevant  KEBREEERNLENB AT ZEBMT ¢

years are as follows:

o
5
Q
>
0,
Q.
el
0
ES)
o)
>m
S
9
+
d

2012 2011
—Z2--f —EB--fF
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
(note b) (note a)
(Gigd) GiED)
Total cash consideration received BhESRELEE 12,332 418,695
Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries at the date of disposal: KEAAREEHNEERER
Investment property REME = 418,695
Property, plant and equipment n% - BERRE 26 -
Other receivables EfpEREE 12,348 3,320
Bank balance RITEE 8 —
Other payables HiE5E (9) (54,624)
Net assefs disposed BHEEEFE 12,373 367,391
(Loss) gain on disposal e (F58) i (41) 51,304
Net cash (outflow) inflow arising on disposal: REHENBRS (RL)RAAFE:
Total cash consideration received EHESREAE (8) 418,695
nofes: Bt
(a) On 23 May 2011, the Group entered info a sale and purchase agreement to dispose (a) RIZE——FRA-+=H KEBETZHEENE
of its 100% equity interest in Prime Ocean Development Limited which holds an EE LEEMBEEEZERABMRAAA100%
investment property in the PRC. The purpose of the disposal is to generate cash for the [RAEZ - BEERBRARNFEFTAREY
expansion of the Group's other businesses. The disposal was completed on 23 May ¥ -HEBNDNAAEEEMERERELRS -
2011, resulting in a gain on disposal of HK$51,304,000. HER-_Z—FRA-_T+=B7%K  THERKLE

Wz % 51,304,000 7T °

(b) On 8 March 2012, the Group entered info a sale and purchase agreement fo dispose (b) R-ZE——F=AN\B AEETUHEELEER

of its 100% equity interest in Beijing Onsec Information Technology Company Limited, # o HEHEMFELREERRENEEERME
the disposal was completed on 1 October 2012, resulting in a loss on disposal of [RABH 100%RAME - HER-T——F+A
HK$41,000. — RS WAL & ERB 41,0007 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

53. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 53. R EEN
At the end of the reporting period, the assefs shown as below were  RFEHRILEH - THEAED KB FIRIT -

pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities made available to  pA{@ARLEE B AN BER T —RBITRE -
the Group and the Company.

THE GROUP #%mE

2012 2011
—g-=f —E-—-F
HKS'000 HK$'000
BETRT BB
CARRYING VALUE BEE
Investment properties BEYE 3,335,717 3,969,505

In addition, the Company also pledged the shares of a subsidiary in favour 4N » KA B IRGE— R B A FER T R1E

of a bank in support of the facilities granted to that subsidiary.The #BZHB AR ZRMHEA FRIT R -Z

subsidiary did not ufilise the facilities as at 31 December 2012 and 2011. ——& N —F——F+-A=+—H ' %K
BARNDRBITRLRME °

54. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 54. i RAREKIE
(A) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS — (A) BIRERR&EIE — WEBR
CONTRACTUAL AMOUNTS
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-=% 2% -g-=% 2%
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$"000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
(restated)
(&=3))
Direct credit substitutes (note (iii)) BEEEAREM (i) 1,077,350 1,163,474 — =
Trade-related confingencies BB AR HAER 425,309 373,802 = -
Capital commitments for FRBERENERKIE
non current assefs 182,722 187,802 174,858 179,252
Other commitments: HAhRdE
Which are unconditionally BE:CGNETRe
cancellable without FERBANE
prior notice 10,938,340 6,880,736 — —
With an original maturity of FEBER-FR
one year and under —EPRT 8,137,008 7,093,803 — —
0 With an original maturity of FEBMAR-FUL
OVer one year 2,420,887 2,210,112 — —
Lease commitments HERE 214,207 223,599 17,792 464
Financial guarantees for subsidiaries RRERTHBAR
(note (iv)) (BHE ) — — 684,600 684,700
Other guarantees fo third parties EERTE=R
(note (v)) (HHEE0) = 112,790 = —
23,395,823 18,246,118 877,250 864,416

210g boday [onuuy | paywry juswisaau) Buiy Buoy) niy



54.

(A)

notes:

(i

(ii)
(i)

(iv)

[v)

(B)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS —
CONTRACTUAL AMOUNTS (CONTINUED)

The credit risk weighted amount of confingent liabilities and commitments of the Group is
HK$3,682,397,000 (31.12.2011: HK$3,527,589,000) for financial services
operations. As at 31 December 2012, the credit risk weighted amount is calculated
based on “Standard approach”. The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk
weighted amount range from 0% to 100% (2011: 0% to 100%) which is assessed in
accordance with the Banking Capital Rules.

Most of contingent liabilities and commitments are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Direct credit substitutes included financial guarantees given by the Group.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had financial guarantees given to a bank in
support of banking facilities granted to subsidiaries. The aggregate amounts that the
Company could be required to pay if the guarantees were called upon in entirety
amounted to HK$684,600,000 (31.12.2011: HK$696,700,000), of which an
amount of HK$644,666,000 (31.12.2011: HK$397,743,000) was utilised by the
subsidiaries and recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position
as liabilities. The directors of the Company considered that the fair value of such
guarantees on initial recognition was insignificant.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group provided guarantees of HK$112,790,000
[31.12.2012: Nil) to banks in favour of its customers in respect of the morigage loans
provided by the banks fo such customers for the purchase of the Group's developed
properties. These guarantees provided by the Group to the banks would be released
upon receiving the building ownership certificate of the respective property by the banks
from the cusfomers as a pledge for security fo the mortgage loans granted. The directors
of the Company considered that the fair value of such guarantees on initial recognition
was insignificant.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under these non-cancellable operating leases

which fall due as follows:

54. RRARR AR (&)

(A) MRRRRKIE —
HWEREH(]|)
Mk -

(i) AEEN SRR EL 2 AR BB RAE 2 INERE
ERBESEABE 3082397000 (ZE——4F
+=ZRA=+—8: #%3,527,589,0007T) - K=
E-_H+"A=+—-08 " NMEEERRSEDIR
BIBEEIFE - AENEEERBRER AR
HENFO%EI100%(ZE——F+=-A=+—H:
0% % 100%) WIZFRCRITE (A A) SRADIERFE -

(i) REBID AN B ERASEIG B EEREL -
(i)  AAEEREUVBERNEREERE -

(v RZE-—ZF+ZA=+—H ARAGRMEAF
PR RITRARRITIEHMBER - ARRARZ
SRRESZREEETERTAIRE R ZEH
BB 684,600,000 (ZE——F+=ZA=+—
H : #%0696,700,0007T) - B LR B BB
644,666,000t(ZFE——F+-_A=+—08: %
¥307,743,0007T) - X ERAEELFEF BN
KERBAM - ARFRIEERA/ALFERININRE
REHATFEERTRE -

(v) R-Z——F+-_A=+—H8 ABEREEME
BROEMARITRZERBEERNES AEEA
HAPIRERTTER M T @A HERB M 112,790,0007t(=
T-—F+-A=+—8:BEZx)  ®RTK
HIRBEFRIRBMENEIEEEIEAIREE
PR - REERESERETNEER - AR
RIEERAZSERRVINERBENAFEEKRT
28 o

(B) ¥ *&IE

RBEREAEER - NREETAIEELEH
HWmAEER T FEE B M2 KRR &ERE
S HAT

THE GROUP #%£H THE COMPANY #*2 7

2012 2011 2012 2011

—%--fF —g2—-f —%-=F —g—-F

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

BETRT BETT BETR BETT

Within one year —ER 45,616 48,598 13,560 192
In the second to fifth years REZZERER

inclusive (BfFERME) 102,210 101,245 8,760 272

Over five years hE#% 66,381 84,283 — -

214,207 234,126 22,320 464

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of the

Group's offices, hotel premises and staff quarters. leases are negotiated for

a range of one tfo sixteen years and rentals are fixed throughout the lease

period.

REBNFTEEAEEETETE  BED
ENBIBEZENES WHHEEMR—=
THRENSE  BRESANESCEBEE
B TETE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

54. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(B) LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group as lessor had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

54. RRARRKIE (&)

(B) M#¥I&E (M)
RBEESHEEER  AREFEREHEARR
AT ARRKEE S HEBERRTL

THE GROUP #£m THE COMPANY %47
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f& —E——& —E-C-f —E—-F
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT T BETT BT T BET T
Within one year —FR 126,543 213,246 335 402
In the second to fifth years inclusive NE-ZERER
(BEERME) 116,438 234,390 — 183
242,981 447 636 335 585

Property rental income eamed during the year was HK$273,087,000
(2011: HK$260,338,000). All of the properties held have committed

tenants for the next one o five years.

(C) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting period are as

FRANYEE WA RER 273,087,000 7T
—ZT——% : #%260,338,0007T) FTE
MEHEEFEARB—ERFNEY -

(C) A&
RIRE R - AARABERIT

follows:
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-=f et —g-=f —E--F
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Capital expenditure confracted for but EENERNGEBBRRL
not provided in the consolidated BEZEREY:
financial statements in respect of:
— Property, plant and equipment —-N¥ BERRE 7,864 8,550 — =
— Contributions to the capital - REESMERENR
of investment funds 174,858 179,252 174,858 179,252




55. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(A) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE GROUP
(EXCLUDING THE CHB GROUP)

For its eligible employees in Hong Kong, the Group operates a defined

contribution scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund

Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).

Confributions payable by the Group to the MPF Scheme are defermined
based on the rules underlying the respective schemes and are charged to
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The assefs of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employees contributes 5%
of the relevant payroll (limited 1o 2012: HK$13,750 (201 1: HK$12,000)
per annum of each individual employee) to the MPF Scheme, while the

Group confributes 5% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme.

In addition, certain employees of the Group's subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of state-managed refirement benefits schemes. The
subsidiaries are required to confribute a cerfain percentage of their payroll
costs to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect fo these refirement benefits schemes is

to make the specified contributions.

(B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE CHB GROUP

At the end of the reporting period, the CHB Group had two refirement
schemes in operation including a defined confribution plan and a defined
benefit plan (the “ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme”) which were both
registered under the Occupational Refirement Scheme Ordinance in 1995
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000.
Employees of the CHB Group who were members of the ORSO Scheme
prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme could stay within the ORSO
Scheme or switch to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the CHB Group on or affer December 2000 are required fo join the MPF
Scheme. Most of the employees of the CHB Group enrolled in the MPF
Scheme in replacement of the ORSO Scheme (the “participating
members”). The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
CHB Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employee contributes 5% of the relevant payroll (limited to 2012:
HK$13,750 (2011: HK$12,000) per annum of each individual
employee) fo the MPF Scheme while the CHB Group confributes from 5%
to 10% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme depending on the years

of service completed by the relevant employees.

55. &t i #l &t 81
(A) % % B 7 7 &t B

(FEENREFTENE)
ARBAES A ERIEBET AR
BEtel - LERMEAESHE TREMR
HoHE ) -

BIERESTE 2 ABRAFE  NEBEE
2@ HEEE2EKRGERNR - BE
SHEBEERZTANESHNIES - BA
SECEEIFRERE - RIERERE - 8
TRREBBABHERSY (BLEIEER
B —T——F:8%13,750n(ZF——
F B 12,0007)) REEEETEIAR - MA
SEBEIRIBEABE TABNS%MRES TS

T -

o REERTEKRIZHBARZET
BERBERERERKRBAFEZKE - ZF
MEBARAREMESE T BN LRRKERN
FHEMER R UBRNAREN - AREY
ZEFRRBN T E 2 E—BEDEREER

=+
Moo

(B) %5 5R 17 5K M5B tFia # 5t &

BIERITRB AN MEARLEEITMER ARG
g BEE —NMNAEFRBRB(BERKEE
i1 )& f0 2 G 8l R R H B E B AR
HE((RAED mME-ZTTETF+ A
FEAR HRC o8 il 1 X FE @ 5T R BB 7 2 58 il
MABEeE([RESE]) - ERESE
ZIV AT RAEFEKE 2B HBITEEE
IR R ERABFESERMARESTE
AMAABE_SZTZTF+ A AEMAA
FIRTEB B TAIBL NBESTE -
AEDAIFRITE TR 2L EBBESTE
UEBRREAE(T2EAL]) - BEREE
CEEBRBUGEARR ESRE WM
BIRBRITEBM I EEDH - (ERRESEE
KE BIAREBBEABHKSH(BALE
IBFRE-T—Z_F: B¥13,/750x(=
T——4 : B#12,0007T)) - MAIEIEITE
BzHEFABTFEIRBFEMZREBBEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

55. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE CHB GROUP
(CONTINUED)

The CHB Group operates the ORSO [Defined benefit] Scheme for
qualifying employees. Under the ORSO (Defined benefit] Scheme, the
employees of the CHB Group are entitled to refirement benefits varying
between 0% and 100% of total contributions on attainment of a retirement
age of 55. Upon refirement, the employees of the CHB Group are entitled
fo monthly pension until death varying between O and 100 percent of final

salary depending on years of service completed af the time of refirement.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme
was carried ouf as at 31 December 2011 by the qualified actuaries of
Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited. The actuarial valuation is carried out
periodically, but at least triennially. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the current service cost have been measured using the

Projected Unit Credit method.

At the date of the latest formal independent actuarial valuation made on
31 December 2011, the net retirement asset of the ORSO (Defined benefit)
Scheme was HK$10,747,000.

55.BkiEFIat @ (48)
(B) #5838 17 5 M5B k& # &1 & (#8)

BIBRITRERMEAERE TRERAE
2 (BEERM) - ERAE (BEERM) T
BIBRITEBETIFRERA T RARERFEK -
BERIERZRAENSE/ERITHRER
0%Z=100% - Al EIRTERE 8 THRRIKEFR

BRGFEMEEARSARREERTZ
BREEIEERZEFBELF 0% 2 100% -

REMERENBERERARKON_-F
—— S+ A=t BHREFIECIERHN)
EHLEEMRE BEAESEH(BRI=F
— IR LT e EWEEKL‘HE?EE%%}HE%
HEEE RN E TAREMRRBEAAR -

R-B——F+-A=1+—H XRITREA
EERTRBELBERE - HRAE (BEE
&) BFRINE E /B 10,747,0007T -

2011
—2--%
HKS'000
BETT
Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the defined benefit plans AERERERNEEEFGESNT
are as follow:
Current service cost RRBAA (59)
Interest cost on benefit obligation BHEEHFS T (610)
Interest income on plan assefs HYEENFIERA 1,096
427
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of the REM2ERETRANEEERKET
defined benefit plans is as follow: STEFHIMT
Difference between actual return on plan assefs and inferest, FERMSRNEREREEEEENESE
and actuarial losses 10,268




55. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE CHB GROUP

(CONTINUED)

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial position

arising from the CHB Group’s defined benefit refirement benefit plan is as

follows:

55.BiEFI st @ ()
(B) &5 58 17 & M 5B ¢ 78 #I &t & (4%)

AR A M BN Al R 1T 5 B &Y BE TE 1R A
RKRMETRIFHIT

2011
—2——F
HKS'000
BETT
Present value of defined benefit obligation BERREINRE (24,073)
Fair value of plan assets HEEENATE 34,820
10,747
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as B Eigh| S AR EZEEEHMT
follow:
2011
—3—%
HKS'000
BETT
Opening defined benefit obligation MR ERNET 25,450
Inferest cost B 610
Current service cost B R A 59
Actuarial losses (resulting from changes of financial assumptions) BEFE (HRIHRRES) 502
Benefits paid EREH (2,548)
Closing defined benefit obligation MABERNET 24,073
Changes in fair value of plan assets are as follow: HEIEEMATBEZEFHLMT
2011
S -
HKS'000
BETT
Opening fair value of plan assefs WO EEENATE 25,502
Interest income FIEHA 1,09
Return on plan assefs HEEENER 10,770
Benefits paid BAEA (2,548)
Closing fair value of plan assefs MR HEEATE 34,820
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

55. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE CHB GROUP
(CONTINUED)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of

fotal plan assets are as follow:

55.BkiEFIat @ (48)
(B) #5838 17 5 M5B k& # &1 & (#8)

AEIEEMNTIR2EINEGFEEENATE
EBED LRI ¢

2011

S

%

Cash Hé 20
Equifies (nofe) BRE (W) 80

note:  The equities represented invesiments in two equify securifies which are securities of The
Hong Kong & China Gas Limited and of the Company of which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

The amounts of assets of the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme invested in

CHB's own deposit account as af 31 December 2011 were:

M REBRREREBMAX M EMNTEPER
RARABRARRHRE

RZEBE——F+-A=+—H  WwalGie
AEDMEESRAERBRTHENER,A
ol

2011

—B——f

HK$'000

BT

Deposits with the CHB REIBRTHER 6,814

The significant assumptions used in determining the defined benefit

obligations are shown below:

ARRERREBHNEEN T ERRAOT

2011
—E—-F
%

Discount rate B =

Expected rate of salary increase B EL =
Expected rate of pension increase FHESERR
Interest credited on welfare balance ERSERE

1.5 per annum
3.0 per annum
0.0 per annum
2.0 per annum




55. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
(B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE CHB GROUP
(CONTINUED)

The table below indicates the potential effect of change of the significant

55.BiEFI st @ ()
(B) &5 58 17 & M 5B ¢ 78 #I &t & (4%)

ERERNEENEARKREEMELNE

assumptions on the defined benefit obligation: EE2 . RN
2011
—E—-F
Change in assumption
RERNES
+0.25% —0.25%
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
Discount rate BRI ® (547) 572
Expected rate of salary increase BB = 65 (63)
Expected rate of pension increase FEHESELR 404 -
Interest credited on welfare balance BABREFE 9 8

As at 31 December 2011, the weighted average duration of the defined

benefit obligation is approximately 9.3 years.

The costs for providing benefits to the members of the ORSO (Defined
benefit) Scheme are funded by the Group. The confributions required by
the Group tfo fund the costs are determined by periodic funding valuations

in accordance with the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance.

As of 31 December 2011, the Group is not required to contribufe fo the
ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme with respect to the members of the ORSO
(Defined benefit] Scheme according to the results of the last statutory
funding valuation of the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme as at 31
December 2011

when the results of the next statutory funding valuation of the ORSO

. The Group's contribufion rafe may be subject to change

(Defined benefit) Scheme as at 31 December 2014 become available.

RZZE——F+A=+—8 BEBME
ERINEFRRE R Q.34 -

AEBEERERBFEGUERN)KEH
FMZREVBCAR o RIBCBERIRET EMEDI) - B ER
MESHERARERNEBREZ DRAN
ERMREK -

RELEAR-_FT——F+-_A=+—H=EK
MRERB(BEERAM) EZEM/E R=-F
——F+ZA=+—R rEEYRREREE
Eﬁiﬂ(ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂ)EPE’\JﬁE%&%ﬁT#?k%*°
ETAR-_Z-—NE+_A=+—HNEFEE
:JrilJ(E%E%Eﬂ)ii%%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂé P R&E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

56. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 56. B ALTIHEEE
(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (A) ABALZS
During the year, the Group and the Company entered info the following — RANERE » AN @ % AN 7] BRI A 577
significant fransactions with related parties: UFREKRZS
THE GROUP #%M THE COMPANY %47
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f% —E—-F “E--f —2—-F
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BRI BETRT BETT
Income received and receivable BWREWRHE AR 2 A
from subsidiaries
Rental income A ON — = — 4,336
Management and other EERHMRBEERA
service fee income — — 1,680 3,367
Interest income FEWA — = 108,492 87,064
— — 110,172 94,767
Expenses paid and payable to subsidiaries B REAMBARZZH
Rental expenses HexH — - 4,517 4,017
Management fee expenses EEBXH = — — 264
— — 4517 4,281
Income received and receivable B R R 0 2 A
from associates
Interest income FEKA 313 332 — —
Commission income [EEALON 19,539 16,425 — —
19,852 16,757 — —
Expenses paid and payable to associates 2R RENEE AR 2 X H
Interest expenses FEXH 486 297 — —
Other service expenses HittfR% X H 2774 3,020 — —
3,260 3,317 — —




56. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

56. BB A+ % EE ()
(A) BABEA L35 ()

THE GROUP #%ME THE COMPANY #4475
2012 2011 2012 2011
—%-=fF —2—-F —%-=fF g%
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Income received and receivable EHREKREEREAS
from key management personnel 2
Interest income FIEWA 5,496 6,344 — —
Other service fee income HiREEWA 17 170 = —
5,513 6,514 — —
Expenses paid and payable to ENREREEEEAR
key management personnel A3
Interest expenses FIEXH 10,960 9,524 — —

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had financial guarantees
issued fo a bank in support of banking facilities granted to subsidiaries,

details of which are set out in Note 54.

(B) RELATED PARTY BALANCES

PSR IR - D AIBEN B A 7 BT R IRIT
A& RERITIE L BT ISR - S B E IR
54

(B) BIMEA L &8

THE GROUP #%£H

2012 2011

—g-=& 3%

HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BETT

Loan to associates EFRE AT ER 14,337 37,599

Loan to key management personnel BFIEERASZER 417,568 969,505

Deposit from associates BENTAZER 97,147 75,730

Deposit from key management personnel IEEBAEZER 653,558 651,396
Details of the Group's and the Company’s outstanding balances with other R =T —=—F+=-_A=4+—H  KEE KK
related parties, including bank balances with the CHB Group at 31 AR EEM A T2 R EBLLH - 2N AIHE
December 2012, are set out in the Group’s consolidated statement of  $R{ITEBEEWB AT 2 RITFR - EHR
financial position and the Company’s statement of financial position and 7N £ [ # 45 B 76 4k S = M 2N &) B I 400 5=

Notes 44, 46 and 47.

RMisE 44 - 46 - k47 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

56. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(C) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The emoluments of key management personnel of the Group during the

year were as follows:

56. ABMATHREER (&)
() X EEBAR#MS
FRAEETEEBABZHMMOT :

THE GROUP #%M THE COMPANY #45

2012 2011 2012 2011

—E--f% —E—-F “E--f —2—-F

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

Short-term benefifs BHEA 96,024 91,243 27,226 25,193
Post-employment benefits EEEKEF 5,493 4,945 590 629
101,517 96,188 27,816 25,822

The emoluments of directors and key executives are determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals

and market frends.

57. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 4 February 2013, the
Group has enfered into a framework agreement whereby the Group would
dispose of its enfire inferest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary holding a
property project in Foshan, PRC for a fotal consideration of approximately
HK$2,095 million, subject to entering a formal contract. As at 31
December 2012, carrying amounts of major assets held by the subsidiaries
include investment properties, properties held for sale, properties under
development for sale of approximately HK$231 million, HK$465 million
and HK$458 million, respectively. As at the date that these financial
statements are approved by the directors, this transaction is not yet

completed.

The directors are sfill evaluating the financial impact of this transaction to

the Group.

EERIZTRABZEMEFHEZES
BEARBEEMSBEETE -

57. R EHM&FER
RERBHA-ZT—=F_AMNANAAAA
& AEEFLERGE  HEERPEE
W EMEEEN—BIEZEMNBRARNS
AR AR - BREX BB 2,095,000,000
T UERFTERERR/E - RZE—ZF+=
A=+—H ZMBRAFEZETEZLEER
FEREADE SHEVERFLEERESY
¥ 9 R4 A %B 231,000,000 &
465,000,000 7% K % # 458,000,000 7T © 7
ZEVREEEEIEER  ZRHHEKRT
B o

ERNEFERARHEARRENM B E



58. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Parficulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2012 and 2011 are as follows:

58. X EME LT

(A) HEBLRM—KREH
RZF-—ZFR=ZF——F+ZA=+—8"
ARBIZEBMBRRERLAT

Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
ML BRTEE KARABEERTRAER/
HEAREHR W B/ S RA/ERER &Rz LA TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE %
2012 2011 2012 2011
=8--f - -f -B--f "B —F
% % % %
Abaleen Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 — —  Property investment
) 100,000 7 NERE
Algin Limited Hong Kong HKS9,500 100 100 — —  Investment holding
HEBRAR 5% BEIN00TT REER
Bonsun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HKS2,000,000 100 100 — —  Property investment
ERLEERAR 5% 2000000 7T NERE
Card Alliance Company Limited Hong Kong HK$18,000,000 — — 100 100 Credit card management
FHBRLR & F5 18,000,000 7T ERFEE
(HB (i)  Hong Kong HKS217,500,000 — = 50.20 49.09  Banking and related
RIERIT B S 217,500,000 7T financial services
BT RARER A RS PR TS
Chong Hing Commodities and Hong Kong HKS5,000,000 — — 100 100 Investment holding and
Futures Limited Bk FB155,000,000 7T commodifies and
AERRAEERAR futures broking
RERBRPEESR
Chong Hing Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 — — 100 100 Depositfaking and lending
BB BERAR & F 25,000,000 7T EXERRER
Chong Hing Information Technology Hong Kong HK$100,000 — = 100 100 Provision of electronic data
Limited ] F5#5100,000 7T processing services
BIRERNEBRAR RESFERERRS
Chong Hing Insurance Company Hong Kong HKS85,000,000 — — 100 100 Insurance underwriting
Limited &8 FE# 85,000,000 7T R
AIERBERAR
Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 — — 100 100 Provision of nominee
A1 (RE)BRAR 5% 100,000 services
REREARE
Chong Hing Securifies Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 — = 100 100 Stockbroking
BIEEFERAT 5 710,000,000 7T REEE
Chong Yip Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS1,000,000 100 100 — —  Money lending
AIEBRBERAR 5% 1,000,000 7T BRER
Devon Realty Limifed Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 — —  Property investment
BEMEARAR BE BEN0T NERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

58. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

58. X EMBLT (M)
(A) BRI —KREH (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R AL L2 BRTER AAAREERITRAEE
WEARER M R SER REA/BRER EMERZ A TEER
Directly Indirectly
B Gk
2012 2011 2012 2011
Zg--f -T--f 8- "B -F
% % % %
Donington Company Limited Hong Kong HKS200 100 100 — —  Property investment
BE B 200 T WERE
EC Architecture & Design Hong Kong HKS100 — — 90 90  Property development
Company Limited &8 BRI consulfancy
WEBRERB
Gallbraith Limited Hong Kong HKS16,550,000 — — 100 100 Property investment
BEEERAA 58 16,550,000 7T WERE
Gem Gain Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HKS30 — 100 — —  Investment holding
HREEERAR B BT REER
Great Eamest Limited Hong Kong HKS200 100 100 — —  Property investment
ARERDH B BT MERE
Heng Kin Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 — —  Property investment
BRREBRAT BE BBIT WERE
Hero Marker Limited Hong Kong HKS$100,000 — — 100 —  Property investment
BERERAR s 100,000 7T WERE
Hugh Glory Limited Hong Kong HKS100 — — 90 90 Investment holding
BEEERAR B B0 REER
Hugh Welth Hong Kong HKS100 100 100 — —  Investment holding
BB BE BE100 T REER
Jacot Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 — —  Investment holding
ERBRAR s BT REER
Ko Yew Company Limited Hong Kong HKS200 100 100 — —  Property investment
BEERLA B BT MERE
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 — —  Investment holding
Limited B 710,000,000 7T REER
BRAIREXERAR
Liu Chong Hing Godown Hong Kong HKS72,000,000 100 100 — —  Property investment
Company, Limited &8 772,000,000 7T WERE
BRAEAERBRAR
Liu Chong Hing Property Hong Kong HKS1,000,000 100 100 — —  Property management
Management and Agency Limited B 81,000,000 T and agency
BRAENEERRREERLF NEEBRRE
Luxpolar Limited Hong Kong HKS?2 — — 100 100 Property investment
BE BBIT WERE



58. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 58. T EME LT (&)

(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES (A) BRI —REHE (&) g
s}
(CONTINUED) e

Place of Issued ordinary Z

incorporation or share capital/ e}
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/ -
Name of subsidiary notes operafions capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities o
A ERITERE AARAREERITRARRE iy
L) PEIE=L Biar RS RA/ERER HEERZ A TEXH St

Directly Indirectly
HE B

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f %% ZB--f —ZT-—-F

% % % %

Marble Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HKS?2 — 100 — —  Investment holding

BEBRAR 5% BEIT REER

Queen Profit Infernational Hong Kong HKS61,540 83.75 83.75 — —  Investment holding
Investment Limited o BENMT REER

HAERREBRAR

Speed World Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS100 — — 60 60 Investment holding

EBREBRAR i BEI0T REER

Top Benefit Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 — - 100 100 Property Investment

BEEEERAR 5 7 100,000 7T MERE

Top Team Limited Hong Kong HKS200 100 100 — —  Investment holding

5% B 200 T REER

Trade Castle Limited Hong Kong HKS1 — — 100 100 Investment holding

ERBERAR 5% BT REER

Truegrow Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 — = 100 100 Investment holding

BRREERAR 5 BEIT REER

Wealth Good Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 — —  Investment holding

WAREBERAR &% BT REER

Yue Tung Ching Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HKS$2,000,000 100 100 — —  Property investment

RREZERAA B# 32,000,000 7T NERE

Foshan Nanhai Hugh Glory Property (i) PRC RMB500,000,000 — = 90 90  Property development
Development Company Limited HE BB #:500,000,000 7T MEER

HLBEERENERRERAT

Guangzhou Chong Hing Property (i) PRC RMB170,000,000 — — 60 60  Property development
Development Company Limifed FE AERHE170,000,000 7T MEER

ENEIEERERRBRAA

Guangzhou Trade Castle Property (i) PRC HKS6,500,000 — — 100 100 Property investment
Consultancy Limited HE 16,500,000 7T NERE

ENTERENEZARRAF

Guangzhou Wealth Smart Property (i) PRC HKS1,000,000 — = 100 100 Property management 293
Management Company Limited HE SEB1000,000 7T yrem

ENTREBNEEREBRLA

Maanshan Gaoke Magnetic (i)~ PRC RMB65,370,000 — — 51.5 51.5  Manufacturing of
Material Company Limited FE AR 65,370,000 7T magnetic materials

BRLBSREMERBRLA BRI B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M A
For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

58. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(A) GENERAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

58. X EMBLT (M)
(A) BRI —KREH (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation or share capital/
establishment/ registered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes operations capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRI BRTLE AARRBEERTRARE/
WEAREH W Rk e REEMER EMER LA TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# M
2012 2011 2012 2011
“B--f -“2--§F -—B--f -—B-——f
% % % %

Shanghai Huang Pu Liu Chong (i) PRC 1SS$34,600,000 — = 100 95 Property investment
Hing Property Development FE 34,600,000 % 7T WERE
Company Limited

LEERBAIRE L ERE

BRATE

Shanghai Truegrow Hotel (i) PRC RMB32,500,000 — — 100 100 Hotel operation and
Management Company Limited el AR 32,500,000 7 management

LEEREEERERAT TEEEREE

Blossom Success Investments British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 100 100 — —  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong [ESS REER

HIEREERAR RERLES/

Ee
China Link Technologies Limited British Virgin Islands/ UsS100 100 100 — —  Investment holding
Hong Kong 100%7 REER
RERLES/
B5
Determined Resources Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 100 — —  Share investment
Hong Kong 1L00%7 RIDRE
RERLES/
Terryglass Limited British Virgin Islands,/ USS1,000 100 100 — —  Investment holding
Thailand 1000% 7 RERR
RERLES/
ZE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of ZEER A HAEEEEXEEBEATE

the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give ZZK% EfE AR REEFIN LR -ES

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the direcfors, result in AREHEMHRBARER - BIEEA

particulars of excessive length. B’t\)'bﬁ °

notes: BT

(i) The shares of CHB are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

(ii) The companies are soleforeign equity ventures established in the PRC.

[ii)  The companies are sinoforeign equity joint ventures established in the PRC.

(iv) The companies are sinoforeign co-operative joint ventures established in the PRC.

(i) BIERITEVRMD IR B BB 2P £ -
(ii) ZERARRPBEKRLZIEBERE -

i) HERX

ARNAPBIKS 2RI BEEE

v  ZEFAFAERRPEKLPIGIERLE AT



58. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(B) DETAILS OF A NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY
THAT HAS MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

58. TEME LT (&)
(B) EEAFEBRUAHEREN
B

The table below shows defails of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the TxEERAEEAE AR EXMIEERE
Group that have material non-controlling inferests: B ATIREMAEE -
Proportion of ownership interest
Place of incorporation and voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary and business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
EMALBE HFERREREZ
WEAREE St BRRRERRZELA AERAFERBREER FERRRES R
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
=§--f =-%-§ <-%--f - <-B-=f -2 —Ff
% % HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BETT BETR BT
(HB AIESR1T Hong Kong &5 49.80 50.91 270,638 285,461 3,686,202 3,498,872

CHB is the only subsidiary in the Group, the non-controlling interests therein
are material. Summarized financial information of CHB, before intra-group

eliminations, is as below:

BIELRTT R AREE—HNEB AR - EFH
FEBESBEAN - AIBRRITREERE
AT B ERBELT

Financial position Bt %R R
2012 2011
g-=f 5%
HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT
(restated)
(==51)
Total assets BEE 80,755,365 77,455,912
Total liabilities BnefE (73,381,285) (70,583,180)
Equity attributable to owners of the Group AEBRREGER 7,374,080 6,872,732
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IR AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012 H#Z=F——F+-A=1t-RLLEE

58. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 58. FEMEBLAT ()
(B) DETAILS OF A NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY (B) MEEXERBREAHEDAM
THAT HAS MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BAFHE ()
(CONTINUED)
Results 4
2012 2011
—E--F -k
HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
(restated)
(Cc27)
Revenue g 1,817,769 1,646,246
Profit for the year REEEF 543,340 560,716
Profit atfributable to owners of the Company KEERHAEARATRE 272,702 275,255
Profit attributable to the non-controlling inferests REERNAERFERRRES 270,638 285,461
Profit for the year AEERA 543,340 560,716
Other comprehensive income (expense) attributable to owners Hit2EE () 2 BEAKRAARE
of the Company 79,354 (28,125)
Other comprehensive income (expense) attributable to HEit2ENE (H) A BERFEERRRER
the non-controlling interests 78,754 (29,167)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year AEEHMEEKE () 158,108 (57,292)
Total comprehensive income atfributable to owners 2ERELEIREREATRR
of the Company 352,056 247,131
Total comprehensive income atfributable to 2ERELEITREERRRES
the non-controlling inferests 349,392 256,293
Total comprehensive income for the year KEZEIRZHALE 701,448 503,424
Dividend paid to non-controlling inferests BREXFHERBRER (101,870) (111,931)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activifies BELEEKBHERACRE) 38 1,293,844 (779,447)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from investing activifies RELRRS (RL)RAFE (3,252,294) 1,911,744
Net cash outflow from financing activities BRETHREER (265,325) (1,065,021)
Net cash (outflow) inflow BEORE)ANEE (2,223775) 67,276
6

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of CHB to transfer funds to  ¥7 74 8 S 3R 17 AR B4 3R € A% B ek (BB B 3k
the Group in the form of cash dividends or to repay loans or advances BFMERAAEEERE S WEIENE
made by the Group. ABR I
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LIU CHONG HING INVESTMENT LIMITED

25/F Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3768 9038

Fax: (852) 3768 9008

E-mail: info@Ichi.com.hk

Website: www.Ichi.com.hk

Stock Code: 194
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